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JUAN CARLOS PUIG
SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY

October 22, 2010

The Honorable Governor of Puerto Rico
Members of the Legisiature, and People of Puerto Rico:

It is a pleasure to submit, for your information, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
{CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. This report, presented in three sections, Introductory, Financial, and
Statistical, is the primary means of reporting the Commonwealth’s financial activities.

The introductory section, which is not audited, includes this letter of transmittal, general
information about the Commonwealth, a list of the Commonwealth’s principal elected and
appointed officials at the balance sheet date, and an organizational chart. The financial section
contains the independent auditors® report, management’s discussion and analysis (MD&AY), and
the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The financial section also tncludes
the notes to the basic financial statements, reguired supplementary information, and other
supplementary information. The statistical section, which is not audited, includes selected
financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear basis.

Profile of the Commonwealith

The Puerto Rico Department of the Treasury is responsible for the preparation of this report. The
responsibitity for the accuracy of presented data and the completeness and faimess of the
presentation, including all of the disclosures, rests on the Commonwealth’s management. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the following data, as presented, is accurate in all material
respects and is presented in a manner designed to set forth the financial position and the results of
operations of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Commonwealth as of June 30, 2009 and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have included zll the necessary disclosures to enable the reader to gain a
thorough understanding of the Commonwealth’s activities.

The financial reporting entity includes ali funds of the Commonwealth, which comprises the
primary government, as well as all its component units. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporiing Entity, as amended by
Statement No. 3%, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, the
Commeoenwealth’s financial reporting entity includes 50 component units: 4 are blended
component units including 3 fiduciary component units, 6 major discretely presented component
units, and 40 non-major discretely presented component units. Component units are legally
separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable, or other
organizations; the nature and significance of whose relationship with the Commonwealth are such
that exclusion would cause the Commonwealth’s basic firancial statements to be misleading and
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incomplete. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of
the primary government’s operations and are included as part of the primary govemment.
Discretely presented component units, both major and non-major, are reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are not part of the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position and results of operations from
those of the primary government.

Generally, each component unit issues audited financial statements, which can be obtained from
the component unit’s administrative offices. The basic financial statements included in the
financial section of this CAFR provide descriptions of the operations of each of the following
component units of the Commonwealth:

Blended Component Units:

Public Buildings Authority

Puerto Rico Maritime Shipping Authority
Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporatton
The Children’s Trust

Discretely Presented Component Unifs:

Agricultural Services and Development Administration

Automobile Accidents Compensations Administration
Cardiovascular Center Corporation of Puerto Rico and the Caribbean
Company for the Integral Development of the “Peninsula de Cantera™
Corporation for the “Cafio Martin Pefia” ENLACE Project
Corporation for the Development of the Arts, Science and Film Industry of Puerto Rico
Culebra Conservation and Development Authority

Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico

Employment and Training Enterprises Corporation

Farm Insurance Corporation of Puerto Rico

Fine Arts Center Corporation

Govemning Board of the 9-1-1 Service

Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico

Institute of Puerto Rican Cuiture

Institutional Trust of the National Guard of Puerto Rico

Land Authority of Puerto Rico

Musical Arts Corporation

National Parks Company of Puerto Rico

Ports of the Americas Authority

Public Corporation for the Supervision and Deposit Insurance of Puerto Rico Cooperatives
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority

Puerto Rico Conservatory of Music Corporation

Puerto Rico Convention Center District Authority

Puerto Rico Council on Higher Education

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority

Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration

Puerto Rice Highways and Transportation Authority

Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company

kA,
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Puerto Rico Industrial, Tourist, Educational, Medical, and Envircnmental Control Facilities
Financing Authority
Puerto Rice Infrastructure Financing Authority
Puerto Rico Land Administration
Puerto Rico Maritime Transportation Authority
Puerto Rico Medical Services Administration
Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority
Puerto Rico Municipal Finance Agency
Puerto Rico Ports Authority
Puerto Rico Public Broadcasting Corporation
Puerio Rico School of Plastic Arts
Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority
Puerto Rice Telephone Authority
Puerio Rico Tourism Company
Puerto Rice Trade and Expert Company
Right to Employment Administration
Special Communities Perpetual Trust
State Insurance Fund Corporation
University of Puerto Rico

Fiduciary Component Units:

Employees” Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities
Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System
Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Penstons for Teachers

Independent Auditors

Commonwealth statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The
firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP was selected by the Commonweaith to perform the audit of the
basic financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America for the fiscal year 2009. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Commonweaith for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 are fairly stated in accordance with U.S. generaily accepted accounting principles.
The independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial
section of this report.

Internal Controls

The management of the Commonwealth is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls to ensure that assets of the Commonwealth are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and
that adequate accounting data is compiled for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The internal controls are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met, The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments
by management.

_‘t‘"“{“}"
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As a recipient of federal assistance, the Commonwealth is also responsibie for ensuring that internal
controls are in place to ensure that documents and processes are in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to such federal financial assistance programs.

Certain departments, agencies, and political subdivisions are subject to the requirements of the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. As a result, these entities are audited for
compliance with the requirements of the federal financial assistance programs. These audits are
performed at the department or agency level. The Commonwealth has provided for the possible cost
disallowance that may arise from these audits, as well as from other audits that may be performed by

federal grantors.

Budget and Fiscal Pelicy

The fiscal year of the Commonwealth begins each July 1. The Governor is constitutionally required to
submit to the Legislature an annual balanced budget of capital improvements and operating expenses of
the central government for the ensuing fiscal year.

The annual budget ts prepared by the Puerto Rico Office of Management and Budget (OMB}, working
with the Puerto Rico Planning Board, the Puerto Rico Department of the Treasury, and other government
offices and agencies. Section 7 of Article 6 of the Constitution provides that “The appropriations made
Jor any fiscal year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for the said
Jiscal year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover the said appropriations is provided by law."”

The Commonweaith maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the
Legislature. Activities of the general fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. Budgetary
control resides at the department level. The Commonwealth also maintains an encumbrance accounting
system as one method of maintaining budgetary control.

The annual budget, which is developed using elements of program budgeting, inclides an estimate of
revenue and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws existing at the time the budget is
submitted and legislative measures proposed by the Governor and submitted with the proposed budget, as
well as the Governor’s recommendations as to appropriations that in his judgment are necessary,
convenient, and in conformity with the four-year investment plan prepared by the Puerio Rico Planning
Board.

The Legislature may amend the budget submitted by the Govemnor, but may not increase items that would
cause a deficit without imposing additional taxes to cover such deficit. Once approved by the Legislature,
the budget is referred to the Governor, who may decrease or efiminate any item, but may not increase or
insert new items in the budget. The Governor may also veto the budget in its entirety and retumn it to the
Legislature with his objections. The Legislature, by a two-thirds majority in each house, may override the
Governor’s veto. If a budget is not adopted prior to the end of the fiscal year, as originally approved by
the Legislature and the Governor, it is automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until a new
budget is approved by the Legislature and the Governor. This allows the Commonwezlth to continue to
pay operating and other expenses until a new budget is approved.

sy,
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Governmental Activities

General governmental activities of the Commonwealth are accounted for in four govemmental funds.
These funds are: general, special revenue, debt service, and capital project. The general fund is the
primary operating fund of the Commonwealth. The general fund is used to account for resources
traditionally associated with govenment, which are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in another fund. Included are transactions for services such as general
government, public safety, health, public housing and welfare, education, and economic development.
Other major funds are the debt service fund, which accounts for the accumulation of resources
predominantly for, and the payment of, the Commonwealth general long-term bonds® principal, interest,
and related costs; the pledged sales and use tax fund, which accounts for the sales and use tax revenue and
the comesponding transfer to COFINA debt service fund for the payment of debt; COFINA special
revenue fund, which accounts for all financial resources of COFINA, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund; and the COFINA debt service fund, which accounts for the
Commonwealth sales tax deposited in the dedicated sales tax fund for the payment of interest and
principal on long-term obligations. Non-major governmental funds are combined in a single column in
the governmental fund financial statements, and individually identified in the supplementary combining
non-major governmental funds’ financial statements of this report.

Business-Type Activities

Proprietary funds are used fo account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the government is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges or where the government has decided that periodic determination of net incotne is appropriate for
accountability purposes,

The Commonwealth’s major proprietary funds operations comprise the following: the Unemployment
Insurance Trust Fund and the Lotteries of Puerto Rico. The Puerto Rico Water Pollution Control
Revotving Fund, the Puerto Rico Safe Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, the Disability
Insurance Fund, and the Drivers’ Insurance Fund are all non-major proprictary funds combined in a single
column in the proprictary funds financial statements, and individually identified in the supplementary
combining non-major proprietary funds® financial statements of this report.

Fiduciary Operatiens

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets heid by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental units. These include the pension trust
and agency funds. Pension trust funds are established through trust agreements specifying how the fund
will operate. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not report fund balances. The pension trust
funds include the Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities, the Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System, and the Puerto Rico System of Annuities
and Pensions for Teachers.

_‘“;UQ*'
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Agency funds consist of the Special Deposits Fund. This agency fund includes deposits under the custody
of the Courts of Justice for alimony payments, deposits under the custody of the Commissioner of
Insurance of the Commonwealth for escheated property, and for insurance companies under bankruptcy
and an allocated share of the sales and use tax corresponding to the municipalities.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

The Commonwealth maintains a cash pool for its cash and cash equivalents. The balance in the pooled
cash accounts is available to meet current operating requirements and any excess is invested in various
interest-bearing accounts in the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), a discretely
presented component unit. In addition, the Puerto Rico Government Investment Trust Fund (PRGITF)
was created by the Commonwealth pursuant to Act No. 176 of August 11, 1995, and began operations on
December 4, 1995. PRGITF is a no-load diversified collective investment trust that was created for the
purpose of providing eligible investors with a convenient and economical way to invest in a
professionally managed money market portfolio. The deposits on hand and the investments purchased are
not collateralized, secured, or guaranteed by the Commonwealth or any of its agencies, tnstrumentalities,
or political subdivisions,

The Commonwealth’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risk while maintaining a
competitive yield on its portfolio. The cash temporarily idle during this year was invested mainly in
U.S. government securities, stocks, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, Commonwealth securities
other trading securities, and short-term investments, These are primary government investments that are
restricted and unrestricted.

Capital Assets

These basic financial statements include the capital assets of the Commonwealth. A discussion of capital
assets accounting is included in the MD&A that is part of the basic financial statements. More detailed
information about capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2009, the Commonwealth had a number of debt issues outstanding. The Commonwealth
has a “BBB-" credit rating from Standard and Poor’s Rating Services and a “Baa3” from Moody’s
Investment Service (Moody’s) on general obligation bond issues. However, on April 19, 2010, Moody’s
announced the results of the recalibration of certain U.S. debts, and as a result, the Commonweaith’s
general obligation debt was rated “A3™ with a stable outlook by Moody’s. In addition, or August 10,
2010, Moody’s reaffirmed its “A3” rating on the Commonwealth’s general obligation bonds. Moody’s
also changed its outlook on the credit from stable to negative, indicating that the funded status of the
Puerto Rico Government Employee Retirement System represents a challenge that could affect Puerto
Rice’s credit rating in the future; these classifications may vary in future years. Section 2 of Article VI of
the Constitution of Puerte Rico provides that direct obligations of the Commonwealth evidenced by
bonds or notes and backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Commonwealth shall not be
issued if the amount of the principal of and interest on such bonds and notes and on all such bonds and
notes issued thereafter, which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the

\d“»}
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Commonwealth in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or notes guaranteed by the
Commonwealth, exceeds 15% of the average annual revenue raised under the provisions of the
Commonwealth Legislation and covered into the Treasury of Puerto Rico in the two fiscal years
preceding the current fiscal year. Section 2 of Article VI does not limit the amount of debt that the
Commonwealith may guarantee so long as the [5% limitation is not exceeded. See the computation of the
legal debt margin in the statistical section of this report. More detailed information about long-term debt
can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Risk Financing

The Commonwealth purchases commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims, and other
losses. The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated. As it relates to workers’
compensation, the Commonwealth’s discretely presented component unit, the State Insurance Fund
Corporation, provides workers’ compensation to both public and private employees.

Financial Advisor and Fiscal Agent

The principa! functions of GDB are to act as financial advisor to and fiscal agent for the Commonwealth,
its municipalities, and public corporations, in connection with the issuance of bonds and notes, and to
make loans to private enterprises to aid the economic development of Puerto Rico.

Major Initiatives

Tax Regime for Companies Doing Business in Puerto Rico

One of the benefits enjoyed by the Commonwealth is that corporations operating in Puerto Rico (other
than corporations organized in the United States with a local branch) and individuals residing in Puerto
Rico generally are not subject to federal income taxes on income derived in Puerto Rico. This enables the
Commonwealth to utilize local tax legislation as a too! for stimulating economic development, and it has

done so many years.

In order to enhance the desirability for U.S. companies to establish operations in Puerto Rico, after the
elimination of Section 936 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (IRC), the Commonwealth has tried
different efforts to improve its tax ftreatment to foreign companies. It pursued an amendment
to Section 956 of the IRC during 2001 to 2003, and it introduced several changes to the tax incentive law
of 1997.

Public Sector Debr

Historically, the Commonwealth has maintained, as a2 matier of fiscal policy, a prudent relationship
between the growth of public sector debt and the growth of the economic base required to service that
debt. During certain fiscal years, however, public sector debt increased at a greater rate than the rate of
gross product primarily due to an increase in the amount of debt incumred to finance certain key
infrastructure projects, which are important to the development of the economy and are expected to
produce fong-term economic benefits, and debt incurred to refinance outstanding debt to enable Puerto
Rico to benefit from the historically low levels of interest rates and realize debt service savings. During
fiscal year 2009, public sector debt increased 12%.
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Economic and Financial Conditions

The MD&A, which can be found immediately foilowing the independent auditors’ report, provides an
overview of the economic factors affecting the Commonwealth, incfuding the Fiscal Stabilization Plan
and the Economic Reconstruction Plan implemented during 2009 that seeks to achieve fiscal balance and
restore economic growth in the near future. In addition, the MD&A provides an overview of the
Commonwealth’s financial activities addressing both governmental and business-type activities reported
in the government wide financial staternents. Furthermore, the MD&A focuses on the Commonwealth’s
major funds. Component units and fiduciary activities are excluded from the MD&A.

Other Information
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Governor and Legislature
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
San Juan, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the apgregate remaining
fund information of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the “Commonwealth™), as of and for the vear ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the respective financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the following activities, funds, and component units:

» Puerto Rico Public Housing Administration, Human Resources and Occupational Development Council,
and the Office for the Administration of the Assets of the Urban Renovation and Housing Corporation of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, which collectively represent 20% and 5%, respectively, of the assets
and revenues of the general fund and 18% and 4%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
governmental activities;

» The Additional Lottery System, which represents 54% and 44%, respectively, of the assets and revenues
of the lotteries fund and 10% and 29%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type
activities;

+ Public Buildings Authority special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds, which collectively
represent 5% and 3%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate remaining fund
information and 3% and 0%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the governmental activities;

+ Entities identified in note 2 that are presented as discretely presented component units, which collectively
represent 60% and 83%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units,

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it refates to the amounts included for the activities, funds, and component units
indicated above, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commonwealth’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



In our opinion, based on our audi and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and aggregate
remaining fund information of the Commonwealth, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in
financial position and respective cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 14 through 35 and the schedules of funding progress on
pages 193 and 194 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the
responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the supplementary information. However, we did not audit such information and we do not express an opinion

on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the respective financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
supplementary information is the responsibility of the Commonweaith’s management. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us
and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and
the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied tn the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

As discussed in Note 6 to the basic financial statements, the Pension Trust Funds held investments valued at
approximately $1,765,921,000 (24.12% of total assets of the pension trust funds) as of June 30, 2009, whose
fair values have been estimated in the absence of readily determinable fair values. This estimate is based on
information provided by the underlying fund managers.

As discussed in Note 20 to the basic financial statements, the Pension Trust Funds® unfunded actuarial
accrued liability and funded ratio as of June 30, 2009, were approximately $23,939 million and 14.47%,
respectively. In the opinion of management, based on information prepared by consulting actuaries, the
Pension Trust Funds will not be able to fully fund pensions after the fiscal year 2020, if measures are not
taken to reduce the unfunded actuarial accrued liability and increase the funded ratio of the Pension Trust

Funds.
A&d&_ ;1' Toneke LLP

October 22, 2010

Stamp No. 2574540
affixed to original.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2009

Management of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rice (the Commonwealth) provides this Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for the readers of the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements. This
MD&A provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Commonwealth for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and is intended to serve as an introduciion to the basic financial statement,
which have the following components: (1) governmeni-wide financial siatements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. The MD&A is designed to: (a} assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial matters, {(b) provide an overview of the Commonwealth financial activities,
{c) identify any material changes from the original budget, and (d) highlight individual fund matters, We
encourage readers to consider this information with the Commonwealth's basic financial statements that
follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - Primary Government
General Fund Highlights

= Total General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources) for fiscal year 2009 were $7.6
billion, representing a decrease of approximately $1.8 billion, or 18.8%, from the original budgeted
revenues and an increase of approximately $131 million, or 1.8%, over the revised estimate presented
by the current administration in February 2009,

* Total budgeted expenditures for fiscal year 2009 were approximately $10.9 billion, consisting of $9.9
billion of tolal expenditures plus 3962 million of other uses.

= Total budgeted expenditures of $10.9 billion represented an increase of approximately $1.4 billion, or
14.8%, of original budgeted expenditures and represented a budget deficit of $3.3 billion, or 43.6%.

* The cash shortfall for fiscal year 2000 was approximately $4.5 billion as a result of a $3.3 billion
budget deficit and a $1.2 billion cash shortfall. Total budgeted expenditures and cash shortfall for
fiscal year 2009 were approximately 512 billion.

Government-wide Highlights

» The Commonwealth reported a deficit in net assets of $26.4 billion, comprised of $17.4 billion in
total assets offset by $43.8 billion in total liabilities.

» The Commonwealth’s net deficit increased by $9.3 billion as a result of this year’s operations and
restatements. The net deficit for governmental activities increased by $9.4 billion while net assets of

business-type activities have a slight decrease after restatements.

« Total liabilities at year end were $43.8 billion, comprised of $43.4 billion in governmental activities
and approximately $399 million in business-type activities,

= Total short term and long term obligations outstanding at year end was $39 billion, comprised of
$38.6 billion in governmental activities and $367 miilion in business-type activities,

- 14



= The Commonwealth’s governmental activities had total revenues and transfers of $15.3 billion, which
were less than total expenses of $19.1 billion.

»  The total expense of all the Commonwealth’s programs, which includes $1.2 billion in business-type
activities, was $20.3 billion.

Long Term Debt

¢ The total long-term obligations as of June 30, 2009 were $38.6 billion, from which $1.7 billion are
due within one year. The long-term obligation of the governmental activities increased by
$12.3 billion (46.8%) when compared to the prior year, while the business-type activities decreased
by $28.9 million (9.7%) when compared to the prior year. The increase in governmental activities’
long-term obligations was mainly due to the inclusion of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing
Corporation as a blended component unit.

MAJOR FINANCIAL ELEMENTS

Revenues- The General Fund 1s the primary operating tund of the Commeoenwealth. General Fund revenues are
broadly based and include revenues raised internally as well as those from non-Puerto Rico sources. Internal
revenues consist principally of income, sales and use and excise taxes. Revenues from non-Puerto Rico
sources are derived from federal excise tuxes and customs duties returned to the Commonwealth. The major
source of revenue for the component units are charges for services.

Expenditires- Expenditures consist principally of grants and subsidies, personal services, other services,
materials and supplies, equipment purchases, ¢apital outlays, debt service and transfers.

Debi- Comprises bonds and notes of the Commonweaith and component units. The Commonwealth’s policy
has been and continues 1o maintain the amount of such debt prudently below the constitutional limitation,
Debt of component units, other than bond anticipation naotes, is generally supported by the revenues of such
units from rates charged for services or products and Commonwealth’s pledge revenues. However, certain
debt of component units is supported, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by Commonwealth
appropriations or taxes. Direct debt of the Commonwealth is issued pursuant to specific legislation approved
in each particular case. Debt of component units is issued ir accordance with their enabling statutes. GDB, as
fiscal agent of the Commonwealth, must approve the specific terms of each issuance,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commonwealth’s basic financial
statements. The Commonwealth’s basic financial statements include three components: (1) government-wide
financial statements, {2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contams additional required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves. These components are described below.

The basic financial statements inciude two kinds of financial statements that present different views of the
Commonwealth, the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements and combining
major component units financial statements. These financial statements also include the notes to the basic
financral statements that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detail.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Commonwealth’s operations in a
manner similar to a private sector business. The statements provide both short and long term information
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about the Commonwealth’s f{inancial position, which assists in assessing the Commonwealth’s economic
condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means they follow methods that are similar to those
used by most businesses. They take into account all revenue and expenses connected with the fiscal year even
if cash involved has not been received or paid. The government-wide financial statements include two
statements:

Statement of Net Assets (Deficity — This presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities with the
difference between the two reported as net assets (deficit). Over time, increases or decreases in the
Commonwealth’s net assets (deficit) may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Commonwealth 1 improving or deteriorating,

Statement of Activities — This presents information showing how the government’s net assets (deficit)
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes In net assets (deficit) are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise {o the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenue and expenses are reported in this statement for some iteras that will not result in cash flows until
{uture fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also
presenis a comparison between direct expenses and program revense for cach function of the
Commoenwealth.

Both of the above financial statemenis have separate sections for threc different types of Commonwealth
programs or activities. These three types of activities are as foliows:

-

Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue (federal grants), Most services normally associated with Commonwealth
government fall into this category, mcluding general government, public safety, health, public housing
and welfare, education, and economiic development.

Business Type Activities — These functions normally are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. These business type
activities of the Commonwealth include the operations of the following major funds: unemployment
insurance trust fund (administered by the Commonwealth Employment Security Bureau) and the Iotteries.

Component Units - These are organizations that are legally separate from the Commonwealth, but either
the Commonwealth is financially accoumntable for them or the nature and significance of their relationship
with the Commonwealth are such that their exclusion would cause the Commonwealth’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Commonwealth has both blended and discretely presented
componeat units.

Blended Component Units — Although legally separate entities, these are in substance part of the primary
governmenl’s operations. Therefore, data from blended component units are integrated into the
appropriate funds for reporting purposes. The Commonwealth’s four blended component units are:

Public Buildings Authority
Puerto Rico Maritime Shipping Authority
The Children’s Trast

o o 0O 0O

Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation

Discretely Presented Component Units — These are operations for which the Commonwealth has
financial accountability, but they have certain independent qualities as well. For the most part, these
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entites operate similar to private sector businesses and the business type activities described above. The
Commonwealth’s discretely presented component units are presented in two categories, major and non-
major. This separation is determined by the relative size of the entities’ assets, liabilities, revenue, and
expenses m relation to the total of all component units.

The Commonwealth’s discretely presented component units are combined into a single colunmn for
reporting in the government-wide financial statements. Complete financial statements of the individual
component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. Addresses and other
additional information about the Commonwealth’s component units are presented in note 1 to the basic
financial statements.

The Commonwealth’s six discretely presented major component units are:

s Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico

¢ Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority
s Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority

*  Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority

¢ Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration

s  University of Puerto Rico

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and
analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is vsed to maintain contrel over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Commonwealth, like other states and local governments,
uses fund accounting to help ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. The
fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the Commonwealth government, reporting the
Commonwealth’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. All of the funds
of the Commonwealth can be divided into three categories. It is important to note that these fund categories
use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently. The three categories of funds are
the following:

»  Governmental Funds Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the Commonwealth
are tinanced through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities i the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the governmental fund financial statements
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources. They also focus on the balances of
expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evalvating
the government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as using the flow of current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. These statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the Commonwealth’s finances that assist in determining whether
there will be adequale financial resources available to meet the current needs of the Commonwealth.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, 1t is useful to compare the mnformation presented for governmental funds with similar
information prescnted for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
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decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit) provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These reconciliations are presented on the
page immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.

» The Commenwealth has five major governmentat funds. That is, each major fund is presented in a
separate column in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit). The Commeoenweaith’s five major
governmenial funds are the General Fund, the Pledge Sales and Use Tax Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the
COFINA Special Revenue Fund, and the COFINA Debt Service Fund. The remaining nonmajor
governmental funds are grouped and presented in a single column in the goveramental funds financial
statements. The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found immediately following the
governiment-wide financial statements.

»  Proprietary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used to show activities that operate more like
those of commercial enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided to outside
customers including local governments, they are known as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the
same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the
government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of
accounting. There is no reconciliation nceded between the government-wide financial statements for
business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements. The Commonweaith has two major
proprictary funds: (1) the unemployment insurance trust fund (administered by the Commonwealth’s
Employment Security Bureau); (i) and the lotteries. Other non-major proprietary funds are grouped and
presented in a separate column in the proprietary funds financial statements. The basic proprietary funds
financial statemens can be found immediately following the governmental fund financial statements.

*  Fiductary Funds and Similar Component Units Financial Statements — These funds are used to account
for resonrces held for the benefit of parties outside the Commenwealth government. Fiduciary funds are
not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not
available to support the Commonwealth's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. They use the accrual basis of accounting. The Commonwealth's
fiduciary funds are the pension trust funds (three separate retirement systems for employees, which are
fiduciary component units of the Commonwealth) and the agency funds (which account for the assets
held for distribution by the Commonwealth as an agent for other governmental units, other crganizations,
or individuals). The basic fiduciary funds and similar component units” financial statements can be found
immediately following the proprietary funds financial statements.

Component Units Financial Statements

As mentioned above, these are operations, for which the Commonwealth has financial accounability, but they
have certain independent gualities as well, and they operate similar 10 private sector businesses. The
government-wide financial statements present information for the component units in a single column on the
statement of net assets (deficit). Also, some information on the statement of net assets (deficit) is aggregated
for component units. The combining statements of net assets and the combining statement of activities
provide detail for each major component unit and the non-major component units in aggregate. The basic
combining financial statements for major component units can be found immediately following the fiduciary
funds financial staterments.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of (he data provided in the
covernment-wide and the fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found
immediately following the major component units’ combining financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements include immediately following its notes a section of required supplementary
information. This section includes information of funding progress for the Commonwealth’s three separate
retirement systems.

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Since 2000, the Commonwealth has experienced a structural imbalance between recurring government
revenues and expenditures. One of the main reasons for this structural imbalance is the overestimation of
economic growth by the Puerto Rico Planning Board (“Planning Board™), which led to the overestimation of
revenues by the Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”) and the corresponding increase in budgeted
expenditures by the Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”). This structural imbatance was exacerbated
during fiscal years 2008 and 2009, with recurring government expenditures being significantly higher than
recurring revenues, which have declined as a result of a multi-year economic recession that began in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006. In order to bridge the deficit resulting from the structural imbalance, prior
administrations used non-recurring measures, such as borrowings from Government Development Bank for
Puerto Rico (“GDB”) or in the bond market, postponing payment of various government expenses, such as
payments to suppliers and utilities providers, and other onetime measures, such as the use of derivatives and
borrowings collateralized with government owned real estate.

The current administration, which commenced on January 2, 2009, inherited a budget based on overestimated
assumptions. Given the expected reduction in revenues due to prevailing economic conditions, General Fund
projections of revenues from non-financing sources for the fiscal year 2009 were adjusted in February 2009 to
$7.5 billion, a reduction of $1.9 billion from original the budgeted revenues of $9.3 billion. Budgeted
expenditures were adjusted to approximately $9.5 billion (consisting of budgeted total expenditures of $8.9
billion plus $587.9 million of other uses).

Resulis for Fiscal Year 2009

Total General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources) for fiscal year 2009 were $7.6 billion,
representing a decrease of approximately $1.8 billion, or 18.8%, from the original budgeted revenues and an
increase of approximately $131 million, or 1.8%, over the revised estimate presented by the current
administration in February 2009. Total expenditures for fiscal year 2009 were approximately $10.9 billion,
consisting of $9.9 billion of total expenditures plus $962 million of other uses. Total expenditures of $10.9
billion represented an increase of approximately $1.4 billion, or 14.8%, of original budgeted expenditures and
exceeded total General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources) by $3.3 billion, or 43.6%. The
difference between total expenditures and total General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources} is
referred to herein as the “deficit.”

Fiscal Year 2009
(in thousands)

Budget Deficit:

Revenues from non-financing sources $ 7,583,494
Total budget expenditures 10,889,897
Budget Deficit $ (3,306,403)

The deficit for fiscal year 2009 is mainly due to the prior administration’s adoption of a General Fund budget
based on projected recurting revenues developed on the basis of overestimated economic growth projections
provided by the Planning Board. Specifically, the Planning Board projected that real gross national product
would grow by 2.1% during fiscal year 2009 when in fact real gross national product decreased by 3.7%.
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Based on the Planning Board’s overestimated economic growth projection, Treasury projected that revenues
from non-financing sources for fiscal year 2009 would be $9.3 billion while OMB projected budgeted
expenditures of $9.5 billion {consisting of budgeted to1al expenditures of $8.8 billion plus $647.6 miilion of
other uses), As a result, the deficit for fiscal year 2009 is mainly composed of the $1.8 biliion by which total
General Fund revenues were overestimated and the $1.4 billien in excess expenditures that the prior
administration did not include in the original budget.



The foliowing table shows originally budgeted revenues and expenditures compared against actual revenues

and expenditures for fiscal year 2009:

COMMONWEALTH'S STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL BUDGET BASIS . GENERAL FUND

Revenue:
Income wxes
Excise 1axes
(iher laxes
Sales and use taxes
Charge for services
Intergovernmental
Revenue [Tom component unis
Other

Total revenue

Expendilures:
General government
Public safety
Health
Public housing and weltare
Education
Economic development
Intergovernmemal

Total expenditres
Excess {deficiency} of revenues over
{under) expenditures
Other linancing sources {oses):
Noles payable ssued

Transier in mosty lrom COFINA 10 cover deficit

Transfer out

Towal other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and other financing

sources over expenditares and other

financing uses

Total revenues from non-linancing sources
Total expenditures and other uses

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands}

Beficiency of revenues from non-tinancing sources under

expendiures and other {inancing uses

Original
Budget Actual Variance
§ 5628000 $ 5188219 b (439.781)
898.000 T80.860 (117,140
101,000 101 487 487
977000 797.194 (179.806)
195,000 132,483 {62517
377000 407.534 30,534
24000 23764 (236)
1140000 151,953 (983.047)
9,340,000 7583494 {1.756.506)
543.254 BB6,308 343114
2,167,565 2278218 110653
1472104 1.542 889 T0I8S
501,760 662,904 161144
3434810 3738043 303227
337204 35,260 UR056
383.697 383,788 91
8.840.400 2927470 1.087.070
499 600 (2.343.976) {2.843.576)
- 171480 171 480
148003} 3455064 3307064
(647,600 (962 427) (314.827)
{499,600} 20664117 3163717
3 - 5 320,141 5 320,141
5 9340000 F 0 7583484 5 (1.756500)
0488 00 10,889,897 1401897
$ (148,000 3 (3306403) $ (3.158403)




During fiscal year 2009, the current administration also faced a cash shortfall of $1.2 billion, which was
mainly due 1o a $960 million cash insufficiency inherited from the prior administration. This cash
insufficiency was due {o the practice of issuing but withholding checks at the Treasury Department for lack of
available funds. These checks included payments to suppliers and utilities, among others, that corresponded to
fiscal year 2008 but were paid during fiscal year 2009.

As a result, the current adninistragion was reguired o raise funds immediately in order to cover account
payables and ongoing expenditures. The cash shortfall added approximately $1.2 billion that were covered
with other financing sources. The budget deficit and cash shortfall for fiscal year 2009 of approximately $4.5
billion was principally paid from proceeds of Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation {*COFINA" by
its Spanish-langwage acronym) bond issues pursuant to Act No.1 and Act No. 7 of 2009 and the restructuring
of the corpus account of the Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority pursuant to Act No. 3 of 2009,

The following table shows a breakdown of budgeted expenditures and cash shortfalls for fiscal year 2009

COMMONWEALTH'S BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
AND CASH SHORTFALL
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009
{In thousands)

Total budgeled expenditures $ 10,889 897

Cash Shortfall:

Fiscal year 2008 cash shortfal 960,000
Accounts receivabies from (ederal funds disbursements’ 192,606
Tolal cash shorall 1,152,606

Total expenditures (budgeted} and cash shortfall 12,042,503

Total revenue {rom non-financing sources 7,583,494
Total Excess Expenditures and Cash Shortfal § 4.459,009

- : . I .
Agtributable 1o money advanced by the Treasury 1o cover disbursements under federal programs. The corresponding federal agency 1ypically
rebburses ihe amounts advanced by Treasury within theee w four business days.

T Exchules S aillion reserved as a conlingency in eonneclion with cenain desivative tansactions exceuted between 2004 and 2007 associaed 10
general ohliganon boads fssued by the Commnumwealbth,



Fiscal Stabilization Plan

In Jamuary 2009, the current administration inherited a General Fund that lacked liquidity and had a
sigmficant deficit of approximately 45%. In order to address the General Fund’s immediate situation and
provide a long-term solution to the recurring deficit, the administration implemented a multi-year Fiscal
Stabilization Plan (the “Fiscal Plan™) and Economic Reconstruction Plan {the “Economic Plan™) (o achieve
fiscal balance and restore economic growth. The Fiscal Plan and the Economic Plan were central 1o
safeguarding the Commonwealth’s investment-grade credit rating and restoring Puerto Rico's economic
growth and development. In Janvary 2009, the Legislative Assembly enacted four bils to stabilize the short
term fiscal sitvation and provide liquidity to the Government. In March 2009, the Legislative Assembly
enacted three bills providing for the implementation of the Fiscal Plan and the Economic Plan.

In addition, the administration designed and began to implement the Strategic Model for a New Economy, a
serics of economic development initiatives 1o enhance Puerto Rico’s overall economic competitiveness and
strengthen specific industry sectors. These econemic development initiatives are intended (o support the
prospects of long-term and sustainable growth.

The Fiscal Plan had three main objectives: {i} stabilize the short-term fiscal situation, (ii} safeguard and
strengthen the Commonwealth’s investment-grade credit rating, and (i} achieve budgetary balance. The
Fiscal Plan, which was generally contained in Act No.7 of March9, 2009, as amended (“Act No. 77),
included operating expense reduction measures, tax revenue enforcement measures, temporary and permanent
revenue raising measures, and financial measures, as discussed below.

Expense Reduction Measwres. A significant portion of Puerto Rico's budget deficit was attributable to the
accumulated cffect of high operating expenses in the government. The Fiscal Plan sought to reduce the
governiment’s recurring expense base to make it consistent with the level of government revenues. The Fiscal
Plan established a government-wide operating expense-reduction program aimed at reducing operating
expenses, including payroll, by $2 billion,

Payroli expense is the most significant component of the government’s recurring expense base. The reduction
in payroll expenses contemplated by the Fiscal Plan was implemented in three phases and included certain
benefits conferred to participating employees, as follows:

o Phase I: Incentivized Voluniary Resignation and Veluntary Permanent Workday Reduction Programs:
The Incentivized Voluntary Resignation Program offered public employees a compensation incentive
based on the tme of service in the government. The Voluntary Permanent Workday Reduction Program
was available to public employees with 20 or more years of service, The Workday Reduction Program
consisted of a voluntary reduction of one regular workday every fifteen calendar days, which is equivalent
to approximately a 10% reduction in annual workdays. Phase I commenced in March 2009 and public
employees had until Aprit 27, 2009 to submit the required information to participate in the voluntary
programs available under Phase I and be eligible for the Public Employees Alternatives Program. Under
Phase 1, 2,553 employees resigned under the Incentivized Voluntary Resignation Program and 27
employees took advantage of the Voluntary Permanent Workday Reduction Program,

e Phase II: Involumtary Laveff Plan: As provided in Act No. 7. Phase II went into effect because the
objective of reducing $2 billion in expenses was not achieved after implementation of Phase 1 and
Phase I (see below). Under Phase 11, subject to certain exceptions, employees with transitory or non-
permanent positions were laid-off. In addition, Phase 11 provided for one or more rounds of involuntary
layoffs providing non essential services and applied to most central government public employees, unless
excluded pursuant to Act No. 7, based on seniority in public service. The plan provided for the exclusion
of certain employees providing “essential”” services, certain employees whose compensation was paid for

S93



with federal funds, those on military leave, and political appointees and their trust employees (political
appointees and their trust employees, who do not hold a permanent or career posiiion in the government,
are referred to herein as “non-career” employees). Employees in Phase If received a severance package
that included health coverage payment for up to a maximum of six months or unti} the former public
employee became eligible for health insurance coverage at another job. The full implementation of Phase
II, however, was delayed as a result of the seniority certification and termination notification process
foilowed by certain central government agencies, and completed during fiscal year 2010.

o Phase lll: Temporary Suspension of Certain Provisions of Laws, Collective Bargaining Agreements, and
Other Agreements: Phase 111 went into effect on March 9, 2009 and imposed a temporary freeze on salary
increases and other economic benefits included in laws, collective bargaining agreements, and any other
agreements. Phase I will remain in effect for a period of two years,

e Public Emplovees Alternatives Program: The employees that elected to participate in the Incentivized
Voluntary Resignation Program under Phase I or that were subject to involuntary layoffs under Phase II,
were eligible to participate in the Public Employees Alternatives Program. This program assists public
employees in their transition to other productive alternatives, and offers vouchers for college education,
technical education, and professional training, as well as for establishing a business and for relocation.

The second element of the expense-reduction measures, which pertained to other operating expenses, was
conducted through an austerity program in combination with other measures, such as reduction in expenses of
the public health plan, Executive Branch reorganization, and efficiency measures supported by budgeting and
accounting processes, and information technology. The aunsterity program mandated a 10% reduction in other
operational expenses.

Tax Revenue Enforcement Measures. The Fiscal Plan also sought to increase tax revenues by implementing a
more rigorous and ongoing tax enforcement and compliance strategy. Specific tax enforcement initiatives
included: (i) enhancements to the administration of federal grants and fund receipts, (ii) stronger collections
and auditing efforts on Puerto Rico’s sales and use tax, and (iii} a voluntary tax compliance program.

Revenue Raising Measures. The goal of achieving fiscal and budgetary balance required a combination of
measures that included the imroduction of permanent and temporary tax increases. The Fiscal Plan included
six temporary and four permanent revenue increasing measures. With respect to temporary revenue
increasing measures, the administration implemented: (i) a 5% surtax on income of certain individuvals, (ii} a
3% surtax on income of certain corporations, {iii) a 5% income tax on credit uaions (commonly known as
“cooperativas” in Puerto Rico), (iv)a 5% income tax on Puerto Rico intemnational banking entities, (v) a
special property tax on residential real estatc, and (vi} a moratorium on certain tax credits. The temporary
measures will be in effect for up to three fiscal years beginning in fiscal year 2010. The permanent measures
inctude (1) modifications to the alternative minimam tax for individuals and corporations, (i) an increase in
the excise taxes on cigareties, {il1) an increase in the excise taxes on alcoholic beverages.

Financial Measures. The administration has also carried out several financial measures designed to achieve
fiscal stability throughout the Fiscal Plan implementation pericd. These measures included, among others, (i}
a financing or bond issuance program, the proceeds of which were used to bridge the structural budgetary
imbalance during the Fiscal Plan implementation period and fund some of the Economic Plan initiatives, (ii)
the restructuring of the securities held in the Corpus Account of the Infrastructure Development Fund (the
“Corpus Account”), which is under the custody and control of the Puerto Rice Infrastructure Financing
Authority (“FRIFA™}, and (iit) 2 multi-year restructuring of a portion of the Commonwealth’s debt service.

These financial measures were anchored on the bond-issuance program of COFINA. Act No. 7, in
conjunction with Act No. 91 of May 13, 2006, as amended (“Act 917), and Act No. |1 of January 14, 2009



(*Act 17), allocated to COFINA, commencing on July 1, 2009, 2.75% (one-half of the tax rate of 5.5%} of the
sales and vse tax imposed by the central governmeni, thus increasing COFINA’s financing capacity and
allowing the Commonwealth to achieve fiscal stability throughout the implementation period of the Fiscal
Plan.

During fiscal years 2009, COFINA issued approximately $5.6 billion of revenue bonds payable from sales
and use tax collections transferred to COFINA. The proceeds from these bond issues have been used for the
paymeni of Commonwealth obligations that did not have a designated source of repayment, paying or
financing operational expenses constituting a portion of the Commonwealth’s deficit, and fund the Local
Stimuius Fund (described below} with $500 millien.

Act No. 3, approved by the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth on Janvary 14, 2009 (“Act 37), and
authorized the sale of the securities held in the Corpus Account. PRIFA sold the securities in January 2009
and used the proceeds to, among other things, make a deposit to the General Fund of approximately $308
million, which was applied to cover a portion of the Commonwealth’s budget deficit and make a transfer to
GDB of approximately $154 million as a capital contribution. The Corpus Account retained an amount of
3300 million that was invested to provide a value of $1.2 billion by the year 2040. The gross proceeds
resulting from the sale were approximately $884 million.

The Fiscal Plan has provided more fiscal stability, thereby safeguarding and strengthening Puerto Rico’s
credit. The fiscal structare resulting from the full implementation of the plan will be conducive to long-term
economic growth and development.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Assets (Deficit)

Net assets {deficit) may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Total assets
and total liabilities of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 2009 amounted 10 $17.4 billion
and $43.8 billion, respectively, for a net deficit of $26.4 billion, compared 10 a $22.7 biilion net deficit at the
beginning of the current year, as restated.

A portion of the Commonwealth’s net assets (deficit) reflects its investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, and equipment, less any related debt used to acguire those assets that are still outstanding. The
Commonwealth uses these capital assets 1o provide services to its residents; consequentially, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the Commeonwealth’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to Hguidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Commonwealth’s net assets (deficit) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. An otherwise positive remaining balance would be used to
meet the Commonweaith’s ongoing obligations to its residents and creditors. Internally imposed designations
of resources are not presented as restricted net assets. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Commonwealth
15 able to report positive balances in two categories of net assets, and a deficit, both for the government as a
whole as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities,

The net deficit of the primary government primarily results from the Commonwealth’s practice of issuing
debt and transferring such funds to the component units so that they can carry out the construction projects.
The primary government retains the debt while the compenent units report the corresponding asset financed
by such debt.



Total assets increased by $3.7 billion during fiscal year 2009 when compared to the prior fiscal year. This
increase is the net effect of various increases and decreases as follows:

Unresiricted and restricted cash increased by $1.2 billion when compared (o the prior year. The increase
was mainly due to an increase of approximately $1.3 billion in operating grants and contributions when
compared to the prior year.

Net increase of $349 million in the receivables was mainly related to an increase in tax receivable and
intergovernmental grants amounting to $203 million and $115 million respectively.

Additions 1o capital assets, retirements, and depreciation expense amounted to approximately
$351 million, $169 million, and $251.4 million, respectively.

Total liabilities increased by $13.1 billion during the current fiscal year when compared to the prior fiscal
year. This fluctuation is mainly prompied by a net increase of Commonwealth’s bonds amounting to
$11 billion primarily related to blending of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corperation {COFINA).

COMMONWEALTH’S NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
JUNE 30, 2009
(Expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type

activities activities Total

Current assets $ 5,554,107 $ 865201 $ 6419308
Capital assets 7,534,102 682 7,534,784
Other asscels 3,069,628 373,535 3443163

Total assels 16,157,837 1,239418 17,397,255
Current liablitics 6348528 200,848 6,549,376
Noncurrent habilitics 36,995 558 198,641 37,194,199

Total habilities 43,344,086 399489 43,743 575
Invested in capital asscts, nel of related debt 3,888,495 6R2 3,889,177
Restricted 979094 20200 1,008,303
Unrestricled (32,053,838) 810,038 {31,243 800

Tolal net assels {deficit) $ (27,186.24% $ £39929 $ (26.346,320)




COMMONWEALTH’S NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
JUNE 30, 2008
(Expressed in thousands)

Governmental  Business-type

activities activities Total

Current assels $ 2,680,800 $ 805,306 ¥ 3486196
Capital assets 7.551,707 674 7,552,381
Other assets 2,226,368 358,225 2,584,593

Total assets 12458875 1,164,295 13,623,170
Current liablities 4289357 31618 4320975
Noncurrent labilities 25984 848 408,514 26,393,362

Total liabiliies 30,274,205 440,132 30,714,337
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,979,308 674 3,975,982
Restricled 721,521 33,803 755324
Unrestricted (22,516,159 689,686 (21.826473)

Towal net assets (deficit) $ (17815330 $ 724,163 $ (17.081,167)

The net assets (deficit) of the governmental activities as of June 30, 2008 were restated by $5.4 billion mainly
as a result of the blending of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation {COFINA).

Changes in Net Asseis (Deficit)

The Commonwealth’s net deficit increased by $9.3 billion or 55% from last year’s total net deficit.
Approximately 46.6% of the Commonwealth’s total revenue came from taxes, while 35.6% resulted from
grants and contributions (primarily federal financial assistance). Charges for services provided represented
11.8% of the total revenue. The Commonwealth’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses
were for education, public housing and welfare, health, general government and public safety, which
presented a combined increase of 9.0% when compared with prior year. In 2009, governmental activities’
expenses exceeded program revenue by $12.7 billion, resuiting in the use of $8.9 billion in general revenue
(mostly taxes and transfers). On the other hand, program revenue from business type activities in 2009
exceeded expenses by approximately $228 million.

Governmental activities increased the Commonwealth’s net deficit by $3.7 billion.

Business type activities increased the Commonwealth’s net deficit by $2.3 million,



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{(Expressed in thousands)

Governmental Busines-type
activities activities Total
Revenue;
Prograni revenue:
Charges (or services Ay 758,427 S 1,206,080 $ 1.964,507
Operating grants and contributions 5,541,715 243,710 5787485
Capital grants and contributions 110,847 - 110,847
6,410.989 1,451,850 7,862,839
General revenue:
Income taxes 3424476 - 5424476
Sales and use tax 1,089,073 - 1,089,073
Excise taxes 1,118,283 - 1,118,283
Other taxes 103,348 - 103,348
Revenue from component units 386,182 - 386,182
Other Laxes 591,746 20,036 611,782
8,713,108 20,036 8,733,144
Toal revenue 15,124,097 1,471,886 16,595,983
Expenses:
General government 2460391 - 2,460,391
Public safcty 2,247 480 - 2,247,480
Health 2,858,750 - 2,858,750
Public housing and wellare 3,560,871 - 3,560,871
Education 5,280,249 - 5,280,249
Economic develomeng 779,449 - 7719449
Payment of oblizations of component units 136,415 - 136415
Intergovernmental 613,033 - 613,033
Interest and other 1,128 9118 31,947 1,160,865
Lolleries - 723,287 723,287
Unemploviment - 467,788 467788
Total expenses 19.065,556 1,223,022 20,288,578
Increase {decrease) monet assets betore
transiers (3,941,459 248,864 {3,692,393)
Transfers 251, 17H} (251,170} -
Change in nel assets (deficit) (3,650,289) (2,306) {3,692,395)
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (as restated) (23,495,960) 842,235 (22,653,725}
Net assets (delicit), end of year {$27,186,249 5 39,920 (326,346,320
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTQ RICO
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Revenue:
Program revenue:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenue:
Income taxes
Excise taxes
Sakes and usce tax
(Oiher 1axes
Revenoe trom component units
Special items
Other

Total revenue

Expenses:
General government
Public salety
Health
Pubiic housing and wellare
Education
Economic devejoment
Intergovemmental
Interest and other
Lolteries
Unemployment

Total xpenses

[ncrease in net assets
before wransfers
Transiers

Change in net assets (deficity

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (as restated)

Net assets (deficit), end of year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(Expressed in thousands)

Govermme ntal Busines-type
activities activities Total

$ 664,503 $ 1,161,084 1,825,589
4.311,592 77.803 4,389,395
137,916 - 137916
5,114,013 1,238,887 6,352,900
5,493,881 - 5493,881
1,318,866 - 1,318,866
910,600 - 910,609
11,356 - 11,356
156,997 - 156,997
3,749,348 - 3,749,348
580,563 35423 615,986
12,221,620 35423 12,257.043
17,335,633 1,274,310 18,609,943
2,592,834 - 2,592,834
2,161,265 - 2,161,265
2.471,960 - 2,471,960
3,164,945 - 3,194,945
457,722 - 4,571,722
471,640 - 471,640
474,023 - 474,023
1,086,906 28,738 1,115,644
- 699,005 699,005
- 269,924 269,924
17,025,295 997,667 18,022,962
310,338 276,643 386,981

309815 (309.815) -
620,153 (33,172) 586,981

(18435,483) 757335 (17,678,148)
($17.815,330) 3 724,163 {($17.001,167)




Revenue — Governmental Activities

Year ended June 30, 2009

Taxes
51.1%

Revenue from
component units
2.6%

Grants &
Contributions
37.4G, Charges for Other
services 3.9%
5%



Governmental Activities

Governmental activities mcreased the Commonwealth’s net deficit by $3.7 billion. A comparison of the cost
of services by function for the Commonwealth’s governmental activities is shown below, along with the
revenue used to cover the net expenses of the governmental activities {expressed in thousands).

COMMONWEALTH'S GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES -
EXPENSES NET OF PROGRAM REVENUE

Year ended June 30, 2009
{Expressed in thousands)

Net expense:

General government ($1.818,729)
Public satety {2,137,244)
Heatlh {1,320,401)
Public housing and wellare {420,991)
Education {4,594,502)
Economic development {490,193)
Payment of obligations ol component unils {136,415)
Intergovernmental {607,174)
Interest and other (1,128 O18)
Total governmental activities expenses, net of program revenue {12,654,567)
General revenue:
Taxes 7,733,180
Revenue from component unils 386,182
Transiers [rom business-1ype activitics 251,170
Other revenue 501,746
Tolal governmental activities general revenue 8,964,278
Increase in governmental activities net deficit (53,600,289

Business Type Activities

The business type activitics increased the Commonwealth’s net deficit by $2.3 million.

Financial Analysis of the Commonwealth’s Individual Funds

As noted earlier, the Commonwealth uses fund accounting to help ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requireients,

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the Commonwealth’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Commonwealth’s
financing requirements, In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of fiscal year
2009, the Commonwealth's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of $1.9 billion. The
cxpenditures exceeded the revenues by $3.5 billion, However, this was offset by other financing sources
amouniing to $6.4 biflion in the governmental funds. This year, the excess of expenditures over revenue
decreased by $1.2 billion compared with the prior year. Other financing sources increased by $2.7 billion.
There 15 $3.3 billion of fund balance reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it
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has already been committed: (1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior fiscal year or (2) for a
variety of other restricted purposes,

The general fund 1s the chief operating fund of the Commonwealth. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund deficit of the general fund was $2.7 billion, while the total general fund balance has a total
deficit of $1.5 billion. The fund’s deficit of the Commonwealth’s general fund decreased by $634 million as a
resuit of the current fiscal year’s change in financial position. This is a 29.5% decrease when compared to
total general fund deficit reported in fiscal year 2008, as restated.

The debt service fund is the fund in which the Commenwealth accumulates the resources for the payment of
the long-term debt. At end of the fiscal year, the fund balance of the debt service fund increased by
$309 million when compared to prier year. Bonds and interest payable increased by $175.5 million compared
with the prior year mainly due to the accumulation of resources for the payment of debt.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Commonwealth’s preprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. As discussed in the business type activities above, the
Commonwealth’s net deficil increased by $2.3 million as a result of operations in the proprictary funds. This
resulted from a $23 million increase in net assets by the lotteries fund, an increase in net assets of
$68.2 million by the unemployment insurance fund including restatement, and an increase of net assets of
$24.5 miilion by the Commeonwealth’s other proprietary funds.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The Commonwealth’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
June 30, 2009 amounts to $10.6 billion, less accumutated depreciation of $3.1 billion, leaving a book value of
$7.5 billion. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, building
improvements and equipment as infrastructure,

The net book value of capital assets at June 30, 2009 is distributed by function/activity in the following
propertions: general government, 39.7%; public safety, 7.4%; health, 2.1%: public housing and welfare,
31.7%:; education, 6%; and cconomic development, 13.1%. Actual capitalized assets were approximately
$580 million for the year. Depreciation charges for the vear totaled $251.4 million.

The infrastructure assets representing items that are normally immovable and of value only to the
Commonwealth as roads, highways, bridges, toll facilitics, water and sewer systems, lighting production,
transmission and distribution systems, and simifar items are principally owned by the component units of the
Commonwealth. Therefore, the infrastructure assets are reported within depreciable capital assets under the
discretely presented component units column. Additional information on the Commonwealth’s capital assets
can be found in note 13 to the basic financial statements that accompany this report.



COMMONWEALTH'S CAPITAL ASSETS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
JUNE 30, 2009
{Expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type

activities activities

Land s 881,877 % -

Construction in progress 1,322 447 -

Buildings and building improvements, net 4,780,442 -
Equipment, furaiture, fixtures and vehicles, net 215,689 682

Infrastructure, net 333,647 -
Total capital assets $ 7534102 5 682

Debt Administration

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth, including the
Commonwealth’s power to levy additional taxes to help ensure repayment of the debt.

The Constitutton of the Commonwealth provides that direct obligations of the Commeonwealth evidenced by
bonds or notes and backed by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the Commonwealth are not 10 be
issued if the amount of the principal of, and interest on, such bonds and notes and on all such bonds and notes
issved thereafter, which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the Commonwealith
in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or notes guaranteed by the Commonwealth, exceed 15% of
the average anaual revenue raised under the provisions of Commonwealth legisiation and conveyed into the
treasury (internal revenues) in the two fiscal years preceding the current fiscal year. Section 2, Article VI of
the Constitution of the Commonwealth does not limit the amount of debt that the Commonwealth may
guarantee as long as the 15% limitation is not exceeded through payments by the Commeonweaith on such
guaranteed debt. At June 30, 2009, the Commonwealth is in compliance with the debt limitation requirement.

Internal revenues consist principally of income taxes, property laxes, sales and use taxes and excise
taxes. Certain revenues, such as federal excise taxes on offshore shipments of aicoholic beverages and
tobacco products and customs duties, which are collected by the United States Government and returned
to the Treasury Department of Puerto Rico and motor vehicle fuel taxes and license fees, which are
allocated to the Highway and Transportation Authority, are not included as internal revenues for the
purpose of calculating the debt limit, alithough they may be available for the payment of debt service. In
addition, the portion of the sales and use Tax allocated to COFINA is not included as internal revenues
since the legislation that created COFINA transferred ownership of such portion of the sales and use Tax
to COFINA and provided that such portion was not available resources under the Constitutional
provisions relating to full faith and credit bonds.

On April 19, 2016, Moody's Invesiors Service announced the results of the recalibration of cemain U.S.
municipal bond issues and issuers in order to enhance the comparability of credit ratings across its portfolio of
rated securities. As a result of this recalibration, the Commonwealth’s general obligation debt is now rated
“A3" with a negative outlook by Moody’s, which is three categories above the previous “Baa3” rating.
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GLOBAL ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE COMMONWEALTH AND OTHER

Commonwealth’s economy entered into a recession that began in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.
Although the Commonwealth’s economy 1s closely linked to the United States ecomomy, for fiscal years
2007, 2008 and 2009, Puerto Rico’s real gross national product decreased by 1.2%, 2.8%, and 3.7%,
respectively, while the United States economy grew at a rate of 1.8% and 2.8%, respectively, and contracied
during fiscal year 2009 at a rate of 2.5%. Based on the projections of the Puerte Rice Planning Board, the
Puerto Rico economy is expected to reflect another decrease of 3.6% for the fiscal year 2010, while the
United States economy is expected to grow at a rate of .6%.

The United States economy started the contraction in fiscal year 2009 principally due to the downturn in the
housing market and the world-wide financial crisis. These crises have made it more difficult for U.S.
businesses and consumers to access credit, and have significantly reduced the value of financial assets. As a
result of the declines in home values and assets prices, the U.S. Federal Reserve reported that the net worth of
American households was reduced by nearly $11 trillion over the course of 2008. These developments in the
United States have had a significant and negative impact on the Commonwealth economy. In addition, other
variables contributing to the decrease of the Commonwealth’s gross national product was the confinuous
contraction of the manufacturing and construction sectors, the significant oil prices increases experienced
during the fast years, and the budgetary pressures on government finances.

In terms of budgetary pressures, the Commonwealth has experienced a structural deficiency between
recurring government revenues and expenditures. The structural deficiency was exacerbated during fiscal
years 2009, 2008 and 2007, with recurring government expenditures significantly exceeding recurring
revenues. Prior 10 the current fiscal year, the government bridged the deficit resuiting from the structural
deficiency through the use of non-recurring measures, such as borrowing from Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB} or in the bond market, postponing the payment of various government expenses,
such as payments 10 suppliers and utilities providers, and other onetime measures such as the use of
derivatives and borrowings collateralized with government owned real estate.

The Commonwealith has significant dependence on oil for power generation and gasoline, the high level of oi}
prices accounted for an increased outflow of local income in fiscal vear 2008. Althousgh the situation
tmproved significantly during fiscal year 2009, cil prices remained at relatively high levels and the impact of
the increases of previous years were still adversely felt in fiscal year 2009,

The current difficulties associated with the financial cnisis resulted in lower short-term interest rates, but this
did not translate into a significant improvement in the construction sector due (o the high level of inventory of
residential housing units (downturn in the housing market).

The dominant sectors of the Puerto Rico economy in terms of production and income are manufacturing and
services. The manufacturing sector has undergone fundamental changes over the years as a result of increased
emphasis on higher-wage, high-technology industries, such as pharmaceuticals, biotechnology, computers and
others. The service sector, which includes finance, insurance, real estate, wholesale and retail trade,
transportation, communications and public utilities, and other services, plays a major role in the economy. It
ranks second Lo manufacturing in contribution to gross domestic product and Jeads all sectors in providing
employment.

The economy of Puerto Rico is closely linked to the United States economy, as most of the external factors
that affect the Puerto Rico economy (other than oii prices) are determined by the policies and perfermance of
the mainland economy. These external factors include exports, direct investment, federal transfer payments,
the level of interest rates, the rate of inflation, and tourist expenditures. During fiscal year 2009,
appreximately 71.0% of Puerto Rico’s exports went to the United States mamnland, which was also the source
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of approximately 46.9% of Puerto Rico’s imports. In fiscal year 2009, Poerto Rico experienced a positive
merchandise trade balance of $24.5 billion.

The average unemployment rate for the Commonweaith in 2009 was 13.4%, an increase from 11% for fiscal
year 2008. In terms of production, the real gross national product registered a decrease of 3.7%. For fiscal
year 2009, the number of persons employed averaged 1,349,000, a decrease of 1.4% compared to previous
fiscal year. During the first nine months of fiscal year 2010, total employment averaged 1,108,600, a decline
of 6.0% with respect to the same period of the prior year; and the unemployment rate averaged 15.8%.

The consolidated budget for fiscal year 2010 amounts to $29.5 billion, of which $24.1 billion are assigned to
operating expenses, $1.9 billion to the capital improvements program, and $3.5 billion to debt service.

OTHER MATTERS

Insurance matters- Govermment owned property is insured through policies obtained by the Secretary of the
Treasury and through self-insured, except for property owned by the Puerto Rice Electric Power Authority
and the Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority, whose propesties are insured through arrangements and
policies oblained by the respective Authorities. Personal injury against the Commonwealth i1s Iimited by law
10 $150,000 per occurrence.

Differences between budget and basic financial statements- Revenues and expenditures, as reported by the
Treasury Department i its basic financial statements, may differ substantially from resources and
appropriations in its annual budget for a number of reasons, including the following:

*  The budgetary accounts are on a budgetary basis, while financial statements prepared by the Treasury
Department include adjustments as requived by government accounting standards.

e Expenditures for current purposes in a particular year may include amounts appropriated for earlier
periods but not previously expended or amounis not budgeted for a particular fiscal yeay, bus
expended during that year, and, conversely, may exclude amounts appropriated for such fiscal year
but not expended until later pertods.

» Bonds are authorized by the Commonwealth in accordance with a four year capital improvement
program. Since bond sale are determined by bond market conditions and other factors, the amounts
for bonds sold for these improvements are financed by advances from the General Fund to the Capital
Projects Fund, which are later reimbursed from proceeds of a bond or notes sales.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commonwealth’s finances for all of the
Commonwealth’s residents, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors, This financial report seeks to
demonstrate the Commonwealth’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: Department
of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Area de Contabilidad Central, P.O. Box 9024140, San
Juan, PR 00902-4140.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

Prirmary Government

Business- Totals
Governmaental type Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Units
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents in commercial banks s 249252 S 628,368 5 77620 $ 2.977.308
Cash and cash equivalents in govermmental banks H55.690 151,158 806.848 347011
Investments 2RI - 22R2372 33800170
Recetvables — net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Taxes 1,468,500 - 1,468,506
Sales and Use tax G0 460 - 949,469 -
Unemplovient and other insurance premiums - 68,565 65,365 84.631
[ntergovernmental 313044 0,392 379.436 23327
Accounts 168,956 . 1689536 08,825
Loans 248 . 248 4,212,127
Accrued interest 4,523 3,991 8514 157.602
Other 46.296 378 46,874 91,339
Due from:
Primary government - - - 514,298
Component units — net of allowance for doubtlul
accounts amounting to $145.5 million in Governmental Activities 188,822 14,813 203.635 1,228,843
Otlier governmental entitics 8.265 - 8.265 328969
Internal badances 8,604 (B.664) - -
Invenlosies 20,569 - 20869 461,749
Prepaid expenses 28,794 - 28794 34508
Other assels 15.061 - 15061 -
Restricted assets:
Cash and eash equivalents in commercial banks 737285 - TA7.285 2480674
Cash and cash eguivalents in govermnental banks 1,797,388 - 1,797,388 479,955
Investiments - 20,830 29,830 4 438,180
(nher resinicted asscls 19.200 B 19.200 94,782
Long-term investmams - - - 1.839.911
Long-tem receivables from:
Boans - - - 155,903
Cther 119588 - 119 588 13,637
Long term ameunis due Mo
Primary govemnenl - - - 74,890
Component uniis - 306,402 306,402 1,602,642
Other governmentad entities - - - 7.730
Real estate held for sake or future development 59,543 - 59.543 380,989
Deferred expenses and other assens 27000 37.303% 308,203 501,112
Capitad assets (nct of accumulated depreciaion o
Land and other nondepreciahle assers 2,204,324 - 2,204,324 9.305,634
Depreciable asscls 5320778 3872 5330460 20,615,926
TOTAL ASSETS 5 16,157,837 S 1,230418 § 17,397,255 £37,202 646
{Continued}
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS {DEFICIT)
JUNE 30, 2008
{In thousands)

LIABILITIES:
Accounts pavible il aecned lahilines
Deposits and escrow liabidaics
Tax refunds payable
Due o0
Primry govemment
Component Lamts
Ciher govermimenial enlines
Securities lending teansactions and reverse cepurchase agreements
Interest pavable
Delerred revenue
Terminution benelits payabde
Taw seveme anticipation noles payable
Pue to primary govermment — long term portion
Frue (o component anits — long tena porion
Securities lending ransactions
and reverse repurchase agreements — 10ng Wrm porlion
Deferred revente — long tertn porion
Inserance benefis pavable
Liability Tor automobile aceident insurance
and workmen compensation claims
Liahitities pavable within one year:
Commonweahh appropriation hoads
Bonds
Nutes
Caparal leases
Comgensated ahsenees
Losiery paizes
Other long term liahiinies
Liabiiities payahle aller one year
Commaonwealth appropriadion bonds
Bonds
Notes
Capnal leases
Net pension obligarion
MNet pastemployiment benefic oldiganom
Compuensated absenves
Lottery prizes
Other dema tecm Badilinies

Total habibitees

NET ARSETS (DEFICIT,:
Invested in capitat assets — net of rekied dehl
Restricted Tor:
Trust — nonespendabie
Capital projecis
bt servive
Paymenr of insaranee benefitg
Affordable honsing and related loan insurance programs
Stadent Joans and other educational puiposes
(nher
Unresiricied et assets {deficild

TOTAL NET ASSETS iDEFICIT

See pCComIpanying 10es 0 hasic nascial stuements.

Primary Governmant

Business- Totals
Governmental type Primary Compohem
Activities Activities Government Units
5 1302265 S 12380 3 ES14645 RN 141
- - . 837,092
426,534 - 426,534 .
- . - M2
430,020} . 139.920 1,228,843
(43558 143.558 115622
- - - alx i
264.704 - 264704 511236
208,407 20,060 310467 107797
He 0935 - 4095 -
1. 300,000 - | 300000 -
. - - 347.961
60.799 - 3,799 1.602.642
- - - $44.800
- - - S040
- YE.726 48926 -
- - 333,652
- - - 275
104110 - 1L (89110
479778 - A749.778 1. 286,619
5474 - 3474 -
794,989 2,301 07380 271,454
. 67,20 #7291 -
235,694 - ERRNG L] 148,420
731345 - FRYME N B3 355
21827632 - 24827632 022604
LA13.6499 1513699 R L ERCILY]
234610 - EXEYRLH -
6.754.230 - 6,754,230 .
T6.606 - Th A0 -
221.9% 1341 824277 362,351
- 14, 3K 196300 -
_ 1568 T0H . 1968701 1.155.214
L A3 4 086 300459 F1L743.575 13.877.501
3848493 H82 IRBYTT TRO3 068
- - - RILTEL)]
147.556 - 147586 354916
THLASG . FO.550 1.851.5232
- 2923 20204 .
31.952 - 31,952 450492
- - . 72352
- - - L ERACH R
(2053838 B1.038 P32 08000 299512
5 027.186.249; S BB 039 36 340 30 A5 145
1Concluded)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{in thousands)

Program Revenues Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Charges Operating Earnings Capital Primary Government
for Grants and and Grants and Governmental Business-type Componeant
Expénses Services Contributions  Investments  Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Functions
Governmental activities:
General government S 2480397 & 470325 5 171437 5 - 5 - S (1LE1RTIN 5 - S {1.818.72% 8
Public safery 3247 480 R3.000 57,146 - - {2.137.2d44) . {137,244 -
Health 2 858,730 166,854 1,371 495 - ' - (1320400 - (1.320401) -
Publie heusing and welfare 3560871 7,384 3021449 - 110,847 (420,991) - {420,991} -
Education 3,280,249 - 6R3.747 . - (4.594,502) - 14.594 502 -
Economic development T4 60.674 228,582 - - {490,193) - (4490,193) -
Payment of oblizations of component units 136415 - - - - {(136.413) - (136,415} -
Intergovernmental f13.033 - 5.859 - - {607.174) - {O07,174) -
Trterest and mhaer FA2R9IER - - - - (LIZ2E.918) - (1128.018)
Totat governmenal activities 19,065,556 758427 3,541,715 - 110,847 (12,654,567 - {12.654.567) -
Business-1ype activities:
Unemplovment Insurance 467,788 225356 26247 - - - {25.785) (15.785) -
Lotteries 723287 954 999 - - - - 231,704 231,704 -
Onher 31947 25,333 M523 - - - 22,909 22,909
Total business-1vpe activilies 1.223022 | 206080 245,770 - - - 228838 228,828
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 5 20288578 S 19604507 5 3THTAES S - S FIHLE4T 3 (12.654.567) 5 22R.828 3 (112425739 $ -

(Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

Functions

COMPONENT LNITS:
Government Development Baok Tor Puento Rico
Pueno Rico Highways and Transponation Authorty
Pugrto Rico Electric Power Authoricy
Pueno Rico Agqueduct and Sewer Autharity
University of Pucro Rico
Pueno Rico Health Tnsuranee Adimimisiration
Other companent units

TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS

See accompanying notes o basie financial stlcments,

Program Revenues

Net {Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit)

Charges Operating Earnings Capital Frimary Government
far Grants and and Grants and Governmental  Business-type Componant
Expenses Services Contributions  Ilnvestmants Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
S 0ARAI1E 5408043 3127401 S - % - g S b3 4 (62.264)
1,040,353 265.470 . . 176,436 . - (508.447)
4,191,066 4.002,713 - - - {188,353
U53.633 T62.092] - - 22,133 - - (168.579)
I 488,720 182033 138,331 - 17,240 - - {1. 151125}
1.561.120 T67.243 - - - - - (1,093 877
3,521,906 1,668,455 205,276 555,108 63,447 - {938,580)
813,713,425 $E.117,778 5 561018 $555,108 5270296 - - - 4,202,223
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes:
Income 1anes 5,424,476 - 5424476 -
Sales and use rax 1.089.072 - 1,089,073 -
Excise taxes 1,115,283 1118283 305,947
her 1axes 13,348 - 103,348 -
Revenue from global tobacco seitlement agreement o073 - 90,073
Revenue from Puero Rico Infrashuciwe Financing Authorily 08437 308,451
Revenue from State Insurance Fund Corporation 42,438 42,438
Revenue from Pueto Rico Towism Company 25,743 25,743
Revenue from Governing Board of 9-1-1 Services G550 9,550 -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 15,176 - 115,176 176,563
Paymients from primary government - - - 2,084 408
Unrestricted mvestmenl carmings 114.609 200030 134,735 179.0u7
Other 96,696 - 496,696 10819
Special 1em — Escrow restrctiring 175,132 - 175,102 -
Transfers 251,170 (251,170)
Total general vevenues and translers B3.964.278 (231134 %733, 144 2855200
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (3,690,289 {2,300) (3,692,595 (1.347.019)
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - Beginning of year (as rostated) (23.495.960) $42.235 (22.653,725) 12,672,164
NET ASSETS (DEFICITY — End of year 8 (27.186,249) 3 339,929 $026.346,320) 511,325,145

(Concluded)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN COMMERCIAL BANKS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL BANKS
INVESTMENTS

RECEIVABLES:

Taxes
Intergovermmental
Accommls
Loans
Accrued inlerest
{nher

DUE FROM:
nher funds

Component units
(hher governmental entities

OTHER ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash eguivalents in commercial banks
Cash and cash equivalents in governmental banks
(her restricled assets

REAL ESTATE HELD FOR SALE OR FUTURE
DEVELGPMENT

TOTAL ASSETS

Ptedged COFINA COFINA
Sales and Debt Special Debt Other Total

General Use Tax Service Revenue Service Governmental Governmental
£ 128.164 5 - % - 3 - % - $ 121.088 $ 249.252
- - 185812 RO.019 16475 364 384 655600
- - - 1,957,796 175,265 149,311 2282372
1.468.506 92314 - - - - 1.560.820
337561 - 32063 - - 3420 373,044
167.628 - - - - 1,328 168,956
209 - . - - 39 248
2947 B [.100 26 - 450 4,523
4 - - - - 3.963 5,767
87.878 - . - 92.314 202,959 383,151
141.597 - - - - 4£7.225 188.822
273 - - . 7,892 R.265
15.061 - - - - - 15,061
470,022 66,621 - - 200,642 737,285
1.564.249 186,670 - - 46,469 1,707,388
19,200 - - - - - 19,200}
42950 - - - - 16,593 59,543
54,446,249 $92314 $472.266 $ 2046841 $284.054 $1.167,663 $ 8,500,387

{Conlinued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

LIABILITIES;

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics

Tax relunds payable

Due 1o
Other funds
{ther governmental entities
Component unils

Notes payable

Bonds payable

[nterest payable

Delerred revenue

Termination benelits payable

Tux revenue anticipation notes payable

Towal lahilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):

Reserved for:

Encumbrances

Debt service fund

Capital prajects

Assels i liguidation

Low income housing assistance

Other specified purposes
Unreserved {delicit):

General fund

Debt service fund

Special revenue funds

Capital project funds

Tolal fund balances (delicit}

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

See gccompanying nedes 1o basie finaneial stalements,

Pledged COFINA COFINA
Sales and Debt Special Debt Other Total
General Use Tax Service Revenue Service Governmental Governmental

51.377.115 30 - $ 11,724 £ 20 § 1.890 § 143,302 $15834,14]
426,534 - - - - - 426,534
282173 92314 - 374 487
{400,545 - - - - 1401, 548
177986 - - - - 6193 439,920
175,464 - - - - 175,464

- TR.650 - - 79.535 158,185
30.683 - 123414 . - 74.349 228.450
1.507.278 - - - - - 1,507,278
64 (5 . - - - - 64,095
1,500,000 - - - - - 1.500.000
5.881.876 92314 213,792 20 1.800) 350210 6,549,102
A89.0R4 - - - 6.595 596,279
378,905 - - - 378,904
81,932 - - - B1.952
76,461 - - - - - 765,461
5838 - - - - 5.838
114,371 - 2046814 - - 2,161,185
{2.682.838) - - - - (2,682,838
- - 258474 282,164 127,404 668,132

- - - 7 - 249 884 249 891

- - - - - 424 480 424 480
(1.435.627 - 258,474 2046821 282,164 508453 1,960,285
$4,446,249 $02.314 $472.260 52,046,841 $284.054 $1.167.663 3 8,509,387

-4] -

{(Concluded)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009

(In thousands)

TOTAL FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) ARE DIFFERENT THAN THE
AMOUNTS REPCGRTED IN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BECAUSE:

Accounts receivable for the global whacco sctilement agreement

Accounts receivable for sales and use 1ax

Note receivable from third party

Inventories and prepaid expenses thal are nol reported in governmentad funds and
are reported in the statement of net assets (deficit}

Capital assets used in governmental activities are ot linanciad resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds

Delerred revenue lor governnientad funds that are recorded as revenue in the
statement of net asseis {deficit)

Debt issued by the Commonwealth have associated costs that are patd from
current available resources in the funds. However, these costs are deferred
in the statement of net assets (delicil)

Long-term liabifities are not due in the current period and thereflore are nol
reported in the funds:

Appropriation bonds

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Due to component units

Due to other governmental entities
Capital leases payable
Compensaled absences

Nel pension obligation

Net postemployment benelit obligation
Interest payable

Other long-term liabilitics

TOTAL NET DEFICIT OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Sec accompanying noles (o basic financial stalements.

$ 0 1,960,285

1,207,871

271,900

{737,345)
(24.863,557)
(1,818,013
(60,799)
(3,010
{240,084)
(1.585,049)
(6,754,230)
(76,606)
(36,254)
{2,202,395)

£ (27,186,249



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Income taxes
Sales and use Lax
Excise taxes
(rher ases
Charges for services

Revenue iroan global 1wobacen

setlement agrecment

Revenues from component
I

interzovernmenial

Interest and investment
camings

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safery
Health
Public housing and wellare
Education
Economic developnment
Payment of obligations of
COmpranent units
Intergovenmental
Capital outlay
Dbt service:
Principal
Interizst
Oher — debt issuance
costs

Tuoia] cxpenditires

EXCESS IDEFICIENCY ) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES

Pledged COFINA COFNA
Sales and Debt Special Detat Other Total
General Use Tax Service Revenue Service Governmental  Governmental
$ 5191042 S - 5 S 5,191,042
797,194 284,724 1LOBL91R
1,118,283 - - 1.118.283
103,348 - - - 153,348
738,427 - - 758427
93,409 - - - 93,409
IR6IR2 - - - - 386,182
558,152 - P15.176 F2A00 5367738
25928 73,753 1.931 1,365 F1.522 114,699
61,263 - - - 61,263
14,115,229 284,724 188,929 1,931 1,505 R3931 14.676,309
1,363,118 391 214 144, 150 1,512,000
2.071.001 - . - 2071001
2.7361,868 [Sl61 2,762,476
3428546 . 3428546
S.048.612 4893 5.053,505
HR7.INI 1.277 OB8.460
- 136,415 - - 136,415
425,418 - - 187,615 613,033
G684 - 291 898 352582
284,925 TR0 3477 115.65) 482,742
219,135 408,362 200,901 209,494 10037 802
- 54,277 LB K 56,230
16,350,490 - 487412 [RIsR:I00) 258,866 9n2.637 1R 193,811
{2.235.2610) 284,724 (298,088 {3875 i257.3010) {RTR. 06} (3,519,502
(Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

© Pledged COFINA COFINA
Sales and Debt Special Debt Cther Total
General Use Tax Service Revenusa Service Governmental  Gowernmental
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transiers in 3 3455064 ] - 5 607,303 S 3206778 S0 3474 S 420,497 S 9.974.368
Transfers aut {1.033,6801) {284.721) (3,192.516) {3.206.778) {33000 {2.723,198)
Leng term debe 1ssued 222,198 - - 5.336.070 107.657 39635923
ssuance of refunding bonds - 237,875 - 237875
Sale of capinal assets 129,241 - 206499 158,940
Bond issue discount - 163,715y - {63,715)
Capital leases 292 - 292
Termination fee on swap
AEIECMES - (74671 (74,671
Upfromt fee on swap
agreements - 35,980 35980
Payment for relunding
ol honds {183.0001 . {183,000)
Bond proceeds — premium 32,203 2,549 34842
Totat other financing
SOUECES {1Ees) 2773115 (284,724, T 305 2014262 JUR7TR #ad,0072 &,303.638
SPECIAL ITEM — Escrow
restructuring 50,207 #8946 5,944 175,102
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES
{DEFICIT) 618,061 309,222 1.068.333 147 426 {23 804) J01Y.238
FUNE BALANCES
(BEFICIT) - Beginning of
of year — as restated (2,053,685 (5748} TB.4RE 134,738 B2 25T {1.0538.953)
FEND BALANCES
{DEFICIT) — End of vear 5 (1435627 S 258,474 S 2046821 S  I8Z164 % HN8.453 S 1.960.285

See accompanying nutes 10 basic financial stadenents.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES (BEFICIT) TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) — Total governmental funds £ 3019238
AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ARE DIFFERENT BECAUSE:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays of $352.582 exceeded depreciation expense of ${251.430} in the
cugrent period. 10115

2]

The issuance of long-term debl (e.g. bonds., nates) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Nether

transactions. however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds

report the effect of issuance cosls premiums, discounts. and similar items when debt

is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the stalement of activilies.

This amount is the net effect of of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt

and related items. (5.687.511)
Bond issuance costs are expenditures in governmental funds, but are deferred

assets in the statement of net assets. 41,159

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current [inancial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds. 363.513
Some expenses reported in the slatement of activilies do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures

in the governmental funds, This is the amount by which other long-lerm

liabilities and accrued inlerest expense decreased. {1,344,226)
The nel effect of various miscellancous transaclions mvolving capital assels

{1.e. sales. trade-ins. and donations} is o decrease net assets. (176.101)
Generally. inventory and prepayments are recorded as expenditures in the

governmental funds when purchased rather than capitalized as an assel.

However, these asscls are capitalized in (he statement of nel assets. {7.513)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 5 (3.690.28%)

See accompanying noles to basic Anancial statements,



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL —

BUDGET BASIS ~ GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

(In thousands)

REVENUES:
[ncome taxes
Excise taxes
Oiher taxes
Sales and use tax
Charges [or services
Inlergovernmental
Revenues from component unils
Other

Toal revenues

EXPENDITURES — Current:
General government
Public safely
Health
Public housing and welfare
Educalion
Economic development
Intergovernmental

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY; OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):

Notes payable issued

Transfer in mosty from COFINA to cover deficil

Transier out

Total other financing sources (uses)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ANIY OTHER FINANCING USES

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Original Amended

Budget Budget Actual
55,628,000 $ 4,935,000 % 5.188.219
898,000 $06,000 T80L8a0
101,000 95,000 101 487
977.000 911,000 TO7.194
195.000 137.000 132,483
377.000 397.000 407.534
24,000 24.000 23,7064
1,140,000 143,000 151.953
9,340,000 7.452.000 7.583.494
543,254 445,031 886.368
2,167,505 2,167,420 2.278.218
1.472,104 1.509.058 1,342 886G
301,760 518.251 662,904
3.434 816 3.501.675 3.738.043
337,204 367086 435.260
383,697 384.538 383788
8,840,400 §.893.959 9,927 470
495 600 (1.441.959) (2.343,976)
- - 171.480
148,000 {.148.000 3455004
{647.600) (587.556) (962.427)
{499 601y 560,144 2064117
% - 5 (881815 5 320141
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents in commercial banks
Cash and cash equivalents in governmental banks
Insurance premiums receivables — net
Inlergavernmental receivable
Due [rom component units
Accrucd inkerest receivable
Other receivables

Total current assets

Noncurrenl assets:
Loans receivable lrom component units
Due from other funds
Cuapital assets — net
Restricted investments
Other

Torad assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Current liahilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabititics
Due to other lunds
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences
Lottery prizes
Insurance benelits payabic

Totad current Habilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lotlery prizes. excluding current portion
Compensaied absences. excluding current portion

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS (DEFICITy:
Invested in capital assets — net of relaed debi
Restricted for — payment of insurance benefits

nrestricted

TOTAL. NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-Type activities -— Enterprise Funds

Unemployment Other Total
Insurance Lotteries Proprietary  Proprietary
$480.028 5 148.213 % 127 $ 6283068

- - 151,158 151,158
64,286 - 4,279 68,565
6.392 - - 6,392

- - 14,813 14813
769 - 3222 1.99]

- 422 136 578
551,475 148.635 173,755 873.865
- - 306,402 306,402

- 53,208 26,006 79214

- 682 . 682

- - 20,830 29,830

- 35817 1,486 37,303
551475 238.342 5337.479 1.327.206
- 9.947 2433 12,380
114356 16,422 - 87.878
5,038 14,994 28 20,060

- 2,043 348 2,391

- 67,261 - 67.291
O7.785 - 949 88,726
114279 170,697 3,750 288,726
- 196.300 - 196300

- 1.47% 862 2.341
114,279 368,476 4.612 487,367
- 682 - 682

- - 28,209 29,2049
437.196 (130,816} S03.6358 810,038
5437.196 5130134y $532.867 $ 839,529
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Insurance premiums
Lottery ticket sales
interest

Other
Total operaling revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
[nsurance benefits
Louery awards
General, adnunistrative, and other
operaling expenses
Towal operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Contributions from U.S. government
Interest and investment carnings (fosses)
Total nonoperating revenues
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — Beginning of yeur — as restated

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — End of year

See accompanying nokes 1o basic financial statements.

Business-Type activities — Enterprise Funds

Unemployment Other Yotal
Insurance Lotteries Proprietary  Proprietary
$225.756 $ - $ 18,570 $ 244320

- 954.939 - 954939

- - 6.763 6763

- 32 - 52
225.756 954,994 25333 1.206,080
467,788 - 4,089 471,877
- 594,440 - 594.440

- 128,847 27,858 156,705
467,788 723.287 31947 1,223.022
(242.032) 231,704 (6,614) 116,942}
216,247 - 28,523 245,770
23,813 448 (4.225) 20,036
240,060 448 25298 265.806
(1,972} 232152 18.684 248,864

- 5.878 3,878
{47.906) (209.142) - (257.04%)
(49.878) 23.010 24.562 {2.306)
437.074 {153,144y 508,303 842,235
437,196 S(130.134y  $332.867 $ 839,929
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Business-Type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Unemployment Other Taotal
Insurance Lotteries Froprietary Proprietary
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Recaipis rom customers and users § 215,083 5 960,660 $ 19,493 S1.195,236
Other receiprs - 320 - 320
Payments to suppliers - (97.292) {14,173} (111,465
Paymenls (o employees - - {13,647} {13,647
Payments of loltery prizes - {613,053} - (513,053
Payments of insurance benefits {483,394) - (4,330 (457,726
Other payments - A (683 (1,603)
Mel cash provided by fused in) operating activities 1268.311) 249,713 (£3.342) (31,940
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmenial grants and contributions 209855 - 29523 239378
Transters from other funds - - 5,878 3,878
Trans{ers (0 other fupds {47,906} (196,270) - {244.176)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital hnancing activities 161,549 (196,270} 35,401 1,080
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ANIX RELATEDR FINANCING ACTIVITIES —
Capital expenditres - (16} - (16)
Net cush used in capital and relined {inancing activities - {16} - (16}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on deposils and invesimenis 23813 448 7.854 32,015
Loans enginated - - (63.764) (65,764
Principal collected on loans - - 11,942 11,942
Proceeds from szles and maturities of investments - - 24795 24,793
Porchase ol invesiments - - (25,482) {35,482
Net cush provided by (used in) investing activities 23813 448 (46,655 (32304
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {82.549) 53,875 {24,590} {33,270)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YIEAR. As restated 562,577 04,338 175,881 32,796
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR & 480,028 § 148213 S1531.285 5 779526
{Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY {USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (1oss)

Adpusiments 1o reconcile operating income (1oss) 10 net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Interests camed on deposits foans and investments
Changes in operaling asscts and Habilines:

recrease fnercase] inaccomts and loans receivable
Decrease in due to aber funds

Increase in due 1o (from} other funds

Decrease in obligation for unpaid lotiery awards
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Decrease in compensated absences

Drecrease in fiability Tor insurance benefits payable
Increase in acconats payable and acorued Habilites
Decrease 11 vther assets

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes 10 basic linancial siatements.

Business-Type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Linemploymernt Other Total

Insurance Lotteries Proprietary Proprietary
50242037 5 231,704 4 {661 $ {16,942y
(6.763) (6,703)

t4,840) 7515 923 3,508
(2,176) - {2,176}

. 30,665 30,665

- (192503 (19,250)
(3.657) {1,795 9 (3.443)

- - 1946} (946)
{15,606) - {243) (15,849

- 583 292 874

- 321 - 31
(26,279) 18,009 (6.728) (14,9983

S (268,311 $ 249,713 $013,342) S (394

(Concluded



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents in commercial banks and
U.S. Treasury — unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents in governmental banks:
Unrestricted
Restricted
Investrments:
Debt and equity securities — at fair value
Other
Receivables — net:
Accounts
Loans and advances
Accrued interests and dividends
Other
Capital assets — net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Securities lending transactions
Other liabilities
Bends payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS — held in trust for pension
and other benefits

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Special
Pension Deposits-
Trust Agency

$ 390,208 $ 662,714

85,579 1,135,401
1,028,878 -
3,765,830 -

61,061 5,936
312,658 -
1,497 354 -
12,569 -
58,440 -
35,338 -
44 130 -

7,322,075 1,804,051

104,664 1,804,051
151,760 -
53,990 -
2,961,359 -

3,271,773 1,804,051
$4,050,302 $ -




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — PENSION TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Sponsor
Participants
Special

Total contributions
Interest income and investment loss:
Interest
Dividends
Net change in fair value of investments
Invesument expenses
Net interest income and investment loss
Other income

Totat additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Pension and other benefits
Refunds of contributions
General and administrative

Total deductions

NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION AND OTHER BENEFITS

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION AND OTHER BENEFITS:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$ 535,540
501,483

287,784

1,324,807

266,974

29,186
(1,094,154}
(12,419)

__(810413)
38,372

552,766

1,656,019
39,843
268,345

1,964,207

(1,411,4413

5,461,743

$ 4,050,302



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash cquivalents in
commercial banks

Cash and cash equivalents in
sovernmental hanks

Invesiments

Reeervubles -— ner:
Insurance premium
Tniergovernmental
Accounts
Loing
Accruel interest
Oither governmental entitics
(hher

13ue froan:
Primary government
Component units

Invemiorics

Prepaid expenses

Tatal current assers

Major Component Units

Government Puerte Rico Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Major Nonmajor All
Development Highways and Electric Aqueduct University Health Component Component Component
Bank for Transportation Power and Sewer of Insurance Units Units Units

Puerto Rico Autherity Avthority Authority Puerto Rico  Administration Totals Totals Totals

% 2455106 3 15.529 $ 75230 2183 5 EREAS] % 74,524 5 2625636 351652 S 2977308
B 15,189 035 - - 6,883 23.007 524,904 547,911
2380994 - - - 161.232 - 2.692.226 837,044 580,170
- - - - - 84631 84,611

- - 3170 - 13888 17058 6,269 23,327

- 22,834 583,462 118.200 12,493 31,223 758222 150,603 S0R.R25
4,137,340} - - - - - 4,137,340 74,787 4,212,127
137,872 2.785 - - 140,657 16,943 57,602

- 193566 37,968 16,043 147577 B1.392 328,969
37.045 - 12,972 50,017 41,342 91.35¢

51659 176.941 34,642 77.394 71166 412,802 101,496 514,298
974,099 133,057 24637 29,121 - 1160914 67,929 1,228,843

- - 410,346 32431 4.698 - 437,475 24,274 461,749

1,993 2177 5,800 1,532 33 1540 22,968 34508

1(L338.070 55,545 1.615.574 249,040 268,540 187,722 12,714,491 2437136 15,151,627
(Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Major Component Units

Government Puerto Rico Puerte Rico Puerto Rico Puerte Rice Major Nonmajor All
Development  Highways and Eleciric Agueduct University Health Compenent Component Component
Bank for Transportation Power and Sewer of Insurance Units Units Units

Puerto Rico Authority Authority Authority Puarto Rico  Administration Totats Totals Totals

ASSETS (Cont'd)

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricled gsses:
Cash and cash equivalems in
connnercial banks § 47.4603 § 1.508 S 321662 3 140,308 5 22,686 § 2337 536,394 $ 1,953,280 3 2,489.674
Cash and cash equivalents in

governmental banks - 400157 112 42,4004 - - R231R 307,637 479,955
Investiments 1.792,596 FR6.113 336019 - 155,316 - 3070.144 1,388,036 4,458,180
Chher restricted assels 22,552 - - - - - 22552 72,230 04,782

Invesiments . - - - - - - 1.839.9¢1 1839911
Receivahles:
Loans, interest. and other - - - - 2,748 - 2,748 183,155 185,903
Onher governmenial enlities - - - - - - - 7780 7.780
Oither - - - - R - 1854 9783 13,637
I2ue fran:
Primary government - - 74890 . 74,890 . 74890
Component unils L594.010 - - [.594,010 8632 1.602,6412
Real estate held For sale or
futire develupment 2013396 - - - - - 203390 177.593 380,989
Capital assets. not being depreciated 2845 1747666 1790773 1.652.305 230,957 - 6,414,542 2.891.096 9,305.638
Capital assets. depreciable -— net 14,607 B.A555.909 4619400 4,340 446 683,729 209 15,214,300 2.401.626 20615926
Deferred expenses and other assets 23476 124.047 97.965 59,544 37.03¢9 - 362071 139.041] A0E 112
Total noncurrent assets 1T01L085 12,255,700 7.166,031 6.234.648 1.221.219 2,336 3MLER1.219 11.469.800 42,051,019
TOTAL $14.039,155 $12,311,245 $8.781.605 56,483,688 $1,489.739 5190,258 $43,295.710 $13,906,936 557,202,646
{Continued}



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Major Component Units

Government Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Puertc Rico Major Nonmaijer All
Developmant Highways and Electric Agqueduct University Heaith Compenent Component Component
Bank for Transportation Power and Sewer of insurance Units Units Units
Puerto Rico Authority Authority Authority Puerto Rico  Administration Totats Totals Totals
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
LIABILITIES:
Current lialilitics:
Accoums payable and accrued liabilities $ 57.832 30 217.879 S 737.7128 $ 396.649 5 105,671 $353.149 5 1.868.908 § 883253 $ 2752161
PDeposits and eserow labilities 71.554 807 - 169.592 5719 Rh - 1730550 437.436 8,217,992
Due o
Primary government - - 14,813 . | 3,889 28.702 278.940 307,642
Component onits - 176,920 308.634 15,335 - 500,898 727945 1,228,843
Other governmental eatities - - - - - - 108,622 108.622
Securities lending transactions and
reverse repurchase agreements 41053 - - - - - 419053 193,258 612.311
Interest payable 25,188 156,982 1489160 60,293 2052 - 303,425 123,811 517,236
Delerred revenue - - - 18615 71 - 18.686 811! 107.797
Nates payable, current pottion 72,660 - 984,270 27148 - - 1.064.678 221,941 1,286,619
Commonwealth appropriation
honds, current portian - - - 8.275 - - 8.275 - 8,273
Bonds payable. current portion 64019 104,090 346,079 2780 22,445 - 539413 146 697 680,110
Accrued compensated abscnees,
Current portian 16,574 83,123 15.865 31.327 369 147,258 134,196 371,454
Liability for suomobile accident
insurimew and work nien
compensation claims - - - - - 353,652 353,652
Current portion of oiher
long-teen liabikitics [, 748 91808 33067 126.623 21,797 148.420
Tanal correni liabilitics B Y5307 495,525 2.743.839 834,391 210.006 7. 12,846.475 AT63.659 16,610,134

-55.

{Continued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) — MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Major Component Units

Government Puerto Rico Fuerto Rico Puerta Rico Puerto Rico Major Nonmajor All
Development  Highways and Electric Aqueduct University Health Companent Component Componant
Bank for Transpertation Power and Sewer uf Insurance Units Units Units

Puerio Rico Authority Authority Authority Puerto Rice  Administration Totals Totals Totals

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (Cont'd}

LIABILITIES:
MWoncurrent labiliies:
Due to:

Printary government § - b - & . 5 306402 § . - 3 306.402 S 415589 3 347961
Companent unils - 351313 - 207.195 T1.080 . 629,388 073.054 [.602.642
Securities lending fransactions and
FoveTse repurchase agreements 440.000 - - - - - 440.000 104 800 544,800
Deferred revenue . - . - - . - 5.040 5.0
Notes pavable 20260065 - 65521 244 688 - - 2.3136.2714 1.064.116 1400390
Commenwealth appropriation bonds 4.812 - 608519 - - 673,331 153024 826,355
Bonds payable 95l 1l4 6,929 341 5.662.306 1.887.454 675,594 - 16.049.809 4.972.805 21,022,614
Accrred compensiled absences - 16.261 136.544 47375 138,404 245 338.829 23522 62,351
Other long-term liabiliies 27,175 62.404 134,176 T1.836 88,471 . 384.062 771152 1155214
Total noncurrent habilities 3303166 7.358.319 5.998.547 3433469 073,549 245 21,158.295 £.109.072 20.267.367
Tolal liabifities 11.588.473 7.854.844 8.742.386 4.267.860 113,555 67652 34.004.770 11.872.731 43.877.501

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Invested in captal assels — nel of
related ¢let 17.452 3.842.733 1,433 2963993 300,279 200 1.144.099 659,869 1.803.968
Resiricted [or:

Tiust -~ pomexpendable . - - - - - 300000 300,000
Capital projects - 41.763 233208 - 1100641 . 286032 08.884 354916
Leht servige 29.080 395,340 . - 51.869 - 476,289 1175233 1,851,522
Alfardable housing and relaed loan
insurance progrants 236,345 - - - - - 236,345 214,147 45,492
Student loans and other
cducational purposes - - - - 60L026 - 60.026 2326 01332
Other specified pugposcs - . 14,48} 5.268 - 10740 182,634 202,383
Unresiricted 2.167.805 {23.435) {213.422) (762.6460) (122.209) (177.603 863,400 {568.888) 299512
Totad net assets (deficitt 24501682 4.456.4(H 30.219 2215828 306,204 (177394} 9.290.940 2,034,205 1 1.325.145
TOTAL 514,035,155 $12.311.245 58.781.605 $6.483 688 $1.489.759 5190.258 543205710 $13.906.936 357,202,646
Sce acompanying notes (o hasic financial sitements. {Concluded)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES — MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
{In thousands)

BLAR Cangitienl umins

Crovernmeent Devehpsat Bask for {ueda R
i'uerin Bave gl |
Pucrts Bace Lkearric e Ay
Fucela B Asuedinct angd Sewser Anthoriy
Rlnaversely ol Pyert i
Fucetn Bacie HeliTe lsorance  sdimisisatng

BTk O ComPenenl il

R aveninpamging reies e bosie dinasial w1

win Sutlneriey

Ganernl Ravanuos and Transfers

Paymanta LGiranls and Nel Assois
Frogrom Revenuas Hel Ry FramiTel  Cantelbutlans (eaticit),

Opsrating {zpital {Erpenses) Paymenls Ciher ne! Resirlcled Intarsst and Baginning Net Aspole

Chnrgag lor Granlg and  Enrnings on Gronds ang antt Chenges  From Primary  Componant tg Spacilic Exciza Invastimanl Lhang in of ¥ear {Dadledt),
Tupensed Services Contricullons  Investeethis  Contribolons im Nol Assels Governmant Uit Programs Toxos Earnings Dihat Mol Assots [As Heslatod) End ol Year

(Delicit} {Dafhcliy
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LIRHBASS R H - 1760 e LRCER Ei] - . - 289,549 226N X 4-ESh A1
ERLINESY REILII ] . HIRRISY Ti6 14,788 . . 47,467 %6642 ey
ol AN . 220 LRI Y] 1513 . - S.HM LU0 RSN 12I5MI
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

]0

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) was constituted on July 25, 1952, under the
provisions of its Constitution as approved by the people of Puerio Rico and the U.S. Congress. The
Commonwealth’s Constitution provides for the separation of powers of the executive, legislative, and
judicial branches of the government. The Commonwealth assumes responsibility for general
government, public safety, health, public housing and welfare, educaticon, and economic development.

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Commonwealth have been prepared in conformity
with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principies (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of the Commonwealth and
its various funds, the results of operations of the Commonwealth and its various funds and fund types,
and the cash flows of the proprietary funds. The basic financial statemenis are presented as of June 30,
2009 and for the year then ended. The basic financial statements include the various departments,
agencies, boards, commissions, public trusts and public corporations, and any other organizational units
governed by the Puerto Rico Legislature and/or officers of the Commonwealth.

(a) The Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies, and governmental
entities whose funds are under the custedy and control of the Secretary of the Treasury of the
Commonwealth and the Commonwealth’s component units pursuant to Act No. 230 of July 23,
1974, as amended, known as Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Accounting Law. The Commonwealih
has considered ali potential component units for which it is financially accountable and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Commonwealth are
such that exclusion would cause the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteria include: (1) appointing a voting majority of an organization’s
governing body and the ability of the Commonwealth to impose its will on that organization or
(11) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on, the Commonwealth.

As required by U.S. GAAP, these basic financial statements present the Commonwealth and its
component units.

{b) Component Units

Compoenent vnits are entities that are legally separate organizations for which the Commonwealth’s
elected officials are financially accountabie or other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the Commonwealth are such that exclusion would cause the
Commonwealth’s basic financial statemenis to be misleading or incomplete. GAAP details two
methods of presentation: blending the financial data of the component units’ balances and
trapsactions in a manner similar to the presentation of the Commonwealth’s balances and
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transactions; or discrete presentation of the component units’ financial data in columns separate
from the Commonwealth’s balances and transactions. The Commonwealth is financially accountable
because i appoints the members of the governing authorities of each of the component units and
because it is able to impose 1s will on these organizations or because the organizations provide
specific financial benefits or impose specific financial burdens on, the Commmonwealth. The
financial statements of the component units discussed bélow have been incladed in the financial
reporting entity either as blended component units or as discretely presented component units in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organization are Component Units.

Blended Component Units

The following entities, while legally separate from the Commonwealth, meet the criteria to be
reported as part of the primary government because they provide services entirely or almost entirely
to the Commonwealth.

Public Buildings Authority (PBA} — PBA is governed by a seven member board comprised by the
Secretary of the Department of Transportation and Public Works (DTPW), the Secretary of the
Department of Education of the Commonwealth, the President of the Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), and four members appointed by the Governor of Puerto Rico with the
advice and consent of the Senate. It is a legally separate entity, whose activities are blended within
the primary govermnment because it exists to construct, purchase, or lease office, school, health,
correctional, social welfare, and other facilities for lease to the Commonwealth’s departments,
component units, and instrumentalities. Bonds issued by PBA to finance such facilities are payable
from lease collections, which are largely derived from Commonwealth appropriations and are
further secured by the Commonwealth’s guaranty.

Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation (Known as COFINA by its Spanish Acronym) — was
created under Act No. 91 of the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth, approved on May 13,
2006, as amended by Act No. 291, approved on December 26, 2006, Act No. 56, approved on
July 6, 2007, Act No. 1, approved on January 14, 2009, Act No. 7, approved on March 9, 2009
(*Act 77), and Act No. 18, approved on May 22, 2009 (collectively, “Act 91”). COFINA was
originaily created for the purpose of financing the payment, retirement or defeasance of certain debt
obligations of the Commonwealth outstanding as of June 30, 2006 (the “2006 Appropriation Debt”).
The members of the board of directors of COFINA are the same as the ones of GDB.

During 2009, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth expanded the purposes of COFINA
and increased COFINA’s dedicated revenues from 1% to 2.75% (out of total sales tax of 5.3%) the
portion of the Commonwealth sales tax transferred to COFINA. COFINA is now authorized to pay
or finance, in whole or in part, or fund, in addition to the 2006 Appropriation Debt: (i) the debt of
the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth with GDB in the amount of $1 billion, a portion
of the proceeds of which were used to cover the budgetary deficit of the Commonwealth for fiscal
vear 2009, (i1} certain financing granted to the Secretary of the Treasury by GDB payable from
future Commonwealth generai objigation bonds, and any debt of the Commonwealth outstanding as
of December 31, 2008 that did not have a source of repayment or was payable from budgetary
appropriations (iii) a portion of the accounts payable to suppliers of the Commonwealth,
(iv) operational expenses of the Commonwealth for fiscal years 2009, 2010, and 2011,
(v) operational expenses of the Commonwealth for fiscal year 2012, to the extent included in the
annual budget of the Commonwealth, {vi) the Puerto Rico Economic Stimulus Fund, {vii) the
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Commonwealth Emergency Fund n order to cover expenses resulting from catastrophic events such
as hurricanes or floods, and (viii) the Economic Cooperation and Public Employees Alternatives
Fund (ali such uses, together with the 2006 Appropration Debt, the “Authorized Uses™).

Puerto Rico Maritime Shipping Authoriry (PRMSA) — PRMSA is governed by the President of
GDB. The operations of PRMSA consist of servicing the long term liability to third parties that
resulted from the sale of certain maritime operations formerly owned and operated by PRMSA. The
Commonwealth is required to annuvally appropriate funds in its general operating budget to provide
for the payment of principal and interest on such debt {see note 15 (d)).

The Children’s Trust (the Trust) — The Trust is governed by a seven member board comprised by
the Governor, who designates the president of the board, the President of GDB, the Director of the
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) of the Commonwealth, the Secretary of Justice of the
Commonwealth, and three private citizens appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of
the Senate. The Trust’s sole operation consists of providing financial assistance principally to the
Commonwealth’s departments to carry out projects aimed at promoting the well being of families,
children and youth of Puerto Rico, especially in the areas of education, recreation, and health. The
operation of the Trust is financed with the moneys being received by the Commoenweatth from a
global settlement agreement (GSA) dated November 23, 1998 between certain tobacco companies
and certain states, territorles, and other jurisdictions of the United States of America, including the
Commonwealth. The GSA calls for annual payments through the year 2025, which will vary due to
inflationary and volume adjustments. After 2025, the tobacco companies shall continue making
contributions in perpetuity.

The blended component units are composed of various funds. COFINA debt service fund and
COFINA special revenue fund are presented as major governmental funds. All other funds are
reperted in the other governmental funds column. Complete financial statements of the blended
component units can be obtained directly by contacting their respective administrative offices at:

Public Buildings Authority Puerto Rico Maritime
P.O. Box 41029-Minillas Station Shipping Authority
San Juan, PR 00940-1029 P.O. Box 42001
San Juan, PR 00940-2001
The Children’s Trust Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing
P.O. Box 42001 Corporation
San Juan, PR 00940-2001 P.O. Box 42001

San Juan PR 0094G-2001
Discretely Presented Component Units

The foliowing component units, consistent with GASB No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 39, are
discretely presented in the bagsic financial statements because of the nature of the services they
provide, the Commonwealth’s ability to impose its will, principally through the appointment of their
governing authorities, and because the component units provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose financial burdens on, the Commonwealth. These have been classified by management
between major and nonmajor component units. A major discretely presented component unit is
defined by management as a component unit that meets ten percent or more of total assets,
liabilities, net assets, revenue or expenses of all discretely presemted component units. If a
compoenent unit is expected to meet the minimum criteria for inclusion as major component unit in a
future year, the Commonwealth may elect 1o report as a major component unit.
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Major Component Units

Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) — GDB is governed by a seven member
board appointed by the Governor. GDB acts as fiscal agent, depository of funds, disbursing agent,
investor and financial advisor for the Commonwealth, its public corporations, and municipalities in
connection with the issuance of bonds and notes; and it also makes loans and advances funds
predominantly to the Commonwealth’s departments, component units, and municipalities. GDB’s
boards of directors’ members are executives on a trustworthy position, named and supervised by the
Governor,

Puerto Rico Agueduct and Sewer Authority (PRASA) — PRASA is governed by a nine member
board comprising five members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate of Puerto
Rico; the Executive President of PREPA, the President of the Puerto Rice Planning Board, the
Executive Director of Mayors’ Federation, and the Executive Director of Mayors’ Association.
PRASA owns and operates the system of public water supply and sanitary sewer facilities. PRASA
is authorized, among other things, fo borrow money and issue revenue boads for any of its corporate
purposes. As discussed in note 16{a), the Commonwealth guarantees the principal and interest
payments of certain outstanding bonds and of all future bonds issued to refinance those outstanding
bonds at the date of refinancing. Act No. 45 of July 28, 1994 was later amended to include other
loans under the State Revolving Fund Program (SRFP). The Commonwealth provides financial
support to PRASA through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREPA) — PREPA is governed by a nine meinber board
comprising the Secretary of DTPW, and six members appointed by the Governor with the advice
and consent of the Senate, and two members representing the consumers’ interest elected in a
referendum carried out by the Puerte Rico Consumer Affairs Department. Board members are
appointed or elected for a period of four years. PREPA is responsible for conserving, developing,
and utilizing the power resources in order to promote the general welfare of Puerto Rico and owns
and operates the Commonwealth’s electrical power generation, transmission, and distribution
system. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PREPA through legislative
approprialions.

Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration (PRHIA) — PRHIA is governed by a Board of
Directors, which, by law, is composed of nine (9) members (four compulsory members and five
discretionary members). The compulsory members are the Secretary of Heaith of the
Commonwealth, the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonweaith, the Insurance Commissioner
of Puerto Rico, and the Administrator of the Mental Health and Anii-Addiction Services
Administration, The five discretionary members are appointed by the Governor, with the advice and
consent of the Senate. PRHIA was created for implementing, administering, and negotiating a health
insurance system through contracts with insurance underwriters to provide quality medical and
hospital care to low income individuals, employees of the Commonwealth, and policemen who
voluntarily subscribe to the Puerto Rico health insurance medical plan. The board of directors’
president is designated by the Governor and all board of directors’ members are executives on a
trustworthy position. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRHIA through legislative
approgpriations.

Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority (PRHTA} — PRHTA is governed by the
Secretary of DTPW. PRHTA has broad powers to carry out its responsibilities in accordance with
DTPW’s overall fransportation policies. These powers include, among other things, the complete
control and supervision of any highway facilitics constructed, owned, or operated by PRHTA, the
ability to set tolls for the vse of the highway facilities, and the power to issue bonds, notes, or other
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obligations. PRHTA plans and manages the construction of all major projects relating to the
Commonwealth’s toll highway system, undertakes major repairs, and maintains the toll ways. The
Commonweaith has the ability to significantly influence the toll rates charged by PRHTA.

University of Puerto Rico (UPR}— UPR is governed by a thirteen member board of trustees
comprising one fujl time student, two permanent professors, and ten community citizens of the
private secter, of which at least one must be graduated from the institution. Community citizens are
designated by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. Members designated by the
Governor are appointed for a period of four to eight years. The terms for the student and professors
are one year. The Commonweaith provides financial support to UPR through legislative
appropriations.

Non-major Component Units

Agricultural Services and Development Administration (ASDA)— ASDA is governed by the
Secretary of Agriculture of the Commonweatth. The purpose of ASDA is to provide a wide variety
of services and incentives to the agricultural sector. The Commonwealth has the ability to impose its
will on ASDA. The Commonwealth provides financial support 10 ASDA through legislative
appropriations.

Automobile Accidents Compensation Administration (AACA) — AACA is governed by a Cabinet
Member, and a four member board appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the
Senate. AACA operates a system of compulsory insurance coverage for all registered motor vehicles
and compensates citizens for injuries arising from motor vehicle accidents. The Commonwealth has
the ability to significantiy influence rates charged by AACA.

Cardiovascular Center Corporation of Puerto Rico and the Caribbean (CCCPRC) — CCCPRC is
governed by a seven member board comprising of the Secretary of Health of the Commonwealth,
the Director of the Medical Sciences Campus of the UPR, the Executive Director of the Puerto Rico
Medical Services Administration, and four additional members appointed by the Governor with the
consent of the Senate, one of which should be from the Cardiology Society of Puerto Rico and
another a member of a cardiclogy foundation properly registered in the Department of State of the
Commonwealth. The purpose of the CCCPRC is to provide special treatment to patients suffering
frem cardiovascular diseases. The Commonwealth provides financial support to CCCPRC through
legislative appropriations.

Corporation for the Development of the Aris, Science and Film Industry of Puerto Rico
(CDASFIPR) — CDASFIPR was created for the development of the arts and the film industry in
Puerto Rico and 1s governed by a seven-member board comprising of the Secretary of Economic
Development and Commerce, who 1s the president, the President of the board of Directors of the
Puerto Rico Public Broadcasting Corporation, the Secretary of Treasury, the Executive Director of
the Puerto Rico Institute of Culture, the Executive Director of the Puerto Rico Tourism Company
and two additional members appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate.

Company for the Integral Development of the “Peninsula de Cantera” (CIDPC)— CIDPC is
governed by an eleven-member board, of which six are appointed by the Governor, and five
appointed by the Mayor of the Municipality of San Juan., CIDPC was created to establish and
implement a comprehensive development plan for the “Peninsula de Cantera™ area. Its main function
is to supervise and coordinate governmental efforts and also promote and manage private sector
imitiatives for the improvements and rehabilitation of the aforementioned area.



Corporation for the “Cafio Martin Pefia” ENILACE Project (CPECMP) — CPECMP was created
for the purpose of coordinate the public policy related to the rehabilitation of the Cafio Martin Pefia
area. CPECMP is governed by a board of directors of thirteen members of which seven are
appeinted by the Governor and six appointed by the Mayor of the Municipality of San Juan.

Culebra Conservation and Development Authority {CCDA) — CCDA was created to formulate and
administer the program and plan for the conservation, use, and development of natural resources of
the municipality of Culebra. CCDA is administered through a board of directors composed of seven
members, including the Mayor of Cuiebra and six additional members appointed by the Mayor of
Culebra and confirmed by the municipal legisiature. The administration and operations of the CCDA
are conducted by an executive director elected by the board of directors. The Commonwealth
provides financial support to CCDA through legislative appropriations.

Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (EDB) — EDB is governed by a nine member board
comprising the President of GDB. who is the Chairman, the Secretary of Agriculture of the
Commonwealth, the Secretary of the Department of Economic Development and Commerce of the
Commonwealth, the Executive Director of the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company, the
Executive Director of the Tourism Company of Puerto Rico, and four other members representing
the private sector and appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. Private sector
members are appointed for a maximum period of three years. EDB is responsible for the promotion
and development of the private sector economy of the Commonwealth. This purpose is 1o be met by
granting direct loans, loan guarantees, loan participation, and/or direct investments to any person or
business organtzation devoted to manufacturing, agriculture, trade, tourism, or other service
enterprises with preference, but not limited, to economic activities that may have the effect of
substituting imports. The Comsmonwealth has the ability to impose its will on EDB.

Employment and Training Enterprises Corporation {ETEC) — ETEC is governed by a thirteen-
member consulting board, which includes two private citizens appointed by the Governor with the
consent of the Senate. The purpose of ETEC is to provide training for management, business
development, and employment for inmates of the correctional institutions of the Commonwealth.
The Commonwealth generally provides financial support to ETEC through legislative
appropriations.

Farm Insurance Corporation of Puerto Rico (FICPR) — FICPR is governed by a five member
board consisting of the Secretary of Agriculture of the Commonwealth, the Dean of the Agricultural
Sciences Faculty of the UPR Mayaguez Campus, a representative of GDB, and two bona fide
farmers appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The purpose of the FICPR is to
provide insurance to farmers against losses in their farms caused by natural disasters. The
Commonwealth has the abiiity to impose its will on FICPR.

Fine Arts Center Corporation (FACC) — FACC is governed by a nine member board comprising
the President of the Musical Arts Corporation and eight members named by the Governor. FACC
was created with the purpose of admimstering the Fine Arts Center. The Commonwealth provides
financial support to FACC through legislative appropriations.

Governing Board of the 9-1-1 Service (911 Service}— The 911 Service is governed by a five
member board comprising the Chief of Police, the Executive Director of the Medical Emergency
Services, the Director of the State Emergency Management Agency, the Chief of the Puerto Rico
Firefighters Corps, and one member appointed by consensus of the four ex-officic members to
represent the public interest. The 911 Service is respensible for providing an efficient service of fast
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response to emergency calls through the 911 number and transferring these to the appropriate
response agencies using technological and human resources to safeguard lives and properties. The
Commonwealth has access to 911 Service resources.

Institute of Puerto Rican Culture (IPRC}— The IPRC is governed by a nine member board
comprising the President of Musical Arts Corporation and eight members appointed by the
Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. The TPRC is responsible for implementing the
public policy related to the development of Puerto Rican arts, humanities and culture. The
Commoenwealth provides financial support to IPRC through legislative appropriations.

Institutional Trust of the National Guard of Puerio Rico (ITNGPR} — ITNGPR is governed by a
seven member board comprising of the Adjutant Gesneral of the Puerto Rico National Guard, the
President of GDB, the Secretary of Justice of the Commonwealth, three militaries from the Puerto
Rico National Guard, and one representative from the community appointed by the Governor.
ITNGPR’s purpose is to provide life insurance, retirement benefits, and economic assistance to the
active members of the Puerto Rico National Guard and their families. The Commonwealth generally
provides financial support to ITNGPR through legislative appropriations.

Land Authority of Puerto Rico (LAPR) — LAPR is governed by a five members’ board consisting of
the Secretary of Agriculture of the Commonwealth and four members appointed by the Governor.
LAPR was created to carry out the provisions of the Land Law of Puerto Rico. LAPR maintains debt
that is paid with Commonwealth’s appropriations and funds generated by LAPR operations.

Musical Arts Corporation (MAC) — MAC is governed by a seven-member board appointed by the
Governor with the consent of the Senate. MAC was created to promote the development of the arts
and cultural programs of the Commoenwealth. The Commonwealth provides financial support to
MAC through legislative appropriations.

National Parks Company of Puerto Rico (NPCPR) — NPCPR is governed by a nine member board
comprising the Secretary of Recreation and Sports Department of the Commonwealth (the
Secretary), who is the chairman, the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth, the Executive
Director of the Puerto Rico Tourism Company, the Secretary of Natural and Environmental
Resources of the Commonwealth, and five members appointed by the Governor with the
recommendation from the Secretary and with known interest in the development and preservation of
parks in the private sector. NPCPR is responsible for the operation of all national parks and the
protection, conservation. maintenance and use of parks, beaches, forests, and natural and historical
moenuments for the optimum enjoyment of present and future generations. The Commonwealth
provides financial support to NPCPR through legislative appropriations.

Port of the Americas Authority (PAA) — PAA 1s governed by a nine-member board comprising of
the Secretary of Transportation and Public Works, the Secretary of Economic Develepment and
Commerce, the Executive Director of Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company, the Major of
the Municipality of Ponce and five private citizens appointed by the Governor with the consent of
the Senate. The purpose of the PAA 15 to provide an alternative fo container transshipment port in
the south of Puerto Rico.

Public Corporation for the Supervision and Deposit Insurance of Puerto Rico Cooperatives
{(PCSDIPRC) — PCSDIPRC is governed by a nine member board consisting of the Administrator of
the Cooperative Development Administration, the Commussioner of Financial Institutions of Puerto
Rico {(the Commissioner of Financial Institutions), the Secretary of the Treasury of the
Commonwealth, the Inspector of Cooperatives, three citizens representing the cooperative
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movement, one representative of the Puerto Rico Cooperatives League, and one private citizen
representing the public interest. PCSDIPRC has the responsibility of providing to all the
cooperatives and the Federation of Cooperatives of Puerto Rico insurance coverage over the stocks
and deposits, and for monitoring the financial condition of the insured cooperatives, and the
uninsured cooperatives when requested by the Inspector of Cooperatives. The Commonwealth has
the ability to impose its will on PCSDIPRC.

Puerto Rico Conservatory of Music Corporation (PRCMC)— PRCMC is governed by a seven-
member board appointed by the Governor, with the consent of the Senate. PRCMC is responsible
for providing the Puerto Rican community and especially its youths with the required facilities to
educate and perfect their musical skills, including secondary education programs for developing
musical arts. It prepares the artistic element that nourishes the Puerto Rico Symphony Orchestra and
other musical organizations, and coordinates the governmental efforts to interested industries,
private enterprises, and particular citizens. The Commonwealth provides financial support to
PRCMC through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Convention Center District Authority (PRCCDA} — PRCCDA is governed by a board
comprising of nine members, four of which shall be from the public sector and five from the private
sector. The public sector members comprise the Secretary of Economic Development and
Commerce of the Commonwealth, who is the Chairman, the Executive Director of the PRTC, the
president of GDB, and one member from the public secior. The private sector members are
individuals having experience in the areas of hospitality, tourism, real estate, or convention centers
who are appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. PRCCDA was
created to develop, own, finance, plan, design, construct, operate, manage, and promote the new
Puerto Rico Convention Center and the Puetto Rico Convention District. The PRCCDA also has the
ownership interest as well as other rights and obligations related to the development and operations
of the Jose Miguel Agrelot Coliseum. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRCCDA
through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Council on Higher Education (PRCHE) — PRCHE is governed by a board comprising
eight members appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate and the Secretary of
Education of the Commonwealth as an ex-officic member. Its purpose is to develop higher
education, to administer the licensing and certification of institutions of higher education, and to
admnister scholarship funds. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRCHE through
legislative appropriations,

Puerto Rico Government Investment Trust Fund (PRGITF) — PRGITF is governed by the Secretary
of the Treasury of the Commonweatth. GIDB 1s its trustee, custodian, and administrator. PRGITE s
main objective 1s to provide investment opportunities in a professionally managed money market
portfolio by mvesting in high quality securities with minimal credit risk. Qualified investors include
the Commonwealth’s central government, its public corporations, instrumentalities and agencies,
and the municipalities of Puerto Rico. In conformity with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financtal Reporting for Certain Investmemis and for External Investments Pools, the financial
statements of the PRGITF are not included in the accompanying basic financial statements becaunse
the primary government and each component unit investor is already presenting as cash or
investment their corresponding share of the assets of the PRGITF {see note 5).

Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority (PRIFA) — PRIFA is governed by the board of
directors of GDB and the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth. Its responsibilities are to
provide financial, administrative, consulting, technical, advisory, and other types of assistance to
other componeni units and governmental instrumentalities of the Commonwealth, which are



authorized to develop infrastructure facilities and to establish alternate means for financing them.
PRIFA’s boards of directors” members are executives on a trustworthy position, named and
supervised by the Governor. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRIFA through
legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company (PRIDCQO) — PRIDCO is governed by a seven
member board comprising the Secretary of Economic Development and Commerce of the
Commonwealth, who is the Chairman, the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth, the
Prestdent of GDB, the President of the Planning Board of Puerto Rico, and three members from the
private sector appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. The private
sector members are appointed for a period of four years. PRIDCO administers the Commonwealth
sponsored economic development program by providing facilities, general assistance, and special
incentive grants to manufacturing companies operating in Puerto Rico. PRIDCO has issued interim
notes and revenue bonds to finance manufacturing plants and other facilities. Rentals derived from
the leasing of specified facilities of PRIDCO are pledged for the payment of PRIDCO’s revenue
bonds. PRIDCO maintains debt that is paid with Commonwealth’s appropriations. The
Commonwealth provides hinancial support to PRIDCO through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Industrial, Tourist, Educational, Medical, and Environmental Control Facilities
Financing Authority (known as AFICA by its Spanish Acronym}— AFICA is governed by a seven
member board consisting of the Executive Director of PRIDCO, the President of GDB, the
Executive Director of PRIFA, the Executive Director of the PRTC, the President of the
Envirenmental Quality Board, and two private citizens appointed by the Governor. AFICA is
authorized to issue revenue bonds to finance industrial, tourist, environmental control, medical, and
educational facilities in Puerto Rico and the United States of America for use by private companies,
nonprofit entities, or governmental agencies. The bonds are payable solely from collections from
such private companies, nonprofit entities, or governmental agencies, and do not constitute debt of
the Commonwealth or any of its other component units.

Puerto Rico Land Administration (PRLA}— PRLA is governed by an eleven member board
comprising the Governor of Puerto Rico, who serves as President, the President of the Planning
Board of Puerto Rico, who serves us Vicepresident, the Secretary of Economic Development and
Commerce of the Commonwealth, the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonweaith, the
Secretary of Agriculture of the Commonwealth, the Secretary of DTPW of the Commonweaith, the
Secretary of Housing of the Commonwealth, the Executive Director of Puerto Rico Industrial
Development Corporation and four other members appointed by the Governor with the consent of
the Senate. PRLA acquires parcels of fand on behalf of government instrumentalities through
negotiation or expropriation for future development or for reserve. The Commonwealth provides
financial suppert to the PRLA through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Maritime Transporiation Authority (PRMTA)— PRMTA is governed by a five-
member board comprising the Secretary of DTPW of the Commeoenwealth, who serves as President,
the Executive Director of the Ports Authority, the Mayors of Vieques and Culebra, and one
additional member appointed by the Governor. The operations of PRMTA consist of administer and
operate the maritime transportation services between San Juan, Fajardo, Vieques and Culebra. The
Commonwealth provides financial support to PRMTA through legislative appropriations.,

Puerto Rico Medical Services Administration (PRMeSA) — PRMeSA is governed by a ten member
board comprising the Secretary of Health of the Commonwealth, who is the Chairman, the Dean of
the Medical Sciences Faculty of the UPR, the President of the Board of the Puerto Rican Cancer
Society, the Mayor of the municipality of San Juan, the Administrator of the State Insurance Fund
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Corporation, the Administrator of the Mental Health and Anti — Addiction Services Administration
the President of the Medical Policy and Admisnistration Committee, the Secretary of the Family, and
iwo users appointed by the Secretary of Health of the Commonwealth. Its purpose is to plan,
organize, operate, and administer the centralized health services, provided in support of the hospital
and other functions, offered by the member institutions and users of the medical complex known as
the Puerto Rico Medical Center. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRMeSA
through legislative appropriations.

FPuerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority (PRMBA) — PRMBA is governed by the Secretary of
DTPW of the Commonwealth. PRMBA provides bus transportation to passengers within the San
Juan Metropolitan Area. The Commoenwealth provides financtal support 1o PRMBA through
legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Municipal Finance Agency (PRMFA} — PRMFA is governed by a five member board
comprising the President of GDB, who is the Chairman, the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs,
and three additicnal members appointed by the Governor, one of whom shall be either the mayor or
chief financial officer of a municipality, PRMFA was organized {o create a capital market to assist
the municipalities of Puerto Rico in financing their public improvement programs.

Puerto Rico Ports Authority (PRPA}— PRPA is governed by a five member board consisting of the
Secretary of DTPW of the Comunonwealth, who is the Chairman, the Secretary of Economic
Development and Comimerce of the Commonwealth, the Executive Director of the PRTC, the
Executive Director of Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company and onie privaie citizen
appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The purpose of PRPA is to administer all
ports and aviation transportation facilities of the Commonwealth and to render other related services.
The Commonwealth generally provides financial support to PRPA through legislative
appropriations.

Puerto Rico Public Broadcasting Corporation (PRPBC)— PRPBC is governed by an eleven
member board of directors comprising the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth, the
President of the UPR, the Executive Director of IPRC, and eight private citizens appointed by the
Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. At least three of these private citizens must
have proven interest, knowledge. and experience in education, culture, art, science, or radic and
television. PRPBC was created for the purpose of integrating, developing, and operating the radio,
television, and electronic communication facilities that belong to the Commonwealth. The
Commenwealth provides financial support to PRPBC through legislative appropriations.

FPuerto Rico School of Plastic Arts (PRSPA) — PRSPA 1s governed by a seven member board. Four
members are appointed by the board of directors of IPRC, representing the public educational and
cuitural interests. Board members may not be employees of the PRSPA. The remaining three
members are elected from among the members of the board of directors of IPRC, one of whom will
serve as president. PRSPA was created to develop, promote, plan, and coordinate programs ot study
in higher education oriented to the plastic arts, teaching, artistic techniques, and to help students to
develop humanistic values. The Commonwealth generally provides financial support to PRSPA
through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority (PRSWA)— PRSWA is governed by a government board
appointed by the Secretary of the Department of Natural Resources, whereby, the Secretary and the
Executive Director of PRSMA periodically meet. PRSWA provides alternatives for processing of
solid waste and encourages recycling. reuse, and recovery of resources from waste. The
Commonwealth provides financial support to PRSWA through legislative appropriations.
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Puerto Rico Telephone Authority (PRTA}— PRTA is governed by a five member board comprising
the President of GDB and four members that are appointed by the board of directors of GDB. PRTA
15 the legal entity responsible 10 account for the equity interest in Telecommunications de Puerto
Rico, Inc., for the benefit of the Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico
and its instrumentalities (ERS). The Commenwealth generaily provides financial support to PRTA
through legislative appropriations.

Puerto Rico Tourism Company (PRTC) — PRTC is govemed by a seven member board comprising
of representatives of different tourist related sectors appointed by the Governor with the consent of
the Senate. At least one member must represent internal tourism and two must not be residents of the
metropolitan area. Its purpose is to promote the tourism industry of Puerto Rico. The
Commonwealth generally provides financial support to PRTC through legislative appropriations.

Puerio Rico Trade and Expory Company (PRTEC) — PRTEC is governed by a nine member board
comprising the Secretary of the Department of Economic Development and Commerce, who is the
Chairman, the Executive Director of the Ports Authority, the Secretary of the Department of
Agriculture, the President of EDB, the Executive Director of PRIDCO, the Legal Division Director
of PRTEC, and three private citizens. PRTEC has the responsibility to promote the highest
efficiency in the services provided to the commercial sector, with emphasis on small and mediuzm
sized enterprises while promoting the export of products and services from Puerto Rico to other
countries. The Commonwealth provides financial support to PRTEC through legislative
appropriations.

Right 10 Employment Administration (REA) — REA is governed by an administrator appointed by
the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The Commonwealth provides financial support to REA
through legislative appropriations and federal funds.

Special Communities Perpetual Trust (SCPT)— SCPT is governed by a board of directors
composed of eleven members: the Secretary of Housing of the Commonwealth, the Secretary of the
DTPW of the Commonwealth, the Coordinator for the Social and Economic Financing of the
Special Communities, one mayor of a municipality of Puerto Rico, one community leader resident in
one special community, four private citizens representing the public interest, and two public
employees. All members of the board of directors are appointed by the Governor. SCPT’s principal
purpose is to fund development projects that address the infrastructure and housing needs of the
underprivileged communities. The Commonwealth provides financial support to SCPT through
legislative appropriattons.

State Insurance Fund Corporation {SIFC) — SIFC 1s governed by a seven member board appointed
by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. The board comprises the Commissioner
of Insurance of Puerto Rico, an officer from the Department of Labor and Human Resources of the
Commonwealth, an officer from the Department of Health of the Commonwealth, a representative
of the employer’s interest, a representative of the employees’ interest, and two members without any
of these interests. One of these members is appeinted by the Governor as president of the board fora
period of six years. The three public officials are appointed for a period of five years, and the rest of
the members for four, three, two, and one year, respectively. SIFC provides workers’ compensation
and disability insurance to public and private employees. The Commonweaith has access 1o SIFC’s
FESOUICES.
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Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico

P.0O. Box 42001
San Juan, PR 00940-2001

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority
P.O. Box 364267
San Juan, PR 00936-4267

Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation
Authority

P.O. Box 42007

San Juan, PR 00940-2007

Agricultural Services and Development
Adminis{ration

P.O. Box 9200

San Juan, PR 00907-0200

Cardiovascular Center Corporation of
Puerto Rico and the Caribbean

P.O. Box 366528

San Juan, PR 00936-6528

Company for the Integral Development of the
*Peninsula de Cantera”

P.O. Box 7187

Santurce, PR 00916-7187

Culebra Conservation and Development
Authority

P.O. Box 217

Culebra, PR 00775-0217

Employment and Training Enterprises
Corporation
P.O. Box 366505

San Juan, PR 00936-6503

Fine Aris Center Corporation
P.O. Box 41287-Minitlas Station
San Juan, PR 00940-1287
Institute of Puerio Rican Culture

P.O. Box 9024184
San Juan, PR 00902-4184

-H0 -

Corplete financial statements of the discretely presented component units can be obtained directly
by contacting their administrative offices:

Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority
P.O. Box 7066
San Juan, PR (0916-7066

Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration
P.O. Box 195661
San Juan PR 00919-5661

University of Puerto Rico
Jardin Botanico Sur 1187
Calle Flamboydn

San Juan, PR 00926-1117

Automobile Accidents Compensations
Administration

P.O. Box 364847

San Juan, PR 00936-4847

Corporation for the “Cafio Martin Pefia”
ENLACE Project

P.O. Box 41308

San Juan, PR 00940-1308

Corporation for the Development of the Arts,
Science and Film Industry of Puerto Rico
P.O. Box 362350

Hato Rey, PR 00936-2350

Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico
P.O.Box 2134
San Juan, PR 00922-2134

Farm Insurance Corporation of Puerto Rico
P.O. Box 9200
Santurce, PR 00908

Governing Board of the 9-1-1 Service
P.O. Box 270200
San Juan, PR 00027-0200

Institutional Trust of the Nat:onal Guard of
Puerto Rico

P.O. Box 9023786

San Juan, PR 00002-3786



Land Authority of Puerto Rico
P.O. Box 9745
San Juan, PR 00908-9745

Naticnal Parks Company of Puerto Rico
P.O. Box 9022089
San Juan, PR 00902-2089

Public Corporation for the Supervision and
Deposit Insurance of Puerte Rico Cooperatives
P.O. Box 195449

San Juan, PR 00919-5449

Puerto Rice Convention Center District Authority

P.O. Box 19269
San Juan, PR 00910-1269

Puerto Rico Government Investment Trust Fund
P.O. Box 42001 — Mimillas Siation
San Juan, PR 00940-2001

Puerto Rico Industrial, Tourist, Educational,
Medical, and Environmental Control
Facilities Financing Authority

P.O. Box 42001

San Juan, PR 046940-2001

Puerto Rico Land Administration
P.O. Box 363767
San Juan, PR 00936-3767

Puerto Rice Medical Services Administration
P.O. Box 2129
San Juan, PR €0922-2129

Puerto Rico Municipal Finance Agency
P.O. Box 4200t
San Juan, PR 00940-200]

Puerto Rico Public
Breadeasting Corporation
P.O. Box 190909

San Juan, PR 00919-0909

Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority

P.O. Box 40285-Minilias Station
San Juan, PR 00940-0283
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Masical Ants Corporation
PO Box 41227
San Juan, PR 00940-1227

Port of the Americas Authority

~ P.O. Box 362350

San Juan, PR 00936-2350

Puerto Rico Conservatory of Music Corporation
951 Ave. Ponce de Ledn
San Juan, PR 00907-3373

Puerto Rico Council on Higher Education
P.G. Box 19960
San Juan, PR 00916-1900

Puerto Rico Industrial Development Corpany
P.O. Box 362350
San Juan, PR 00936-2350

Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Aothority
Capital Center

235 Arterial Hostos Ave., Suite 1600

San Juan, PR 00918-1433

Puerto Rico Maritime Transportation Authority
PO Box 4305
Puerte Real, PR 00740

Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Anthority
P.O. Box 195349
San Juan, PR 00919-5349

Puerto Rico Ports Authority
P.O. Box 362829
San Juan, PR 00936-2820

Puerto Rico School of Plastic Arts
P.O. Box 9021112
San Juan, PR 00902-1112

Puerto Rico Telephone Authority
P.O. Box 42001
San Juan, PR 00940-2001



Puerto Rico Tourism Company Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company

P.O. Box 9023960 P.O. Box 195009

Old San Juan Station San Juan, PR 00919-5009
San Juan, PR 00902-3960

Right to Employment Administration Special Communities
P.O. Box 364452 Perpetual Trust

San Juan, PR 00936-4452 P.O. Box 42001

San Juean, PR 80940-2001

State Insurance Fund
Corporation

P.O. Box 365028

San Jvan, PR 00936-5028

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units have a year end of Juae 30,
20069, except for the Puerto Rico Telephone Authority, which has a year end of December 31, 2008.

Fiduciary Component Units

The three employee retirement systems administer pension funds for the Commonwealth and its
political subdivisions. The three systems are subject to legislative and executive controls, and the
administrative expenses are subject to legislative budget controls, These component units, while
meeting the definition of a component unit and are legally separate, are presented in the fund
financial statements along with other fiduciary funds of the Commonwealth. They have been
omitted from the government wide financial statements, as their resources are not available to fund
operations of the Commonwealth,

Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS) —
ERS is governed by a board of trustees, which is composed of the Secretary of the Treasury of the
Commonwealth, who is the President, the President of GDB, the Commissioner for Municipal
Affairs, the Director of the Puerto Rico Central Office of Personnel Administration, two
participating employees, and one retiree, who are appointed by the Governor. The Commonwealth
reports ERS as a multi employer pension plan. ERS is the administrator of a multi-employer defined
benefit pension plan, which covers all regular employees of the Commonwealth and its
instrumentalities and of certain municipalities and component units not covered by their own
retirement systems. On September 24, 1999, an amendment (o the law that created ERS was enacted
with the purpose of establishing a new defined contribution plan {System 2000) for employees hired
by the government on or after January 1, 2000.

Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System (JRS) — IRS is governed by the same board of trustees as
ERS. JRS is a single employer defined benefit plan, administered by ERS, which covers all
individuals holding a position as Justice of the Supreme Court, Judge of the Superior Court or the
District Court, or Municipal Judges of the Commonweaith.

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers (TRS) — TRS is governed by a nine
member board comprising the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth, the Secretary of the
Treasury of the Commonwealth, the President of GDB, two active teachers {one of them is a
representative of the teachers’ organization according to Act No. 45 of February 1998), two retired
teachers, one representative of the teachers’ organization, and one representative of the public
interest appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate for four years. The
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Commonwealth reports TRS as a single employer pension plan. TRS provides retirement benefits to
all teachers of the Department of Education of the Commonwealth, ali pensioned teachers, all
teachers transferred to an administrative position in the Department of Education of the
Commonwealth, teachers who work in the Teachers® Association of Puerto Rico, and those who
practice in private instituticns accredited by the Department of Education of the Commonwealth.
TRS provides retirement, death, and disability henefits.

Complete financial statements of these component units can be obtained directly by contacting their
respective administrative offices at:

Employees’ Retirement System of the Puerto Rico Judiciary

Government of Puerto Rico and its Retirement System
Instrumentalities P.O. Box 42003 — Minillas Station
P.O. Box 42003 — Minillas Station Santurce, PR 00940

Santurce, PR 00940

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and
Pensions for Teachers

P.O. Box 191879

San Juan, PR 00919-1879

Government Wide Financial Statements

The government wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information of all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Commonwealth and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
government wide financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmenial revenue, are reported separately from business type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reporied separatety from the legally separate component anits for which the primary government is
financially accountable. The statement of net assets presents the reporting entities’ non-fiduciary
assets and habilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in three
categories:

*  [nvesied in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — These consist of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and ameortization and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds,
notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

e Restricted Net Assets — These result when constraints are placed on net assets’ use either
externalty imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted Ner Assets — These consist of net assets that do not meet the defimtion of the two
preceding categories. Unrestricted net assets often are designated to indicate that management
does not consider them to be available for generat operations. Unrestricted net assets often have
constraints on resources that are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

When both restricted and uonrestricted resources are available for use, generally, it is the

Commonwealth’s policy to use restricted resources first, then the unrestricted resources as they are
needed.
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function,
segment, or component unit are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function, segment, or component unit. Program revenue includes charges
to customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given
function, segment, or component unit. Program revenues also include grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particuiar function, segment, or
component unit, Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues. Resources that are dedicated internally are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues. The Cornmonwealth does not allocate general goverament
(indirect) expenses to other functions.

(d} Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government Wide Financial Statements — The government wide financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accraal basis of accounting. Revenue is
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as scon as all
eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The governmental fund financial statements are
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, Revenue 1S recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is
considered to be available when i1 is coliectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current pericd. Principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual
include tax revenue, net of estimated overpayments (refunds) and amounts considered not
collectibie, which are recorded as taxpayers earn income {income taxes), as sales are made
(consumption, sales and use taxes) and as cash is received (miscellaneous taxes). For this purpose,
the Commonwealth coasiders income 1ax revenue to be available if collected within 120 days after
the end of the current fiscal year end and consumption sales and use tax if collected within 30 days
after the end of the current fiscal year. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to federal
grants, there are essentially two types of revenue. For the majorty of granis, moneys must be
expended by the Commonwealth on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be
retmbursed. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as expenditures are incurred {o the extent available.
For the other revenue, moneys are virtually unrestricted and are generally revocable only for failure
to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenue at the
time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria is met. Expenditures are generally
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Modifications to the accrual basis
of accounting include the following:

o Employees’ vested annual vacation and sick leave are recorded as expenditures when utilized.
The amount of accumulated annuaal vacation and sick leave unpaid at June 30, 2009 has been
reported only in the government wide financial statements.

+ Interest and principal on general long term obligations are recorded when due, except for interest
and principal due on July 1 of the following fiscal year, if resources are available for its payment
as of June 30.

» Executory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a reservation of fund balance.

s Debt service expenditures, federal funds’ cost disallowances, other long term obligations, and
amounis subject to judgments under litigation are recorded only when payment is due.
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(e)

Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Discretely Presented Component Units Financial
Statements — The financial statements of the proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and discretely
presented component units are reported using the econemic measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, similar to the government wide financial statements described above.

Each enterprise fund has the option under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporiing for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accoumting, to elect and apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements
issued after Novemnber 30, 1989, unless these conflict with a GASB pronouncement. The primary
government’s major enterprise funds have elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989 and two nonmajor enterprise funds, PRWPR and PRSDWT, elected to adopt the
FASB’s pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. Also, certain discretely presented
component units have disclosed their election in their separately issued financial statements. The
component units follow U.S. GAAP as issued by GASB and FASB as applicable to each component
unit based on the nature of their operations. In addition, the Puerto Rico Government Investment
Trust Fund adopted GASB Statement No. 31; Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External investments Pools; however, such financial staiements are not included
in the accompanying basic financial statements because the primary government and each
component ani{’s investor already present their corresponding share of the assets of the PRGITF as
cash or tnvestments.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally resuit from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. The major operating
revenue of the Commonwealth enterprise funds is as follows:

o Unemployment Insurance Fund — Amounts requisitioned for the Puerto Rico Unemployment
Insurance Trust Fund held by the U.S. Treasury for payment of unemployment benefits and
charges made to individual employers.

*»  Lotteries Fund — Amounts collected {rom the sale of traditional lottery tickets and electronic
lotto games.

Fund Accounting

The Commonwealth reports its financial position and results of operations in funds, which are
considered separate accounting entities, and discrete presentations of those component units, which
are not required to be blended. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a set of self
balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with legal, financial, and contractual
provisions, Major funds are determined using a predefined percentage of the assets, liabilities,
revenue, or expenditures/expenses of either the fund category or the governmental and enterprise
funds combined. The non-major funds are combined in a single column in the fuad financial
statements. The Commonwealth reports the following major funds:
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Governmental Funds

General Fund — The general fund is the primary operating fund of the Commonwealth. It is used to
account for ali financial transactions, except those required 1o be accounted for in another fund.
Included are transactions for services such as general government, public safety, health, public
housing and welfare, and education.

Pledged Sales and Use Tax Fund — The pledged sales and use tax fund accounts for the sales tax
revenue and the corresponding transfer to COFINA Debt Service Fund for the payment of debt.

Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
predominantly for, and the payment of, generai long term bonds’ principal, interest, and related costs
other than bonds payable from the operations of proprietary fund types, pension trust funds, and
discretely presented component units. Long term debt and interest due on July 1 of the following
fiscal year are accounted for as a fund lability if resources are available as of June 30 for its
payment.

COFINA Special Revenue Fund — The special revenue fund of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing
Corporation (COFINA) 1s used to account for all financial resources of COFINA, except those
vequired to be accounted for in another fund.

COFINA Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing
Corporation is used to account for the Commonwealth Sales Tax deposited in the Dedicated Sales
Tax Fund for the payment of interest and principal on long-term obligations.

Proprietary Funds

These tunds account for those activities for which the intent of management is to recover, primarily
through user charges, the cost of providing goods or services to the general public.

Unemployment Insurance Fund — This fund accounts for amounts requisitioned for the Puerto Rico
Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund held by the U.S. Treasury for payment of unemployment
benefits and charges made to individual employers.

Lotteries Fund — This fund accounts for the assets and operations of two lottery systems
administered by the Commonwealth,

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity, or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental units. The following are the

Commonwealth’s fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds — These are used 1o account for the assets, liabilities, and net assets available
for pension benefits held in trust for the public employees’ retirement systems.

Agency Funds — These are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of the results of operations.



{H)

()

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discrete presentation of component units is used to present the financial information of entities that
do not qualify to be blended, in accordance with GASB No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 39, with
the funds of the primary government. The component units column in the government wide financial
statements is used to report the financial activities of the Commonwealth’s discretely presented
component units. The financial statements of these component units are presented following the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenue is recognized when earned and
expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurred, without regard to receipt or payment of cash,

Statutory (Budgetary) Accounting

The Commonweaith’s budget is adopted in accordance with a statutory basis of accounting, which is
not in accordance with GAAP. Revenue is generally recognized when cash is received, net of tax
refunds claimed by taxpayers as of year end. Short term and long term borrowings may be used to
finance budgetary excess of expenditures over revenue. Expenditures are generally recorded when
the related expenditure 1s incurred or encumbered, Encumbrances generally lapse the year following
the end of the fiscal year when the encumbrance was established, as established by Act No. 123 of
August 17, 2001, Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. Amounts required for settling
claims and judgments against the Commonwealth and certain other liabilities are not recognized
until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for payment.

Under the statutory basis of accounting, the Commenwealth uses encumbrance accounting to record
the full amount of purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments of appropriated resources as
deductions from the appropriation prior to actual expenditure. In the governmental funds,
encumbrance accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control.

The statement of revenues and expenditures — budget and actual — budget basis — general fund
only presents the information for the general fund for which there is a legally adopted budget, as
required by GAAP. See note 3 for a reconciliation of the statement of revenues and expenditures —
budget and actual — budget basis — general fund with the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes 1n fund balance (deficit) for the general fund. The special revenue funds do not have a
legally mandated budget.

Cash and Short Term Investments

The Commonwealth follows the practice of pooling cash. The balance in the pooled cash accounts is
available to meet current operating requirements, and any excess is invested in various interest
bearing accounts with GDB and with the PRGITF. Cash and cash equivalents include investments
with original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition,

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions requires that private financial institutions deposit
collateral securities to secure the deposits of the Commonwealth and all other governmental entities
in each of these institutions. The amount of collateral securities to be pledged for the security of
public deposits shall be established by the rules and regulations promuigate by the Commissioner of
Financial Institutions.

The Puerto Rico Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund is maintained to account for the collection of
unemployment insurance contributions from employers and the payment of unemployment benefits
to eligible claimants. As required by federal law, all resources not necessary for current benefit
payments are placed on deposit with the U.S. Treasury. Interest eamed over such deposit is retained
in the {und.
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(h)

(1)

(k)

Cash and shoit term investments and cash equivalents of the component units are maintained in
separate bank accounts, from those of the primary government, in their own names.

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell

Certain component units of the Commonwealth enter into purchases of securities with simultaneous
agreements 10 resell. The securities underlying these agreements mainly consist of U.S. government
obligations, mortgage backed securities, and interest bearing deposits with other banks.

Securities Lending Transactions

Certain component units of the Commonwealth enter into securities lending transactions in which
governmental entities (lenders) transfer their securities to broker dealers and other entities
(borrowers) for collateral with a simulianeous agreement to return the collateral for the same
securities in the future. Securities received as collateral are generally reflected as investments with a
corresponding liability resuiting from the obligation to return such collateral.

Investments

Investments include U.S. government and agencies’ obligations, mortgage backed securities,
repurchase agreements, commercial paper, local government obligations, investment contracts, and
corporate debt and equity obligations. Investment securities, including investments in limited
partnerships, are presented at fair value, except for money market investments and participating
investiment contracts with a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and
nonparticipating investment contracts, which are presented at cost. Changes in the fair value of
investments are presented as investment camnings in the statement of activities, the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit) ~— governmental funds, and the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets (deficit) — proprietary funds. Fair
value is determined based on quoted market prices. When securities are not listed on national
exchanges, quotations are obtained from brokerage firms.

The PRGITF is considered a 2a7 like external investment pool and, as such, reports its investments
at amortized cost.

The reverse repurchase agreements reported by certain discretely presented component units are
authorized transactions under their respective enabling legislation and authorized by GDB.

Receivables

Tax receivables in the general fund include predominantly amounts owed by taxpayers for
individual and corporate income 1axes, net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Income tax
receivables are recognized as revenue when they become measurable and available based on actual
collections during the 120 days following the fiscal year end related to 1ax returns due before year
end. Taxes receivables also include amounis owed by taxpayers on income earned in periods prior to
June 30, 2009, estimated to be collectible but not currently available, and thus are reported as
deferred revenue in the general fund. Unemployment, disability, and driver’s insurance receivables
in the enterprise tunds are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts. During the
fiscal year 2007 the Commonwealth started imposing a general sales and use tax. The sales and use
tax receivable is recognized as revenue when it becomes measurable and available based on actual
collections during the 30 days following the fiscal year end related to sales and use tax returns due
before yvear end.
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Accounts recelvable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncolleciible accounts, which are
deterrmined, based upon past collection experience and current economic conditions.
Intergovernmental receivables primarily represent amounts owed (o the Commonwealth for
reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs. Intergovernmental
receivables also include taxes that the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM, as per its
Spanish acronym), a municipal corporation, is required to remit to the Commonwealth to be used by
the Commonwealth’s debt service fund for payment of debt service on general obligations of the
Commonwealth. The amount 1o be semitted is based on the special tax of 1.03% of the assessed
value of all real and personal property not excnerated from taxation, which is levied by the CRIM.

The accounts receivabie from nongovernmental customers of the component units are net of
estimated uncollectible amounts. These receivables arise primarily from service charges to users.
Accounts receivable from the primary government and other component units that anse from service
charges do not have allowances for uncollectible accounts, as these are deemed fully collectible.

Loans of the general fund are net of estumated uncollectible amounts. These receivables arise from
amounts owed by public corporations and municipalities for public insurance and rent paid by the
general fund on their behalf.

The loans of the pension trust funds do not have allowances for uncollectible amounis since such
loans are secured by morigage deeds, plan members’ contributions, and any unrestricted amounts
remaining in escrow. Loans of the component units consist predominantly of loans to the primary
government, other component units, and municipaiities, and do not have allowances for
uncollectible accounts as those are deemed fully collectible. The remaining loans of the component
units are to small and medium businesses, agricultural, and low income housing loans from
nongovernimenial customers, and are presented net of estimated losses on such portfolics.

(1) Inventories

Generally, inventories are valued at cost and predominantly on the first in, first out basis.
Governmental fund inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than capitalized
as an assel. Only significant amounts of inventory at the end of the year are capitalized in the
governmental funds. However, inventories are always capitalized in the statement of net assets of
governmental activities.

{m) Restricted Assets

Fuads set aside for the payment and guarantee of notes and interest payable and for other specified
purposes are classified as restricted assets since their use is limited for this purpose by applicabie
agreements or required by law. Restricted assets in the proprietary funds mainly include amounts set
aside for the payment of insurance benefits,

(n) Real Estate Held for Sale
Real estate held for sale are carried at the lower of fair value or cost, which is established by a third

party professional assessment or based upon an appraisal, minus estimated costs to sell. Subsequent
declines in the value of real estate available for sale are charged to expenditure/expense.
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(o) Capital Assets

Capital assets include tand, buildings, building improvements, equipmesnt, vehicles, constraction in
process, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental, business type
activities, and component unit cofumns in the government wide financial statemnents. The
Commonwealth’s primary governiment defines capital assets as assets that have an initial, individual
cost of $25,000 or more at the date of acquisition and have a useful life of five or more years.
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estirnated historical cost if actual historical cost is
not availabile,

The method to deflate the current cost of the same or a similar asset using an approximate price
mdex was used to estimate the historical cost of certain land, buildings, and building improvements,
because invoices and similar documentation were no longer available in certain instances. Donated
capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the time of donation. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest costs are capitalized
during the construction period only for business type activities and most component units. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the assets or materially extend asset lives
are not capitalized.

Capital assets ntilized in the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
fund financial statements. Depreciation expense is recorded in the government wide financial
statements, as well as the proprietary funds and component units’ financial statements.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated on the straight line method over the assets’
estimated useful life. There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress. The
estimated useful life of capital assets is as follows:

Years
Buildings and building improvements 20 - 50
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, and vehicies 5~15
Infrastructure 50

The capital assets of the component units are recorded in accordance with the applicable standards
of the component units and under their own individual capitalization thresholds. Depreciation has
been recorded when required by these standards based on the types of assets, use and estimated
useful lives of the respective assets, and on the nature of each of the compenent unit’s operations.

The estimated vseful lives of capital assets reported by the component units are as follows:

Years
Buildings and building improvements 3-50
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, and vehicles 3-20
Infrastructure 10 - 50

The Commonwealth follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 42, Acconnting and Financial
Reporning for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries — an amendment to GASB
Statement No. 34. This statement establishes guidance for accounting and reporting for the
impairment of capital assets and for insurance recoveries.
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(p) Tax Refunds payable

During the calendar year, the Commonwealth collects individual income taxes through withholdings
and payments from taxpayers. At June 30, the Commonwealth estimates the amount owed to
taxpayers for overpayments during the first haif of the calendar year. These estimated amounts and
the actual tax refunds claimed for prior years but not paid at year end are recorded as tax refunds
payable and as a reduction of tax revenue.

(g) Deferred Revenue

{r)

(s}

Deferred revenue at the governmental fund level arises when potential revenue does not meet either
the “measurable” or the “available” criteria for revenue recognition in the current peried. Deferred
revenue also arises when resources are received before the Commonwealth has a legal claim to
them, as when grant moneys are received prior to incurring the qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent pericds, when the revenue recognition criteria i1s met, or when the Commonwealth has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet, and
the revenue is recognized. Deferred revenue at the government wide and proprietary fund levels
arises only when the Commonwealth receives resources before 1t has a legal claim to them.

Long Term Debt

The liabilities reported in the government wide financial statements include Commonwealth’s
general obligation bonds and long term notes, obligattons under lease/purchase agreements, and long
term liabilities including vacation, sick teave, long term liabilities to other governmental entities, net
pension obligation, legal claims, and noncurrent federal fund cost disallowances related to
expenditures of federal grants, Long term obligations financed by proprietary fund types and
component units are recorded as liabilities in those funds and in the discretely presented component
units column.

Premiums, discounts, and issuance costs — in the government wide financial statements, long term
debt, and other long term obigations — are presented in the columns for governmental and business
type activities. The same is presented in the proprietary fund financial statements. Bond and note
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the fife of the
debt. Bonds and notes payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges in other assets and are amortized over the term of the
related debt. In the governmental fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are
reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. kssuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

The difference between reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt in a
refunding transaction is deferred and amortized as a component of interest over the remaining life of
the ofd debt, or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. On the statement of net assets, this
deferred amount is reported as a deduction from, or as an addition to, the new debt liability.

Reservations of Fund Balance — Governmental Funds
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balance reserves for those portions of fund
balance (1) not available for appropriation for expenditures or (2) legally segregated for a specific

future use. Reserves for encumbrances, debt service, and other specific purposes are examples of the
latter,

- 80 -



(t)

Accounting for Pension Costs

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Government Employers, as amended by GASB No. 50, Pension Disclosures, the
Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity is considered to be a sponsor of three defined benefit
pension plans and one multi-employer defined benefit pension plan: ERS, JRS, and the TRS. This is
because sebstantially all the participants in the three pension trust funds are part of the financial
reporting entity of the Commonwealth. For the purpose of the basic financial statements, and as
disclosed in note 20, the Commonwealth’s annual pension cost, measured on the accrual basis of
accounting, for the year ended June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately $1,689 million. However,
the amount recognized as pension expenditure in the governmental funds was recorded under the
modified accrual basis, and amounted to approximately $585 million. The excess of the annual
required contribution over the statnterily required contributions increased the net pension obligation
at June 30, 2009 to approximately $6.8 billion. This amount is presented in the statement of net
assets {(deficit) of the governmental activities as of June 30, 2009.

For purposes of the stand alone financial statements of each of the blended and discretely presented
component units, the entities accounted for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a
multiple employer cost sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized are equal to the
statutorily or contractually required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required
contributions. The basis of accounting used by the component units was either modified accrual
basis or accrual basis, depeading upon individual fund structure and type of entity. Most component
units did not have pension related assets or liabilities at transition because they have contributed the
statutorily required contributions.

(u) Other Postemployment Benefits

(v)

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 20, the Commonwealth provides other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) such as summer and Christmas bonus, and post employment
healthcare benefits for its retired employees in accordance with local law. Substantially, all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working
for the Commonwealth.

The Christmas bonus and the summer bonus benefits are provided by the Commonwealth statutes.
The Christmas bonus paid to the retired employees during the vear June 30, 2009 was 5400 per
retiree and the total amount was approximately 343 million. These benefits are recorded as
expenditures when paid in the general fund.

Healthcare benefits are provided through insurance companies whose premiums are paid by the
retiree with the Commonwealth providing a matching share of not more than $100 per month for
each retiree. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the cost of providing healthcare benefits
amoeunied 10 approximately $115 million for 108,619 retirees.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Commonwealth generally provides for the accumulation of 2.5 days per
month, except for the teachers who accrue 4 days per month. Vacation time accumulated 1s fully
vested to the employees from the first day of work up to a maximum of 60 days. Employees
accumulate sick leave generally at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximem of 90 days. Upon
retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid leave at the cuirent rate,
if the employee has at least 10 years of service with the Commonwealth. Accrued compensated
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absences of the primary government at June 30, 2009 amounting to approximately $1.6 billion are
presented in the statement of net assets (deficit). Compensated absence accumulation policies for the
blended component units and discretely presented component units vary from entity to entity based
on negotiated agreemenis and other factors agreed upon between the management of these entities
and their employees.

The Public Service Personnel Law requires certain component vnits and the primary government of
the Commonwealth to annually pay the employees the accumulated vacation and sick leave earned
in excess of the limits mentioned above,

(w) Interfund and Intraentity Transactions

(x)

()

The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

Interfund Transfer — Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as transfer in by the
recipient fund and as transfer out by the disbursing fund, with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds. Advances between funds are also presented as amounts
due to and due from other funds. However, these transfers and related amounts receivable and
payable are considered internal balances and activities that have heen eliminated in the government
wide financial statements.

Intraentity Transactions — There are 1wo types of intraentity transactions. First, are resource flows
between the primary government and its component units and among the component units. These
resource flows and related ovtstanding balances are reporsted as if they were external transactions.
However, resource flows between the primary government and blended component uniis are
classified as interfund transactions, as described above. Second, are intraentity balances between the
primary government funds and discretely presented component units that are tantamount to long
term debt financing. The primary government’s liability is reported in the statement of net assets, the
proceeds in the primary government’s funds, and the asset in the discretely presented compaonent
units” statement of net assets,

Lottery Revenue and Prizes

The revenue, expenses, and prizes awarded by the Lottery of Puerto Rico and the Additional Lottery
System, reported within the lotteries enterprise fund, are recognized as drawings are held. Moneys
collected prior to June 34 for tickets related to drawings to be conducted subsequent to June 30 are
reported as deferred revenue. Unpaid prizes awarded as of June 30 are reported as a fund liabitity.
Unclaimed prizes expire after six menths and are transferred to the general fund.

Risk Management

The Commonwealth purchases commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims, and other
losses for the primary government, most component units, and the municipalities., The
Commonwealth i reimbursed for premium payments made on behalf of the component units and
the municipalities. The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated. For
workers’ compensation, the Commonwealith has a discretely presented component uwnit, the SIFC,
which provides workers’ compensation to both public and private employees. In the past three years,
the Commonwealth has not settied claims that exceed insurance coverage.

Certain component units combine commercial insurance with internal self insurance funds covering
specific risks related to their specialized operations.
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(z) Tobacco Settlement

The Commonwealth follows GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2004 1, Tobacco Settlement Recognition
and Financial Reporting Entity Issues, as amended, (the TB), which provides accounting guidance
for entities created to obtain the rights to all or a portion of foture tobacco settlement resources and
for the governments that create such entities.

The TB indicates that the entity created to obtain the rights, which is called the Tobacco Settiement
Authority {TSA), should be considered a component unit of the government that created it and the
component unit should be blended. The TB also states that the government receiving the payments
from the {obacco companies under the agreement, which are called settling governments, should
recognize a receivable and revenue for tobacco settlement resources {TSRs) when an event occurs.
The event that results in the recognition of an asset and revenue by the seitling government is the
domestic shipment of cigareites. The TB indicates that accruals should be made by the settling
government and TSAs for estimated shipments from January 1 to their respective fiscal year ends,
stnce the annual payments are based on a calendar year. However, under the modified accrual basis
of accounting at the fund level, revenue should be recognized only to the extent that resources are
available.

{aa) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the information presented in the separately issued
financial statements of certain blended component units and agencies included within the special
revenue, debt service, capital projects, proprietary funds, and discretely presented component units
to conform to the accounting classifications used by the Commonwealth in the basic {inancial
staternents.

{ab) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management Lo
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates,

{ac) Future Adoption of Accounting Proncuncements

The GASB has issued the following accounting standards that have effective dates after June 30,
2009:

+ GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. This
statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be
classified as capital assets. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

*  GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. This
Statemeni addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information regarding
derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. Derivative instruments are
often complex financial arrangements used by governments fo manage specific risks or to make
investments. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.
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» GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.
The objective of this Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by
clarifying the existing governmentat fund type definitions. This Statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
goveramental funds. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

s (GASB Statement No. 37, OPEB Measurements by Agent Emplovers and Agent Multple-
Employer Plans. This Statement addresses issues related to the use of the aiternative
measurement method and the frequency and timing of measurements by employers that
participate in agent multiple — employer other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans. The
provisions of this Statement related to the use and reporting of the alternative measurement
method are effective immediately. The provisions related to the frequency and timing of
measurements are effective for actuarial valuations first used to report funded status information
in OPEB plan financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2011, Earlier application
of this Statement 1s encouraged.

e  (GASB Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankrupicies. The
objective of this Statement is to provide accounting and financial reporting guidance for
governments that have petitioned for protection from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under
Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. It requires governments {o remeasure liabilities
that are adjusted in bankruptcy when the bankruptcy court confirms a new payment plan. This
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009,

«  GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Insiruments Omnibus. The objective of this Staterment is to
update and improve existing standards regarding financtal reporting and disclosure requirements
of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issues have
been identified in practice. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

The impact of these statements on the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements has not yet been
determined.

COMPONENT UNITS

The Commonwealth follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39. The basic financial statements of the Commonwealth include the financial statements
of the following component units that were audited by other auditors:

Blended component units:
Public Buildings Authority

Discretely presented component units:
Agricultural Services and Development Administration
Automobile Accidents Compensations Administration
Cardiovascular Center Corporation of Puerte Rico and the Caribbean
Company for the Integral Development of the “Peninsula de Cantera”

Corporation for the “Canic Martin Pefia” ENLACE Project
Corporation for the Development of Arts, Science and Film Industry of Puerto Rico
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Cuiebra Conservation and Development Authority
Econormic Development Bank for Puerto Rico
Employment and Training Enterprises Corporation
Farm Insurance Corporation of Puerto Rico

Fine Arts Center Corporation

Governing Board of the 9 1 1 Service

Institute of Puerto Rican Culture

Institutionai Trust of the National Guard of Puerto Rico
Land Authority of Puerto Rico

Musical Arts Corporation

National Parks Company of Puerto Rico

Port of the Americas Authority

Public Corporation for the Supervision and Deposit Insurance of Puerto Rico Cooperatives
Puesto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority
Paerto Rico Conservatory of Music Corporation
Puerto Rico Council on Higher Education

Puerto Rico Eleciric Power Authority

Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration
Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Asthority
Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company
Puerto Rico Land Administration

Puerto Rico Maritime Transportation Authority
Puerto Rico Medical Services Administration
Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority

Puerto Rico Ports Authority

Puerto Rico Public Broadeasting Corporation
Puerto Rice School of Plastic Arts

Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority

Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company

Right to Employment Administration

University of Puerto Rico

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(a) Budgetary Conirol

The Governor is constitutionally required to submit to the Legislature an annual balanced budget of
the Commonwealth for the ensuing fiscal year. The annval budget is prepared by the
Commonwealth’s OMB and takes into consideration the advice provided by the Puerto Rico
Planning Board (annual economic growth forecasts and four year capital improvements plan), the
Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth (revenue estimates, accounting records, and the
comprehensive annual financial report), GDB (fiscal agent), and other governmental offices and
agencies. Section7 of Article VI of the Constitution of Puerto Rico provides that “The
appropriations made for any fiscal year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available
surplus, estimated for the said fiscal year, unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover the said
appropriations is provided by law™.

The annuval budget, which is developed utilizing elements of program budgeting, includes an
estimate of revenue and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under: (1) laws existing at the
time the budget is submitted; and (2) legislative measures proposed by the Governor and submitted
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with the proposed budget, as well as the Governor’s recommendations as to appropriations that in
his judgment are necessary, convenient, and in conformity with the four year capital improvemenis
plan adopted by the Puerto Rico Planning Board.

The Legislature may amend the budget submitted by the Governor but may not increase any items
0 as 1o cause a deficit without imposing taxes or identifying other sources of revenue to cover such
deficit. Upon passage by the Legislature, the budget is referred to the Governor who may decrease
or ¢liminate any line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the budget. The
Governor may alsc veto the budget in its entirety and return it to the Legislature with his objections.
The Legisiature, by two thirds majority in each house, may override the Governor’s veto. If a budget
is not adopted prior to the end of the fiscal year, the annual budget for the preceding fiscal year, as
approved by the Legistatare and the Governor, is automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year
until a new budget is approved by the Legislature and the Governor. This permits the
Commonwealth 10 continue making payments for its operating and other expenses until the new
budget is approved. The appropriated annual budget for fiscal year 2009 amounted to approximately
$5.8 billion. The Legislature also made several special budgetary appropriations to the general fund
throughout the year, which amounted to approximately $3.6 billion.

The OMB has authority to amend the budget within a department, agency, or government unit
without fegislative approval.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (that is, purchase
orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when a commitment is made. For GAAP reporting
purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of budgetary
approptiations within GAAP fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities on a
GAAP basis because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. The
unencambered balance of any appropriation of the general fund at the end of the fiscal year lapses
immediately. Appropriations, other than in the general fund, are continuing accounts for which the
Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.

During any fiscal year in which the resources available to the Commonwealth are insufficient to
cover the appropriations approved for such year, the Governor may take administrative measures o
reduce expenses and submit to both houses of the Legislature a detailed report of any adjustment
necessary to balance the budget, or make recomimendations to the Legislature for new taxes or
authorize borrowings under provisions of existing legislation or take any other necessary action to
meet the estimated deficiency. Any such proposed adjustments shall give effect to the ** priority
norms’ established by law for the disbursement of public funds in the following order of priority:
(i), the payment of the interest on and amortization requirements for public debt (Commonwealth
general obligations and guaranteed debt for which the Comumonwealth’s guarantee has been
exercised); (ii), the fuifillment of obligations arising out of legally binding contracts, court decisions
on eminent domain, and other unavoidable obligations to protect the name, credit and full faith of
the Commonwealth; (iii), current expenditures in the areas of bealth, protection of persons and
property, education, welfare and retirement systems; and (iv), all other purposes.

In addition, the Legislature may direct that certain revenue be retained and made available for
spending within a specific appropriation account. Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level
of spending authorized for an individual department, However, the Commonwealth is statutorily
required to pay debt service, regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated. Appropriations
are enacted for certain departments, agencies, and government uaits included in the general fund.
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For these funds, a statement of revenue and expenditures — budget and actual budget basis —
general fund is included. Appropniations for capital projects are made for each bond issue and the
authorization continues for the expected construction period.

The OMB has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary spending control is maintained on an
individual department basis. OMB may transfer part or all of any unencumbered balance within a
department 10 another department subject to legislative approval. Budgetary control is exercised
through the Puerte Rice Istegrated Financial Accounting System (PRIFAS). PRIFAS ensures that
encumbrances or expeaditures are not processed if they exceed the department’s total available
spending authorization, which is considered its budget. The legal level of budgetary control is at the
individual department level for general fund expenditures, principal and interest due for the year for
the debt service fund, and by bond authorization for capital expenditures.

{(b) Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

The following schedule presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actaal data on a
budget basis. Because accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budget
basis differ significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with GAAP,
a reconciliation of enfity, timing, and basis differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenue and
other financing sources over {under) expenditures and other financing uses for the year ended
June 30, 2009 is presented below for the general fund {expressed in thousands):

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expendilures

and other financing uses — budget basis $ 320,141
Entity differences -— excess (deficiency} of revenue and other financing

sources over expenditures and other financing uses for:

Nonbudgeted funds 536,075

Inclusion of agencies with independent treasuries (549)
Timing differences:

Adjustment for encumbrances 212,801

Current year expendilures against prior year encumbrances (325,380)
Basis of accounting differences:

Net increase in taxes receivable {net of tax refunds) 113,665

Net increase in other receivables 13,375

Net increase in deferred revenue {252,127)

Excess of revenucs and other [inancing sources over
expenditores and other financing uses — GAAP basis 3 618,061

The Commonwealth’s amended budgeted expenditures (including transfers) for fiscal year 2009 of
$9.5 billion exceeded projected revenues (including wansfers) of $8.6 billion by approximately
$882 million. The Commonwealth expected to cover this budget deficit through the implementation
of additional expenditure reducing measures, tax revenue measures, and cash management
mechanisms.
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{¢) Deficit Net Assets

The following activities, funds, and discretely presented component units reflect deficit fund
batance/net assets at June 30, 2009 (expressed in thousands):

Primary government:

Governmental activities $ 27,186,249
General fund 1.435.627
Enterprise fund — lotteries 130,134
Component units:
Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration $ 177,394
Special Communities Perpetuat Trust 160,996
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority 118,839
Agriculiusal Services and Development Administration 116,131
Puerio Rico Medical Services Administration 91,152
Automobile Accident Compensation Administration 67,938
Cardiovascular Center Corporation of Puerto Rico and the Caribbean 42,781
Puerte Rico Maritime Transportation Authority 29,564
Land Authority of Puerto Rico 20,707
Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority 19,568
Employment and Training Enterprises Corporation 8,115
Musical Arts Corporation and Subsidiaries 5,364
Right to Employment Administration 2,961

The Commonwealth’s governmental activities show a deficit of approximately $27.2 billion, mostly
attributed to the Commonwealth outstanding bonds amounting to approximately $25.7 billion,
which are recognized in the statement of net assets (deficit). The deficit is attributable to the
accumulated effect of high operating expenses in the government along with a decrease in estimated
revenues as well as the primary government issuing debt, the proceeds of which are to certain extent
transterred 10 component units and to other governments, and which are not presented in these basic
financial statements. On the other hand, the discretely presented component units report net assets of
approximately $11.3 billion. This inverse relationship between the governmental activities and
component units” net assets reveal the operational structure of the Commonwealth where the
primary government issues debt, the proceeds of which are predominantly transferred to the
component units and to other governments, that are not presented in these basic financial statements,
to finance their capital projects and other operational needs. The Commonwealth includes within the
annual budgetary appropriation process the necessary funds to cover the annual debt service
requirements of the aforementioned debt, most of which are the result of Act No. 164 of
December 17, 2001, described in note 15(d).

Governmenial activities also include COFINA’s deficit amounting to $8.5 billion principaily
attributed to bonds payable amounting to $10.8 billion.

In an effort to address the Commonwealth’'s fiscal difficabties, the cumrent administration is
committed to research and pursue solutions to improve the Commonwealth’s competitive economic
performance and the quality of life for its people. The Commonwealth’s economic development
program is focused on initiatives aimed at producing more diversified and sustainable economic
development.

The Commonwealth has developed and commenced implementing a mulii-year Fiscal Stabilization
and Economic Reconstruction Plan that secks to achieve fiscal balance and restore economic growth
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and acknowledges that fiscal stabilization is central to safeguarding the Commonwealth’s
investment-grade credit rating and restoring Puerio Rico’s economic growth and development.
During the first quarter of 2009, the Legislative Assembly enacted three bills providing for the
implementation of this plan, which is composed of two main elements: the Fiscal Stabilization Plan
{the “Fiscal Plan™) and the Economic Reconstruction Plan (the “Economic Plan™).

The Additional Lottery System activities show a deficit of approximately $130 million, mostly
attributed to a payment amounting to $200 million made in 2004 to the Commonwealth. This
transaction was authorized pursuant to Act No. 171, dated July 29, 2004, which among other things
authorized the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth to provide funding for the payment
of lotto prize annuities upon depletion of other resources available at the Additional Lottery Systermn.
It is the opinion of the additional lottery management that the deficiency is not an indication of
financial difficulties for the payment of long term lotto prizes because funds wili be provided from
either the Additional Lottery System or from financial assistance provided by the Commonwealth.
RESTATEMENTS
Subsequent to the issvance of the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2008, the Commonweaith’s management determined that the Commonwealth’s 2008 basic
financial statemenis were misstated.

The Commonwealth’s 2008 government-wide financial statements were misstated as a result of the
following:

Governmental activities:

e The exclusion of Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation (COFINA) as a blended component
unit in the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements.

» Recognition of a loan with GDB under Act No. 249 of November 17, 2006 that will be paid by the
State Insurance Fund Corporation, a discretely presented component unit.

s Accrual of the Employees’ Christmas Bonus was understated due to a miscalculation.

s Accrual for compensated absences includes contributions to the Retirement Systems which do not
meet the criterion of direct and incremental salary-related payments.

e Incorrect amortization of debt issue costs, deferred refunding loss, unaccreted interest, and premium
(discount).

*  Assets under capital leases not recorded.

+ Obligations under capitat leases not recorded.

+ A salary-related debt not recorded by the Police Department.
+ Unrecorded disposal of capital assets.

+ Iaternal activity and balances not eliminated.
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e Disbursement transactions of the Work Opportunity Fund and administrative costs recorded in the
Unemployment Fund instead of the General Fund.

+ Cash reconciling items from prior years recorded twice.

» Notes payabie to component units also recorded as due to component units and therefore duplicated.
*  Write-off of other assets.

e Other

Business-type activities:

+ Disbursement transactions of the Work Opportunity Fund and administrative costs recorded in the
Unemployment Fund instead of the General Fund.

o (ash reconciling items from prior years recorded twice in the Unempleyment Fund.

Accordingly, the net assets (deficit) of the Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities as of
June 30, 2008, in the statement of activities, as previously reported, have been restated to reflect an
increase of $5,680,630 and $118,072, respectively, which represent the correction of the errors described
above. A summary of the effects of the restatements in the statement of activities for the fiscal year 2008
is as follows (in thousands):

Primary Qovernmenl
Busincss-
Governmental 1y e
activities

Trlals
primary

aclivities povernmoent

NET ASSETS(DEFICIT) - Beginning of year -
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as previously reporied $ {(17.815,330) & 724,163 S17.091,167)
ADIUSTMENTS:
Exchuion of Cofing as a blended component unit 15,150.202) (5,159,202
Loan with GDB under Act No. 249 253,036 253.036
Understatenment of employees’ Christmas bonus (73,533} - {73,533
Accrual of contributions to the Retirement Systems 138,127 - 138,127
Tneorrect amorlization of dett isgue costs, deferred
refunding loss, unacereted mierest, and premiom
(discount) (127,7183 - (127,718)
Assets imder capital leases not recorded 60,907 - 60.0u7
Obligations under capnal leases not recorded (64,2167 (64,2163
Salary-related deht not recorded by the Police Department (233,032 - (255,032
Unrecorded disposals of capital asseis £9. 7808 (9.730)
Inernal activity and bafances not chinunated (B1.176) 181,176)
Disbursement transactions of the Work OGppononity Fund
and administrative costs recorded in the Unemployment
Fund instead of the General Tund (104,061 104,661 .
Cash reconciling nems from prier years recorded 1wice (305,825 14.011 (201.814)
Double recording of noves payable to componem units 60,700 - 60,799
Wrile-off of other assets 10,600 LG
Ciher 13,2606} £3.20606)
Total adjustments {5.680.630) 118072 15562 538
NET ASSETS{DEFI{IT) - Beginning of year -
a5 restated $ (23,495.0960) 5 §42,235 B(22,653.725;




The Commonwealth’s 2008 fund financial statements were misstated as a result of the following:

Disbursement transactions of the Work Opportunity Fund and administrative costs recorded in the
Unemployment Fund insiead of the General Fund.

Cash transactions of the Debt Service Fund incorrectly recorded in the General Fund.

Cash reconciling items from prior years recorded twice in the General Fund.

Notes payable to component units also recorded as due to component units and therefore duplicated.
Write-off of other assets recorded in the General Fund.

Overstatements of interfund transactions between the General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund,
Exclusion of Cofina as a blended component unit.

Other

Accordingly, the fund batances (deficit) of the General, Debt Service, Cofina Special Revenue, Cofina
Debt Service, and Other Governmental Funds as of June 30, 2008, in the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes n fund balances (deficit), as previously reported, have been restated to reflect
an increase (decrease) of $(282,803), $(54,560), $78,488, $134,738, and $(24,680), respectively, which
represent the correction of the errors described above. A summary of the effects of the restatements in
the fiscal year 2008 statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit) is as
follows (in thousands):
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COFINA COTINA
Debt S pecial Debt Other Total
General Service Revenue Serviee Governmental Governmental
FUND BALANCE (DEFICTT) - Begnning of year - (1. 7T0EES) % 3512 M - 5 - % 856,937 5 (210,136)
as previousty reparied
AIUSTMENTS:
Dishursement transactions of the Work Opportunity Fund
and administrative costs recorded in the Unemploy mem
Fuad instead of the General Fund (104.061) - - - - (104.061)
Cash ransactions recorded in am incomest fund 57431 (57431 B - - -
Cash reconciling ftems from prior years recorded twice in
the General Fund (305 .825) - - - - (305,825)
NDouble vecording of nutes payable Lo component units B399 - - - - 60,799
Wreitte ofl of other assets recorded in the General Fund (9,694 - - - - {9,690
Overstatements of interfund transactions 24.680 - - - (24.680) -
Exclusion of Cofing as a blended compeonent unit - - 78,488 134.738 - 213,226
Ot her {6,137} 2.871 - - - (3,266)
Toral adjustments (282803 {54.560) 78.488 134,738 (24,680 (148 817
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)Y - Beginning of year -
as restated % {2,053.6R8) 5 {50.748) » 7B.4BE % 134,738 % 832257 5 (1058953




The net assets of the Unemployment Insurance Fund as of June 30, 2008, in the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in fund net assets {(deficit), as previously reported, have been restated to reflect an
increase of $118,072, which represents the correction of the errors described above. A summary of the
effects of the restatements in the fiscal year 2008 statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund
net assets (deficit) is as follows (in thousands);

Business-type activities -

Enterprise funds

Unempioyment Total
Insurance Proprietary
NET ASSETS - Beginning of year - as previously reported 5 369,002 $ 724,163
ADJIUSTMENTS:
Disbursement transactions of the Work Opportenity Fund and

administrative costs recorded in the Unemployment Fund

instead of the General Fund 104,061 104,061
Cash reconciling items from prior years recorded twice in the

Unemployment Fund 14,011 14,011

Total adjustments 118,072 118,072

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year - as restated % 487,074 $ 842,235

The following table summarizes changes to net assets at the beginning of the year as previously reported
in the statement of net assets by certain discretely presented compoenent units. The changes resulted
primarily from presentation of Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation as a blended component
unit, restatements to correct errors in the prior year’s financial statements of certain component units and
the inclusion of certain nonmajor component units that were excluded in 2008 {expressed in thousands):

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year - as previously reported $ 7,834,223
Presentation of Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation

as a blended compenent unit 5,159,292
Restatement of major component unit audited by other auditors (13,005
Restatements of nonmajor component units audited by other auditors (36,914)
Nonmajor component units (318,852)
Nonmajor component units included fiscal year 2009 but excluded in fiscal

year 2008 49,420
NET ASSETS - Beginning of year - as restated $12,672,164

PUERTO RICO GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT TRUST FUND (PRGITF)

PRGITF was created by Act No. 176, of August 11, 1995, and began operations on December 4, 1995.
PRGITF is a no load diversified coilective invesiment trust administered by GDB that was created for
the purpose of providing eligible governmental investors of Puertc Rico with a convenient and
economical way to invest in a professionally managed money market portfolic. PRGITF is not an
investment company or a mutual fund and is not subject to regulation or registration under the
investment company Act of 1940, Units issued by PRGITF are not subject 1o regulation or registration
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under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, because the units are issued by a
government entity. The deposiis on hand and the investments purchased are not cotlateralized, secured,
or guaranteed by the Commonwealth or any of its agencies, instrumentalities, or political subdivisions.

PRGITF is considered a 2a7-like external investment pool, and as such, reports its investment at
amortized cost.

The investrnent securities on hand at June 30, 2009, consisted of certificates of deposit, bank notes,
corperate obligations, commercial paper, and U.S. government and agencies obligations, all of which
may be considered highly liquid. However, the participants’ investments are subject to the ability of
PRGITF to receive payment from the securities’ issuer when due. The liquidity of certain investments
and changes in interest rates may affect PRGITFs yield and the fair value of its investments.

The dollar amount of the deposits on hand at June 30, 2009 at $1.00 per unit of participation, was
reported in the individual financial statements of each of the participants, and combined in the basic
financial statements as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance Percentage
Outstanding of Total

Primary government:

Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. $1,958,658 79.01 %
Commonwealth 289,019 11.66
The Children’s Trust 36,152 1.46
Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of
Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities 2
Total for primary government 2,283,831 92.13
Discretely presented component units:
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico 153,505 6.19
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 26,300 1.06
State Insurance Fund Corporation 8,456 0.34
Institutional Trust of the National Guard of Puerto Rico 3,887 0.16
Puerto Rico Land Administration 677 0.03
Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority 620 0.03
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority 405 0.02
Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority 293 o.M
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 167 0.00
Pablic Corporation for the Supervision and Deposit
Insurance of Puerto Rico Cooperatives 129 0.00
Total for discretely presented component units 194,439 7.84
Other governmental entities 654 0.03
Total for all participants $2,478,924 100 %

The deposits at June 30, 2009 were invested in securities with a cost that approximates fair value, plus
accrued interest, for approximately $2.5 billion. The external portion of PRGITF was not considered
significant for separate reporting in the accompanying basic financial statements.
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Following is a table of the investments and other assets held at June 30, 2009, presented at amortized
cost (expressed in thousands}:

U.S. government and agencies’ obligations 3 727424
Money market 689,967
Commercial paper 641,660
Securities purchased under agreements 1o resell 362,258
Certificates of deposits 34,248
Corporate obligations 22,404
Other assets 963
Total $2,478,924

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Parsuant to the provisions of Act No. 91 of March 29, 2004 the primary government may invest in
different types of secwrities, including domestic, international, and fixed income securities, among
others,

The primary government maintains a cash and mvestment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except for the fiduciary funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is reported on the statement of net assets
as cash and cash equivalents. The fiduciary funds investments are held and managed separately from
those of other primary govermment funds.

Primary Government - Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, interest bearing
accounts, certificates of deposit, bank investment contracts, and deposits invested in PRGITYE (see
note 3).

The carrying amount of deposits of the primary government at June 30, 2009 consists of the following
(expressed in thousands):

Carrying Amount Bank
Unrestricted Restricted Total Balance
Commercial banks and U.S.
Treasury $ 877.620 $ 737,285 $1,684,905 $1,994,797
Component unit banks 806,848 1,797,388 2,604,236 2,620,296
Total $1,6084,468 $2,534,673 $4,219,141 $4.615,093

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the primary government’s deposit might
not be recovered. The Commonwealth requires that public funds deposited in commercial banks in
Puerto Rico must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by banks in the Commonwealth’s name. There is
no formal policy for custodial credit risk for cash accounts opened with commercial banks outside of
Puerto Rico.

At year end, the Commonwealth’s bank balance of deposits in commercial banks amounting to
$1.4 billion was covered by federal depositery insurance or by collateral held by the Commonwealth’s
agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Deposits of approximately $479 muilion with the U.S. Treasury
represent unemployment insurance taxes collected from employers that are transferred to the federal
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Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund in the U.S. Treasury. These deposits are uninsured and
uncollateralized. The bank balance of deposits in component unit banks, which as of June 30,
2009 amounted to approximately $2.6 billion is also upinsured and uncollateralized. These deposits in
component unit’s banks are mamtained with GDB and EDB. Deposits maintained in GDB and EDB are
exempt from the collateral requirement established by the Commonwealth and thus represent a custodial
credit risk, becanse in the event of GDB’s or EDB’s failure, the Commonwealth may not be able to
recover these deposits.

Deposits in component unit banks represent the balance of interest and noninterest bearing accounts in
GDB and EDB. The deposit lisbility at GDB and EDB is substantially related to deposits from other
component units and of the Commonwealth. The deposit liability does aot agree with the governmental
cash balances shown above because of reconciling items such as outstanding checks and deposits in
transit.

The bank balance of GDB's and EDB’s deposits at June 30, 2009 is broken down as follows (expressed
in thonsands):

Primary government $ 5,217,402
Discretely presented componenss units 1,022,704

Totai pertaining to the Commonwealth 6,240,106
Municipalities of Puerto Rico 541,285
Other nongovernmental entities 579,665
Certificate of indebtedness 11,800
Escrow accounts 533,674
Total deposits per GDB and EDB 5 7,906,530

Unrestricted deposits include approximately $2.5 billion that are invested in PRGITF (see note 5). Such
amount has been inciuded as cash and cash equivalents and as investments in the primary government’s
statement of net assets (deficit).

Investments

Custedial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the fatlure
of the counterparty to the transaction, the primary government may not be able to recover the value of
the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2009,
securities investments were registered in the name of the Commonwealth and were held in the
possession of the Commoenwealih’s custodian bank.
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Governmental Activities — The fair value by investment type, credit quality ratings, and maturity of the
unrestricted investments reported by the governmental activities at June 30, 2009 consist of the
following (expressed in thousands):

Investment Rating

Fair Value AAAtO A BAAtoB Not Rated
Investment pool $ 203,878 $ 203,878 $ - 3 -
Guaranieed investment contract 83,684 83.684
PRGITF 1,994,810 1,894,810 - -
Total $ 2282372 $ 2,282,372 5 - $ -

Maturity (in Years)
Less Than 1 Ttob 6to 10 WMore Than

Fair value Year Years Years 10 Years
Investment pool $ 203,878 § 203878 $ - % - s -
Giuaranteed investment contract 83,684 83,684 - - -
PRGITF 1,994 810 1,904,810 - - -
Toal $2,282,372 $ 2,282,372 $ - $ - 3 -

Business type Activities — The fair value by investment type, credit quality ratings, and maturity of the
restricted investments reported by the business type activities at June 30, 2009 consist of the following
{expressed in thousands):

Investment Rating

Fair Value AAAto A BAAto B  Not Rated
Morigage-backed securities $ 7,047 $ 7047 § - $ -
U.S. government and agency
sceurities 3,210 3,190 - 20
U.S. equity sccurities 10,718 - - 10,718
U.S. corporate debl securities 6,759 4,854 1,505 -
Other 2,096 1,376 - 720
Tolal 3 29,830 $ 16467 $ 1,505 § 11,458
Maturity {in Years)
Less Than 1 6to 10 More Than
Fair Yalue Year 1to 5 Years Years 10 Years
Mongage-hacked securities S T.047 5 - $ - s - $ 7047
1.8, government and agency securities 3210 - 3,190 20
LS. equity securities 10,718 10,718 - - -
U.S. corporate debt securities 6.759 310 2448 2872 1,329
Other 2,096 - 1,360 - 796
Total $ 29,830 $ 11,028 £ 6938 $ 2,692 $ 91m
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Component Units — Cash and cash equivalents of the component units at June 30, 2009 consist of

(expressed in thousands):

Commercial banks
Component unit banks

Total

Carrying Amount Bank
Unrestricted Restricted Total Balance
$2,977.308 $2,489.674 $5,466,982 £5475,725
547911 479955 1,027,866 1,022,704
$3,525,219 $2,969,629 $6,494,848 $6,498,429

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposiss, interest bearing accounts, certificates of deposit,

and bank investment contracts.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank faiture, the component unit’s deposits might not
be recovered. The Commonwealth requires that public funds deposited in commercial banks in Puerto
Rico must be fully collateralized for the amonnt deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All
securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth. There is
no formal policy for custedial credit risk for cash accounts opened with commercial banks outside of

Puerto Rico.

Deposits maintained in GDB and EDB are exempt from the collateral requirement established by the
Commonwealth and thus represent a custodial credit risk because in the event of GDB’s or EDB’s
failure, the Commonwealth may not be able {o recover the deposits.

The component units were exposed to the following custodial credit risk arising from the balance of
deposits maintained in commercial and compenent unit banks at June 30, 2009 (expressed in thousands):

Uninsured and uncollateralized

Uninsured and collateralized, with securities held by the

pledging financial institutions

Uninsured and coilateralized, with securities held by the pledging
financial institutions bui not in the component unit’s name

Total

$1,022,704
5,471,967
3,758

$6,498,420

Investmentis — The component units’ investment policies allow management to purchase or enter into
the following investment instruments:

o U.S. sovernment and agencies obligations

¢ Centificates and time deposits

¢+  Bankers” acceptances

+  Obligations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and municipalities

e Federal funds sold

*  Secunties purchased under agrezments to reseil
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»  World Bank securities

» Corporate debt, including investment contracts

+ External investment pools

* Stock of corporations created under the laws of the United States of America or the Commonwealth

¢ Options, futures, and interest rates swap agreements for hedging and risk control purposes, as well
as for the creation of synthetic products that qualify under any of the foregoing investment
categories.

¢ Open end mutnal funds with acceptable underlying assets and rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s or
AAA by Moody’s Investors Service

» A few component units, principaily SIFC, are aiso allowed to enter into foreign currency
investments, under certain limitations

The component units’ investment policies establish Iimitations and other guidelines on amounts fo be
invested in the aforementioned investment categories and by issuer/counterparty and on exposure by
country. In addition, such policies provide guidelines on the mstitutions with which investment
transactions can be entered into.

The component units’ investment policies provide that investments transactions shall be entered into
only with counterparties that are rated BBB+/A 1 or better by the Standard & Poor’s or equivalent rating
by Fitch or Moody’s Investors Service, depending on the type and maturity of the investment and the
counterparty to the transaction. Also, the investment policy specifies that no more than 5% of a
manager’s assets at fair value shall be invested in the securities of any single issuer.

All investments in U.S. Treasury securities and morigage backed securities guaranteed by GNMA carry
the explicit guarantee of the U.S. government and are presented as “not rated” in the table below. The
credit qualifying ratings for investments held by the component units at June 30, 2009 are as follows
{expressed in thousands):

Fair Value investmeant Raling
Unrestricted Restricted Total AAA o A BAAI0B Net Rated Total
Investment pool 32,232,976 5 O2[9.958) 52442957 £2.255 898 5 5368 5181491 82442957
U5 governmient and ageney securitics 3r5A%0 1.080 586 1476122 1347807 - 75315 1LA76,122
Mortgage bucked securiticy 178,287 1R 13Y 13073 424 1.376.394 1.502 15.528 1,393,429
Fuerto Rivo agencics and namicipal honds IRA63 1.162.098 1.200.561 B.644 1193917 - 1.200.561
Other 1300063 13827 §.054.892 342354 494,790 21,12 1054892
Guaranteed investment centract 185,025 G35 164 RI218D T304 534932 5153 R23 B9
LS corporate siocks 438 852 52,985 511.837 19,133 Q8,750 203954 310,837
Mesatiable cenificates of deposit 204059 164801 15870 183,549 R 14] 17.411 IGR.BTO
Invesiment i eouity securities 9,406 H1LO43 157,511 37316 6989 P13, 204 157511
PR, Goverament Invesiment Trust Fund 150,185 . 150,185 150,056 129 . 150,085
U8 spansared apencics notes 124273 - 124273 124273 - - 124.273
Securities lending trumaciions F09.400 - 0400 - - FOR A0 134,400
Muoney marker und 197 F0.556 50,753 50462 - 2491 50753
Bon US coporme siocks 1287 - 14,257 - 10,287 10,387
Commercial paper ERULY - 4000 4000 - $.000
Total investments £3.430.08] 54,458,180 SO.878.261 56086020 L10E5.493 L876,745 $9.878.201

S99 .



Certain compenent units classified approximately $44.2 million of mvestments presented in PRGITF as
cash and cash equivalents. The following table summarizes the type and maturities of investments held
by the component units at June 30, 2009 {expressed in thousands):

Less Than More Than No Stated
Fair Value 1 Year 1-5 Years &-10 Years 10 Years Malurity Date Total
Investment pool §2.4432 8957 52380345 5 - £ . 5 - 3 62.612 2442059
US governmeni and agency securitics 1,476,132 501851 332332 61479 ELUEW 71,259 1.476.122
Mortanpe backed securities 1,393,424 173349 179.680 ETR. IR i 168580 11 1,393,424
Puenio Rico agencies and municipal bonds 1,200,301 58.748 311073 81637 379,403 - 1.200.561
Other 1,054.892 96.511 20482 120.05) 92,042 26.106 1.054,592
Guaranteed investment conlract B3 189 £g.290 40,377 17.029 651.122 94,771 823,189
US corporate stocks 510837 &6.730 115,383 - - 09,524 511,837
Negotiable centificates of deposit 68870 235301 116,138 - - 17411 368,870
lnvestment in equity securities 15750 202 17018 13930 5423 120.338 157,311
PR Government Invesiment Trust Fund 150,185 150,185 . - - - 130,185
US sponsored agencies notes 124273 11064 HR.236 18.974 5999 - 124,273
Secwrinies lending transactions 102,400 109 401 - - - - 109,400
Money market fund 50753 46 - - - 50,707 30753
Non LS corporate stocks 10287 . - - . 10,287 18287
Commercial paper 4.000 4.000 - - i - 4.000
Toat $9.878.261 33,721,612 $2. 160630 $621.314 F2.605. 470 5769026 59,878,261

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities, because the borrower may have the right to
call or prepay the obligation with or without cail or prepayment penalties.

The component units were exposed to the foliowing custodial credit risk for investments held at June 30,
2009 (expressed in thousands):

Insured or registered S 474,785
Uninsured and registered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust

department or agent in the component units’ name 9,294,029
Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust

department or agent, but not in the compenent units’ name 109,447
Total $9,878,261
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Foreign Currency Risk — State Insurance Fund Corporation (SIFC) limits its exposure to foreign
carrency risk by limiting the total amount invested to 5% of the portfolio. The SIFC investmenis were
presented as follow (expressed in thousands):

Investment Type Local Currency Fair Value
Money market fuads Euro $ 4
Hong Kong dollar 23
Singapore dollar 60
Total money market funds 87

Interest bearing deposits held

under securities loans Euro 24,856
Common stock Australian dollar 1.278
British pound 8,364

Canadian dollar 1,444

Euro 15,266

Hong Kong doiflar 2,267

Japanese ven 12,252

Norwegian krona 49]

Swedish krone 771

Swiss franc 3,638

Total common stock 45,771
Total $70,714

Fiduciary Funds — Cash and cash equivalents of the fiduciary funds at June 30, 2009 consist of the
following (expressed in thousands):

Carrying Amount Bank
Unrestricted Restricted Total Balance
Commercial banks and U.S.
Treasury §1.052,922 $ - $1,052,022 $1,054516
Component unit banks 1,220,980 1,028,878 2,240 858 2,276,000
Total $£2,273,902 $1,028,878 $3,3062,780 $3,330,600

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, interest bearing accounts, certificates of deposit,
and bank investment contracts,

Custodial Risk — Custedial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the fiduciary
funds’ deposits might not be recovered. The Commonwealth requires that public funds deposited in
commercial banks in Puerto Rico must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of
federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the
Treasury of the Commonwealth. There is no formal policy for custodial credit risk for cash accounts
opened with commercial banks outside of Puerto Rico.
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The Commonwealth was exposed to the following custodial credit risk arising from the balances of
deposits maintained by the fiduciary funds in commercial and component units banks at June 30, 2009
(expressed in thousands):

Uninsured and uncoliateralized $2.276,090
Uninsured and uncollateralized, with securities held by the pledging

financial institutions 1,054,516
Total $3,330,606

Foreign Carrency Risk — Cash exposed to foreign currency risk as of June 30, 2009 is as follows
{expressed in thousands):

Fair Value at

U.S. Dolar

Investment type Currency Currency
Cash Euro $1.448
Cash Japanese ven 973
Cash British pound 279
Cash Hong Kong dollar 120
Cash Australian dollar 79
52,899

Investments — The pension trust funds held investments valued at approximately $1,765,921,000
(24.12% of total assets of the pension trust funds) as of June 30, 2009, whose fair values have been
estimated 1n the absence of readily determinable fair values. This estimate is based on information
provided by the underlying fund managers,

The investment policies of the pension trust funds limit the investment in corporate debt securities to the
top rating 1ssued by nationally recognized credit rating organizations. The portfolio is expected to
maintain a minimum weighted average credit quality of either “A” or better using either Standard and
Poor’s or Moody's credit ratings. The following table summarizes the credit quality ratings for
investments held by the pension trust funds and special deposits agency funds at June 30, 2009
(expressed in thousands):

Invesiment type Fair Value AArA o A BAAto B CAAto C Not Rated
U.S. non-exchange trade mutual funds 51,074 821 $ - - 320,372 5 1.054.440
.S, equity securities 906,721 - - 11924 394797
Non-U.S. non-exchange trade mutual funds 630,038 - - 12.338 617,700
U.S. government and agencies

securities 568111 4430638 602 4.462 119,409
LS. corperate debt securitics 410,565 239383 165.666 47 5467
Non-U.5. equity securities 170,167 - - - 170167
Limited partnership/private equity 61.061 - - - 61,061
Municipal bonds 33,407 1.67% 33728 - -
Other 5.936 - - - 5.936
Total $3.862.827 3684.702 5 190,996 $49.143 $2.928.986
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The following table summarizes the fair value by investment type and maturities of investments held by
the pension trust funds and special deposits agency funds at June 30, 2009 (expressed in thousands):

Less Than More Than No Stated

Investment type 1 Year 1-5 Years  6-10 Years 10 Years Maturity Date Fair Value
US non-exchange trade mutual funds 5 - 3 - 5 - 5 - 31,074.821 $1.074.821
U.S. equity securitics - - - - 906,721 206,721
Non US non-gxchange irade mutval lunds - - - - 630,038 630,038
U.S. governmenlt and agencies

securities 22,080 FI8.218 54,698 373115 - 368.111
U.8. corperate debt securitics 10.695 137,058 110,668 151,544 - 410,563
Non-U.8. equity securities - - - - 170,167 170,467
Limited partnership/private equity - - - - 61,061 61061
Municipal bonds - 4,713 8305 22,299 - 35407
Other - - - - 5,936 5.936
Toal $32,775 $260,589 $173.761 $546,958 $2.848,744 $3,862,827

Expected maturities will differ from contractnal maturities, because borrowers may have the right to call
or prepay cbligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

At June 30, 2009, securities investments amounting approximately $3.9 billion were registered in the
name of the pension trus¢ funds and were held in the possession of the pension’s trust funds custodian
banks.

The investment in non U.8. stocks is expected to achieve long term, aggressive capital appreciation by
investing in Core EAFE (Europe Australasia and the Far East) securities. The portfolio is expected to be
broadly diversified with respect to exposures to countries, economic sectors, industries, and individual
stock. No single issue is expected to exceed 5% (at fair value) of the portfolio.

Investments exposed to foreign currency risk as of June 30, 2009 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Fair value at

U.S. dollar
Investment type Currency currency
Shares in commingled fund - Morgan Stanley  Various (refer to countries below) $383,300
Shares in commingled fund - Invesco
International Equity Trust Various (refer (o couniries below) 263,777
Equity securities Euro 42,440
Equity securities Japanese Yen 32,916
Equity securities Pound 27,486
Equity securities Swiss franc 14,774
Equity securities Australian Dollar 10,843
Equity securities Swedish krona 9.694
Equity securities Hong Kong Dollar 8,301
Equity securities Danish krone 6,654
Mutual funds Pound 4261
Equity securities Singapore Dollar 2,088
Equity securities Norwegtan krone 1,383
Equity securities South Korea Wwon 925
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As of June 30, 2009, the pension trust funds owned approximately $383 millien in an international
equity commingled fund under the custody of Morgan Stanley investment bank, which represented
approximately 100% of the total commingled fund. In addition, as of June 30, 2009, the pension trust
funds owned approximately $264 million in an international equity comingled fund under the custody of

Invesco International Equity Trust, which represented approximately 45.92% of the total commingled
fund.
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As of June 30, 2009, these pooled trust had an asset mix and country allocation as shown in the
following tabies:

Morgan Stanley:

Assets Mix Percent
Cash and equivalents 051 %
Fulure contracts §2.49
Equily securities 87.00
Toral 100.00 &%
Country Allocation Currency Currency Code Portfolio %
Poland Ziotych PLNMN 0.48 %
Russia Rubles RUB 0.65
Eastern Evrope i.13
Austria Eurc EUR .26
Belgium Euro EUR 0.38
Finland Euro EUR 115
France Euro EUR 8.39
Germany Euro EUR 7.82
Greece Euro EUR 0.36
ltaly Ewo EUR 2,22
Netherlands Earo EUR 224
Portogal Euro EUR 0.24
Spain Euro EUR 4.44
Euro Europe 27.50
India Rupees INR 1.08
Brazil Real BRL 1.35
Mexico Pesos MXN 0.14
L.atin America 1.49
Turkey Lira TRY 0.84
Denmark Kroner DKK 0.58
Norway Kroner NOK .92
Sweden Krona SEXK 217
Switzertand Francs CHF 6.26
United Kingdom Pounds GBP 18.7%
Non-Eura Europe 28.72
Austraiia IMoHars ALD 3.16
China Yuan Renmimbi CNY 225
Hong Kong Dollars HKD 4.05
Indonesia Rupiahs 1DR 0.04
JTapan _ Yen Py 2561
Malaysia Ringgits MYR 0.02
New Zealand Dolars NZD (.G1
Singapore Doliars SGD 2.24
T aiwan New Dollars TWD .75
Pacific 38.72
Cash (.51

Tortat 1HLOD %

- 105 -



SECURITIES LENDING TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the pension trust funds, included within the fiduciary funds, SIFC and AACA, two
discretely presented component units, entered into securities lending transactions. These transactions are
explained below:

Pension Trust Funds — The Retirements System participates in a securities lending program whereby
securities are transferred to an independent broker or dealer in exchange for collateral in the form of
cash, government securities, and irrevocable bank letters of credit equal to approximately 102% of the
market value of the domestic securities on joan and 109% of the market value of the international
securities on loan, with a simuitaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the
future. Collateral is marked to market daily, and the agent places a request for additional collateral from
brokers if needed. The custodian bank is the agent for the securities lending program.

Securities lending obligations for which collateral was received as of June 30, 2009 consist of the
following (expressed in thousands):

Fair Value of

Underlying
Securities Lent Securities
U.S. government securities $ 89,000
U.S. equity securities 37,003
U.S. corporate debt securities 13,746
Nen-U.S. equity securities 5,386
Non-exchange traded mutual funds:
U.S. 2,266
Non-U.S. 630
$ 148,031

The undertying collateral for these securities had a fair value of approximately $151.7 million as of
June 30, 2009. The collateral received was invested in a short term investment fund sponsored by the
custedian bank and is included as part of cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying statement of
fiduciary net assels.

Under the terms of the securities lending agreement, the Retirement System is fully indemnified against
faifure of the borrowers to return the loaned securities {to the extent the collateral is inadequate to
replace the loaned securities) or failures to pay the Retirement System for income distribution by the
securities” insurers while the securities are on loan. In addition, the Retirement System is indemnified
against loss should the lending agent fail to demand adequate and appropriate collateral on a timely
basis,

The relationship between the investment maturities and the Retirement Systems’ loans cannot be

determined,

At year end, the Retirement Systems have no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts that
the Retirement Systems owe the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe to the Retirement
Systems. The Retirement Systems’ rights to coliateral are defined in the contractual agreements. The
borrower’s creditworthiness is also proactively reviewed by the lending agent.
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Component Units

SIFC — The Commonwealth statutes and the SIFC’s board of directors’ policies permit SIFC to use its
investments to enter into securities lending transactions. The SIFC’s securities custodian, as agent of
SIFC, manages the securities lending program and receives cash collateral, securities, or irrevocable
bank letters of credit as collateral. The coilateral securities cannot be pledged or sold by STFC unless the
borrower defaults. The collateral requirement is equal to 102% for securities issued in the United States
of America and 105% for securities issued outside of the United States of America of the fair value of
the securities lent. Additional collateral has to be provided by the next business day if the collateral fair
value falls below the fair value of the securities lent. At year-end, SIFC has no credit risk exposure to
borrowers because the amounts SIFC cwes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe SIFC.
Centracts with the lending agents require therm to indemnify SIFC if the borrowers fail to return the
securities (and if the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent) or fail to pay SIFC for income
distributions by the securities’ 1ssuers while the securities are on loan.

All security {oans can be terminated on demand by either SIFC or the borrower. In lending securities, the
term 1o maturity of the securities loans 15 matched with the term to maturity of the investment made with
the cash collateral. Such matching existed at vear-end.

Securities lent as of June 30, 2009 had a fair vatue of $175.4 million and were secured with collateral
received with a fair value of $178.9 million. Securities lending obligations for which cash was received
as collateral as of June 30, 2009 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Fair Value of

Underlying
Description Securities
Equity securities $ 25,586
U.S. governiment, agencies, insirumentalities obligations 32,695
U.8. sponsored agencies bonds and notes 24,672
Corporate bonds and notes 23,024
Foreign government bonds and notes 2.808
External investients pools 1,649
Asset-backed securities 862

$111,296

Cash collateral received amounted to $113.6 million and was invested as follows (expressed in
thousands}:

Description Amount
Commercial paper $ 39,481
Corporate bonds and notes 5975
Resell agreements 25,261
Certificates of deposits with other banks £8,000
Foreign certificates of deposits with other banks 24,856

$113,573
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In addition, SIFC had the following lending obligations as of June 30, 2009 for which securities were
received as collateral (expressed in thovsands):

Fair Value
Securities Coilateral
Description Lent Received
L1.S. Treasury notes and bonds $60,772 $ 62,036
U.S. Sponsored agencies bonds and notes 1,643 1,676
Mortgage — backed securities — FHLMC 1,676 1,710
$ 64,091 $65,422

AACA — AACA lends securities to broker/dealers and other entities (borrowers) for collaieral that will
be returned in the future as part of a securities lending program. The custedial bank manages the
securities lending program and receives cash, government securities, and letters of credit as collateral.
The collateral received cannot be pledged or sold by AACA unless the borrower defaults. The program
provides for an initial minimum collateralization of 102% of the market value of the securities lent plus
accrued income. Additional collateral has to be provided by the close of the next business day if its value
falls to jess than 100%. The contract with the custodial bank requires that should a coliaterai deficiency
occur beyond the custodian’s responsibilities, the deficiency should be allocated pro rata among all
client lenders within the program.

Either the custodian bank or the borrower can terminate all security loans at any time. Cash collateral is
invested in the prograny’s agent short term investment pools, which at fiscal year end had a weighted
average maturity of 134 days. The refationship between securities of the investment pool and AACA
loans cannot be determined.

The following represents the balances relating to the securities lending transactions as of June 30, 2009
(expressed in thousands):

Fair Value
Securities Collateral
Securities Lent Lent Received
U.S. Treasury bills, bonds, and notes § 8512 $ 8,700
Common and preferred stocks 10,431 10,750
Corporate bonds 5,707 5,882
U.S. agencies bonds and notes 3,310 3,390
$ 27,960 $28,722

Securities lending transactions where cash collateral was received and reinvested are presented as assets
and habilities in the accompanying statement of net assets. Securities lending transactions collateralized
by noncash collateral cannot be pledged or sold uniess the borrower defaults are not reported as assets or
liabilities in the statement of net assets. At year end, AACA has no credit risk exposure 10 borrowers
because the amounts AACA owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe AACA.
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

Pursuant to the Statement of Investment Guidelines for the Government of Puerto Rico, the pension trust
funds and compenent units invested approximately $11.5 million in limnited partaerships during the year
ended June 30, 2009. The investments were as follows:

e During fiscal year 2009, there were approximately $449,000 of contributions made in Guayacén
Funds of Funds, L.P., a Delaware himited partnership, organized by Grupo Guayacan, Inc. as general
partnier, which has total commitments of $55.5 million (of which $435 million are from pension {rust
funds and the remaining balances from private corporate investors), This fund invests in the United
States of America and international private equity partnerships that in turn invest in private
compatties.

» During fiscal year 2009, approximately $284,000 were invested in Guayacdn Fund of Funds I, L.P,
a Delaware limited partnership. organized by Grupo Guayacin, Inc. as general partner, that has total
commitments of $62 million (of which $50 million are from the pension trust funds and the
remaining balances from private corporate investors). The fund invests in a broad range of U.S. and
international private equity investment partnerships that, in turn, will make eqguity and equity related
investments primarily in private businesses.

« During fiscal year 2009, an investment of approximately $1.2 million was made in the Guayacdn
Fund of Funds I, L.P., a Delaware hmited partnership, organmzed by Grupo Guayacdn, Inc., as
general partner, that has total commitments of $10 million. This fund seeks to provide investors with
a superior investment return and extensive diversification by investing in nineteen (19) private
equity investment partnerships in the United States and Europe.

e During fiscal year 2009, there were approximately $1.5 million of contributions made in Guayacan
Private Equity Fund, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, organized by Advent Morro Equity
Partners, Inc. as general partner, that has total commitments of $39 million (of which $10 million
are from the pension frust funds, $22.5 million are from component units and the remaining balance
from the private corporate investors in Puerto Rico}. This fund invests in Puerto Rico private equity.

e During fiscal year 2009, approximately $7.6 million were invested in Guayacan Private Equity
Fund I, L.P. a Delaware limited partnership, organized by Advent/Morro Partners as general
partner, has total commitments of $94 millien (of which $65 million are from components units,
315 miliion are from pension trust funds and the remaining balance from the private corporate
investors in Puerto Rico}. This fund invests in Puerto Rico private equity.

»  During fiscal year 2009, there were no contributions to Invesco Venture Partnership Fund 1H, L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership, organized by IPC Partnership Associates I, LLC as general partner
in which the pension trust fund has a 1otal commitment of $5.5 million. The partnership was
organized to invest in other collective investments funds investing in alternative assets, including
primarily U.S. and international funds that focus on both early and later stage venture capital
investments.

¢ During fiscal year 2009, there were no contributions to Invesco Non U.S, Partnership Fund I, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership, organized by IPC Partnership Associates I, LLC as general
partner, in which the pension trust fund has a total commitment of $4.5 million. The partnership was
organized to invest in other collective investments funds investing in alternative assets, including
primarliy investments focusing on non U.S. buyouts, expansion capital, turnaround, mezzanine, and
distressed investment partnerships.
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 During fiscal year 2009, approximately $152,000 were invested in Invesco U.S. Buyout &
Expansion Capital Parnership Fund UL L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, organized by IPC
Partnership Associates I LLC as general partner, in which the pension trust fund has a total
commitment of $3.7 million. The partnership was organized to invest in other collective funds
investing in alternative assets, including primarily investments focusing on small, mid size, and
large domestic buyout transactions.

» During fiscal year 2009, approximately $186,000 were invested in Chase Capital Partners Private
Equity Fund of Funds 1I, LTD, a limited partaership, organized by I.P. Morgan Alternative Asset
Management, Inc., as general partner, in which the pension trust fund has a total commitment of
$15 million. The fund’s investment strategy is to capitalize on a globally diversified portfolio of
privale equity investments opportunities across various sectors, including buyouts, growth equity,
venture capital and other special situations through partnership, investments, and direct investments.

¢ During fiscal year 2009, there were no additional contributions to Ventare Capital Fund, Inc., a
Puerto Rico Corporation, organized pursuant to Act No. 3 of October 6, 1987, as amended, known
as the Puerto Rico Capital investment Funds Act that is managed by Advent Morro Equity Partners
{Advent Morre Equity Partners, Inc.) in which the pension trust fund has a total commitment of
$800,000. Advent Morro is a Puerto Rico based private equity firm. The fund was created to make
private eguity investments i operating companies that are based, are operating, or a combination of
both, in Puerto Rico. Since inception, the fund has invested in 25 companies some of which it
continues to provide capital for their expansion.

e During fiscal year 2009, approximately $389,000 were invested in GF Capital Private Equity
Fund, L.P., a limited partnership, organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, in which the
pension trust fund has a total commitment of $25 million. The purpose of the partnership is to make
private equity investments in a variety of industries including media and entertainment, branded
consumer products, and software for media and telecommunications applications. The partnership
initiatives are focused on companies capitalized at between $20 million to $400 million with a
representation of buyouts, growth capital, and recapitalizations.

e During fiscal year 2009, approximately $372,000 were invested in Chase Capital Partners Private
Equity Fund of Funds Corporate Investors II, LTD a limited partnership, organized by Chase as
general partner in which the pension trust fund has a total commitment of $20 million. The fund’s
investment strategy 1$ 1o capitalize on a globally diversified portfolio of private equity investment
opportupities across various sectors including buyouts, growth equity, venture capital, and other
special situations through partnership and direct investiments.

The fair value of these investments at June 30, 2009 amounted to $61 million and is presented within
investments in the statement of fiduciary net assets. The fair values of these investments have been
estimated by the corresponding general pariner or fund manager of these partnerships and disclosed in
its respective separale audited financial statements. The allocations of net gain and net loss to the limited
partners are based on certain percentages, as established in the limited partnership agreements. The
difference between the fair value of the investments and the total cumulative contributions is mostly due
1o distributions made.
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As of June 30, 2009, the pension trust funds and discretely presented component units had capital
commitments and coatributions as follows (expressed in thousands):

Pubiic Sector Fiscal Year Cumulative
Guayacan Funds of Funds, L.P. Commitments Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Employees’ Retirement System of the
Government of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities $25,000 $ 249 $23,637
Puerto Rico System of Annuities and
Pensions for Teachers 20,000 200 19,057
Subtotal 45,000 449 42,694
Guayacan Funds of Funds II, L.P.
Primary government:
Employees’ Retirement System of the
Govermnment of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities 25,000 142 23,666
Puerto Rico System of Annnities and
Pensions for Teachers 25,000 142 23,681
Subtotal 50,000 284 47,347
Guayacan Funds of Funds i, L.P.
Component Unit:
State Insurance Fund Corporation 10,000 1,214 1,214
Balance carried forward 105,000 1,947 G1,255

{Continued)
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Public Secior Fiscal Year Cumulative
Commitments Contributions Contributions

Balance brought forward $105,000 $ 1,947 § 61,255

Guayacan Private Equity Fund, L.P.

Primary govesnment:
Employees’ Retirement System of the
Governmeni of Poerto Rico and its

Instrumentalities 5,000 238 4,407
Puerto Rico System of Annuities and
Pensions for Teachers 5,000 238 4,645

Component unit:
Econiomic Development Bank

for Puerto Rico 20,000 953 i8,578
UPR Employees Retirement System 2,500 120 2,323
Subtotal 32,500 1,549 29,953

Guayacan Private Equity Fund I, L.P.

Primary government:
Employees’ Retirement System of the
Government of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities 15,000 3,036 0,933
Component unit:
Economic Development Bank

for Puerto Rico 20,000 2,229 6,881
State Insurance Fund Corporation 40,600 1,778 4,004
UPR Employees Retirement System 5,600 607 1,720

Subtotal 80,000 7,650 22,538
Other Funds

Primary government:
Employees’ Retirement System of
the Government of Puerto Rico

and 11s Instrumentalities 45,800 761 25,748
Puerto Rico System of Annuities
and Pensions for Teachers 28,714 338 26,319
Subtotal 74,514 1,096 52,067
Fotal $292,014 $12,245 $195,813
{Concluded)
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10.

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables in the governmental funds include approximately $1.6 billion of accrued income, excise and
sales and use taxes. Intergovernmental receivables include $338 million from the federal government
and $32 miltion from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center {CRIM for its Spanish acronym). In
addition, the enterprise funds include $68.5 million of unemployment, disability, and drivers’ insurance
premiurn receivable.

Payables in the governmental funds include approximately $1.3 billion of trade accounts due to suppliers
for purchase of merchandise and services rendered and approximately $426.5 million of tax refunds
payable. Also at June 30, 2009, excess of checks drawn over the pooled bank balance amounted to
approximately $216 million and 1s reported within accounts payable and accrued liabilities of the
govermmental activities.

In accordance with GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2004-1, Tobacco Sertlement Recognition and
Financial Reporting Entity Issues, as amended (the TB), a receivable of $40.5 million was recorded as
other receivable in the government wide financial statements for estimated shipments from Fanuary 1 to
June 30, 2009, which will be applied to debt service upon collection. Additionally, the TB indicated that
the Trust designated as the Tobacco Settlement Authority (TSA) should recognize a liability for the
bonds payable and an expense {and liability if unpaid) in the same period in its stand alone financial
statements. The expense (and liability if unpaid) recognizes the contractual obligation to remit the
proceeds of the bond sold. Since the Trust is reported as a blended component unit, the TB indicates
these remittances should be reported as transfers into the fund recetving the proceeds and transfers out in
the fund that accounts for the activities of the TSA. Since the Trust has no contractual obligation, under
its enabling legislation or elsewhere, to remit all bond proceeds or assets related 10 the GSA to the
settling government (the Commonwealth), the Trust has not recognized an expense and liability for
unpaid proceeds from the bonds since it records the expense as amounts are disbursed as grants to ifs
settling government {including its instramentalities) or third parties.

PLEDGES OF RECEIVABLES AND FUTURE REVENUES

The Commonwealth has pledged the first one percent {two point seventy-five (2.75%) after 2009} of the
sales and use tax for the repayment of certain outstanding obligations of the Commonwealth. During
2009, the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation {*COFINA”), a blended component unit of the
Commonwealth, responsible for the financing, payments and retirement of certain debt obhigations of the
Commonwealth, has issued bonds for approximately $5.6 billion payable through 2038. The
Commonwealth has committed to appropriate each year, from the sales and use tax, amounts sufficient
to cover the principal and nterest requirements on the debt issued by COFINA. COFINA has pledged as
the sole security for the bonds, the annual appropriations from the Commonwealth. Total principal and
interest remaining on the secured debt is $25.4 billion and $14.6 billion, respectively. The pledged sale
and use tax base amount for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 amounted to 3192 million. For fiscal
year 2009, interest paid by COFINA amounted 1o $166.2 million and the sales and use fax revenue
recognized by the Commonwealth was $192 million,

Also, the Commonwealth has pledged part of the gross receipts of the gasoline excise taxes and one half
of the diesel 01l excise taxes (up to $11 million monthly but no more than $120 million annually) and
$15 per vehicle per year from motor vehicle license fees for the repayment of the Puerto Rico Highways
and Transportation Authority’s (“PRHTA”) Revenue Bonds. The Commoenwealth has committed to
appropriate each year, from the excise taxes, amounts sufficient to cover the principal and interest
requirements on the debt issucd by PRHTA. PRHTA has pledged as the sole security for the bonds, the
anpuval appropriations from the Commonwealth. Total principal and nterest remaining on the secured



11.

debt 15 $6.7 billion and $6.6 billion, respectively. The pledged excise tax for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 amounted to $120 million. For fiscal year 2009, principal and interest paid by PRHTA
amounted to $83.9 mitlion and $357.9 million, respectively, and the excise tax revenue recognized by
the Commonweaith was $289 million.

Rum manufactured in Puerto Rico is subject to federal excise taxes; however, these are returned by the
Internal Revenue Service to the Commonwealth. Act No. 44, as amended, requires that in each fiscal
year after fiscal year 2006, through fiscal year 2009, and each fiscal year thereafier through fiscal year
2057, the first $90 million and $117 million, respectively, of certain federal excise taxes received by the
Commonwealth be transferred to the Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority (“PRIFA™). Such
taxes consist of the federai excise taxes levied on rum and other articles produced in Puerto Rico and
sold in the United States, which taxes are collected by the U.S. treasury and returned to the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has pledged these taxes for the repayment of PRIFA’s Special Tax
Revenue Bonds. The Commonwealth has commitied to appropriate each year, from the excise laxes,
amounis sufficient to cover the principal and interest requirements on the debt issued by PRIFA. PRIFA
has pledged as the sole security for the bonds, the annual appropriations from the Commonwealth. The
federal excise taxes securing the Bonds are subject to a number of factors, including the continued
imposition and remittance of such taxes to the Commonwealth and conditions affecting the Puerto Rico
rum industry. If the federal excise taxes received by the Commonwealth in any fiscal year are
insufficient, the Act No. 44 requires that PRIFA request and the Director of the Office of Management
and Budget of the Commonwealth include in the budget of the Commonwealth for the corresponding
fiscal year, an appropriation necessary to cover such deficiency. The Commonwealth’s Legisature,
however, is not obligated to make the necessary appropriation to cover such deficiency. Total principal
and interest remaining on the secured debt is $2.6 billion and $2.4 billion, respectively. The pledged
federal excise tax amount for the fiscal year ended lune 30, 2009 amounted to $90 million. For fiscai
year 2009, principal and interest paid by PRIFA amounted to $23.5 million and $84.7 million,
respectively, and the excise tax revenue recognized by the Commonwealth was $90 million,

INTERFUND AND INTRAENTITY TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2009 are summarized as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Receivable Fund Payabie Fund Amount
Other govermmental funds General fund $202,959
COFINA debt service Pledge Sales and use tax fund 92314
General Lotteries 76,422
Lotteries General 53,208
Nonmajor enterprise General 26,000
General Unemployment insurance 11,456

$462,365
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Transfers from (to} other funds for the year ended Fune 30, 2009 are summarized as follows (expressed
in thousands);

Transferee Fund Transferor Fund Amount
COFINA special revenue COFINA debt service $5,206,778
General COFINA special revenue 3,192,516
Debt service General 607,305
Other governmental General 420,497
COFINA debt service Pledge Sales Taxes 284,724
General Lotteries 209,142
General Unemployment insurance 47,906
OGther proprietary funds General 5,878
General Other governmental funds 5,500

$9,980,246

The principal purposes of the interfund transfers are to (express in thousands):

I

I

Transfer of $5,206,778 from the COFINA debt service fund to the COFINA special revenue fund
from which $3,192,516 were transferred to the General Fund for the payment of appropnation debt.

Make funds available for debt service payments in the debt service fund ($607,305). Distribute the
mcrease 1 net assets of the lotteries fund for the use of the general fund, as required by the lotteries
enabling legislation ($209,142).

Recognize as transfers the rental payments made by the Commonwealth’s agencies on properties
leased by PBA, a blended component unit of the Commonwealth ($330,424); and ($90,073) related
to the revenues received of the Tobacco Seitiement for the agreement managed by The Children’s
Trust, a blended component unit of the Commonwealth.

Distribution of the sales tax for the use of COFINA debt service fund as required by enabling
legislation for the payment of its boads ($284.724).

Transfer unemployment insurance fund’s distribution of surptus cash belonging to the general fund
for the payment of administrative expenses ($47,906).

Provide local matching funds from the general fund related 10 the federal capital grants of the Puerto
Rico Water Pollution Revolving Fund and Puerto Rico Safe Drinking Water Treatment Revolving
Loan Fund, two non-major enterprise funds of the Commonwealth ($5,878).

Transfers from the Commoenwealth capital project fund {a nonmajor governmental fund) to the
general fund for the public improvements in municipalities and corporations ($5,500).

Interfund receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned transfers or
transactions from current and prior years.
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Due from (to) primary government and component units are as follows {expressed in thousands):

Receivable Entity/Fund Amount Payable Entity/Fund Amount
Business-type activities $321,215  Puerio Rico Aqueduct and Sewer
Governimnental activities 334,388 Authority $321.215
PR Infrastructure Financing Authority 14¥7,039
$655,603  Puerto Rico Medical Services
Administzation 66,817
Puerto Rico Electric Power Cardiovascular Center Corporation
Authority $176,941 ot Puerto Rico and the Caribbean 47226
University of Puerto Rico 152,284 PR Ports Authority 42,421
Puerto Rico Health Insurance Puerto Rico Tourism Company 28,299
Administration 71,166  Puerto Rico Health Insurance
Gov. Development Bank 52,659 Admimstration 13,889
Puerto Rico industnal PR Trade and Export Company 10,216
Development Company 44,979  Employment and Traming Enterprises
PR Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 34,6042 Corporation 7,108
Puerto Rico Med:cal Services Governing Board of the 911 Service 6,259
Administration 26,863 PR Metropolitan Bus Authority 3,183
Agricultural Service Develop. National Parks Company of PR 1,929
Corporation 18,869
Puerto Rico Conservatory $ 055,603
of Music 3,555
Land Authority of Puerio Rico 3730 Governmental activities $389,188
Puerto Rico Pors Authority 3,500
$589,188 $589,188

The amount owed by PRASA of $321 million represents construction loans granted by the Puerto Rico
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund and the Puerto Rico Safe Drinking Water Treatment Revolving
Loan Fund, non-major enterprise funds, to finance the construction of capital asscts for PRASA.

Governimmental activities due from compenent units include an allowance for doubtful accounts
amounting to $145.5 million. Governmental activities liability includes approximately $88 mitlion
recorded as note payable to component unit.

The amount receivable by PREPA from the primary government includes approximately $19 miilion
representing an agreement with the Commonwealth by which the Commonwealth wiil pay outstanding
fuel adjustment subsidy and certain other accumulated debt. The amount owed by the Commonwealth is
presented within notes payable in the statement of net assets of the governmental activities,

The amount receivable by the UPR from the primary government includes a resolution approved by the
Legislature of the Commonwealth to pay $95 million to the UPR on behalf of the Department of Health
of the Commonweaith over eight years, including the financing of additional debts of approximately
$71.2 million. The related outstanding balance of $36 million is presented by the Commonwealth within
notes payable in the statement of net assets {deficit) of the governmental activities. In addition, during
the fiscal year 2009 the Office of Management and Budget and the UPR signed an intra-agency
agreement amounting to $33 million to pay for appropriations for fiscal vears 2007 and 2008.
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Due from (to) component units are as follows {expressed in thousands):

Receivable Entity/Fund Amount Payable Entity/Fund Amount
Puerto Rico Electric Power Puerto Rico Agueduct and Sewer Authority $ 37442
Authority 5 133,057 Puerto Rico Maritime Transportation Authority 50,190
Puerto Rico Ports Authority 50,190 PR Medical Services Administration 49,106
University of Puerto Rico 29,121 PR Ports Authority 38,832
PR Aqueduct and Sewer Agricultural Services and Development Adm. 19,135
Authority 24,637 University of Puerto Rico 14,515
Land Authority of PR 22,365 Cardiovascular Center Corp of PR and the Caribbean 10,887
Farm [nsurance Corporation PR Tourism Company 5.947
of PR 2,701 Farm insurance Corporation of PR 5931
PR Land Administration 1,305 PR Electric Power Authority 4242
Land Amhority of PR 4,391

Puerio Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority 1,453

Puerto Rico [ndustrial Development Company 1.305

203,376 Sub total 263,376

Government Development

Bank for Puerto Rico 2,568,100 Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 458,387
Special Communities Perpetual Trust 376,095
Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority 351,313
State Insurance Fund Corperation 243,000
Ports of the Americas Authority 181,861
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authorily 172,687
FPuerto Rico Convention Center District Authoricy 151,676
Agriculturat Services and Development Adm. 127.578
Puerto Rico Ports Authority 94,876
Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company 89,075
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Auth. 86,018
University of Puerto Rico 71,900
Puerto Rico Solid Wasie Authority 62,310
Land Authority of Puerto Rico 49,328
institute of Puerto Rican Culure 17,748
Economic Development Bank for Poerto Rico 11,151
National Parks Company of Puerto Rico 10,808
Puerto Rico Municipal Finance Agency 8,546
Co. for the Integral Dev. of the Peninsula de Cantera 3.234
Puerto Rico Conscrvatory of Music Corporation 992
PR Maritime Transportation Authority 126

2,508,109
$2.831.485 $2.831,485

The rest of the loans receivable reported by GDB consists of the following (expressed in thousands):

Primary government — governmental activities $1,905,602
Other governmental entities and municipalities 2,231,564
Private sector 174
Total loans receivable reported by GDB $4,137,340

The loans to the primary government are presented by the Commonwealth within notes payable in the
statement of net assets (deficit).
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Expenses of the primary government include approximately $2 billion in capital and operational
contributions made by the primary government to the component usnits as follows (expressed in

thousands):
Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration $1,004 873
University of Puerto Rico 836,013
Nonmajor component units 204,513
Puerto Rico Agueduct and Sewer Authority 18,233
Puerio Rico Electric Power Authority 776
Total contributions made by primary government to component units $2,084,408

12. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets of the primary government included in the basic financial statements at June 30, 2009
consist of cash, investimenis, and other assets to be used for the following purposes (expressed in
thousands}:

Governmental activities:

Debt service and sinking fund $2.323,936
Public Housing Administration- funds received from the U.S Housing
and Urban Development 1,832
Affordable housing program 10,920
Construction of governmental facilities 197,985
Other 19,200
Total restricted assets of governmental activities $2,553,873

Business-type activities — investments held for disabilily insurance benefits $ 29,830

Liabilities of the primary government payable from restricted assets consist of the following (expressed
in thousands}:

Governmental activities:

Tax revenue anticipation notes $ 1,500,000
Current portion of Public Housing Administration bonds payable 24,380
Accounts payable to contractors 50,399
Liabilities payable from restricted assets — governmental activities $1,574779
Business-type activities — disability insurance benefit payable 3 621
Liabilities payable from restricted assets — business-type activities 3 621

Restricted net assets of the primary government consist of the following (expressed in thousands}):
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Governmental activities restricted net assets (expressed in thousands):

Restricted for capital projects $ 147,586
Restricted for debt service 799,556
Affordable housing and related oan insurance programs 31,952
Total restricted net assets — goveramental activities $ 979,094
Business-type activities restricted net assets — payment of insurance benefits $ 26,209
Total restricted net assets $ 29,209

Restricted assets of the component units included in the basic financial statements at June 30, 2009 are
to be used for the following purposes (expressed in thousands):

Debt service and sinking fund requirements $3,256,365
Collateral for uaderlying securities 1,283,844
Construction and betierments funds 524,765
Other uses 422,769
Educational fund 14,898
Maintenance reserve fund 11,545
Escrow 5,136
Industrial incentives 3,267
Malpractice insurance fund 2
Total for components units $7,522,591

Act No.92 of June 24, 1998, (“Act No. 92”) provides, among other things, for the creation of the
Permanent Fund of PRIFA. The Permanent Fund consists of a Corpus Account funded with a portion of
the proceeds from the sale of assets of PRTA and additional accounts created or to be created by the
PRIFA. Act No. 92 provides that the principal of the Corpus Account may not be reduced for any reason
and that mmcome received from investments in the Corpus Account and amounts received may be
deposited in any of the additional accounts.

By virtue of Act No. 3 of January 14, 2009 (“Act No. 3”) approved by the Legislature of Puerto Rico,
Act No. 44 of June 21, 1988, was amended to permit the PRIFA 1o sell all or a portion of the outstanding
Corpus Account investments held in the 2000 Trust Agreement and use the net proceeds of said
redemption to provide for the early extinguishment of the Series 2000 A and B Bonds, maintain a
permanent investment of 3300 million within the Corpus Account, payments to the U.S. Internal
Revenue Services {(IRS). payment of transaction expenses, and contribute any rematning amounts to the
Commonwealth and the GDB, among other purposes.

The PRIFA used the proceeds from the sale of the investments, which amounted to approximately
$1,952 millicn, to pay capital contributions to the Commonwealth and the GDB of approximately
202 million and $100 million, respectively, pay arbitrage to the IRS amounting to approximately
79 million, repay certain loans, including accrued interest, to the Bank amounting to approximately
$6 million. The remaining proceeds of approximately $1,565 million have been invested in short-term
U.S. Treasury securities as of June 30, 2009, which are included as part of restricted cash and cash
cquivalents in the accompanying statement of net assets. PRIFA has restricted approximately
51,104 million for the early extinguishment of the Series 2000 A and B Bonds and $300 million within
the Corpus Account as a permanent investment.
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13. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capirtal assets, not being
depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and building
improvements
Equipment furniture, fixtures and
vehicles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets,
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and building
improvements

Equipment furniture, fixtures and
vehicles

Infrastructure

Total accumuiated
depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Total capital assets, being
depreciated ~ equipment
Less accumulated depreciation of
equipment

Total business-type activilies
capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Beginning

Balance Ending

(as Restated) Increases Decreases Balance
$ 841.629 $ 40,618 $ 370 $ 881877
1,442 420 227,168 347,741 1,322 447
2,284,049 268,386 348,111 2,204,324
7,303,377 276,408 127,793 7,451,992
481,109 33914 7,322 507,703
433,797 10,451 - 444 248
8,218,283 320,773 135,115 8,403,541
2,538,145 202,087 68,682 2,671,550
259,572 40,433 7.993 292,012

101,691 8,910 - 110,601
2,899,408 251,430 76,675 3,074,163
5,318,875 09,343 58,440 5,329,778
$ 7,602 924 $ 337729 $406,551 $7,534,102
$ 4,810 $ 8 i - $ 4,818
4,136 - 4,136
$ 674 3 8 5 - $ 682




Deprectation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government for the year ended
June 30, 2009 as follows (expressed in thousands):

Governmental activities:

General government $ 83,884
Public safety 26,478
Health 8,033
Public housing and welfare 89,030
Education 30,088
Economic development 13,917
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $251,430

The net book value of capital assets of the primary government as of beginning of the year was
increased to properly record capital assets amounting to approximately $351.2 million.

The Commonwealth follows the provision of GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Impairment of Cuapital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries, an amendment to GASB
Staterment No. 34, This statement establishes guidance for accounting and reporting for the impairment
of capital assets and for insurance recoveries. The Commonwealth recognized an impairment loss of
$10.4 million in the staternent of activities, refated to the reduction 1n use of educational facilities,

General infrastructure assets include $417 million representing the estimated cost of assets transferred to
the Department of Naturai and Environmental Resources (DNER} of the Commonwealth in 1997 upon
compietion of the Cerriilos Dam and Reservoir and the Portugues River and Bucana River Projects by
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. These infrastructure assets are reported within governmental
activities and include dams, intake facilities, and similar items built for flood control, water supply, and
recreational purposes. The Commonwealth also recorded a payable due to the U.S. Army Corps of
Engingers, amounting to $205 million, for its estimated allocated share of the construction costs
associated with these projects, including accrued interest of $5 million. The final debt agreement
between DNER and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers has not been finalized, and therefore, terms and
conditions could differ from those estimated. The depreciation is computed using the straight line
method over an estimated useful life of 50 years from the transfer date of the property. The related debt
15 expected 10 be payable on an annual basis over a 50 year period. However, the debt has been
presented as a long term payable due after one year in the accompanying statement of net assets (deficit)
since the commencement date of repayment has not yet been determined.

On August 17, 2001, the Legisiatore of the Commonweaith approved Act No. 120, which requires the
conditional transfer of the ownership of certain real properties under the name of the Department of
Recreation and Sports (DRS) of the Commonwealth to the municipalities of the Commonwealth. The
land and the facilities were transferred at no cost to the municipalities. During fiscal year ended June 30,
2009, no and, building, and building improvements were transferred to municipalities.



Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning
Balance Ending
{as Restated) Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,941,653 $ 106,718 $ 17,665 $ 3,630,706
Art works 9472 5 - 9,477
Construction in progress 6,829,908 1,799,895 2,364,348 6,265,435
Total capital assets,
nol heing depreciated 9,781,033 1,906,618 2,382,013 9,305,638
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and building
improvements 4,339,339 532,654 61,689 4,810,304
Equipment, lurniture, fixtures and
vehicles 7417695 1,343,153 48,589 8,712,259
Infrastructure 24,370,759 721,901 255,569 24,837,091
Tolal capital assets,
being depreciated 36,127,793 2,597,708 365,847 38,359,654
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and building
improvements 1,159,817 203,115 9,245 1,953,687
Equipment, furniture, fixiures and
vehicles 1,797,648 146,194 44 681 1,899,161
Inlrastructure 13,245.940 697,588 52,648 13,850,880
Total accumulated
depreciation 16,803 405 1,046,897 106,574 17,743,728
Total capilal assets,
heing deprecialed, net 19,324 388 i,550.811 259,273 20,615,926
Capital assels, net $ 29,105,421 $ 3457429 $ 2,641,286 $ 29,921,564

14, TAX REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTES PAYABLE AND TAX RECEIVABLE
ANTICIPATION BONDS

Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANS) reported in the general fund were issued on November i4,
2008 at interest rates ranging from 3% to 6% and were paid on July 30, 2009. The TRANS amounted to
$1,500 miflion at June 30, 2009 plus accrued interest of approximately $28 miilion. The proceeds of the
TRANS were used to cover temporary cash deficiencies resulting from the timing differences between
tax collections and the payment of current expenditures,

From September to December 2008, the Commonwealth issued Tax Receivable Anticipation Bonds
(TRABS) amounting to $1,000 million with maturities ranging from September to December 2009,
These TRABS were payable solely from the revenues received from the collection of delinquent tax
receivables. Total 1ssuance was purchased by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico
(GDB). In June 2009, COFINA paid, on behalf of the Commonwealth, the total amount of bonds
outstanding of $1,000 million to GDB.



SHORT AND LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS
{a) Primary Government

Summary of Short and Long Term Obligations — Short and long term obligations at June 30, 2009 and changes for the year then ended are
as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance At Original Issue Other Net Due
June 30, 2008 {Discounts) increases Balance At Within
Shert Term Obligations {as Restated) Debt tssued Debt Pald Premiums {Decreases) June 39, 2009 One Year
Guowernmentl activitios:
Notes pavible:
GDB % 354,186 & 600,067 $ {19500 5 - $ 12.711 b 17354064 g 175,464
Privite banhs - 1 400000 {1.400.000) - - -
Total nies pavable % 354,186 § 2000067 5 (21915000 § - 5 12,7114 $ 175,464 5 175,464
Long Term Obligations
Govermmentad aclivities:
General obligation and revenie honds 5 19338117 $ SB35 5 (298,850 b {25873 % 157403 5 250201742 M 194,110}
Commonwcalth appropriation boods 813618 - (78.57h - 2,207 T37.345 B
Notes pavahle 10 compooent units;
GDB 1.582.794 RYAR NN {162,931} (69.580) 1,730,138 206,744
(hher 59411 . {2570 36.035 §7.875 1.570
Capital keases 245,039 262 (.47 - 210,084 3474
Total bonds. notes pavable and capital
leases pavable 22.038.979 £.204.092 {553.1659) (28.873) 136,155 ITBI17.584 503.898
Compensated absences 1630396 {97230y 05883 1.616.925 794 939
Met pension obfigation 584340 - 010,749 6.754.230 -
Net pestemployment benefit obligation 42373 - 34.233 T6.606 -
Other long-1erm liabalities | 866,787 {201,187t 536,795 2,202,395 233,694
Total governmentad activities 31.421.966 6.204.002 (1.726.657) (28.87TH 2300812 38.467.340 1332581
Business-1ype ackivilics:
Compuensated absences 6201 (1.479) 4732 2.391
Obligation Tor unpaid lolery prizes 28728 - - (24137} 263591 67.291
Claimg liabaliny Tor insurance beneling I 14.575 - - [15.849) 98.726 98.726
Tonal business-type activilies 405,514 (41465 367.049 168,408
Total prinuey govenvuent $ 31830480 $ 0 6204.002 S {L.726.657) b (28.573) 5 2,555.347 3 38.834.389 & 1,700,989




The balances of general cbligation and revenue bonds paid included within other financing uses and
principal as reported in the statemeni of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
(deficit) — governmental funds do not agree with amounts reported as debt paid in the above table
primarily because the above table includes debt paid on general obhigation and revenue bonds,
which was accrued during the fiscal year 2008 as a fund liability. The prior year fund liability
mentioned above amounted to approximately $54.8 million and was reported as a balance sheet
transaction in the fund financial statements in 2008, Also, during fiscal year 2009 the amount of
approximately $158 million was accrued as fund fiability. The net effect of $103.4 million is the
difference between the debt paid on bonds and notes in the previous table and the payments in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit).

The other net increases in bonds and notes payable consist of deferred Josses on refunding, net of
amortization, and amortization of premiums and discounts on bonds and new notes payables. These
adjustments did not require any source or use of cash.

Compensated absences, net pensicn obligation, obligation for unpaid lottery awards, liability for
insurance benefits, and other long-term liabilities reflect other net increases (decreases) resulting
from adiustments and changes to agree these obligations to their new estimated balances at June 30,
2009.

(b) Debt Limitation

The Constitution of the Commonwealth authorizes the contracting of debts as determined by the
Legistature. Nevertheless, the Constitution of the Commonwealth provides that direct obligations of
the Commonwealth evidenced by bonds or notes and backed by the full faith, credit, and taxing
power of the Commonwealth are not to be issued if the amounts of the principal of, and interest on,
such bonds and notes and on all such bonds and notes issued thereafter, which are payable in any
fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the Commonwealth in the preceding fiscal year on
account of bonds or notes guaranteed by the Commonwealth, exceeds 15% of the average annual
revenue raised under the provisions of Commonwealth legislation and conveyed into the Treasury
(hereinafter internal revenue) in the two fiscal years preceding the curmrent fiscal year. Section 2,
Article V] of the Constitution does not lIimit the amount of debt that the Commonwealth may
guaraniee so long as the 13% limitation is not exceeded. Internal revenue consists principally of
income taxes, sales and use tax, property taxes and excise taxes. Certain revenue, such as federal
excise taxes on offshore shipments of alcohotic beverages and tobacco products, and customs daties,
which are collected by the U.S. government and returned to the Commonwealth, motor vehicle fuel
taxes and license fees, which are allocated to the PRHTA, a discrete component unit, are not
included as revenue for the purpose of calculating the debt hmit. At June 30, 2009, the
Commonwealth is in compliance with the debt limitation requirement. In addition, the portion of
sales and use tax allocated 1o COFINA is not included as internal revenue in consistency with the
legislation creating COFINA, which legislation transfers ownership of such portion of the sales and
use tax to COFINA and provides that such portion is not “available resources” under the
constitutional provisions relating to the payment of debt service.

124 -



(c) Bonds Payable

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides that public debt will constitute a first claim on the
available revenue of the Commonwealth. Public debt inctudes general obligations and revenue
bonds of the Commonweaith and any payment required to be made by the Commonwealth under its
guarantees of bonds issued by blended or discretely presented component units, The full faith,
credit, and taxing power of the Commonwealth are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of
the principal and interest of the general obligatioen bonds.

Act No. 83 of August 30, 1991, as amended, provides for the levy of an annual special tax of 1.03%
of the assessed value of all real and personal property not excnerated from taxation, The levy is
made by CRIM, a municipal corporation, not a compenent unit of the Commonwealth. CRIM 1s
required to remit the 1.03% of property tax collected to the Commonwealth to be used by the
Commonwealth’s debt service fund for payment of debt service on general obligations and revenue
bonds of the Commonwealth. During the year ended Fune 30, 2008, the total revenue and receivable
reported by the Commonwealth amounted to approximately $115 million and $32 million,
respectively, which are included in the debt service fund.

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding amount of bonds represents the total principal (o be
repaid, net of unamortized premiums, discount, and deferred refunding losses; for capital
appreciation bends, it represents total principal and unaccreted interest to be repaid.



Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2009 are as follows {expressed in thousands):

General Revenue
Obligation Bonds Bonds Total

Term bonds payable through 2049;
interest payable semiannually at
rates varying from 3% to 8%. $3,345,040 $ 4,655,786 $ 8,000,826

Serial bonds payable through 2037,
interest payable semiannually at
rates varying from 3.73% to 7.50%. 5,239.925 1,036,695 6,276,620

Fixed rate bonds payable through
2058; inierest payable at rates
varying from 3.75% to 6.35%. - 4,067,349 4,067,349

Capatal appreciation bonds payable
through 2057, no interest rate,
vield ranging from 4.42% to 7.80%.
Net of accreted discount of
$168 million. 156,078 3,201,438 3,357,516

The Children’s Trust Faad tobacco
settlement asset-backed bonds
payable through 2026; interest
payable annuatly at rates varying
from 4.63% 10 6%. - 1,402,687 1.402.687

Capital Fund Program Bonds,
maturing in various dates payable
through 2024; interest payable at
rates varying from 2% to 5%. (1) - 572,830 572,830

Bond payment obligation payable
through 2011; interest payable at
rates varying from 1.5% to 5.5%. 48,220 - 48,220

Balance carried forward 8,789,203 14,936,785 23,726,048

(1) Revenue bonds include $343.6 million capital appreciation
bends convertible to fixed rate interest bonds on August 1, 2016. {Continued)



General Revenue

Obligation Bonds Bonds Total
Balance brought forward $8,789,203 $14,936,785 $23,726,048

Mandatory Tender Bonds due on

August 1, 2039, interest payable

at a rate of 5%. (2) - 700,000 700,000
Yield curve bonds payable from 2009

through 2028; no interest rate,

yield of 8.91%. 227,600 - 227,600
LIBOR-Based Adjustable Rate Bonds

due on August 1, 2057; interest

payable at a rate of 1.62%. - 136,000 136,000
Inverse rate bonds payable from 2011

through 2G12; interest payabile at

a rate of 6%, 10,300 - 10,300
Insured bonds payable from 2015

through 2019; interest payable

at a rate of 3%. 30,087 - 50,087

Total 9,077,250 15,772,785 24,850,035

Unamortized premium, net 259,362 43,459 302,821
Deferred refunding loss, net (67,827) {63,518} {131,343}
Savings bonds 231 - 231
Total bonds payable £9.269.016 §£15,752,726 $25,021,742

(2} On August 1, 2011, the Mandatory Tender Bonds will be sabject (o
mandatory tender for purchase, subject to successful remarketing of such
bonds at such time. In the event the Mandatory Tender Bonds are not
remarketed onr August 1, 2011, the interest rate will convert, without
further notice 10 bondholders, to 10% until repurchased. (Concluded)



As of June 30, 2009, debt service requiremenis for general obligation and revenue bonds
ouistanding, inciuding accreted interest of capital appreciation bonds are as follows {expressed in
thousands)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 194,110 b 909,766 $ 1,103,876
2011 445,825 1,033,351 1,479,176
2012 459,592 1,028,134 1,487,726
2013 484,360 1,021,590 1,505,950
2014 511,315 994,877 1,506,192
2015-2019 2,802,550 4,689,954 7,492,504
2020-2024 3,345,301 4,169,475 7,514,776
20252020 4,430,381 3,493,627 7,924,008
20302034 4917171 2,562,812 7,479,983
2035-2039 5,029,095 1,664,864 6,693,959
20402044 3,019,925 613,341 4,533,266
2045-2049 3,966,312 319,052 4,285,364
2050-2054 4,682,012 313,364 4,995,376
2055-2058 13,087,730 219,355 13,307,085
Total 48,275,679 $ 23,033,561 § 71,309,240
Plus unaccreted interest (23,425413)
Plus unamortized premium, net 302,821
Less deferred refunding loss, net (131,345
Total $ 25,021,742



Using the rates as of June 30, 2009, debt service reguirements for variable-rate general obligatnion
and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same, for their term, are as
follows {expressed in thousands). As rates vary, variable-rate bonds interest payments and net swap
payments will vary.

Variable-Rate

Year Ending General Obligations interest Rate
June 30 Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
2010 § 2,375 $ 24616 $ 51,931 § 78,922
2011 2,450 24,598 51,861 78,908
2012 2,550 24,578 31,780 78,908
2013 2,625 24,558 51,715 78,898
2014 3,945 24,525 51,634 80,104
20152019 58,480 121,011 255,355 474,846
20202024 617,690 86,723 198,477 902,850
20252029 746,645 48,716 124,981 920,341
2030-2034 495,600 19,686 62,600 577,885
2035-2039 67,650 11,025 22,450 101,123
20402044 - 11,005 22,450 33,455
2045-2049 - 11,005 22,450 33,455
2050-2054 - 11,005 22,450 33,455
2055-2058 136,000 6,870 14,225 157,195
Total $ 2,176,010 $ 450,023 $ 1,004,357 $ 3,630,390

On August 1, 2008, the Puerto Rico Housing Finance Authority (the “Authority”™), a blended
compenent unit of GDB, issued Capital Fund Modernization Program Subordinate Bonds amounting
to $384,475,000 and Housing Revenue Bonds amoeunting to $100,000,000. The proceeds from the
issuance were mainly used to finance a loan (the “Loan™) to Vivienda Modernization 1, LLC, (the
“LLC”). The LLC wil} utilize moneys from the Loan for the purpose of financing a portion of the
cost of the acquisition and modernization of various housing projects in the Commonwealth and
paying certain transactional costs.

The LLC is a limited liability company created under the laws of the Commonwealth whose sole
member is Vivienda Modernization Holdings 1, S.E. (the “Sole Member” or the “Partnership”), a
civil partnership created under the laws of the Commonwealth, The Partnership was created on
August 1, 2008 by the Department of Housing of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico {“DOH™, in its
capacity as the general partner (the “General Partner”) and Hudson SLP XL LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, as the Special Limited Partner (the “Special Limited Partner”) and
Hudson Housing Tax Credit Fund XL LP, a Delaware limited partnership, as the Investment
Partnership (the “Investment Partnership”; collectively with the Special Limited Partner, the
“Limited Partners™). The Partnership has been organized exclusively to be the sole member of the
LLC, which entity has been organized exclusively to acquire a 99 year term Surface Right with
respect to the Land and o develop, finance, rehabilitate, maintain, operate, lease and sell or
otherwise dispose of each Apartment Complex, in order to obtain for the Partnership and its Partners
statutory compliance, long-term appreciation, cash income, and tax benefits consisting of Tax
Credits and tax losses over the term hereof. In exchange for acquiring, constructing, or renovating
and maintaining housing that is affordable to households with low or limited incomes, owners of
such housing may be entitled to a direct credit on their federal taxes in accordance with Section 42
of the Internai Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.



Profits, losses and tax credits, are allocated in accordance with the Partnership Agreement. Profits
and Josses from operations and low-income housing tax credits in any one year shall be allocated
99.98% to the Investment Partnership, 0.01% to the Special Limited Partner and 0.01% to the
General Pariner. As defined in the Partnership Agreement, certain transactions and occurrences
warrant special allocations of profits and losses. All other losses shali be atlocated o0 the extent
allowable under Section 704(b) of the IRC.

Pursnant to the Partnership Agreement, the Limited Partners are required to provide capital
contributions totaling approximately $235 miilion 1o the Partnership (“Initial Projected Equity™),
subject to potential adjusiment based on the amount of low-income housing credits ultimately
allocated to the Projects in addition to other potential occurrences as more fully explained in the
Partnership Agreement. As of June 30, 2009, the Limited Partners have provided capital
contributions totaling $21 million.

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the General Partner is required to provide capital
contributions totaling $10 to the Partnership. Should the Partnership have not sufficient funds
available to pay the outstanding balance of the developer fee thereof, as defined, the General Partner
shall be required to provide additional capital contributions to the Partnership in an amount
sufficient for the Partnership to pay such balance in full. The General Partner shall have no right or
obligation to make any other capital contributions. As of June 30, 2009, the General Pariner had
provided no capital contributions. In addition, the DOH as General Partner shall establish the
Assurance Reserve Fund at initial closing in the amount of the initial capital contribution less
$4 million (plus any initial capital contribution with respect to the apartment complexes). Amounts
in the Assurance Reserve Fund shall be used, (i) upon the request of the General Partner, subject to
the consent of the Special Limited Partner, or (ii) upon the direction to the Special Limited Partner,
to meet financial obligations of the General Partner, other than for excess developmeni costs, as
provided in the Partnership Agreement. As of June 30, 2009, such reserve was maintained in the
Partnership. The amount owed to DOH for the assurance reserve fund as of June 30, 2009,
amounted to $16.7 million.

On August 7, 2008 the Puerto Rico Pubtic Housing Administration (“PHA”™) and the LLC entered in
into a Regulatory and Operating Agreement (“the Agreement”). The PHA and the LLC have
determined that it would be desirable for the public housing rental development to undergo
comprehensive modernization (e.g. new floors, electrical wiring, plumbing, windows, door, roofs
and accessibility features) or development, which modernization or development will be undertaken
and operated by the LLC.

On August 7, 2008, the DOH and PHA entered into an interagency agreement through which PHA
will transfer title to the public housing rental developments to the DOH for the subsequent sale to
the LLC. In addision, the DOH will make a grant to the Authority from funds in the Program
Modernization Fund in excess of the first receipts equal to $2G million to allow the Authority to
make a permanent loan to the LLC. The Authority will provide to the LLC a (i) $100,000,0600
interim construction loan to be used in connection with the financing of the rehabilitation and/or
construction work on the development from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds issued by the
Authority, (i1) $386,834,314 capital fund loan in proceeds from certain tax-exempt bonds issued by
the Authority, and (iii) a $100,000,000 permanent loan.

On August 7, 2008, the LLC and the DOH entered into a Purchase and Sales Agreement through
which the LLC acquired the surface rights of a property (“the Property”) and the improvement
erected on such property consisting of buiidings and construction in progress with a net boek value
and cost of $45.9 million and $110 million, respectively, from the DOH under those certain deeds of
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Constitution of Surface Rights and Transfer of Improvements dated August 7, 2008, which will
require the LLC to rehabilitate or construct on the Property four thousand oane huadred thirty-two
(4,132} residential rental mnits (the Units or collectively the Development) all of which will receive
the benefit of operating subsidy and benefit of low income housing tax credit under Section 42 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Eighty-four (84) of the uvnits, all of which will be
located at the Brisas de Cayey I site, are to be newly constructed. The remaining uniis will be
modernized.

Also, on Aungust 7, 2008, the DOH entered into a loan agreement with the LLC in the amount of
$102.889,957 for the acquisition of the 33 residential rental properties (the “deferred purchase price
note™). The LLC shall make payments equal to the amount of net available capital contributions, as
defined, for the preceding calendar quarter.

The terms of the deferred purchase price note are described as set forth below:

Commitment $ 102,889,957
Interest rate 355 %
Matarity date Later of (i} funding of the last installment of the third

capital contribution or (ii} August 7, 2013

The note shall be a full recourse hability of the LL.C, however, none of the LLC’s members have
personal liability. As of June 30, 2009, the principal balance outstanding on the deferred purchase
price note was $102,889,957 and accrued interest was $3,272,322. At the same time, based on the
Purchase and Sale Agreement, the PHA received $92,479,688 from the L.I.C, which was used to pay
eligible project expenses incurred by the PHA on an interim basis to minimize the expenditure of
2003 1ax exempt bonds that were ineligible for inclusion in the credit transaction. In addition, PHA
received $18,137,698 from the LLC for Capital Fund Bonds funds previously expensed by the PHA
from June and July 2009,

The PHA has entered into an Interagency Agresment dated August 7, 2008 with DOH, in DOH’s
capacity as general partner of the Partnership, to delegate management and operational duties related
to the Development to the PHA as set forth in the Interagency Agreement. The LLC and the PHA
also mntend that the units be developed, operated and managed so as to assure receipt by the L1.C of
the aforementioned economic and tax benefits to the full extent available to the LLC.

Additionally, on August 7, 2008, the LLC entered into a Master Developer Agreement with the
DOH 1o perform services in connection with the development, rehabilitation, and modernization of
certain housing projects (“Developer Agreement™). Pursuant to the Master Developer Agreement,
the DOH will earn a deveioper’s fee in the amount of $75 miilion for services performed and to be
performed. Payment of the developer’s fee shall be subject to the terms and conditions of
Section 6(a) (1-iv) of the Master Developer Agreement. As of June 30, 2009, the DOH e¢arned and
was paid developer fees in the amount of $4 mitlion.

Under the Parinership Agreement, projects which do nof meet the final completion schedule or
satisfy other completion, occupancy, rent attainment or tax-credit related requirements or other
Investor Limited Partner conditions to capital contributions with respect to such projects as set forth
in the Partnership Agreement may under certain conditions be required to be purchased by DOH or
its designee. In such case, DOH or its designee would assume the portion of the Loan allocated to
such project(s), including both moneys remaining to be disbursed and repayment obligations, and
would become a new additional borrower under the loan agreement, The LLC would be released
with respect to the amount of the Loan assumed. DOH or its designee could also seek to obtain a



limited partner {who might or might not be the criginal Investor Limited Partner) and tax credit
equity contributions. Such transfer does not affect the obligation of DOH to grant moneys to the
Authority to fund the permanent loan. As a requirement of sach purchase, DOH or its designee is
required to repay equity already contributed by the Investor Limited Partner, pius interest and a
purchase premium.

(d) Commonwealth Appropriation Bonds

Over the years, GDB, as fiscal agent and bank for the Commonwealth, had extended lines of credit,
advances, and loans to several agencies and component units in order to finance their capital
improvemeni projects and to cover their operational deficits at the time. At different points in time,
these loans were refunded through the issuance of Commonwealth appropriation bonds issued by the
Puerto Rico Public Finance Corporation (PFC), a blended component unit of GDB. PFC is the
financing arm of GDB, which serves only as a conduit for the issuance of the bonds.

During June 2004, PFC advance refunded through the PFC 2004 Series A and B and PFC 2003
Series A through C Refunding Commonwealth Appropriation Bonds, a portion of certain of its
outstanding Commonwealth Appropriation Bends issued in prior years (except for the Health
Facilities and Services Administration bonds described below, where no portion was refunded). The
Commonwealth recognized a mirror effect of this advance refunding by PFC in its own debt in
proportion to the portion of the Commonwealth’s notes included in the PFC refunding. As a result,
the Commoenwealth considered defeased and, therefore, removed from the balance sheet the portion
refunded of $775.7 million.

The repayment source for these bonds (both the refunding and unrefunded portions) consisted until
June 30, 2006 of Commonwealth appropriations submitted for approval of the Legislature annually
during the budget process of the Commonwealth.

Dusing July 2006, the source for the 2007 debt service of these appropriation bonds came from PFC
instead (not from legislative appropriations), through an advance of approximately $303 million.
PFC got its advance repaid by COFINA, a blended component unit of the Commonweaith created in
2007 with the capacity to issue bonds to repay or refinance the advance from PFC, the appropriation
bonds, the Qualified Zone Academic Bonds (QZAB) bonds and other debt obligations to GDB,
collectively referred as the extra constitutional debt. The COFINA debt in turn will be serviced with
the revenues generated from the collection of the first % of the sales and use tax, which came in
effect on November 15, 2006 (note 3¢). Also during 2009 the Legisiative Assembly increased the
Corporation dedicated revenues by increasing the percentage of revenues generated from the sales
and use tax t0 2.75%.

On July 31, 2007, December 20, 2007, and June 26, 2008, COFINA, issued $2,667 million Sales
Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2007A and $1,333 million Series 2007B, $499.9 mitlion Series 2007C
and $737 million Series 2008A, respectively, to refinance cenain series of the Act 164 PFC Bonds
outstanding and the corresponding notes issued by PFC by certain series of the Commonwealth’s
agencies and component units. The Series 2007A, B, C, and 2008A proceeds were deposited in
escrow with the Bank of New York/Melion as master escrow agent to pay interest for appropriation
bonds through February 2012,

On October 21, 2008, PFC requested trustee to restructure certain escrow funds. The funds had been
established on July 31, 2007, for the refunding of interest on certain of PFC’s taxable bonds (taxable
Refunded Interest Only Escrow Requirements). After the escrow fund had been originally
cstablished, a portion of the outstanding principal of the bonds, which were the basis for the



calculation of the Taxable Refunded Interest Only Escrow Requirements, was extingaished with the
proceeds of bonds issued by COFINA. In addition, all the maturities of the PFC Series 2000B Bonds
held in escrow were also paid on December I, 2008. The reduction of pancipal as described,
decreased the Taxable Interest Onily Escrow Reguirements, and as such, PFC instructed the trustee
1o restructure the escrows. The restructuring analysis provided approximately $158 million of which
approximately $78 million were received by COFINA and approximately $80 million were received
by the Commonweaith. In addition, COFINA received approximately $17 million in contributions
from PFC. Amounts received were recorded as a special item in the accompanying statement of
activities,

The outstanding balance of the Commonwealth appropriation bonds comprises the following
obligations (expressed in thousands):

Act No. 164 restructuring $498,002
Health Facilities and Services Administration 39,004
Office for the Improvement of Public Schools of Puerto Rico 79,513
Puerto Rice Maritime Shipping Authority (PRMSA) 99,810
Property tax scttlement 21,016
Total Commonwealth appropriation bonds $737,345

Act No. 164 Restructuring

On December 17, 2001, Act No. 164 was approved, which authorized centain government agencies
and discretely presented component units {o refund approximately $2.4 billion of their outstanding
obligations with GDB, for which no repayment source existed, over a period not exceeding 30 years,
and 10 be repaid with annual Commonwealth appropriations not to exceed $225 million. This
refunding was done with Commonwealth appropriation bonds through several series issued by PFC
during the period between December 2001 and June 2002.
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Approximately $498 miilion of the aforementioned outstanding obligations belonged io the primary
governmeni, predominantly the Department of Health of the Commonwealth (health reform
financing and other costs for approximately $1.1 billion) and the Department of the Treasury of the
Commonwealth (the fiscal year 2001 deficit financing of $268 million and the obligation assumed
for defective tax liens in the amount of approximately $132 million). The new combined bonds
balance of the Act No. 164 restructuring bears interest at rates ranging from 4% to 6,25%. Debt
service requirements in fugure years are as follows {expressed in thousands):

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
June 30
2010 $ - $ - A -
2011 - - -
2012 - 27,725 27,725
2013 - 22 A88 22,488
2014 26,196 23411 51,607
20152019 124,389 108,960 233,349
20202024 41,567 76,922 118,889
2025-2029 138,006 53,551 191,557
2030-2032 187,935 7,262 195,197
Total 518493 $322.319 $ 840,812
Plus unamortized premium 11,235
Less delerred refunding loss {31.726)
Tolal $498.002

Health Facilities and Services Administration

As of Tuly 1. 1999, approximately $595 million (including unpaid interest) of a promissory note of
the Health Facilities and Services Administration (HFSA) due 1o GDB was transferred 1o the
Department of Health of the Commonwealth and restructured through Commonwealth appropriation
bonds. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging between 3.90% and 6.20%. Principal and interest on
the bonds are payable solely from legislative appropriations to be made pursuant to Act No. 223 of
August 9, 1998, Act No. 223 provides that OMB shall include in the annual budget of the
Commonwealth an amount equal to $56.5 million for the fiscal year 1998-99, and for the next
succeeding 15 fiscal years the amount necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, up
to a maximum annual amount of $57.7 million.
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Debt service requirements in future years are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year £nding

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 5 - 5 - $ -
2011 - - -
2012 - 2,040 2,040
2013 - 2,040 2,040
2014 10,665 1,720 12,385
2015-2019 28,339 10,738 36,677
Total $ 39,004 516,538 $ 55,542

Office for the Improvement of Public Schools of Puerto Rico

Previous public schools infrastructure improvement loans provided additional funds for major
repairs and improvements to the public schoois in Puerto Rico. This activity is administered by the
Office for the Improvement of the Public Schools of Puerto Rico (OIPS), included as part of the
generat fund of the primary government. These loans were refunded originally through the 1ssuance
of Commonwealth appropriation bonds pursuant to Act No. 85 of June 13, 1998 {Act 85). The new
combined bonds bear interest at rates rangnag from 4.10% to 5.75%. As of June 30, 2009,
approximately $79.5 million was outstanding.

Debt service requirements in future years are as fellows {expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Principat Interest Total
2010 $ - $§ - $ -
2011 - - -
2012 - 5,262 5,262
2013 6,100 3,651 9,751
2014 - 3,532 3,532
2015-2019 - 17,660 17,660
2020-2024 19,015 15,686 34,701
2025-2029 63,510 3,568 67,078
Total 88,625 $49,359 $137,984
Plus unamortized premium 2,836
Less deferred refunding loss {11,948)
Total $ 79,513
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Puerto Rico Maritime Shipping Authority

A promissory note payable owed by PRMSA to GDB was assumed by the Commonwealth 1n
connection with the sale of the maritime operations of PRMSA. Commonwealth appropriation
bonds were issued to refund this liability. The new combined bonds balance bears interest at a
variable rate ranging from 4.60% to 5.55%. Debt service requirements in future years are as follows
(expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Principat Interest Total
2010 $ - $ - $ -
2011 - - -
2012 - 5,810 5,810
2013 - 5,810 5,810
2014 12,945 5,314 18,259
2015-2019 68,9035 16,569 85,474
2020-2024 15,145 6,538 21,683
2025-2029 14,805 2,660 17,465
2030-2032 2,470 24 2,494
Total 114,270 $42,725 $ 156,995
Less usamortized discount (153}
Less deferred refunding loss (14,307)
Total $ 99810

Property Tax Seftlement

During fiscal year 1996, the Commonwealth refinanced the lability for the settlement of the
property taxes owed 1o the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Commonwealth appropriation bonds were
issued to refund this liability. The new combined bonds balance bears interest at rates ranging from
4.10% to 4.90%. Debt service requirements in fulure years are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $11.469 $ 6,922 $ 18,391
2015 10,779 7,631 18,410
Total 22,248 $14,553 $36,801]
Plus acereted discount 6,747

Less deferred charges arising from debt refunding (7,979)

Total $21.016



(e} Notes Payabie to Component Units and Private Banks

The Commonwealth has entered into varicus short-term line of credit agreements with GDB

consisting of the following at June 30, 2009 (expressed in thousands):

Agency

Depariment of the Treasury
Department of the Treasury
Department of the Treasury
Department of the Freasury
Department of Transporation

and Public Works

Depariment of Transportation
and Public Works

Department of Health

Department of Housing

Department of Recreation
and Sports

Department of Nawral and
Environmental Resources

Purpose

To fund information technology
project

Purchase of mobile X-ray
machines

Resotrces (o various agencies to
pay ourstanding debt with PBA

Acquisition ol safety and
SECURTY equipimet

To finance the revitalization of
urban centers

Construction andd repavement
ol roads

To cover diagnose and treatment
COSS

To reimburse (o the Puerto Rico
Housing Finantes Authority, a

blended component unit of GDB.

for centain advances 1o the
Santurce Revilalization Project

Development and improvement of

recreational facilities

Channeling of the Fajardo River

- 1537 -

Interest Rate

123 bp over GPB's
commercial paper rae

125 bp over 3 maonths
LIBOR

125 bp over
3 months LIBOR

125 bp over GDB's
commercial paper rate

1530 bp over GDB's
commercial paper rate

125 bp over GDB's
cammercial paper rate

125 bp over
3 months LIBOR

125 bp over
3 months LIBGR

125 bp over
GIM3's all inclusive
ILETEs! Cost

150 hp over GDB'S
cammercial paper rate

Line of Cutstanding
Credit Balance
$ 44,8068 S 14,782
12,000 2,669
40,000 14.181
105000 74,608
44.000 33.006
15,000 5,971
R.000 6.500
149,282 13,106
17,500 8,916
3500 1,705
$309,150 5175464




The Commonwealth financed certain other long-term liabilities through GDB and other component
units. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2009 on the financing provided by GDB comprises the
following, all within governmental activities (expressed in thousands):

GDB
Deparimens of the Treasury $ 792,603
Public Buildings Authority 181,513
Office of Management and Budget 124,492
Department of Education 120,010
Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation 101,051
Department of Health 82,307
Department of Justice 78,239
Department of Agriculiure 59,873
Department of Transportation and Public Works 40,689
Police Department 31,328
Depastment of Housing 28,504
Correction Administration 26,129
Puerto Rico Court Administration Office 25,360
Department of Recreation and Sports 16,689
Office of the Superintendent of the Capitol 15,559
Administration for the Care and Development of the Childhood 5,257
Office of Veterans' Affairs 1,135
Notes payable to GDB $1,730,138

Other Components Units:

Health facilities agreement payable to the Medical Science Campus of UPR $68,895
Note payable 1o PREPA 18,980
Noies payable to other component units $87,875
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As of June 30, 2009, the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth has entered into various
line of credit agreements with GDB amounting to a maximum of $1.9 billion for different purposes
as presented in the following table. The purpose, interest rate, maturity date, and amount outsianding
under each individual agreement at June 30, 2009 consist of the following (expressed in thousands)

Line Cutstanding
Purpose Interest Rate Maturity of Credit Balance
To finance payroll and operational expenditores
of the Commonwealth for fiscal year 2006 5.50% June 30, 2036 $ 741,000 £240.000
Resources to meet appropriations in annual
budget of the Commonwealth {fiscal 125 bp over 3
year 2004} and federal programs expenditures  month libor  June 30, 2018 640,000 156,744
To refinance the interest components of
certain bonds issued 4.75% June 30, 2010 121,985 102,866
Capital improvements projects of agencies 150 bp over
and municipalities GDB’s
commercial
paper rate June 30, 2019 130,000 87,760
To pay agencies debt 125 bp over 3
month libor  September 30, 2012 106,000 78,130
Resources to cover the operalional
needs of the catastrophic disasters
fund, (fiscal year 2004) of
the Puerto Rico Health
Insurance Administration and 125 bp over 3
the Depanment of the Family month libor  Seplember 30, 20315 79,930 47,746
To cover deficil on certain elderly and child
care programs of the Department of the 125 bp aver 3
Family month libor — September 30, 2011 30,060 29928
To pay debt with the Municipal Revenue 125 bp over 3
Collection Center month libor  June 30, 2011 16,241 16,241
To stimulate the economy in the municipa- E25 bp over 3
lities of Ceiba and Naguabo month libor  Seplember 30, 2012 14300 12,665
To pay outstanding debt of various 125 bp over 3
agencies with the PR Telephone month libor
Company LIBOR June 30, 2018 16000 12,157
Acquisition of Sahinas Correctional 125 bp over 3
Facilities month libor  June 30, 2018 15,000 7.766
$ 1.904.656 $792,003

On April 27, 2009, GDB provided to the Puoblic Buildings Authority (the “Authority”} a non-
revolving credit facility in the maximum principal amount of $98.5 million bearing interest on the
unpaid principal amount of each advance at a fluctuating annual rate equal 10 1.50% over and above
the Prime Rate or at such other rate determined by GDB. The proceeds will be used exclusively for
the payment of certain amounts due by the Aunthority to its suppliers and service providers. The loan



and the accrued interest are due on June 30, 2011 and will be payable from all funds generated by
the PBA and any other properties owned and pledged to GDB. As of June 30, 2009, there have been
drawings on the line of credit amounting to $4.1 million. The Authority maintains a $75 million
line-of-credit agreement with GDB for payment of operational expenses. Borrowings under this line
of credit agreement bear interest at a variable rate equal to 1.25% over the three month LIBOR rate,
with a minimum of 5% rate, and are payable upon maturity on June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2009,
$75 miilion was outstanding. On May 2, 2008, the Authority executed two Loan Agreements with
GDB for the interim financing of its Capital Improvement Program in an amount not {0 exceed
$226 million, bearing interest at 1.50% over the cost of Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper issued by
GDB. The loans and the accrued interest are due on October 31, 2009 and will be repaid from the
proceeds of the next bond issuance of the Autherity divided into $209 mitlion on 4 tax- exempt basis
and $16 million on a taxable basis. As of June 30, 2009, $38 million was outstanding. An additional
line-of-credit was entered into between GDB and Public Buildings Authority on February 27, 2009
for a maximum amount of $64.5 million bearing interest daily from the drawings date until its
repayment at a rate of interest per annum equal to the Prime Rate plus 150 basis points not to exceed
12%. This loan was issued with the purpose of paying the interest component of certain outstanding
revenue and revenue refunding bonds of the Authority. The loan and interest are payable upon
maturity of the line of credit on June 30, 2010 and will be repaid from the proceeds of the next bond
issuance of the Authority. As of June 30, 2009, $64.5 million was outstanding.

On June 5, 2006, the Office of Management and Budget entered into a $150 million jine of credit
agreement with GDB to provide economic assistance for disasters and emergencies. Borrowings
under this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on 125 basis points over three
month LIBOR, and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on September 30, 2011, As of
June 30, 2009, $124 million was outstanding.

On February 6, 2003, the Department of Education of the Commonwealth entered into a $25 miilion
line of credit agreement with GDB for the purchase of equipment and for school improvements.
Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on 125 basis
points over three month LIBOR, and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30,
2018. As of June 30, 2009, $5 miliion was outstanding. On August 4, 2002, the Department of
Education of the Commonwealth entered into an additional $140 million line of credil agreement
with GDB in order to reimburse the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth for payments
made on their behal{ for state funds used to fund federal program expenditures. Borrowings under
this line of credit agreemeni bear inferest at variable rates based on 125 basis points over three
month LIBOR and were payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30, 2018. As of
June 30, 2009, $115 million still remains outstanding related to the borrowing. The line of credit is
expected to be repaid upon collection of the federal grants.

In July 2006, Puertc Rico Public Finance Corperation {("PFC™) advanced $303 million to the
Dedicated Sales Tax Fund to make, on behalf of the Commonwealth, the debt service payments for
fiscal year 2007 of PFC’s conduit debt. PFC obtained a loan from GDB to fund said advance. The
advance bears interest at a rate based on the 90 day LIBOR rate plus 125 points. Interest is
computed on the basis of actual days elapsed in a year of 360 days, and it is payable annually. The
advance matures on March 31, 2036. On October 4, 2006, the Department of the Treasury and GDB,
as administrators of the Dedicated Sales Tax Fund, signed a memorandum of understanding
whereby the Dedicated Sales Tax Fund agreed to the payment of principal and interest on the
advance from the proceeds of future bond issue. On July 6, 2007, COFINA assumed the deficit of
the Dedicated Sales Tax Fund, including the repayment of the advance due to PFC. At June 30,
2009, the outstanding balance of such advance was approximately $101 million.
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On Aungust 2003, the Department of Health of the Commonwealth entered into a $30 miliion line of
credit agreement with GDB in order to repay certain outstanding debts that the PRMSA had with
other agencies and suppliers. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable
rates based on 125 basis points over three month LIBOR, and are payable upon maturity of the fine
of credit on September 30, 2012, As of June 30, 2009, $28.9 million related to this line of credit
agreement was outstanding. On November 8, 2004, the Department of Health entered into an
additional $58.5 million line of credit agreement with GDB for the financing of a project of the
Department of Health and PRMSA. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at
variable rates based on 130 basis points over GDB’s commercial paper rate and are payable upon the
maturity of the line of credit on October 31, 2014. As of June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of
this ine of credit agreement amounted to $47.6 million. On November 12, 2004, an additional line-
of-credit agreement was entered into with GDB to cover the operational needs of the catastrophic
disasters fund during fiscal year 2004-2005. The agreement amounted to $8 million maturing on
June 30, 2018. Borrowings vader this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on
125 basis points over three month LIBOR, and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit.
As of June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of this line of credit agreement amounted to
$5.8 million.

On October 2, 2002, the Department of Justice of the Commonwealth eatered into a $90 million fine
of credit agreement with GDB for the financing of 12 public improvement projects for the
Municipality of Ponce pursuant to a court order. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear
interest at variable rates and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on September 30,
2014. As of June 30, 2009, $19.2 million related to this line of credit agreement was outstanding. On
August 8, 2005, the Department of Justice of the Commonwealth entered into an additional
agreement (amendment) to increase line-of-credit of $90 mitlion to $110 million to cover various
projects in Ponce. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest based on the All
Inclusive Total Interest Cost of the Medium Term Notes, Series B, plus a mark-up of 1.25% and are
payable upeon the maturity of the line of credit on September 30, 2014. As of June 30, 2009, this line
of credit agreement amounted to $59 million.

On August 9, 1999, the Department of Agriculture of the Commonwealth entered into a
$125 million nonrevolving line-of-credit agreement with GDB to provide economic assistance to the
agricultural sector, which sustained severe damages caused by Huwrricane Georges in 1998, As of
February 24, 2004 the line-of-credit increased by $50 million resulting in a total amount of $175
millien. Borrowings under this line-of-credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on 125
basis points over three-menth LIBOR, and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on
June 30, 2014. As of June 30, 2009, $59.8 million remains outstanding.

On March 8, 2004, the Department of Transportation and Public Works (DTPW) entered into a
$26 million line-of-credit agreement with GDB for improvement and maintenance of roads around
the island. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on the
All Inclusive Total Interest Cost of the Medium Term Notes, Series B, plus a mark-up of 1.25%, and
are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2009,
$23 million was outstanding. On November 16, 2004, the DTPW entered inte an additional
$33 million line of credit agreement with GDB for highway permanent improvements. Borrowings
under this line of credit agreement bear interest based on the All Inclusive Total Interest Cost of the
Medium Term Notes, Series B, plus a mark-up of 1.25% and are payable upon the maturity of the
line of credit on October 31, 2010. As of June 30, 2009, $17.7 million remains outstanding related to
these borrowings.
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On July 29, 2004, the Police Department entered into a $48 million line of credit agreement with
GDB for the acquisition of vehicles and high technology equipment. Borrowings under this line of
credit agreement bear interest based on the All Inclusive Total Interest Cost of the Medium Term
Notes, Series B, plus a mark-up of 1.25% and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on
September 30, 2014. The outstanding balance of this line of credit agreement amounted to
$31.3 million at June 30, 2006.

On December 3, 2007, the Department of Housing entered into a $30 millien line-of-credit
agreement with GDB for the purchase of Juan C. Cordero Dévila building. Borrowings under this
line of credit agreement bear interest based on .75 basis points over three month LIBOR and are
payable upon maturity of the line of credit on February 28, 2038. As of June 30, 2009, $28.5 million
related to this line of credit agreement was outstanding.

On May 12, 2004, the Correction Administration of the Commonweaith entered into a $60 million
line-of-credit agreement with GDB for improvemenis to certain correctional facilities. Borrowings
under this line-of-credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on 150 basis points over
GDB’s commercial paper rate and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30,
2010. As of June 30, 2009, $26 million was outstanding.

On May 7, 2001, the Puerto Rico Court Administration Office (the Office) entered into a
$49.4 million no revolving line of credit agreement with GDB for operating purposes. Borrowings
under this line of credit agreement bear interest at a variable rate of three month LIBOR plus 1%,
not to exceed 8%. The Office must deposit $6 million a year, from the total fees collected on the
filing of civil cases, in a special fund created by the Department of the Treasury of the
Commonwealth, which is pledged for repayment untii July 31, 2015, As of June 30, 2009,
approximately $25.3 million remains outstanding.

On January 18, 2005, the Department of Recreation and Sports (DRS) entered inte a $17.2 million
line of credit agreement with GDB for the development of a series of recreational projects at
different municipalities. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest based on 150
basis points over GDB’s commercial paper rate and are payable upon the maturity of the line of
credit on June 30, 2018. The proceeds of the line of credit are used for development and
improvement of recreational facilities As of June 30, 2009, $14.3 million was outstanding. An
additional line-of-credit was entered into between GDB and the DRS in the maximum principal
amount of $16 million bearing interest on the vnpaid principal amount of each advance at variable
rates based on 150 basis points over GDB’s commercial paper rate and are payable upon the
maturity of the line of credit on June 30, 2018. The line-of-credit proceeds are used for development
and improvement of recreational facilities. As of June 30, 2009, $2.3 million was outstanding.

On February 15, 2002, the Office of the Superintendent of the Capitol (Superintendent) entered inte
a $35 million Jine of credit agreement with GDB for the Office of the Superintendent of the Capitol
parking’s construction. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at a fixed rate of
7% and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30, 2018. As of June 30, 2009,
$15.6 miliion remained outstanding from the line of credit agreement.

On February 24, 2006, the Administration for the Care and Development of the Childhood entered
into an $8 million line-of-credit agreement with GDB to provide economic assistance for the
summer program known as “Care and Development of the Child Program”. Borrowings under this
line-of-credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based on 125 basis points over three month
LIBOR, and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on September 30, 2009. As of
June 30, 2009, $5.2 million was ouistanding.
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On October 20, 2004, the Office of Veterans’ Affairs entered into a $1.6 million line of credit
agreement with GDB to provide economic assistance and housing leasing services o Puerto Rican
veterans. Borrowings under this line of credit agreement bear interest at variable rates at 125 basis
points over three month LIBOR and are payable upon the maturity of the line of credit on June 30,
2018, As of June 30, 2009, $1.1 million was outstanding.

As of July 1, 1999, debts of approximately $102 million payable to UPR, a discretely presented
component unit, in relation to outstanding noninterest bearing debt accusnulated in prior years by
HFSA were transferred to the Commonwealth. On September 7, 2004, additional debts of
approximately $71.2 million were also restructured and combined with the previous financing
arrangement. As of June 30, 2009, $32.9 million remains outstanding. In addition, during the fiscal
year 2009 the Office of Management and Budget and the UPR signed an intra-agency agreement
amounting to $36 million to pay for appropriations for fiscal years 2007 and 2008. Future amounts
required to pay principal balances at June 30, 2009 are expected to be as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Year Ending

June 30

2010 $ 7,570
2011 43,606
2012 8,000
2013 8,000
2014 1,719
Total $ 68,895

The noninterest bearing note payable to PREPA, a discretely presented component unit, consists of
$19 million of fuel adjustment subsidy due by the Commonwealth and the refinancing during 2004
of $24.1 million of other accumulated debt by the Commonwealth’s agencies with PREPA. The
$18.9 million is expected to be paid during the year ending June 30, 2010.

With the exception of a few lines of credit having a defined source of repayment, the remaining fines
of credit described above used Commonwealth appropriations as the source of repayment until
June 30, 2007. Beginning in fiscal year 2008, these lines of credit are expected to be repaid or
refunded with a combination of Commonwealth appropriations and COFINA under the mechanism
described in note 15{c).

Compensated Absences
Long term debt includes approximately $1.6 biltion of accrued vacation and sick leave benefits at

June 30, 2009. The total liability of compensated absences recorded as governmental and business
type activities amounted to $1.6 billion and $5 million, respectively.

(g) Net Pension Obligation

The amount reported as net pension obligation of approximately $6.8 billion represents the
cumulative amount owed by the Commonwealth for the unfunded prior years’ actuariaily required
pension contributions to the ERS, JRS, and the TRS (collectively known as the pension plans) (see
note 20). The net pension obligation has been recorded as a liability in governmental activities in the
accompanying statement of net assets (deficit).
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(h) Unpaid Lottery Prizes

()

The amount reported as unpaid lottery prizes represents the lottery prizes payable of the Lottery of
Puerto Rico (commonly known as Traditional Lottery) and the Additional Lottery System
(commonly known as Lotto) jointly known as the Lottery Systems at June 30, 2009. The minimum
annual payments related 10 unpaid awards of both lotteries are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2010 $ 67,291 S 6,857 $ 74,148
2011 30,094 8,429 38,523
2012 26,453 9,137 35,550
2013 23,255 9,629 32,884
2014 20,368 9,896 30,264
2015-2019 65,588 45,627 111,215
20202024 25431 27,956 53,387
20252029 5,111 6,715 11,826
Total $263,591 $124,246 $ 387,837

The minimum annual payments related to uapaid awards of Lotto excluded unclaimed prizes
liability of approximately $3.6 mitlion at June 30, 2009, which is reported as prizes payable —
current portion. '

The liabitity for unpaid lotiery prizes is reported in the accompanying statement of net assets
(deficit) — business type activities and statement of net assets (deficit) — proprietary funds.

Claims Liability for Insurance Benefits

The Commonwealth provides unemployment compensation, nonoccupational disability, and drivers’
insurance coverage to public and private employees through varous insurance programs
administered by the Department of Labor and Human Resources of the Commonwealth. These
insurance programs cover workers against unemployment, temporary disability, or death because of
work or employment related accidents or becavse of illness suffered as consequence of their
employment.

The Commonwealith establishes liabilities for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment
expenses based on the ultimate cost of settling the benefits. Insurance benefit claim liabilities are
reevaluated periodically to 1ake into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims,
and other economic and social tactors. The liability for insurance benefits claims is reported as a
current liability in the accompanying staterment of net assets {deficit} business type activities — and
statement of net assets (deficit) proprietary funds, The liability as of June 30, 2009, amounts to
$98.7 million.

Obligations under Capital Lease Arrangenents
The Commonwealth is obligated under capital leases with third parties that expire through 2039 for
land, buildings, and equipment. At June 30, 2009, the capitalized cost of the land, buildings, and

equipment amounted to approximately $276 million and is included in the accompanying
government wide statement of net assets (deficit) within capital assets.
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The present value of future minimum capital lease payments at June 30, 2009 reported in the
accompanying government wide statement of net assets is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30
2010 S 23727
2011 23,298
2012 22,897
2013 26,143
2014 22,299
2015~2019 102,104
2020-2024 160,930
2025-2029 100,932
2030-2034 69,120
2035-2039 23,538
Total future minimum lease payments 514,993
Less amount representing interest costs {274,909
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 240,084

Leased land, buildings, and equipment under capital teases in capital assets at June 30, 2009, include
the following (expressed in thousands):

Land § 7960
Buildings 254,886
Equipment 13,248

Subtotal 276,004
Less accumulated amortization (46,464}
Total $ 229,030

Amortization charge applicable 10 capital leases and included within depreciation expense of capital
assets amounted to $7.6 millien in 2009,

The Commonwealth 1s also committed under sumerous operating leases, covering land, office
{acilities. and equipment. Rental expenditures within the governmental funds for the year ended
June 30, 2009 under such operating leases were approximately $114 million.



The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30

2010 $124.740
2011 08,959
2012 73,379
2013 56,158
2014 20,849
2015-2019 63,003
2020-2024 31,425
2025-2029 13,464
2030-2034 5,436
Total future minimum lease payments $497.013

(k) Other Long Term Liabilities

The remaining long term liabilities of governmental activities at June 30, 2009 inclade (expressed in

thousands):
Liability for iegal claims and judgments (Note 19) 3 1,367,651
Liability for salary increases granted through legislation 287,099
Liability 1o U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Note 13) 205,000
Employees’ Christmas bonus 177,854
Liability for federal cost disallowances (Note 19) 100,861
Liability to the Teachers Retirement System 53,820
Other 10,170
Total 5 2,202,395

As described in note 13, the Commonwealth has a debt obligation with the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers in relation to the construction of the Cerrillos Dam and Reservoir project and the
Portugues river and the Bucana river projecis.

The Commonwealth, through laws dating back to 1954, has granied eligible police agents, various
salary-related benefits such as annual salary increases, awards for years of service, and monetary
benefits awarded for special assignments, among others. As of June 30, 2009, the Commonweaith’s
liability related to these salary-related benefits amounted to approximately $287 million.

On May 31, 2004, the Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers {TRS) claimed
the Office of Management and Budgel of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico resources that should
had been awarded to TRS pursnant to LLaw No. 62 of September 4. 1992, (Law No. 62) as amended,
which establishes an increase of 3% in pension annuities every three years for those members who
meet certain eligibility requirements. In addition, there have been other laws that granted benefits,
such as summer and Christmas bonuses, among others. Most of the funds used to cover these
benefits are budgeted by the Commonweaith through legislative appropriations. Nevertheless, the
cost of pension benefits that increased from 1992 1o June 30, 2004, were not received in full by the
TRS from legislative appropriations.
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On April 23, 2010, the Office of Management and Budget (*“OMB”) and the TRS signed an
agreement amounting to $53.8 million through which the TRS settled its claim related to Law
No. 62 and Law No. 226, approved on August 10, 1998.

Amounts owed will be paid as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Period Amount
2010-2011 $10,764
2011-2012 10,764
20102013 10,764
2013-2014 10,764
2014-2015 10,764
Total $53,820

() Advance Refunding, Defeased Bonds, and Refunding of Commonwealth Appropriation Bonds

In prior years, the Commonwealth defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing
the proceeds of the bonds in an imevecable trust to provide for all future debt service paymenis on
the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust’s account assets and liahilities for the defeased bonds are
not included in the basic financial statements. At June 30, 2009, approximately $1.6 billion of bonds
outstanding from prior years advance refunding are considered defeased.

In addition, PBA has defeased certain revenue bonds in prior years by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust 1o provide for all future debt service payments on the old debis.
Accordingly, the trust’s account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not iacluded in the
statement of net assets {deficit). As of June 3G, 2009, approximately $940 mitlion of PBA bonds are
considered defeased.

Fiduciary Funds — On February 27, 2007, the ERS’s administration and GDB, acting as ERS’s fiscal
agent, presented to the Board of Trustees, a financial transaction for the jssuance of pension funding
bonds in order to reduce the System’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The ERS has authorized the
issuance of one or more series of bonds (the Bonds) in order to increase the funds currently available to
pay pension benefits to certain of its beneficiaries and reduce its unfunded accrued actuarial pension
liability. The ERS wiil pledge future employer contributions to the payment of the bonds, invest the
proceeds of the Bonds and use these investments and the eamings thereon to provide such pension
benefits to its beneficiaries.
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On January 33, 2008, the System issued the first series of bonds, which consisted of approximately
$1.6 billion aggregate principal amount of Senior Pension Funding Bonds, Series A (the Series A
Bonds). On June 2, 2008, the System issued the second of such series of bonds; which consisted of
approximately $1,059 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Pension Funding Bonds, Series B
(the Series B Bonds). Finally, on June 30, 2008, the System issued the third and final of such series of
bonds, which consisted of approximately $300 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Pension
Funding Bonds, Series C (the Series C Bonds). The following is a summary of changes in the bonds
payable principal balance {expressed in thousands):

Balance at Additions/ Balance at
June 30, 2008 Accretion June 30, 2009

5.85% 10 6.45% Term Bonds Series A

due July 1, 2058 $1,589,967 $ 2,908 51,592,875
6.25% to 6.55% Term Bonds Series B

due July 1, 2058 1,059,871 15,903 1,075,774
6.15% to 6.50% Term Bonds Series C

due July 1, 2043 300,203 146 300,349
Bond discounts {1,857 218 {7,639)
Total $2.942.184 $19,175 $2,961,359

Series A Bonds — The aggregate principal amount of the Series A Bonds issued amounted to
approximately $1,589 million of which $1,544 million were issued as term bonds (the “Series A Term
Bonds™) and $43 million were issued as capital appreciation bonds (“the Series A Capital Appreciation
Bonds™). Interest on the Series A Bonds accrues, or compounds (in the case of the Series A Capital
Appreciation Bonds), from their date of delivery. Interest in the Series A Term Bonds are payable
monthly on the first day of each month, commencing on March 1, 2008. Interest on the Series A Capital
Appreciation Bonds are not payable on a current basis, but are added to the principal of the Capital
Appreciation Bonds on each January ] and July 1, commencing on July 1, 2008 {“Compounding
Dates™), and are treated as if accruing in equal daily amounis between Compounding Dates, until paid at
maturity or upon redemption. Interest shali be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
twelve 30-day months. The Series A Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the System from
any source, in whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2018, at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount {(in the case of Series A Capital Appreciation Bonds, the accreted amount) of the
Series A Bonds, pius accrued interest to the redemption date, and without premium.

Series B Bonds — The aggregate principal amount of the Series B Bonds amounted to approximately
$1.059 mitlion of which $816 million were issued as term bonds (the “Series B Term Bonds™) and
$243 million were issued as capital appreciation bonds (the “Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds™).
Interest on the Series B Bonds accrues, or compounds (in the case of the Series B Capital Appreciation
Bonds), from their date of delivery. Interest in the Series B Term Bonds are payable monthly on the firsi
day of each month, commencing on July 1, 2008. Interest on the Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds
are not payable on a current basis, but are added to the principal of the Series B Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each January I and July 1, commencing on July 1, 2008 (“Compounding Dates™), and are
treated as if accruing in equal daily amounts between Compounding Dates, untif paid at maturity or upon
redemption. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months. The Series B. Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the System from any source, in
whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2018, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
(in the case of Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds, the accreted amount) of the Series B Bonds, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, and without preminm.
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Series C Bonds — The aggregate principal amount of the Series C Bonds amounted to approximately
$300 million of which $298 million were issued as term bonds (the “Series C Term Bonds™) and
52 million were issued as capital appreciation bonds {the “Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds™).
Interest on the Series C Bonds accrues, or compounds {in the case of the Series C Capital Appreciation
Bonds), from their date of delivery. Interest in the Series C Term Bonds are payable monthly on the first
day of each month, commencing on August 1, 2008. Interest on the Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds
are not payable on a current basis, but are added to the principal of the Series C Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each January 1 and July 1, commencing on Juiy 1, 2009 (*Compounding Dates”), and are
treated as if accruing in equal daily amounts between Compounding Dates, vntil paid at maturity or upon
redempticn. Interest shali be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months. The Series C Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the System from any source, in
whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2018, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
(in the case of Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds, the accreted amount) of the Series C Bonds, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, and without premius.

Debt service requirements in fature years on pension funding bonds as of June 30, 2009 are as follows
(expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ - $ 166,370 $ 166,570
2011 - 166,519 166,519
2012 - 166,519 166,519
2013 - 166,519 166,519
2014 - 166,519 166,519
2015-2019 - 832,598 832,598
2020-2024 200,000 822,652 1,022,652
20252029 185,069 957,798 1,146,867
20302034 321,327 1,307,799 1,629,126
20352039 932 983 711719 1,644,702
2040-2044 543,270 316,683 859,053
2045-2049 - 247,568 247,568
2050-2034 - 247 568 247 568
2055-2059 761,000 176,950 937,950
2,947,649 $6,453,081 $9,401,630
Plus accreted interest 21,349
Less unamortized discount (7,630
Total $2.961,359

Pledge of Employer Contributions pursuant to Security Agreement — The Sysiem esntered into a
Security Agreement with the Fiscal Agent for the benefit of the bondholders, pursvant to which the
System pledged to the Fiscal Agent, and granted the Fiscal Agent a security interest in employer
contributions made after fanuary 31, 2008, which was the date of issuance of the first series of bonds,
and the funds on deposit with the fiscal Agent under the various accounts established under the Pensien
Funding Bond Resolution (the “Resolution™}.
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The Resolution and the Security Agreement constitute a contract between the system and the Fiscal
Agent, on behalf of owners of the bonds. The pledge, covenants and agreements of the System set forth
in the Resolution and the Security Agreement shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of
the owners of the bonds, regardless of times or times of their issuance or maturity, and shall be of equal
rank, without preference, priority or distinction of any of the bonds over any other bond, except as
expressly provided in or permitted by the Resolution. The pledge by the System of the pledged funds,
which consist of all employer contributions that are made after January 31, 2008, which was the date of
issuance of the first series of bonds, in accordance with the Act and amounts on deposit in the different
accounts created pursaant to the Resolution for the benefits of the owners of the bonds, is irrevocable so
long as any bonds are outstanding under the terms of the Resolution.

Discretely Presented Component Units -— Notes and appropriation bonds payable are those liabilities
that are paid out of the component units’ own resources. These notes and appropriation bonds do not

constitute a Hability or debt of the primary government.

The outstanding balance of notes payable at June 30, 2009 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance at Amounts
Maturity  June 30, 2008 Balance at Due Within
Component Unit tnterest rates  Through as Restated Additions Reductions June 390, 2009 One Year
Government Development Bank
for Pueno Rico 4 10%-7.5% 2031 S 715,329 51,681,500 & 208,104 $2.098,725 s 7060
Puerio Rico Electric Power
Authorily 2A5%—4 118 2023 1,219,234 100.000 364,443 1,054,701 989,270
State Insurance Fund
Corporation 6.54%— 6.84% 2019 40,358 . 2628 46,730 1008
Economic Development Bank
for Pueno Rico 4.5%-6.2% 2023 615,000 . 322,000 203,000
Pucrio Rico Industrial
Developnient Company 5%-6.73% 2024 88,530 57 4,764 84,003 1.675
{and Authonity of Puerto Rico 4.88% 2027 4,942 - N 2,821 2121
Pueno Rico Ports Authority Variable 2028 610,379 20,621 253,851 605,445 182,493
Agricultural Services and
Developient Administraton 4.5% 2010 14,968 11,354 14,968 11,354 11,354
Preno Rico Trade and Expont
Company 4.73%—6.5% 2028 306.232 144,338 250,000 00,370 13,570
Puerno Rico Aquednet and Sewer
Authorily 6.351% 2012 250.000 - 2,564 247436 2.748
Puero Rico Metropolitan Bus
Authority 543% M2 43,850 - 1,720 42,130 4,720
Toial notes payable component uniis $3,917.822 $1.958,050 51,188,863 $4.687.009 $1.286.619




Debt service requirements on component units’ notes payable with fixed maturities at June 30, 2009
were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $1,286,619 $ 301,904 $1,588,523
2011 91,988 180,162 272,150
2012 1,197,734 153,442 1,351,176
2013 383,042 116,947 499 089
2014 453,820 94,351 548,171
2015-2019 765,407 308,852 1,074,259
2020-2024 312,605 108,769 421,374
2025-2029 184,186 66,007 250,193
2030-2034 2,157 34 2,241
Premium, net G 451 - 9,451
Total $4,687,009 $1,330,518 $6,017,527

Commonwealth appropriation bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2009 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Balance Amounts
Malurity at Jung 30, 2008 Balance Due Within

Componant nit interestrates  Through as Restaled Additicns  Reductions at June 30, 2009 One Year
Puerio Rico Agueduct and Sewer Authority 1.25% -6.15% 2031 5 686,453 5 % 9,659 § 676,794 $8,2%5
Pueno Rico Founsm Company 12556154 urky] 60,545 . 181 60,6064 -
Land Auibority of Pueno Rico 155 )39 o715 - - 6715
Govemnment Development Bank for Pueno Rico  4,10% ~5.25% 2031 4.962 - LAD 4812
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Awthority 1.5% 203 4,956 - - 4956
Pucrie Rico Solid Waste Authorty 1.25%-0.15% 203 10,650 . - 10,680
Tolal Commonwealih appropriation

bonds — component ynils 5 344 520 S REEAL 5 £34.630 58,273

Debt service requirements on component units’ appropriation bonds payable with fixed maturities at
June 30, 2009 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 § 8275 $ 45,650 $ 53925
2011 8,015 45,307 53,022
2012 8,985 45,899 54,884
2013 - 34,427 34,427
2014 17,689 42,866 60,555
2015-2019 104,478 161,534 266,012
2020-2024 173,409 144,277 317,686
2025-2029 357,575 73,846 431,421
2030-2034 139,111 8,618 147,729
2035-2039 34,395 - 34,395
Premium, net 39,663 - 39,663
Deferred loss, net {57,563) - {57,565)
Total $ 834,630 5602424 $1,437.054
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Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2009 are as follows {expressed in thousands):

Balance at Amount Due
Maturity  June 30, 2008 Balance at Within

Component Unit Interest Rates  Through  As Restated Additions  Reductions  June 30, 2009 One Year
Government Development Bank

for Puerto Rico 26%-6.5% 2039 % 1,417,257 s - 458,124 % 659,133 $ 64,019
Puerto Rico nfrastructure

Financing Authority Variable 2048 3056449 16,687 38,886 3.034.250 36,375
University of Pueno Rico I%-5.75% 2036 718.780 2,775 23,526 698,039 22445
Puerto Rico Municipal

Finance Authority 3.1%-8.62% 203] 1,394,773 - 09,723 1,295,050 93270
Pugrio Rico Ports Authority 3%-7.3% 2021 57.210 - 2,335 54.635 2965
Puerte Rico Aqueduct and

Sewer Authority 425%-6.15% 2047 1881428 14,004 5,288 1,850,234 2,780
Puero Rico Highways and

Transportation Authority 225%H.59% 2047 T 125,630 3,208 130,416 7.033.431 104,090
Puerto Rico Indusurial

Development Company S 19%-6.71% 2029 275859 1,090 11311 265.638 11,087
Puerto Rico Convention Center

District Authority 4 00%—5.00% 2036 477.829 - 4,920 472,500 6,000
Pueno Rico Electric

Power Authority 32%-6.25% 2038 6,162,987 - 154,602 6,008,385 346,079
Total bonds payable-

COMPONENt units $22 571,23 $39.854 $899.,351 $21,711,724 $682,110

Debt service requirements on component vnits’ bonds payable with fixed maturities at June 30, 2009
were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 689,110  § 1,117,020  § 1,806,130
2011 1,649,031 981,937 2,630,968
2012 870,014 924,945 1,794,959
2013 642,454 903,510 1,545,964
2014 698,592 950,316 1,648,908
20152019 3,340,355 3,937,535 7,277,890
2020-2024 3,407,990 3,076,068 6,484,058
2025-2029 3,446,638 2,287,224 5,733,862
2030-2034 3,222,582 1,507,421 4,730,003
2035-2039 2,307,536 871,339 3,178,875
2040-2044 1,443,607 408,585 1,852,192
20452049 898,089 98,064 996,153
Premium, net 33,590 - 33,590
Deferred loss (937,864) - (937.864)
Total $21,711,724 $17,063,564 $38,775,688




Using the rates as of June 30, 2009, debt service requirements for component units’ variable-rate bonds
and net swap payments, assuming cuirent interest rates remain the same, for their term, are as follows
(expressed in thousands). As rates vary, variable-rate bonds interest payments and net swap payments
will vary,

Year Ending Variable-Rate Bonds Interest Rate
June 30 Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
2010 $ 1505 § 33584 & 50475 8§ 135,564
2011 1,590 83,502 50,475 135,567
2012 21,500 83,414 50,475 155,389
2013 22,685 82,232 50,475 155,392
2014 23,930 80,584 56,475 155,389
2015-2019 104,661 479419 251,019 835,099
2020-2024 166,378 402,820 233127 832,925
2025-2029 696,985 352,309 185,600 1,234.894
2030-2034 888.590 243,408 98.576 1,230,574
2035-2039 566,540 83,251 79,882 729.673
2040-2044 344,860 - 48,156 393,016
2045-2049 44,200 - 1,815 46,015
Total $ 2913424 0§ 1974923 $ LISLISO  § 6039497

Several component units have defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debts. Accordingly, the trust
accounts’ assets and fiabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the statement of net assets
{(deficit}. As of June 30, 2009, the following bonds are considered defeased:

Amount

Outstanding

(In Million)
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority $3,159
Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority 2,554
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority 699
Puerto Rico Municipal Finance Agency 243
$6,055
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16. GUARANTEED AND APPROPRIATION DEBT
{a) Guaranteed Debt
The Commonwealth may provide guarantees for the repayment of certain borrowings of component
units to carry out designated projects. At June 30, 2009, the following component unit debts are

guaranteed by the Commonwealth (expressed in thousands):

Maximum Cutstanding

Guarantee Balance
Biended component unit;
Public Buildings Authority $3,325,000 $3,072,382
Discretely presented component units:
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 908,712 908,712
Port of the Americas Authority 250,000 181,161
Total 54,483,712 $4,162,255

The Commonwealth has guaranteed the payments of rentals of its departments, agencies, and
component units to PBA, a blended component unit, under varions lease agreements execuied
pursuant to the law that created PBA. Suach rental payments include the amounts required by PBA
for the payment of principal and interest on the guaranteed debt as authorized by law. The rentai
commitment to cover principal and interest on the guaranteed debt (exciuding premiums and
deferred refunding losses) as of June 30, 2009 and for the next five years and thereafter follows
(expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 § 79,535 $ 152,629 $ 232164
2011 84,850 148,053 232,903
2012 81,002 144,402 225,404
2013 78,580 140,553 219,133
2014 77,7110 135914 213,624
2015-2019 438,465 608,189 1,046,654
2020-2024 434,705 488,173 622,878
2025-2029 543,410 366,507 909,917
2030-2034 674,412 214,965 889,377
2035-2039 554,720 41,724 396,444
3,047,389 $2,441,109 $5,488,498
Add (deduct) accreted discount 24,993

$3,072,382

Rental income of PBA funds amounted to approximately $330 million during the year ended
June 30, 2009, of which $185 million was used to cover debt service obligations.
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Act No. 45 of July 28, 1994 states that the Commonwealth guarantees the payment of principal and
interest of all outstanding bonds at the date the law was enacted and of all future bond issues to
refinance those outstanding bonds of PRASA. Act No. 140 of August 3, 2000 amended Act No. 45
to extend the Commonwealth guarantee to include the principal and interest payments of the Rural
Development Serial Bonds and the loans under the State Revolving Fund Program (SRFP)
outstanding at the effective date of Act No. 140, and of all future bonds and SRFP loans that may be
issued through June 30, 2005. Act No. 386 of September 21, 2004 extended the Commonweaith
guaraniee to June 30, 2010. The outstanding balance of the Rural Development Serial Bonds and
SRFP loans at June 30, 200% amounted to $302.7 million and $321.2 million, respectively.

Adjustable Refunding Bonds — The Commonwealth guarantees the Adjustable Refunding Bonds,
Series 1985, issued by GDB, a discretely presented component unit. The outstanding balance of
these bonds amounted to $267 million at June 30, 2008. On August 1, 2008, GDB repurchased the
$267 million outstanding of its adjustable refunding bond as a result of significant increases in the
interest rate of these auction rate bonds. GDB expects to reissue these bonds at a fixed rate doring
fiscal year 2010.

The Puerto Rico Housing Bank, a former component uait of the Commonwealth, which merged with
GDB during 2002, insured mortgages granted to low and moderate income families through its
mortgage loan insurance program. The Commonwealth guarantees up to $75 million of such
mortgage loans. As of June 30, 2009, the mortgage loan insurance program was insuring loans
aggregating $203 mithion. Currently, the Commonwealth has not been called to make any direct
payments pursuant to these guarantees,

At various times during fiscal years ended 2005 and 2006, the Port of the Americas Authority
entered into bond purchase agreements with GDB, whereby GDB agreed to disburse to the Port of
the Americas Authority from time to time certain bond principal advances vp to a maximum
aggregate principal amount of $70 million (Port of the Americas Authority 2005 Series A Bond),
$40 million (Port of the Americas Authority 2005 Series B Bond), and $140 miilion (Port of the
Americas Authority 2005 Series C Bond). The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance the
cost of development and construction of the Port of the Americas. The aggregate unpaid principal
balance of all outstanding bond principal advances shall be payable in full on Jannary 1, 2015, The
principal amount may be paid with any of the following: (i) a long term bond issuance once the
projects are completed; (1) other revenue of the Port of the Americas Authority; (iii) or legislative
appropriations as established in Act 409 of September 22, 2004 (Act No. 409). Principal and
inierests payments are guaranteed by the Commonwealth by Act No. 409. As of June 30, 2009, the
principal ouistanding under those bond purchase agreerments amounted to $181.8 million.



(b) Appropriation Debt

At June 30, 2009, the outstanding balances of debt payable by Commonweaith appropriations, as
described in note 15(d), which are included in the individual financial statements of the following
discretely presented component units, are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Puerto Rico Public Finance Corporation (a biended component unit of GDB) 51,635,174

Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 694,225
Special Communities Perpetual Trust 376,095
Puerto Rico Convention Center District Authority 151,076
Agricultural Services and Development Administration 127,578
Puerto Rico Solid Waste Authority 62,310
Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company 44,400
University of Puerto Rico 51,239
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority 32,499
Institute of Puerto Rican Cultare 17,749
Puerto Rico Housing Finance Authority (a blended component unit of GDB) 13,921
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 6,104
Gavernment Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) 4,812
Naticnal Parks Company of Puerto Rico 2,612
Company for the Integral Development of the “Peninsula de Cantera” 3,233
Total $3,223,027

These balances are reported in the statement of net assets (deficit) as Commonwealth appropriation
bonds payable and notes payable.



17.

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND NO COMMITMENT DEBT

From time to time, certain of the Commonwealth’s component units issue revenue bonds to provide
financial assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of transportation,
environmental, industrial, tourism, educational, and commercial facilities, deemed to be in the public
interest and that are expected to provide benefits to Puerto Rico. These bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans.
Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities is retained by the private sector entity
served by the bond issuance. Neither the Commonwealth nor any political subdivision or component
unit thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the basic financial statements of the issuing entities, As of June 30, 2009,
conduit debt obligations consisted of the following bonds issued by component units (expressed in
thousands):

Issued Since

Inception to Amount
Issuing Entity Date Qutstanding
Discretely presented component units:
Puerto Rico Ports Auwthority $ 135410 $ 58,543
Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority 270,000 158,000
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico 663,000 572,000
Puerto Rico Industrial, Tourist, Educational, Medical, and
Environmental Control Facilities Financing Authority 5,973,000 1,439,000
Total $7,061,410 $2,227,545

{a) Puerto Rico Ports Authority (PRPA)

PRPA jssued Special Facilities Revenue Bonds under the provisions of two trust agreements
between PRPA and a private bank. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to finance the
construction, acquisition of equipment, and improvement of certain facilities at Luis Munoz Marin
Internattonal Airport, for the benefit of a major private airline. The property is owned by PRPA and
leased to the private company. Pursvant to the agreements between PRPA and the private company,
the bonds will be paid from the rent collected from the airline in amounts sufficient to pay principal,
premiurn {if any), and interest on the bonds. The airline has guaranteed these payments,

(b) Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority (PRHTA)

In March 1992, PRHTA issued Special Facility Revenue Bonds for approximately $117 million for
the constraction of a toll bridge. The proceeds from the sale of these bonds were transferred by
PRHTA to a private entity, Autopistas de Puerte Rico (“Autopistas™), pursuant to a signed
agreement for the construction, transfer, and operation of the bridge. On October 2003, PRHTA
1ssued Spectal Facility Revenuve Refunding Bonds, 2004 Series A, amounting to approximately
$270 miltion for the purpose of refunding PRHTA’s Special Facility Revenue Bonds, 1992 Series A,
B, and C, which were issued to fund the construction of the bridge, and to pay the cost of issuance of
the bonds. The bonds shall be paid from the proceeds received by Autopistas from the operation of
the bridge.
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Under certain circumstances, the concession agreement may be terminated and PRHTA is then
obligated to assume the Autopista’s entire obligation to pay principal of and interest, which pursuant
to the signed agreement, will be paid from the net revenues of the use and operation of the bridge.
PRHTA does not currently expect the concession agreement to terminate. The outstanding bonds
(including accrued interest) at June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately $158 miltion.

{c) GDB

GDB, through its Housing Finance Authority, issued $663 million in Capitai Fund Program Bonds
Series 2003 to fund Public Housing Authority in its financing of improvements to various public
low and moderate income housing projects. Certain of the obligations issued are considered no
commitment debt and are excluded, along with the related assets held in trust, from the
accompanying basic financial statements. These bonds are limited obligations of the Housing
Finance Authority, which will be paid solely from an annual aliocation of public housing capital
funds when received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; accordingly,
these bonds are considered no commitment debt. The outstanding balance of these bonds amounted
10 $572 million at June 30, 2009.

{d) AFICA

The revenue bonds of AFICA are used te finance facilities for environmental control, development
of ndustrial and commercial companies, tourism projects, hospitals, and educationat facilities.
Pursuant to the loan agreements, the proceeds from the sales were borrowed by corporations and
partnerships operating in Puerto Rico. The bonds are limited obligations of AFICA and, except to
the extent payable from bond proceeds and investment thereof, will be payable solely from and
secured by a pledge and assignment of the amounis payable under the loan agreements between
AFICA and each borrower. Furthermore, payment of the principal and interest on the revenue bonds
is unconditionally guaranteed by each of the borrowers, their parent companies, or letters of credit
from major U.S. banks or U.S. branches of internationa! banks.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT

The following describes the risk management programs separately administered by certain discretely
presented component anjits:

(a) UPR

UPR is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Through January 1993, UPR was
insured under claims made insurance policies with respect to medical malpractice risks for $250,000
per occurrence up to an annual aggregate of $500,000. Subsequent to such date, UPR was unable 1o
obtain insurance at a cost it considered to be economically justifiable; consequently, UPR is now
self insured for such risks. Under Act No. 98 of August 24, 1994, the responsibility of UPR is
limited to a maximum amount of $75,000 per person, or $150,000 if it invoives actions for damages
to more than one person or where a single injured party 1s entitled to several causes of action. Self
insured risk liabilities are reperted when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported. Because actval claims liabilities depend upon such complex factors as inflation,
changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does
not necessarily resuit 1z an exact amount. Claims liabifities are reevaluated periodically to take into



consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors.
Changes in the claims liability amount in fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were as follows (expressed in
thousands):

2009 2008
Claims payable — July | $ 19,124 $ 22,060
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 42,064 29,300
Payments for claims and adjustments expenses (33,834) {32,236)
Claims payable — June 30 $ 27,354 § 19,124

UPR continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resunlting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

(b) PREPA

(¢)

PREPA is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage 1o, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. PREPA obtains insurance
policies covering all risk property (excluding transmission and distribution lines), boiler and
machinery, and public liability. The all risk property and boiler and machinery policies have a
combined coverage of 3750 million per occurrence. The policies’ self retention in case of
earthquake and windstorm losses is $25 million and $2 million for ail other covered risks. The
public general liability policy covers property damage and bodily injury to third parties with a
$75 million aggregate fimit in excess of the self retention limit of $1 miilion per occurrence.

PREPA has a cost plus health insurance program covering substantially all employees. PREPA
contracted an administrator for the processing, approval, and payment of claims plus an
administrative fee. The accrual for employees” health plan includes the liability for claims processed
and an estimate for claims incurred but not reported.

Changes in the balances of the health insurance program and other self insurance risks during fiscal
years 2009 and 2008 were as follows {expressed in thousands):

2009 2008
Claims payable — July ! $ 7,154 5 11,273
Incurred claims 136,348 132,358
Claim payments (137,950 (136477
Claims payable — June 30 $ 5552 $ 7134

Claims payable are a component of accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the accompanying
statement of net assets {deficit).

SIFC

SIFC provides workers’ compensation insurance to public and private employees. This insurance
covers workers against injuries, disability, or death because of work or employmeni related
accidents, or because iliness 15 suffered as a consequence of their employment. SIFC establishes



liabilities for estimated incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses based on the
ultimate cost of settling the benefits. The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning
and ending liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses for the two
most recent fiscal years (expressed in thousands);

2008 2008
Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses at July | $ 702,355 $ 687.829
Total incuired benefits 533,820 447,546
Total benefit payments (497,700 {433,020y
Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses at June 30 $ 738,475 $ 702,355

The current and long-term portions of the liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses is reported as Habilities for automobile accident insurance and workmen’s
compensation claims, and other long-term {iabilities, respectively, in the accompanying statement of
net assets (deficit).

The lability for compensation benefits 1s based on historical claims experieace data, assumptions
and projections as to future events, including claims frequency, seventy, persistency, and
inflationary trends deterimined by an independent actuwary. The actuarial study also included
estimates for medical benefits, benefit adjustment expenses, and reimbursement of premiums. The
assumptions used in estimating and establishing the liabilities are reviewed annually based on
current circumstances and any adjustments resulting thereof are reflected in operations in the current
period.

(d) AACA

AACA operates a system of compulsory insurance for vehicles licensed to be used on public roads
and highways in Puerto Rico. This insurance covers death and bodily injuries caused by automobile
accidents. The annual premium is $35 per motor vehicle.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for the future
benefits for the two most recent fiscal years (expressed in thousands):

2009 2608
Lrability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses at beginning of year S 113,085 $118,273
Total tncurred benefits 127,552 63,476
Total benefit payments (76,285) {06,004)
Liability for incurred but unpaid benetits and benefit
adjustment expenses at end of year $ 166,352 $115,085

The Hability for future benefits is reported as lability for automobile accident iasurance and
workmen’s compensation claims in the accompanying statement of net assets. AACA has recorded
this liability, incloding administrative expenses for claim processing, based on the results of
actuarial reports prepared by independent actuaries, determined under two different methods. Death,
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funeral, disability, dismemberment, and the basic medical hospitaltization liabilities were determined
using a triangulation method. The extended benefits medical hospitalization reserve uses a
regression methodology to predict the ultimate incurred claims for each incurred calendar quarter.
Additionally, assumptions are made about the monality rates of the extended benefit claimants,
recognizing the impact of their fravmatic injuries on life span.

Changes in the ultimate liabilities for benefit paymenis may be required as information develops,
which varies from experience, provides additional data, or, in some cases, augments data, which
previously were not considered sufficient for use in determining the claim liabilities.

(e) PRIFA

PRIFA is responsible for assuring that its property is properly insured. Annually. PRIFA compiles
the information of all property owned and its respective market value and purchases its property and
casualty insurance policies. Insurance coverage for fiscal year 2009 remained simlar to those of
prior years. For the last three years, insurance settlements have not exceeded the amount of
coverage.

(f) PRASA

PRASA has acquired commercial insurance to mitigate iis exposure to certain losses involving real
and personal property (including windstorm, flood and earthquake damages) and comprehensive
general and automobile claims. Each commercial insurance policy maintained by PRASA contains
specific policy limits and deductibles. The policies limit was increased from $150 million that were
in places as of June 30, 2007. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Primary Government — The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining
to matters incidental to the performance of routine governmentai operations. Under Act No. 104 of
June 25, 1955, as amended, persons are authorized to sue the Commonwealth only for causes of actions
set forth in said act to a maximum amount of $75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to
more than one person or where a single injured party is entitled to several canses of action. Under certain
circumstances, as provided in Act No. 9 of November 26, 1975, as amended, the Cornmonwealth may
provide its officers and employees with legal representation, as well as assume the payment of any
judgment that may be entered against them. There is no limitation on the payment of such judgments.

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, excluding the litigation mentioned in the following
paragraphs, the Commonwealth reported approximately $621 million as an amount to cover for awarded
and anticipated unfavorable judgments at June 30, 2009. This amount was included as other long term
liabilities in the accompanying statement of net assets, and represents the amount estimated as probable
liability or a liability with a fixed or expected due date that will require {uture available financial
rescurces for its payment. The amounts claimed exceed $7 billion; however, the vitimate liability cannot
be presently determined. It is the opinion of management that the claims are excessive and exaggerated.
Management believes that the ultimate liabil#ty in excess of amounts provided, if any, would not be
significant.

The Commonwealth is also a defendant in two paratlel lawsuits, one filed in state court and the other at

the federal court. The defendanis are vanious primary heaithcare centers seeking to recover from the
Commonwealth $800 million of Medicaid funds retained by the Department of Health of the
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Commonwealth since 1997. In February 2005, United States Conrt of Appeals for the First Circuit
determined that the Commonwealth must return any funds withheld because of noncompliance with a
federal law. As of June 30, 2009, the Commonwealth accrued $147 million for this legal contingency.

The Commonwealth is a defendant in a class action presented by parents of special education studenis in
the areas of education and healthcare. In October 2006, the State Court of Appeals decided in favor of
the parents’ request to include damage claims pursuant to the same class action case although not as a
remedy in the class action per se. The court now may award damages to the members of the class action
and to do so it may look at the claims by dividing them into groups or consider each case individually.
This will require that the parenis prove the damages suffered. The Commonwealth plans to defend
vigorously each individual case. As of June 30, 2009, the Commonwealth acerued $600 millien for this
legal contingency.

The Commonwealth receives financial assistance from the federal government in the form of grants and
entitlements. Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of
the grant agreements and applicable federal laws and regulations, inciuding the expenditure of resources
for eligible purposes. Substantially, all grants are subject to audit under Circular A 133 of the Office of
Management and Budget of the United States of America (OMB Circular A 133), all of which are
performed at the individual department or agency level. Disallowance as a result of these andits may
become liabilities of the Commonwealth. At June 30, 2009, based on an evalvation of pending federal
disallowances, the Commonwealth has recorded approximately $101 million as other long term
liabilities in the accompanying statement of net assets (deficit). Expenditures that are still subject to
audit conld be disalowed but management believes any such future disallowances would not be material
to the basic financial statements.

Construction commitments at June 30, 2009, entered by PBA, amounted to approximately $125 million.
In addition, the Commonwealth’s construction commitments for public housing facilities amounted to
approximately $232 million at June 30, 2009.

On November 23, 1998, a global settlement agreement (the Agreement) was entered into by and
between certain tobacco companies and certain states, territories, and other jurisdictions of the United
States of America, including the Commonwealth. The agreement calls for annual payments through the
year 2025, which will vary due to inflationary and volume adjustments. After 2025, the tobacco
companies are to continue making contributions in perpetuity. Pursuant to Act No. 173 of July 30, 1999,
which created the Children’s Trust (a blended component unit), the Commonwealth assigned and
transferred to the Trust all payments that the Commonwealth is entitled to receive under the agreement.
Payments received under the agreement and recognized as revenue during the year ended June 30,
2009 amounted to approximateiy $90 million.



Following is a summary of estimated payments te be received by the Trust through the year ending
June 30, 2025 (expressed in thousands):

Year Ending

June 30

2610 $ 77944
2011 78,918
2012 79,891
2013 80,809
2014 81,698
2015-2025 1,046,815
Total $1,449.075

At June 30, 2009, the Trust had approved commiiments to provide assistance to several entities through
49 contracts with batances amounting to approximately $47.3 million.

Discretely Presented Component Units — In the normal course of their operations, various component
units are subject 10 guarantees, actions broughi by third parties seeking damages or entering into
commitments. Such actions are disclosed in the separately issued reports of the components units, some
of which are summarized below:

(a) GDB

The Housing Finance Authority entered nto a 30 year lease agreements with the Puerto Rico
Department of Housing to rent office space expiring in 2037. During the term of the lease, the
Housing Finance Authority will pay an annual rent of $1.5 million.

On August 18, 2002, the Legislature approved law No. 198, which creates the Cooperative
Development Investment Fund. The purpose of this fund is to promote the development of
cooperative entities. The purpose of this fund is to promote the development of cooperative entities.
This fund will be capitalized through contributions 1o be provided by GDB up to $25 miliion to be
matched by cooperative entities. As of June 34, 2009, GDB has contributed $15.6 million to the
Cooperative Development Investment Fund, $985,000 of which were contributed during the year
ended June 30, 2009.

The Development Fund has entered into an agreement (Agreement) with Economic Development
Bank of Puerte Rico (EDB) whereby the Deveiopment Fund would guarantee a portion of loans
granted by EDB under a government program named The Key for Your Business (Program). Under
the Agreement, the Development Fund would assign $10 million of its capital for the program. The
Development Fund guarantees one-third of the outstanding principal balance of each loan plus the
accrued interest and certain other charges. The Development Fund charges one percent of the loan
amount as guarantee fee and no loan exceed $50,000. At June 30, 2009, outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately $14.7 million, and the allowance for losses on guarantees amounted to
approximately $3.1 million. On August 28, 2008, the Development Fund and EDB amended the
Agreement to increase from $10 million 10 $15 million the Development Fund’s capital designated
for the program.
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(b) PRHTA

{c)

On February 28, 2003, Siemens Transportation Partnership Puerto Rico S.E. (STT} and others filed
legal claims against PRHTA in the amount of approximately $50 million for damages, amounts
withheld, acceleration of work and other causes of action in connection with the construction of the
Urban Train Project.

On November 24, 2004, PRHTA filed a counter claim against STT for liquidating damages as
stipulated in the contract of $100 million. PRHTA amended its counter claim on November 17, 2008
to include other credits against STT. Therefore, the total claimed damages were increased to
$233 million.

On September 22, 2005, PRHTA filed a third party complaint against various contractors in the
Urban Train Projects to respond to PRHTA in case STT prevails in its claims in the amount of
$25 miltion. On November 21, 2006, these third parties counter claimed PRHTA for $26 million for
work performed and unjust enrichment.

On Apnil 20, 2007, the Administrauve Judge designated this case as a complex liquidation and
remitted it to the Chief Justice of the Puerto Rico’s Supreme Court who has to assign a presiding
judge for the case. The parties are still awaiting such designation.

On August 28, 2008, STT amended its complaint {0 adjust the amount claimed to $1 {4 million.

On April 21, 2009, i accordance to the calendar approved by the Coust through its Order dated
May 6, 2009, PRHTA filed an Amended Third Party Complaint in which, aside from amending its
allegation to the already appearing parties, the guarantors and sureties and assurance companies
were brought to the case.

In the opinion of legal counsel, although discovery up to date has shown that it is unlikely that STT
will prevail in its allegation against PRHTA, due to the complexities of the case, it is not possible to
estimate the amount of any potential loss.

PRHTA is defendant or co-defendant in various lawsuits for alleged damages in cases principally
related to construction in progress. PRHTA, based on legal advice, has recorded an adeguate
provision to cover possible losses on those claims not fully covered by insurance. In the opinion of
legal counsel, any liability in excess of the insurance coverage andfor the recorded provision that
may arise from such claims would not be significant to affect to the PRHTA s financial position or
results of operations.

PREPA

On May 18, 2000, Abengoa, Puerto Rico, S.E. (Abengoa), PREPA’s contractor for the repowering
of San Juan steam plant units 5 and 6, unilaterally declared a termination of the contract with
PREPA and fited a complaint for breach of contract. PREPA believes that the actions by the
contractor will not materially affect the ability of PREPA to provide service nor there will be a
material difference in the quality of service provided by PREPA.

In June 2004, the Office of the Comptroiler of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico {Comptroller)
issued a report stating that PREPA overcharged its clients by approximately $49.8 million, and
should reimburse this amount to such clients. After this report was made public, two lawsuits were
filed by clients of PREPA against PREPA demanding the reimbursement of such alleged
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overcharges. PREPA’s position is that the Comptroller incorrectly based his conclusion on data that
is not relevant to the calculation of PREPA’s rates, and that PREPA’s rates were properly
established in the year 2000 in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. In particular,
PREPA notes that its rates properly take into consideration the cost of the fuel used by PREPA’s
generating facilities and the cost of the electricity purchased from the two ce-generating facilities
that sell power to PREPA.

PREPA 1s a defendant or codefendant in several lawsuits incidental to its business, some invoiving
substantial amounts. In those instances that management and legal counsel believe that the cutcome
of the litigation will be unfavorable to PREPA, a provision has been made to cover the estimated
liability. PREPA’s management based con discussions with legal counsel believes that the additional
liability, if any, resulting from the ultimate resoiution of these matters will not have a material effect
on PREPA’s financial position or results of operations.

(d) PRIFA

(e)

At June 30, 2009, PRIFA is a defendant in various legal proceedings arising from its normal
operations. Management, based on the advice of its legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate
liability, if any, resulting from these pending preceedings and legal actions in the aggregate will not
have a material effect on the PRIFA’s financial statements. However, management is of the opinion
that they will reach settlements 1n certain cases. A liability to cover claims and other contingencies
amouniing to $525,000 has been reflected as part of accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
accompanying statement of net assets (deficit).

PRASA

On April 28, 2006, PRASA entered inte a consent decree with EPA that requires PRASA to
implement system-wide remedial measures at all of the waste water treatment plants. The decree
establishes deadlines for compliance with the conditions set forth in the agreement and stipulates
penalties for violation of those deadlines. PRASA was assessed a penalty of $1 miltion which was
paid during fiscal year 2008. In accordance with the consent decree, PRASA has to deposit in an
escrow account with GDB, approximately $3 million payable in four payments over two years
starting on December 1, 2006, As of June 30, 2009, PRASA has deposited the total required amount
of $3 million in this account. These funds wiil be used for providing sewer service to a community
that has not been connected to PRASA’s sewer system.

On May 25, 2000, PRASA entered into a plea agreement with U.S. Department of Justice related to
violations of the Clean Water Act, Title 33, USC, Sections 1311(a) and 1319(c)(2)(A). As part of the
agreement, PRASA agreed to pay a $9 million fine in equal installments without interest during a
five year term period. Until this fine is satistied in full, all of PRASA’s real property will be subject
to a statutory lien held by the federat government entitling it to foreclose on such property in order
to satisfy this mandatory obligation. During fiscal year 2006, PRASA accrued a liability of
$9 million as a result of this plea agreement. As of June 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of the
accrued liability was $5.4 miltion. On August 13, 2008, PRASA paid the total outstanding amount
of $5.4 million that was holding the statutory lien on the PRASA’s real property. In addition, the
agreement required PRASA to comply with several special conditions, such as: (i} upgrade the
collection and waste water treatment system in the Ponce de Ledn Avenue area of San Juan for a
cost of not less than $10 million to prevent direct discharges to the Martin Peia Channel, (ii)
upgrade nine waste water treatment plants for a cost not less than $109 million, and (iii) comply
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(f)

(g)

with a consent decree signed by PRASA with the U.S. government on April, 26, 2006. The piea
agreement also established stipulated penalties for viclation of any of the deadlines of performance
stands set forth in the agreement.

On December 15, 2006, an agreement was signed between PRASA and the Department of Health of
the Commonwealth relating to violations of the Safe Drinking Water Act. The agreement was
prefiminarily approved by the supervising court on March 15, 2007 and it was amended and finally
approved by the court on June 20, 2008. PRASA agreed to implement a work plan to remediate the
violations, establish preventive and mitigation measures, and execute a preventive maintenance
program for the purpose of meeting the requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act. As part of the
agreement, but prior to the amendment and final approval on June 30, 2008, PRASA paid a penalty
of approximately $1 million during fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 to the Commonwealth. During
fiscal year June 30, 2008 and based on the amendment and final approvai of the agreement, PRASA
accrued approximately $2.7 million for penalties for noncompliance as stipulated by the final
agreement, which were paid during fiscal year 2009. Also, as part of the penalties for
noncempliance with the remedial measures of the agreement with the Department of Health during
fiscal year 2009, a $1.3 million has to be deposited in an escrow account in three installments. The
first payment of $.5 million was made on Avgust 21, 2009 and the remaining two payments of $.4
miilion each, has to be deposited on September 2009 and October 2009, respeciively. As of June 30,
2009, the amount of $1.3 million was accrued.

On November 2007, PRASA entered into negotiation of a consent decree with EPA that requires
PRASA to timplement system wide remedial measures at all of the sludge treatment systems at the
water treatment plants owned and operated by PRASA. The consent decree will establish deadlines
for the compliance with the conditions set forth in the proposed agreement and stipulate penalties for
violation of any of those deadlines. PRASA will be assessed a penalty of $3.2 million which will be
paid during fiscal year 2010. In accordance with this consent decree, PRASA will have to pay a civil
penalty of approximately $1 million to the Treasurer of the United States of America and will have
to deposit in an escrow account with GDB, $2.2 million. PRASA has accrued this liability as of
June 30, 2009,

PRMSA

PRMSA has accounis receivable aggregating $22.7 mallion at June 30, 2009, from the Hospital of
the Municipality of San Juan, related 1o medical services rendered. PRMSA alleges that these
amounts are related for services rendered during the period from June 30, 2005 to June 30, 2008,

PRMSA filed at the Department of Justice and with the Commission for the Resolution of
Controversies for Over Payment and Debts between Governmenial Agencies, demanding the
resolution of this matter,

On June 29, 2009, the Commission designated the Puerto Rico Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) 10 serve as a mediator in this claim,

PRHIA

PRHIA is codefendant in a case invelving a claim for $14 million by a provider of information
technology services. PRHIA's legal counsel believes that an estimate of the financial effect, if any,
of this litigation on PRHIA’s financial siatement cannot be made at this time. Accordingly,
management has not recorded a provision related to this contingency.
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Environmental Commitments and Contingencies

The following component units’ operations inciude activities that are subject to state and federal
environmental regulations:

e PREPA — Facilities and operations of PREPA are subject to regulations under numerous federal
and Commonwealth environmental laws, including the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, and the
National Polutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES}. In February 1992, the Environmental
Protection Act {EPA) performed an inspection of various facilities of PREPA and became aware of
deficiencies in different areas, principally air opacity, water quality, spill prevention control and
countermeasures and vnderground storage tanks. As result, PREPA agreed to, among other things,
make certain capital improvements, undertake supplemental environment projects, and use fuel oil
not exceeding certain predetermined levels of suifur, vanadium, and asphalt in its content.

¢ PRSWA — PRSWA is currently involved in the implementation and development of the
Infrastructure Regional Plan for recycling and disposal of solid waste in Puerto Rico. As of June 30,
2009, management of PRSWA believes that, ai this time, there is no sufficient information available
to determine the potential amount of related losses, if any, and no provision for losses has been
made in the accompanying financial statements. Nevertheless, preventive mfrastructure has been
constructed 1o minimize any possible impact or events that occur.

s PRIDCO — Financial responsibility for cleanup costs has been and/or are being undertaken by the
industrial potentially responsible parties (PRPs) at the two Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) sites {i.e. Vega Alta and Guayama) where the
federal government named PRIDCO as a PRP solely for being a part-owner of both sites. Under
CERCLA and its regulations, liability for the cleanup cost and darage to natural resources and any
assessment of health effects may be imposed on the present and past owners or operators of a
facility from which there was a release of hazardous substances, In addition, any person who
arranged for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at a site from which there was a
release may also be liable. The resolution of those legal actions included various environmentat
issues to which PRIDCO did not stipaiate liability under the CERCLA and other federal legislation.
CERCLA establishes procedures and standards for responding to the release of hazardous
substances, poliutants, and contaminants.

PRIDCO has taken vigorous actions to identify any other potential claims or liability arising from
environmental deficiencies and has provided in the accompanying statement of net assets for any of
these deficiencies where a probable loss 1s foreseen. Management believes that any unidentified
environmental deficiencies and related costs wili not have a material adverse effect on PRIDCO’s
results of operations and {inancial condition.
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Construction Commitments — As of June 30, 2009, the foliowing component units maintained
various unaspent construction agreements as follows (expressed in thousands):

Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation Authority $ 662,600
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 447,100
Puerto Rico Convention Center District Authority 7,000
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 127,400
Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company 956
Port of the America Authority 75918
Company for the Integral Development of the “Peninsula de Cantera™ 53,456
Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company 37,800
Puerio Rico Conservatory of Music Corporation 24,974
Puerto Rico Ports Authority 17,800
Puerto Rico Infrastructure Financing Authority 287,213
Total $1,741,017

20. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The Commonwealth sponsors three contributory pension plans (collectively known as the Retirement
Systems), which are reported in the accompanying statement of fiductary net assets:

»

Esmployees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its instrumentalities {ERS}
The Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System (JRS)

Puesto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers (TRS)

Each system is independent; thus, their assets or liabilities may not be transferred from one system to
another or used for any purpose other than to benefit the participants of each systein.

The Retirement Systems issue financial reports, which are publicly available and include the basic
financial statements, the required trend information, and any other required supplementary information.
These reports may be obtained by written request to the corresponding retirement system administraior
at the addresses detailed in note 1{h).

(a) ERS

Plan Description — The ERS is a defined benefit penston plan administered by the Puerio Rico
Government Employees and Judiciary Retirement Systems Administration and was created by Act
No. 447 on May 15, 1951, The ERS began operations on January 1, 1932, at which date,
contributions by employers and participating employees commenced. The ERS is a pension trust
fund of the Commonwealth. The ERS, as a governmental retirement plan, is excluded from the
provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).

The responsibility for the proper operation and administration of the ERS is vested on the board of
trustees, composed of two participating employees and one pensioner, who are appointed by the
Governor of the Commonwealth. Also, there are four Commonwealth government agency
sepresentatives, which are the Secretary of the Treasury, the President of the Govermment
Development Bank for Puerto Rico, the Executive Director of the Commonwealth’s Human
Resources Office, and the Municipal Affairs Commissioner.
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As of June 30, 2009, the ERS has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of approximately $17,10t
million, representing a 9.7% funding ratio. In the opinion of management and based on information
prepared by consulting actuaries, # measures are not taken now to deal with this situation, the ERS
will not be able to fully fund pensions in the fiscal years stasting after 2020. This situation could
have a direct negative effect on the Commonwealth’s general fund, since most of the employers
under the ERS are government agencies obligated to make actuarial contributions to fund the ERS.

To attend to these issues immediately, the Governor of the Commonwealth (the “Governor™), by
Executive Order OE-2010-10 dated March 12, 2010, created the Special Commission on the
Retirement Systems Reform (the "Commission™), as an instrument for its members to provide
individual and/or group recommendations on actions that the executive and legislative branches can
execute to provide immediate alternatives to ease the current crisis and long term solutions that wili
help the ERS.

The ERS consists of different benefit structures pursuant to Act No. 447 of 1931, as amended,
including a cost-sharing multi-employer contributory defined benefit program and a cash balance
program, simular {0 a cash balance plan. The ERS is sponsored by the Commonwealth, pubiic
corporations, and municipalities of Puerto Rico. Substantially all full-time employees of the
Commenwealth and its instrumentalities (Commonwealth Agencies, Municipalities, and Public
Corporations, including the ERS) are covered by the ERS. All regular, appointed, and temporary
employees of the Commonwealth at the date of employment become plan members of the ERS. The
ERS is optional for Commonwealth officers appointed by the Governor and Head of Agencies.

Plan members, other than those joining the ERS after March 31, 1990, are eligible for the benefits
described below:

Retirement Annuity — Plan members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the
following age:

Poticemen and Firefighters Other Employees
50 with 23 years of credited service 55 with 25 years of credited service
58 with 10 years of credited service 58 with 10 years of credited service

Plan members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application of stipulated
benefit ratios to the plan member’s average compensation. Average compensation 1§ computed
based on the highest 36 months of compensation recogaized by the ERS. The annnity, for which a
plan member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of 3400 per month and a maximum of 75% of the
average compensation.

Merit Annuity — Plan members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of 30 years or more
of credited service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to & minimum of
65% and a maximum of 75% of the average compensation.

Deferred Retirement Annuity — A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the
Commonwealth after having accumulated a minimum of 10 vears of credited service qualifies for
retirement benefits provided his/her contributions to the ERS are left within the ERS until attainment
of 58 years of age.
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Coordinated Plan — On the coordinated plan, the participating employee contributes a 5.775% of
the monthly salary for the first $550 and 8.275% for the excess over $550. By the time the employee
reaches 65 years old and begins to receive social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced
by the following:

e 3165 per month if retired with 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service
e 3110 per month if retired with less than 35 years of age and 30 years of credited service
+  Al} other between $82 and $100 per month

» Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 635 and in some cases can
be reduced over $165 per month

Noncoordinated Plan — On the noncoordinated plan, the participating employee contributes an
8.275% of the monthly salary and does not have any change on the pension benefits upon receiving
social security benefits.

Reversionary Annuity — A plan member, upen retirerment, could elect o receive a reduced
retirement annuity giving one or more benefit payments to his/her dependents. The life annuity
payments would start after the death of the retiree for an amount not less than $240 yearly or greater
than the annuity payments being recetved by the retiree,

Occupational Disability Annuity — A participating employee, who as a direct result of the
performance of his/her occupation is totally and permanently disabled, is eligible for a disability
annuity of 50% of the compensation received at the time of the disability.

Nonoccupational Disability Annuiry — A participating employee totally and permanently disabled
for causes not refated to his/her occupation, and with no less than 10 years of credited service, is
eligible for an annuity of 1.5% of the average compensation of the first 20 years of credited services
increased by 2% for every additional year of credited service in excess of 20 years.

Death Benefits

Occupational

Surviving Spouse — annuity equal to 50% of the participating employee’s salary at the date of the
death.

Children — 510 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum benefit per family of
100% of the participating employee’s salary at the date of the death. If no spouse survives, or dies
while receiving the annuity payments, each child, age 18 or under, is eligible to receive an annuity
of $20 per month up (o the attainment of 18 years of age or the completion of his/her studies.

Nongccupational

Beneficiary — the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death plus an amount
equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death.
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Postretirement

Beneficiary with surviving spouse age 60 or over and child, age 18 or under, up to 50% (60%, if not
covered under Title II of the Social Security Act) of retiree’s pension or otherwise the excess, if any,
of the accumulated coniributions at the time of retirement over the total annuity benefits received
before death, limited to @ minimum of $750.

Refunds — A participating employee who ceases hisfher employment with the Commonwealth
without right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions to the ERS, plus
any interest earned thereon.

Amendments te Benefits Structure for Plan Members who Joined the ERS on or After April 1,
1990 — Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990, made certain amendments applicable to new participating
employees joining the ERS effective April 1, 1990. These changes consist principally of an increase
in the retirement age from 55 to 65, a decrease in the benefit percentage of the average
compensation in the occupational disability and occupational death benefits annuitics from 50% to
40%, and the elimination of the merit annuity for participating employees (except policemen and
firemen) who have completed 30 years of creditable service.

Cost of Living Adjustment for Pension Benefits — Act No. 10 of May 21, 1992, provided for
increases of 3% every three years, of the pensions paid by the ERS 1o those plan members with three
or more years of retirement. The Act requires further legislation to grant this increase every three
years, subject to the presentation of actuarial studies regarding its costs and the source of financing,
Since fiscal year 1992 to 2007 there have been other acts addressing the cost of living allowance
(C.O.L.A.) as Act No. 207 of August 13, 1995; Act No. 221 of August 9, 1998; Act No. 40 of
June 13, 2001; Act No. 157 of June 27, 2003; and Act No. 35 of April 24, 2007.

On Aprd 24, 2007, the Governor signed the Act No. 33 1o provide for an increase of 3% of the
pension paid by the ERS 1o those plan members whose monthly pension is less than $1,250,
effective on July 1, 2008,

To protect the financial health of the ERS, the increases granted pursuant to the above laws are
being financed through annual appropriations from the Commonwealth and contributions from
murnicipalities and public corporations.

Other Benefits Granted — For fiscal years 2003 to 2007, the Commenwealth granted additionat
benefits 10 the ERS’s retirees, As of June 30, 2009, these increases are being funded through special
appropriations from the Commonwealth for the amount corresponding to the Commonwealth
agencies and by contributions from the public corporations and municipalities.

Early Retirement Programs — During fiscal year 2001, the Commonwealth granted three
additional retirement programs through Act No. 370 of December 31, 1999, Act No. 119 of July 13,
2000, and Act No. 174 of August 12, 2000. These acts applied to employees of the Municipality of
San Juan, employees of the State Insurance Fund Corporation and the employees within the three
branches of the Commonwealth, respectively. These early retirement programs ended in fiscal year
2006, at which time, these employees became fully beneficiaries of the ERS, In order to avoid any
economic impact on the ERS, the employers were responsible for contributing to the ERS the
amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and employee contributions with respect to
the plan members covered until the attainment of the normal retirement age.
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During fiscal year 2006, the Puerte Rico Industrial and Development Company (PRIDCG)
implemented an early retirement program for its employees under Act No. 143, dated November 22,
2005, PRIDCO will reimburse the annuities and other benefits paid by the ERS during a five-year
period, plus the employer and employee contributions with respect to the plan members covered
until the attainment of the normal retirement age.

During fiscal year 2008, the Commonwealth issued Act No. 70, dated July 13, 2007, to implement
an early retirement program for the employees of the Puerto Rico National Parks Company. The
Municipality of San Juan issued the Resolution No. 41, dated May 3, 2008, which provided an early
retirement program for the municipalities” employees. Also, GDB implemented an early retirement
program for its employees under the Act No, 188 of December 12, 2007. The Puerte Rico National
Parks Company has already made two paymenis and would reimburse the remaining balance on
annuities and other benefits paid by the ERS in three installments on each Jniy 31 starting on 2009
through 2011. The Municipality of San Juan will reimburse the annuities and other benefits paid by
the ERS during a five-year period, plus the employer and employee contributions with respect to the
plan members covered until they reach the normal retirement age.

The Land Authority of Puerto Rico (the “Land Authority™) implemented an early retirement
program for its employees under Law No. 59 of January 31, 2008. The Land Authority has already
made the initial payment and would reimburse the remaining balance on annuities and other benefits
paid by the ERS in four installments on each July 31 starting on 2009 through 2012.

The Right to Employment Administration (the “Administration™) implemented an early retirement
program for its employees under Law No. 275 of December 31, 2008. The Administration already
made the initial payment and would reimburse the remaining balance on annuities and other benefits
paid by the ERS in four installments on each July 3] starting on 2009 through 2012,

The Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board (the "EQB™) implemented an early retirement
program for its employees under the Law 224 Act No. 7 dated August 9, 2008. The EQB already
made the initial payment and would reimburse the remaining balance on annuities and other benefits
paid by the ERS in four installments on each July 31 starting on 2009 through 2012,

The Puerto Rico Department of Labor and Human Resources (the “Department of Labor™)
implemented an early retirement program for its emplovees under the Law 136 dated July 29, 2008.
The Department of Labor alrcady made the initial payment and would reimburse the remaining
balance on annuities and other berefits paid by the ERS in four installments on each July 31 starting
on 2009 through 2012.

Amendment 1o Act No. 447 Effective January 1, 2000, to Create System 2000 — On September 24,
1999, Law 305, an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, which created the ERS, was
enacted 10 provide for a new benefit structure, similar 1o a cash balance plan, known as System
2000, to cover employees joining the ERS on or after January 1, 2000.

Employees participating in the ERS as of December 31, 1999, were allowed to elect either to stay in
the defined benefit structure or transfer to System 2000. People joining the public sector on or after
January 1, 2000, are only allowed to become members of System 2000, Under System 2000,
contributions received from participants are pooled and invested by the ERS, together with the
assets corresponding to the defined benefit structure. There are no separate accounts for System
2000 participants. Future benefit payments under the original defined besefit structure and System
2000 will be paid from the same pool of assels. As a different benefit structure, System 2000 i1s not a
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separate plan, and as such, is not presented separately from the original defined benefit structure,
pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 25. The Commonwealth does not guarantee
benefits at retirementi age.

The annvity benefits to participants is based on a formula which assumes that each year the
employee’s contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% of the employee’s salary up to a maximum of
10%) will be invested as instructed by the employee in an account which either: (1) earns a fixed
rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Notes or, (2) earns a rate equal to 75% of the
return of the ERS’s investment postfolio (net of management fees), or (3) carns a combination of
both alternatives. Plan members receive periodic account statements similar to those of defined
contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are not granted under System
2000 rather should be provided to those plan members that voluntarily elect to participate in a
private insurance long-term disability program. The employers’ contributions (9.275% of the
employee’s salary) with respect to employees under System 2000 will continue but will be used 10
fund the defined benefit plan. System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those
employees who joined the current plan on or after January 1, 2000.

At June 30, 2009, Systern 2000’s membership consisied of 64,813 current participating employees.

Funding Policy — The contribution requirement to the ERS is established by law and is not
actuarially determined. Required employers’ contributions consist of 9.275% of applicable payrotl
in the cases of municipalities, central government, and public corporations. Required employee
contribution consists of 5.775% of the first $550 of the monthly salary with the excess at 8.275% for
the coordinated benefit structure and 8.275% of the total moathly salary for participating employee’s
contributions for the noncoordinated benefut structure. If necessary, additional non payroll related
contributions from the Commonwealth should ultimately cover any deficiency between the
participating employers’ and employee’s contributions and the ERS’s pension benefit obligations
and general and administrative deductions.

(b) JRS

Pian Description — The Commonwealth of Puerto Rice Judiciary Retirement System (the “JRS™)
is a defined benefit pension plan administered by the Puerto Rico Government Employees and
Judiciary Retirement Systems Administration {the “Administration”} and was created by Act No. 12
on October 19, 1954 (“Act No. 12 of 1954™). FThe JRS is a pension trust fund of the Commonwealth
and is not an employer. The JRS provides retirement benefits to the employees of the judiciary
branch of the Commonwealth. The JRS, as a governmental retirement plan, is excluded from the
provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 {(ERISA).

The responsibiiity for the proper operation and admimstration of the JRS 15 vested on a board of
frustees, composed of two participating employees and one pensioner, who are appointed by the
Governor of the Commonwealth. Also, there are four Commonwealth government agency
representatives, which are the Secretary of the Treasury, the President of the Government
Development Bank for Puerte Rico, the Commissioner of Municipalities Affairs, and the Executive
Director of the Human Resources Office of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Ag of June 30, 2009, the JRS has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of approximately $273,362

million, representing a 15.6% funding ratio. In the opinion of management and based on information
prepared by consulting actuaries, if measures are not taken now to deal with this situation, the JRS
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will not be able 1o fully fund pesnsions in the fiscal years starting after 2015. This situation could
have a direct negative effect on the Commonwealth’s general fund, since the Commonwealth is the
plan sponsor and 1s obligated 1o make actuanal contributions to fund the JRS.

To attend to these issues immediately, the Governor of the Commonwealth (the “Governor”), by
Executive Order OE-2010-10 dated March 12, 2010, created the Special Commission on the
Retirement Systems Reform (the “Commission™), as an instrument for its members o provide
individual and/or group recommendations on actions that the executive and legislative branches can
execute to provide immediate alternatives to ease the current ¢risis and long term selutions that will
help the IRS.

Members of the JRS are eligibie for the following benefits:

Retirement Annuity — Plan members with 10 years of credited service are eligible for retirement
upon reaching 60 years of age.

Plan members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application of a
stipulated benefit to the plan member’s average compensation. Average compensation is computed
based on the last month of compensation. The annuity for which a plan member is eligible, is Jimited
to a2 minimum of 25% and a maximum of 75% of the average compensation, except for the judges of
the Supreme Court for whom the annuity is imited to a minimum of 50% and a maximum of 100%
of the average compensation received by the active members of the Supreme Court.

Reversionary Annuity — A plan member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced
retirement annuity giving one or more benefit payments to histher dependants. The payments would
star after the death of the retiree, for an amount not less than $120 yearly or greater than the annuity
payments being recetved by the retiree.

Occupational Disability Annuity — A participating employee, who as a direct result of the
performance of hisfher occupation is totally and permanendy disabled, is eligible for a disability
annuity of 50% of the compensation, received at the time of the disability.

Nonoccupational Disability Annuity — A participating employee (otally and permanently disabled
for causes not related to his/her occupation, and with no less than 10 years of credited service, is
eligible for annuity of 309 of the average compensation of the first 10 years of credited services,
increased by 1% for every additional year of credited service in excess of 10 years, up to a
maximum of 30% of the average compensation.

Dearh Benefits
QOccupational

s Surviving spouse — annuity equal to 30% of the participating employee’s salary at the date of
the death,

o Children — $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum benefit per family
of 75% of the participating employee’s salary at the date of the death. If no spouse survives or
dies while receiving the annuity payments, each child, 18 or under, 15 eligible to receive an
annuity of $20 per menth up to the attainment of 18 years of age or the completion of hisfher
studies.
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(c)

Nonoccupaticonal

The contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death, plus an amouni equal to the
annval compensation at the time of the death.

Postretirement
»  Surviving spouse and child, 21 or under — up to 60% of the retiree’s pension.

» Other designated by the retiree — the excess, if any, of the accumulated contributicns at the
time of retirement over the total annuity benefits received before death, limited to a minimum of
$500.

Refunds — A participating employee who ceases histher employment with the Commonwealth
without right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions to the JRS, plus
any interest earned thereon.

Cost of Living Adjustment for Pension Benefits — Act No. 177 of 1997 provides, effective
Janoary 1, 1999, for increases of 3%, every three years, of the pensions paid by the JRS to those
plan members with three or more years of retirement. The act requires further legislation to grant
this increase every three years. To protect the financial health of the JRS, the increase granted in
2002 is being financed through appropriations by the general fund.

Funding Policy — The contributions to the JRS are established by law and aye not actuanally
determined. During 2009, the IRS and the Office of the Administration of Court Facilities (the
“Employer”) entered inlo an agreement to increase the Employer’s contributions from 20% to
30.34% effective on July i, 2008, Employees’ contributions consist of 8% of the employees’
monthly salary. Contributions from the Commonwealth should ultimately cover any deficiency
between the emplioyer’s and employees’ contributions and the JRS’s pension benefit obligations and
administrative costs.

TRS

Plan Description — The Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers (the “TRS™)
is a defined benefit plan administered by the Puerto Rico Teachers Retirement System and was
created by Act No. 91 of March 29, 2004, that superseded Act No. 218 of May 6, 1951. The TRS is
considered an integral part of the Commonwealth’s financial reporting and is included in the
Commonwealth’s financial statements as a pension fund. The TRS, as a governmental retirement
plan, is exciuded from the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,

The responsibility for the proper operation and administration of the TRS is vested in a Board of
Trustees {the “Board™).

The TRS is a defined benefit plan sponsored by the Commonwealth. Substantially, all active
teachers of the Commonwealthy’s Department of Education are covered by the TRS under the terms
of Act No, 91 of March 29, 2004, that superseded Act No. 218 of 1951, The new law gives the
Puerto Rico Teachers Retirement System’'s active emplovees as of March 29, 2004, the option to
participate in the plan. Employees recruited by the Puerto Rico Teachers Retirement System after
the approval of the new law become members of the plan. All active teachers of the Department of
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Education become plan members of the TRS at their date of employment. Licensed teachers
working in private schools or other educational organizations can be members of the TRS at their
own choice as long as the required ernployer and employee contributions are satisfied.

The pian members of the TRS are eligible for the benefits described below:

Retirement Annuity — Plan members are eligible for monthly benefit paymenis determined by the
application of stipulated benefit ratios to the plan member’s average compensation. Average
compensation is computed based on the highest 36 months of compensation recognized by the TRS.
The annuity for which a plan member is eligible is limited to a minimum of $4G0 per month and a
maximum of 75% of the average compensation.

The plan members are eligible for retirement annuity benefits upon complying with the folowing:

Age Years of Creditable Services Retirement Annuity Compensation

Fifty Thirly or more 75% ol average compensalion

Under fifty Thirty or more 63% ol average compensation

Sixty At least 10 but less than 25 1.8% of average compensation times years of service

Fifty At least 25 but less than 30 1.8% of average compensation times years of service

Forty-seven but At least 25 but less 95% of the annual pension that would have received
less than Fifty than 30 with 50 years of age

Deferred Retirememt Annuity — A participating employee who terminates service before age 60,
after having accumulated a minimum of ten years of creditable services, qualifies for a deferred
retirement annuity payable beginning at age 60. A participating employee who has completed 25 or
more years of creditable services and is under the age of 47 a1t termination, qualifies for a deferred
retirement annuity payable beginning at age 47. The vested rights described above are provided if
his/her contributions to the TRS are left within the TRS until the attainment of the respective
retirement age.

Occupational Disability Annuity — A participating employee, who as a direct resuit of the
performance of his/her occupation becomes disabled, is eligible for an annuity of 1.8% of average
compensation based on the highest 60 months or the number of months of creditable services, if less
than five years, recognized by the TRS, times years of creditable services; but not less than $400 per
month.

Nonoccuparional Disability Annuity — A participating employee disabled for causes not related to
his/her occupation, and with at least five years of credited service, is eligible for an annuity of 1.8%

of average compensation based on the highest 60 months recognized by the TRS, times years of
service; but not less than $400 per month.

Death Benefirs:
Pre-retirement
e The beneficiaries receive the contributions made to the plan and 2% interest accumulated as of

the date of death {after discounting debts with the TRS), plus an amount equal to the annual
compensation of the member at the time of death.
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Post-retirement

e The surviving spouse receives 50% of the retiree’s pension and if there are children under
22 years of age or disabled (until disability ceases), they receive the other 50% of the pension. If
there is no surviving spouse or children that gualify, the beneficiaries receive the excess, if any,
of the accumulated contributions at the time of retirement over the total annuity benefits
received before death, limited to a minimum of $1,000.

Refunds — A participating employee who ceases hisfher employment with the Commonwealth
without the right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the employee contributions paid
to the TRS, plus any interest earned thereon.

Early Retirement Program — On January 27, 2000, Act No. 44 was approved, which provided that
effective March 9, 2000, plan members are eligible for early retirement upon attaining the age of 50
and 28 years of services in the first year of implementation and age 50 and 25 years of service in
subsequent years. Those who select early retirement under these conditions will receive monthly
benefits equal to 75% of their average compensation, which s computed based on the highest 36
months of compensation recognized by the TRS. Effective July 31, 2001, the option for early
retirement was closed.

Special Benefits — Special benefits include the following:

e Christmas Bonus — An annval bonus of $600 for each retiree and disabled member paid each
December. The TRS pays $150 per retiree and disabled member and the remaining bonus is paid
by the Commonwealth.

s Summer Bonus — An annual bonus of $100 for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled member
paid each July. This benefit is prorated if there are multiple beneficiarics and is funded by the
Commonwealth.

o  Medication Bonus — An annual bonus of $100 for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled
member paid each July to cover health costs. Evidence of coverage is not required. This benefit
is funded by the Commoenwealth.

e Cost-of-Living Adjustments — Act No. 62 of 1992 provided, subject to the approval of the
Legislature of the Commonwealith (the “Legislature™), for increases of 3% every three years in
pensions to those plan members with three or more years of retirement. In years 1995, 1998,
2001, 2004, and 2007, the Legislature has replicated the benefit granted per Act No. 62. This
benefit is funded by the Commonwealth.

Funding Policy —The law requires the empiover to coniribute 8.3% of the applicable payroll.
Pasticipating employees are required to contribute 9% of their compensation, Commonwealth
contributions should uitimately cover any deficiency between the participating employees’
contributions and the TRS's pension benefit obligations and administrative costs. The employer and
participants’ contributions will be evaluated at least every five years.

Other relevant information on the Commonwealth's Retirement Systems is presented below (as of
June 30, 2009, for ERS, IRS, and TRS):
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(d} Membership

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits
Current participating employees

Total

ERS JRS TRS Total
104,971 373 33,224 138,568
160,053 345 46,295 206,693
263,024 718 79,519 345,261

(e) Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The Commonwealth’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation of the three pension plans for
the year ended June 30, 2009 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

ERS JRS TRS Total
Annmual required contributions 31,258,693 $ 22,195 } 393871 $1,674,761
Intercst on net pension obligation 365,838 615 80.521 446,974
Adjustment to ansual required
sponsors’ contributions (417,046) {GE8) (14,747 (432481
Annual pension cost 1.207,487 22,122 459,645 1,689,254
Statutory sponsors’ contributions made {394,509) {11,105 (172,841) (778,455)
Increase in net pension obligation 612,978 11,017 286.804 910.79%
Net pension obligation at beginning of year 4,877,846 8,203 957,382 5,843 431
Net pension obligation at end ol year $35.450.824 $ 19,220 $1.244,186 $6,754.230

The net pension obligation for ERS, JRS and TRS of $6.8 billion, are recorded in the accompanying

statement of net assets (deficit).

ERS

June 30, 2009

Profecied unit credit cost method
with strright proraiion based on
service 10 decremient

30 years closed. leve] percenlage
of the projected payrofl

28 years

Closed

Dale of latest actuarial valuation
Actuarial-cost method

Amortization method

Remairing amortization period
Amertization approach
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Jung 343, 2009

Frojected undt credit cost method
with straight proration hased on
service 1o decrement

30 vears closed, level percentage
of the projecied payrolt

17 wears

Closed

TRS

Tume 30, 2008
Entry age normal

30 vears closed, level percentage
of the projected payroll

28 vears

Closed



The annual required contribution was determined by actuarial valuations for each of the pension
plans as described helow:

ERS JAS TRS

Asset-valuation method Muarket value of assels Market valye of assets Market value of assers
Actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% 25% 25%

{nvestment rate of return 1.5 1.3 84

Projected salary increases per annum 3% {no increase i 10 3.5 % {generl wage

2009-10 and 2010-11) inflation, plus service - based
menil IRCrease)
Cost-of-diving adjustments 0.99 annually 1o approximate {199 annually 1o approximate None
e triennial increases 3% triennial increases

{f} Three Year Trend Information

The three year trend information is as follows (expressed in thousands):

ERS JRS TRS

Annual pension cost (APC):

Year ended June 30, 2009 £1,207.487 $22,122 $ 459,645

Year ended June 30, 2008 1,149 597 19,829 355,742

Year ended June 30, 2007 634,882 9,553 355,407
Percentage of APC contributed;

Year ended June 30, 2009 492 % 30.2 % 420 %

Year ended June 30, 2008 50.6 36.6 52.0

Year ended June 30, 2007 72.5 694 49.0
Net pension obligation (asset):

Year ended June 30, 2009 5,490,824 19,220 1,244,186

Year ended June 30, 2008 4,877,846 8,203 057,382

Year ended June 30, 2007 4,309,534 (4,364) 786,790

(g) Funded Status

Funded status of the pension plans as of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as
follows (expressed mn thousands):

ERS JRS TRS Total
Actuarial accrued liability  $18,943,586 $323,928 §8,722,000 $27,889 514
Actuarial value of assets [,842,143 50,566 2,158,000 4,050,709
Unfunded actuarial
accrued liability $17,101,443 $273,362 $6,564,000 $£23,938,805
Funded Ratio 970 % 15.61 % 24.74 % 14.47 %

The schedule of funding progress included as required supplementary information presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actsarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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21,

On Angust 12, 2000, Act No. 174 was approved to allow certain ERS participants to be eligible for
early retirement upon attaining at least age 55 with 235 years of service, provided they made their
election on or before April 1, 2001, Those who clected early retirement under this law will receive
monthly benefits of 75% (if 25 or more years of service and age 55, or 30 or more years of service
and age 50) or benefits of 65% (if 25 years of service by less than age 55) of their average
compensation, which is computed based on the highest 36 months of compensation recognized by
ERS. In these cases, the sponsor is responsible for contributing to ERS amounts to cover the benefit
payments and the sponsor contribution with respect to the participants covered until the participants
reach the normal retirement age.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth provides postemployment healthcare benefits through defined benefit plans that are
administered by the Retirement Systems:

Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities Medical
Insurance Plan Contribution (ERS MIPC)

he Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System Medical Insurance Plan Contribution (JRS MIPC)

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers Medical Insurance Plan Contribution
(TRS MIPC)

{a) Plans Descriptions

ERS MIPC is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plan sponsored by the Commonwealth. JRS MIPC and TRS MIPC are single employer
defined benefit OPEB plans sponsored by the Commonwealth. These OPEB plans were created
under Act No. 95 approved on June 29, 1963. Healthcare benefits are provided through insurance
companies whose premiums are paid by the retiree with the Commonwealth providing a matching
share. ERS MIPC covers substantially all full uime employees of: (1) the Commenwealth’s primary
government and (2} certain municipalities of Puerte Rico and certain component uvnits of the
Commonwealth not having their own postemployment benefit plan. JRS MIPC covers all judges of
Judiciary Branch of the Commonweaith. TRS MIPC covers all active teachers of the Department of
Education of the Commonwealth.
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Commonwealth employees become plan members upon their date of employment. Plan members
are eligible for benefits upon reaching the following age:

ERS MIPC
Police and Firemen

50 with 25 years of credited service
58 with 10 years of credited service

Other Employees

33 with 25 years of credited service
58 with 10 years of credited service

JRS MiPC

60 with 10 years of credited service

TRS MIPC

47 with 25 years of credited service
60 with 10 years of credited service

Funding Policy — The contribution requirement of ERS MIPC, JRS MIPC and TRS MIPC are
established by Act No. 93 approved on June 29, 1963. The benefits are paid directly by the
Commonwealth to the insurance providers at a rate of a maximum of $100 per month per retiree. All
these OPEB plan are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. There is no contribution requirement for
plan member during active employment. Retirees contribute the amount of the healthcare insurance
premium not covered by the Commonwealth contribution. The amount contributed during the year
ended June 30, 2009 was as follows (expressed in thousands):

ERS MIPC $86,739
JRS MIPC 261
TRS MIPC 27.823

{b) Funded Status

Funded status of the postemployment healthcare benefit plans as of Fune 30, 2009, the most recent
actuaria} valuvation date, 1s as follows (in thousands):

ERS JRS TRS
MIPC MIPC MIPC Total

Actuarial accrued liability {AAL) $1,633,159 $5,643 $750,382 $2,389,184
Actuarial value of assets -

Unfunded actvarial accrued liability  $1,633,139 535,643 $750,382 $2,389,184

The schedule of funding progress included as required supplementary information present multiyear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuanal accrued liability for benefits.
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(¢) Membership

ERS JRS TRS
MIPC MIPC MIPC Total
Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 104,971 373 33,224 138,568
Current participating employees 160,053 345 46,205 206,693
Total 265,024 718 79,519 343,261

(d) Annual OPEB costs and Net OPERB ¢bligation
The annual OPEB cost and the annual required contribution (ARC) were computed as part of an
actuarial valuation in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement No. 45 based on current years

demographic data.

The annual ARC for the postemployment healthcare benefit plans were as follows (in thousands);

ERS JRS TRS
MiPC MIPC mMipc Total
ARC
Normal costs $ 22,368 $134 $13,083 $ 35,585
Amortization of unfunded AAL 89,315 291 24,932 114,538
ARC $111,683 $425 $38,015 §150,123
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The annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation for the postemployment healthcare benefits
pians were as follows (in thousands):

ERS JRS TRS
MIPC MIPC MiPC Total
Annual OPEB cost:
ARC $111,683 $ 425 $ 38,013 $ 156,123
Interest on net OPEB cost 1,234 7 433 1,674
Adjustment to annual required
contribution (1,817) {10) (914) (2,741)
Annual OPEB cost 111,100 422 37,534 149,056
Statutory sponsors’
contributions made (86,739) (261) (27.823) {114,823
Increase in net OPEB
obligation 24 361 161 8,711 34,233
Net OPEB obligation at beginning
of year 30,850 181 11,336 42,373
Net OPEB obligation at year end $ 55,217 $ 342 $ 21,047 $ 76,606

The net OPEB obligation for ERS MIPC, JRS MIPC, and TRS MIPC totaling $76.6 million is
recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets (deficit).

(e) Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarizl valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the net value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occumence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are subject to continuous
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the

future,
ERS JRS TRS
MIFC MIPC MIPC
Date of latest actuarial valuation June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009
Actuarial-cost method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Entry age normal
cost method cost method
Amortization method Level percentage of the Level percentage of the Level pereentage of the
projected payrol! projected payrall projected payroli
Discount rate 4% 45 4G
Remaining amortization period 28 years 17 years 28 years
Amortization approach Closed Closed Closed

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government — On September 17, 2009, the Commonwealth issued Public Improvements
Refunding Bonds Series 2009 A amounting to $3,425,000. The nel proceeds were used to refund on a
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current basis a portion of the Public Improvements Refunding Bonds Series 2007 A-4 and funding a
portion of a termination payment under a certain interest rate swap agreement entered into in connection
with the issuance of the refunded bonds.

On November 17, 2009, the Commonwealth issued Public Improvements Refunding Bonds, Series 2009
B amounting $372,685,000. The net proceeds were used to refund interest on certain bonds, repay
certain advances made to the Commonwealth under a credit Jine facility and to pay capitalized interest.

On December 16, 2009, the Commonwealth issued Public Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 2009 C
amounting to $210,250,000. The net proceeds were used 10 refund interest (but not principal) on certain
bonds.

On Tuly 1, 2009, Public Buildings Authority (PBA), a blended component unii, 1ssued Government
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series P, guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
amounting to $330,935,000. The bonds were issued to refund certain bonds 1ssued under the 1995 bond
resolution, and fund swap lermination payments and related fees. On the same date, PBA elected 10
convert the Series K Term Bonds in the principal amount of $50,000,000 maturing July 1, 2027 from a
LIBOR-based variable interest rate to a fixed rate. The Series K Bonds were originally issued on
May 27, 2004 in the original amount of $347,065.000.

On July 29, 2009, PBA approved an amendment to the 564,540,000 loan with GDB, a discretely
component unit, dated February 27, 2009. In this amendment PBA accepted the terms and conditions of
a toan in a principal amount not to exceed $91,192,000 to pay the interest component of certain of its
outstanding Revenue Refunding Bonds becoming due during the twelve months after the date of the first
drawing under the loan agreement.

On October 16, 2009, PBA issued Government Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series (,
Guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico amounting to $152,154,000. The bonds were issued to
refund interest (but not principal) on certain bonds issued by PBA under the 1995, 1978 and 1970 Bond
Resolutions, repay certain advances made to PBA by GDB under a line of credit facility and pay
capitalized interest.

On July 1, 2009, Cofina made a payment to GDB, as repayment of certain loans made by GDB to
certain public corporations and agencies of the Commenwealth, amounting to $70.8 million, consisting
of $32.3 million of principal and $38.5 million of interest.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2010, Cofina issued an anticipation note to a financial institution
amounting 1o $500 million, which was repaid in February 2010, with part of the proceeds of the Sales
Tax Revenue Bonds, First Subordinate Series 2010A indicated below.

In January 2010, GDB made an advance to Cofina for $172.1 million, which will be repaid with a future
bond issuance.

On February 10, 2010, Cofina issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, First Subordinate Serics 2010A
amounting te $1,824 million. The proceeds from the issuance will be used mainly to cover cperational
expenses of the Commonwealth for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 and to fund the Puerto Rice Economic
Stimulus Fund.

On June 24, 2010, Cofina issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, First Subordinate Series 2010C amounting
to $1.619,404,596. Cofina will use the proceeds of the issvance to redeem prior to maturity the
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Series 2009A Mandatory Tender Bonds, repay certain of its outstanding obligations, and provide funds
to the Commonwealth for the authorized uses, as defined.

On June 24, 2010, Cofina issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, First Subordinate Series 2010D amounting
to $89,435,000 and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, First Subordinate Series 2010E amounting to
$92,755,000. Cofina will use the proceeds of the issuance 10 repay certain of its outstanding obligations,
and provide funds to the Commonwealth for the authorized uses, as defined.

On September 11, 2009, the Secretary of the Treasury elected to convert and remarket $93,835,000
principal amount of the Series 2007 A-4 Bonds at a Long-Term Interest Rate for a Long-Term Interest
Rate Period. The Bonds will bear interest at the Long-Term Interest Rate, as defined, to maturity (or
earlier redemption). Interest on the Bonds will be payable semi-annually on each January 1 and July 1,
commencing on January 1, 2010.

Recent Rating Action from Moody’s Investor Service — On Augpst 10, 2010, Moody’s Investor
Service (“Moody’s”) reaffirmed its “A3” rating on the Commonwealth’s general obligation bonds.
Moody’s also changed its outlook on the credit from stable to negative, indicating that the funded status
of the Puerto Rico Government Employee Retirement System represents a challenge that could affect
Puerto Rico’s credit rating in the future. The negative outlook affects general obligation bonds of the
Commonwealth, and also affects bonds whose ratings are determined by or linked to that of the
Commonwealth, such as pension funding bonds, Puerto Rico Infrastructure Finance Aunthority Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Convention Center District Authority Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds,
GDB’s 2006 AMT Senior Notes, Municipal Finance Authority Bonds, Puerto Rico Highways and
Transportation Authority Transportation Revenue Bonds, Puerto Rico Highways and Transportation
Authority Highway Revenue Bonds, and bonds backed by general fund appropriations.

Component Units
(a) GDB

On August 21, 2009, the Board of Directors of the Housing Finance Authority (HFA), a blended
component unit of GDB, authorized to Hquidate the Special Obligations Refunding Bonds — Debt
Service fund and transfer its net assets to the Affordable Housing Mortgage Subsidy Program
Stage 7 funds. HFA will use the proceeds to partially repay the amounts dve to GDB,

On December 23, 2009, GDB issued $1,013,200,000 Senior Notes, 2009 Series C and $342,867.000
Series Notes, 2009 Series D. The proceeds were used by GDB for general corporate purposes,
including, but not limited fo: increasing its investment portfolio and making loans to, and purchase
of obligations of, the Commonwealth and its public corporations, instrumentalities and
municipalities, and repaying certain cutstanding debts.

On Janvary 28, 2010, the Bank partially redeemed $263 million in notes {senior Notes 2008 A & B).

On December 23, 2009, GDB elected to convert the Adjustable Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 from
the current variable interest rate to the Fixed Rate, as defined. The Bonds will bear interest at the
Fixed Rate until maturity or earlier redemption.

On July 23, 2010, GDB issued $1,448.741,000 Senior Notes, 2010 Series A. GDB will use the
proceeds for general corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, redeem certain ouistanding
notes, increasing its investment portfolio, making loans to. and purchasing obligations of, the
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Commonwealth and iis public corporations, instrumentalities and municipalities, and repaying
certain outstanding debt.

On July 23, 2010, GDB issued $151,259,000 Senior Notes, 2010 Series B. GDB will use the
proceeds for making loans to the Commonwealth and its public corporations, instrumentalities and
municipalities to be used to finance capital expenditures.

On August 24, 2010, GDB issued $1,086.478,000 Senior Notes, 2010 Series C. GDB will use the
proceeds for general corporate purposes, inclading, but not limited to, redeem certain outstanding
notes, Increasing its investment portfolio, making loans to, and purchasing obligations of, the
Commonwealth and its public corporations, instrumentalities and municipalities, and repaying
certain outstanding debt.

On Auogust 24, 2010, GDB issued $96,411,000 Senior Notes, 2010 Series D. GDB wili use the
proceeds for making loans to the Commonwealth and its public corporations, instrumentalities and
municipalities to be used to finance capital expenditures.

(b) PREPA

On January 10, 2008, PREPA and Skanska Energy Services, LLC (“Skanska™) entered into an
Engineer Procure Construct Finance Contract for the construction of the Gasoducto del Sur Project
(the “Project™) for an original Contract Price of $74,324,259. On December 2, 2008, the Superior
Court of Ponce issned an injunction stopping all construction. On July 23, 2009, PREPA’s
Governing Board authorized the termination and settlement of the Contract. PREPA obtained title 1o
all equipment and material procured and 100% of engineering documents and all pending disputes
were settled for a lump-sum payment of $59,600,000 due to the Contractor. The Termination and
Settlement Agreement was executed on August 7, 2009.

Pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 17, 2009, PREPA sold the assets of the
Gasoducto del Sur Project to The Puerto Rico Industrial, Tourist, Educational, Medica! and
Environmental Control Facilities Financing Authority (AFICA by its Spanish acronym) for
approximately $36 million. In addition, PREPA entered into a Subordinated Loan Agreement with
GDB for $35,000,000 evidenced by a 24-month subordinated note until such time that Puerto Rico
Agqueduct and Sewer Authority (PRASA) shall purchase from AFICA the Project.

On December 16, 2009, PREPA and a financial institution entered into an agreement for a fine of
credit of $150 million to finance a portion of the cost of various projects under its capital
improvement program. This line of credit was paid with the proceeds of a bond issuance.

On March 26, 2010, PREPA 1ssued $822,210,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series XX. The proceeds
were used to pay the cost of improvements, including the repayment of lines of credit from certain
private banks and GDB used to finance a portion of said improvements, pay capitalized interest, and
for other corporate purposes,

On April 22, 2010, PREPA issued $320,175,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series YY. The proceeds
were used to finance PREPA’s capital improvement program.

On April 22, 2010, PREPA issued $631,160,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series ZZ. The proceeds
were used to pay on July 1, 2010, the interest payable on all outstanding Power Revenue Bonds
(other than the Refunded Bonds, refund certain bonds, and repay certain outstanding lines of credit
from private banks used to finance a portion of PREPA’s working capital needs.
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On May 20, 2010, PREPA issued $76,800,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series BBB. The proceeds
were used to refinance principal and interest due under certain lines of credit provided by GDB.

On April 22, 2010, PREPA issued $363,075,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series AAA. The proceeds
were used to provide funds to purchase certain of the PREPA’s outstanding Power Revenue
Refunding Bonds (the “Purchased Bonds™), and finance other proper corporate purposes, including
the termination payment in connection with swap agreements relating to such Purchased Bonds.

On May 20, 2010, PREPA issued $316,920,000 Power Revenue Bonds, Series CCC. The proceeds
were used to repay certain outstanding lines of credit from private banks and pay capitalized interest.

(c) PRASA

On September 24, 2009, PRASA issved $15 million of Seriecs GG USDA Rural Development
Program Bonds. The proceeds were used to partially repay the outstanding balance of USDA Rural
Development Program lines of credit for construction projects from GDB. The payment of principal
and interest on these bonds is guaranteed by the Commonwealth.

Act No. 75 of July 12, 2012 extended the Commonwealth guarantee over all future bonds and State
Revolving Fund Program loans that may be issued by PRASA through lune 30, 2015.

(d) PRHTA

On August 27, 2009, PRHTA extended the maturity date of the $400 million LIBOR based interest
rate bonds as follows: $300 million maturing December 21, 2009 and $100 million maturing
Angust 31, 2011. On December 21, 2009, the maturing date of the $300 million was extended to
August 30, 2011 with an option to extend the maturity untit August 30, 2013,

On August 31, 2069, the Bankruptcy Court entered judgment in favor of Redondo Construction for
approximately $22.2 million plus prejudgment interest at 6% to 6.5%. PRHTA filed several post
Judgment motions to amend judgment and to oppose prejudgment interests,

On December 11, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court concluded that one of the cases where judgment was
entered against PRHTA for approximately $10 million, was not related to the bankrupicy
proceedings. Therefore, the case was referred to the Federal District Court. The Federal District
Court will review the case and determine if the judgment entered by the Bankruptcy Court will
prevail, otherwise, additional hearings may be scheduled.

GDB agreed to exercise its option to extend until June 30, 2011 the maturity date of three non-
revolving lines of credit and onc revolving line of credit, which matured on September 2010. The
total principal amount of these four lines of credit is $322,113,000.

On June 17, 2010, PRHTA reoffered $297,945,000 Highway Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series AA.
The Series AA Bonds and the Series H Bonds were originally issued to refund certain bonds issued
under their respective resolutions. The proceeds of the reoffering will be applied to pay the purchase
price of the bonds on the conversion date.

On June 30, 2010, GDB approved non-revolving tines of credit of $3 million. Maturity date will be
December 31, 2011,

- 187 -



(e)

{f)

On June 30, 2010, GDB approved non-revolving lines of credit of $45 million. Maturity date will be
December 31, 2011.

On July 13, 2010, GDB approved non-revolving lines of credit of $63 million. The principal amount
shall mature on August 30, 2012 with an option to extend the maturity unti! August 30, 2013.

On August 27, 2010, GDB approved non-revolving lines of credit of $118.3 million. The principal
amount shall mature on August 30, 2013,

EDB

On September 30, 2009, EDB entered into an agreement with the issuer of $75 million floating rate
notes (the “Notes™) due on Sepiember 12, 2011 and owned by EDB as of June 30, 2009, tc eliminate
EDB’s right to resell the Notes to the issuer on certain dates prior to the stated maturity. In exchange
for relinguishing this right, the issuer agreed to pay additional interest of 1.5% per annum on the
Notes, raising the interest from LIBOR plus 6% to LIBOR plus 7.50% (subject to adjustment based
on the credit ratings of the issuer). As a result, on September 30, 2009, EDB recorded an unrealized
loss of approximately $2.8 miliion on this investment existing at June 30, 2009.

Public-Private Partnership Authority (APP by its Spanish name)

Pursuant to Act No.29 of June8, 2009, “Ley de Alianzas Publico-Privadas (APP)", on
December 19, 2009, GDB approved a $20 million revolving line of credit to the Public Private
Partnership Authority for operational purposes. Article 6 of Act No. 29, establishes that funds
received by the Authority from services provided and charges imposed by such Authority will be
used as repayment source,

(g) PRPA

On July 1, 2009 PRPA and GDB entered in a Fiscal Oversight Agreement in which the Authority
requested to GDB to provide financial assistance in the form of an emergency liquidity support
facility. As a condition to provide emergency liguidity support to PRPA, GDB has required PRPA to
implement a comprehensive expense reduction program, including certain fiscal oversight controls,
subject 10 laws and existing agreements of PRPA, designed to minimize future tariff increases to
households, the private sector, and to protect and improve the credit rating of PRPA.

On August 5, 2009 PRPA and GDB entered in a Letter of Credit Disbursement and Reimbursement
Agreement 1n which GDB agreed to issue a Letter of Credit in the amount of $73,066,431 in favor
of Wachovia as security for PRPA’s repayment obligation under that certain second amended and
restated credit agreement, dated as of August 5, 2009, between PRPA and Wachovia.

On November 2, 2009, Moody’s revised to negative the outlook on PRPA’s bonds and the Baa3 was
confirmed.

On November 18, 2009, the United States Bankruptcy Court ordered a Writ of Execution in the
amount of $4,422,159 plus any additional interest thereon at the rate of eight (8%) simple interest
from October 20, 2009, at the daily rate of $530.42 until paid in full by PRPA. PRPA has failed to
pay the debtor the money ordered to be paid under the Judgment, The Award of Arbitrator was no
appealable according to Section 5.13 of the Development Agreement dated October 3, 1995. The
written decision of the Independent Arbitrator selected is binding and conclusive upon the parties
and final with no night of appeal to a court of law except if such challenge is based upon grounds
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permissible for the challenge of an arbitration procedure under the state law. Also, the Decision and
Order in case before the Bankruptey Court confirm the Award of Arbitrator based in the contract
Section 5.13.

On December 22, 2009 the Federal Aviation Administration informed PRPA that the preliminary
application for LMMIA’s participation in the Airport Privatization Pilot Program was accepted for
further review. This program allows only for the Jease of the facilities to qualified concesstonaires.
Assets under this agreement may not be sold to third parties.

23. DEBT SERVICE DEPOSIT AGREEMENTS

On May 26, 2005 (but effective on July 1, 2005), the Commonwealth, PFC, and GDB (together the
Commonwealth) and Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. (Lehman) entered into Debt Service
Deposit Agreements (DSD Agreements), the objective of which was for the Commonwealth to
secure an upfront payment in exchange for granting Lehman the rights to earmnings generated from
eight of its debt service funds. On September 25, 2009, as a result of Lehman commencing a case in
the United States Bankraptcy Court for the Southern District of New York under chapter 1} of the
United States Code, Lehman selected Hexagon Securities LLC to act as the Qualified Dealer under
the DSD Agreements and delivered Qualified Securities as permitted under the DSD
Agreement. Seven of the funds are associated with the Commonwealth’s PFC bonds, presented in
the accompanying basic financial statements as Commonwealth appropriation bends, and one fund
is associated with the Commonwealth’s general obligation bonds. The upfront payment, which
amounted to $82.7 million, was received on May 26, 2005 and equaled the present valve of the
projected earnings income adjusted for credit timing risks as well as an appropriate amount of
compensation for Lehman.

With the upfront payment made as explained above, the Commonwealth delivered to Lehman the
required and scheduled debt service deposits and Lehman delivered qualified government
debentures, which will mature before the next debt service payment date at an amount
approximating such next debt service payment. Lehman will attempt to earn sufficient funds on the
debt service deposit amounts, less its cost for the gualified government debentures, to make back the
$82.7 million over time. At the same time, the Commonwealth will be managing its borrowings and
investments by increasing the predictability of its cash flows from earnings on its investments and
not for purpose of speculation. The Commonwealth acknowledges that, in exchange for the upfront
payment received, it is foregoing its right to receive investment earnings on the deposit amounts
referred to above in the future and that, by accepting the upfront payment, the Commonwealth has
minimized the risks resulting from fluctuations in interest rates dusing the term of the DSD
Agreements but also has foregone the possibility of receiving greater returns on such amounts from
such fluctuations.

Under the DSD Agreements, the Commonwealth will be exposed to the payment to Lehman of a
Termination Amount, as defined in the agreement, principally upon the occurrence of redemption or
a defeasance of the related bonds on or prior to the last scheduled deposit date. The amount of the
Termination Amount wili vary depending on various market coaditions, as defined in the DSD
Agreements. Under certain market conditions, the Termination Amount owed to Lehman by the
Commonwealth may exceed the amount of the original upfront payment received.

The $82.7 million upfront payment received by the Commonwealth was recognized as other revenue
for budgetary purposes in 2005; however, under U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
such upfront payment was deferred and is being recognized proportionalty over the future periods
the Commonwealth would have otherwise earned such interest earnings. As the effective date of

- 189 -



DSD Agreements was July 1, 20085, all of the $82.7 million upfroat payment received in 2005 had
been recorded as deferred revenue. During fiscal year 2009, approximately $6 million was
amortized into other revenue in the accompanying statement of activities.

24. DERIVATIVES

As of June 30, 2009, the Commonwealth was party to the following interest rate swap agreements
(notional amount and fair value in thousands):

Floating
Rate June 30, 2008 Fair Value
Notional Indicator Pays Receives Maturity Jure 30,
Date Amount (Pays)  Type Rate Type Rate Date 2005
Auvgust §, 2006 5 280.000 LIBOR  Fixed 37858 % Yarable 67% IM LIBOR July 1, 2021 5 {35958
August §, 2006 29,165 LIBOR Forward 383510 Swup 67% IM LIBOR July |. 2031 (2.591
Seplember 8. 2006 40.000 LIBOR Forward  3.7684 Swap 67% IM LIBOR July 1. 2031 (3.049)
Scpiember 8, 2006 174,982 LIBOR  Fixed 3.6815 Variable 67% 1M LIBOR July 1. 2028 {22,590)
April 13. 2004 56,000 LIBOR  Fixed  3.5820 Variable  59.80% 1M LIBOR + 0.25%  Juiy 1. 2024 (6,919
April 13,2004 56.000 LIBOR  Fixed 3.5590 Varable 58.30% IMLIBOR + 0.24%  July 1. 2027 (7.671)
April 13. 2004 55.975 LIBOR  Fixed 3.5750 Variable  S5830% IM LIBOR + 0.24%  july 1.2028 (8,194)
April 13, 2004 49,325 LIBOR  Fixed 3.53080 Variable 59.80% IM LIBOR + 0.25%  July 1.202] (3,884
April 13, 2004 62.000 LIBOE  Fixed 3.5000 Variable  537.3% IMLIBOR +0.24%  July 1, 2032 94120
April 13, 2004 61075 LIBOR  Fixed 3.5740 Variable  58.3% IM LIBOR + 0.24%  June 30, 203} (9.243)
April 13, 2004 S0.000 LIBOR Fixed 3.5730 Variable  58.3% IM LIBOR + 0.24%  fune 29, 2029 (7317
June 21, 2006 1.273.778 LIBOR Vanable SIFMA BMA 67% 3IM LIBOR + 0.440%%  July 1, 2035 (70.315)
SIFMA
Sepiember 8. 2006 7,403 LIBOR  Fixed 36815 Variable 67% IM LIBOR July 1, 2028 (12,636)
June 21, 2006 424,393 LIBGR Variable SIFMA  LIBOR Basis 67% 3M LIBOR + 0.4409%  July 1, 2035 (22,599)
5IFMA
August 1. 2006 32815 CH Fixed 42000 Pl CPI+.90% July 1, 201 {2,709)
August 1. 2006 32,625 CPl Fixed 43200 CPl CPI+1.02% July 1. 2020 (27714
Augast 1. 20006 31.280 CPl Fixed 42900 CPl CPI+1.006% July 1, 2019 (2.713)
August 1, 2006 ROACIN CPl Fixed 4.2600 CPI CPH.98% July 1, 2018 {2,601)
Qctoher 2, 2007 14.925 LIBOR  lixed 35180 Variable 66% M LIBOR July 1. 2029 {1,750}
Qctober 2, 2007 14915 LIBOR  Fixed 35180 Varable 66% IM LIBOR July 1, 2029 {1,748)
Ocieher 2, 2007 14.526 LIBOR  Fixed  3.5180 Variable 66% 1M LIBOR July 1, 2031 {1,900}
October 2, 2007 T.503 LIBOR  Fixed  3.5180 Variahle 66% 1M LIBOR July 1, 2034 {1.034)
October 2. 2007 7.500 LIBOR  Fixed  3.5180 Variable 66% 1M LIBOR July 1. 2033 [1.028)
Qcwober 2, 2007 7500 LIBOR  Fixed 35180 Variable 06% 1M LIBOR July 1, 2034 {1,044}
Cewber 2, 2007 7496 LIBOR  Fixed 35150 Variable 66% 1M LIBOR July 1, 2033 {1,019}
Ocwber 2, 2007 17.365 LIBOR  Fixed 35150 Variable 66% IM LIBOR July 1, 2031 (2.409}
Ocober 2, 20017 149253 LIBOR  Fixed 35180 Vanable 66% {M LIBOR Juiy I, 2029 {1.8355)
Ceiober 2, 2007 915 LIBOR  Fixed 35180 Vanable 66% 1M LIBOR July 1. 2029 {1.5384)
June 14,2007 283,333 LIBOR Variable SIFMA  LIBOR Basis 8R.4% Y SIFMA July 1, 2035 15,529
SIFMA
July 31. 207 136000 LIBOR  Fixed 492 Variable 67% 1M LIBOR Augast 1. 2057 (34,872
Cretober 2. 2007 374.204 LIBOR  Fixed 35180 Variable Go%: 1M LIBOR July 1. 2034 (47,6533
S 3733000 S (315572

The purpose of the interest rate agreements issved on April 13, 2004 in the notional amount of
$448 million was to hedge the Commonwealth’s variable rate debt exposure and the interest rate risks
associated therewith in relation to the Puerto Rico Public Improvement Refunding Bonds,
Series 2004 B,

On June 21, 2006 (with effective date of July 1, 2006), the Commonwealth entered into a basis swap
agreement in the notional amount of $1.3 billion with an amortization schedule matching the long term
maturities of outstanding general obligation and refunding bonds issued in various years from 1998 to
2005. Additional basis swap agreements are expected to cover the 2006 General Obligation Bonds
awaiting isstance. Under the terms of a master swap agreement, the Commonwealth will pay quarterly
commencing on October 1, 2006 a floating rate equal to the tax exempt Bond Market Association
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(BMA) index in exchange for receiviag a floating rate equal to 67% of the taxable LIBOR index reset
each week and a fixed rate payment of 0.44% per annum, quarierly for the term of swaps. This basis
swap provides the Commonwealth the cash flow benefit of the basis annuity in exchange for the
Commonwealth taking tax and other basis risks similar to the risks taken in its outstanding LLIBOR
hedged synthetic fixed rate Public Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 described above.

On August 2, 2006 (with effective date of August 10, 2006), the Commonwealth entered into an interest
rate swap agreement in the notional amount of $126.7 million. Said agreement is in connection with the
issuance of the Public Improvement Bonds of 2006, Series A, subject to bear interest at the Consumer
Price Index (CPI} rate. Through this agreement, the Commonwealth is required to pay a fixed interest
rate and is entitled to receive a floating interest rate eqgual to the CPI rate, each based on a notional
amount equal to the principal amount of the CP1 bonds.

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge the exposure to changes in interest rates, the
Commonwealth exposes itself 1o credit risk, market access risk, and basis risk. Credit risk is the failure
of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a
derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Commonwealth, which creates a credit risk for
the Commonwealth. When the fair value of the derivative contract 1s negative, the Commonweaith owes
to the counterparty and, therefore, does not possess credit risk. The Commonwealth minimizes the credit
risk in derivative instruments by entering info transactions with high quality counterparties whose credit
rating is acceptable under the investment policies of the Commonwealth.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial statement instrument that results from a
change in interest rates. The market risk associated with an interest rate swap contract 1s managed by
establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be
undertaken. The Commonwealth assesses interest rate cash flows risk by continually identifying and
monitoring changes in interest rate exposures that may adversely impact expected cash flows and
evaluating hedging opportunities. The Commonwealth mainiains risk management control sysiems to
monitor interest rate cash flow risk atiributable to both the Commonwealth outstanding or forecasted
debt obligations as well as the Commonwealth offsetting hedge positions.

Basis risk artses when different indexes are used in connection with a derivative. The 2006 swap
exposes the government o basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and BMA converge,
changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to
convergence, the expected cost savings may not be realized. The Commeonwealth assesses basis risk by
following the aforementioned market risks control system.

Termination risk arises when the Commonwealth or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other
fails to perform under the terms of the contract. In addition, the counterparty may terminaie the swap at
the date stipulated in the respective agreements. If at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair
value, the Commonwealth would be liable to the counterparty for that payment.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION {UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

JUNE 30, 20069

Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and s Instrumentalities (expressed in

thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

June 30, 2009
fune 30 2007
Rune 30, 2005

The Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System (expressed in thousands):

Actuariat
Valuation
Date

June 30, 2009
June 30 2007
June 30, 2005

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Juste 30, 2009

June 30 2007
June 30, 2004

See accompanying

Actuarial
Yalue
of Assets AAL
51,842 143 318,943,586
2.891.504 16,769.512
2327871 13,969,000

Actuarial
Value
of Assets AAL
$50,566 $323,928
1,473 258577
69,797 174,454

Actuarial
Value
of Assets AAL
2158000 S8.722 000
3163000 7.356.000
2403000 4,702,000

independent auditors’ report.
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UAAL

$17.101.443
13,878,011
11,641,129

UAAL

$273,302
177,104
104,637

UAAL

$6.564.000
4.553.000
2,290,000

Funded
Ratio

97 %
[7.2
16.7

Funded
Ratic

15.6 %
3L
40.0

Funded
Ratio

5%
41
51

Covered
Payroll

54,292,552
4,240,409
4,123,866

Covered
Payroll

330.587
31.256
29,331

Covered
PayroHl

S1.418.000
1.370.000
1.294,060

UAAL as a

Percentzge

of Covered
Payroll

3984 %
3268
2822

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

893.7 %
566.6
356.8

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

403 %
335
i78



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS —~ POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

JUNE 30, 2009

Employees’ Retirement Systermn of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (expressed in

thousands):

Actuariat
Valuaticn
Date

June 30, 2009
July 1, 2007

Actuariat
Valie Funded Covered
of Assets AAL UAAL Ratio Payroli
$ - $1,633.159 51,633,150 - T 54.292.552
- 1,566,809 1,566,809 . 4,246,409

The Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

June 30, 2008
June 30 2007

Aciuarial
Value Funded Covered
of Assels AAL UAAL Ratic Payrol
5 - £5.643 55,643 . T 530,587
4677 4.677 - 31,256

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

June 30, 2009
June 30 2007

Actuaarial
Value Funded Covered
of Assets AnL UAAL Ratio Payroll
5750382 5750382 - G ShAIR304
652,157 632,157 - 369,770

See accompanying independent auditors” report.
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UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

38 o
37

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

18.5 %
150

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

53 %
48



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the Commonwealth. The general fund is used to account for
rescurces fraditionally associated with government, which are not required legally or by sound financial
management 1o be accounted for in another fund. Included are transactions for services such as general
government, public safety, health, public housing and welfare, education, and economic development.
Following is the supplemental schedule of expenditures — budget and actual — general fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET BASIS — GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands)

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual
Expendilures:
Current:
General government;

Senate of Pueno Rico & 43581 % 41033 5 40,218
House of Representatives of Puerto Rico 47,746 48,128 48,128
Compiroller’'s Office 43,000 43,000 43,018
Governor's (Hiwee 4,592 4,215 G175
Oifice of Management and Budgen 35,692 35.692 52.707
Planning Board 16,269 15,631 14,631
Constructions and Land Subdivisions Appeals Boand [.414 1367 1.318
Deparument of Siate 9.573 9,602 9,175
Bepartment of the Treasury 160,369 88.972 50G8.640
Central Office of Personnel Administration 7.205 7.205 6,761
Commonwealth Elections Commission 63,539 03,531 68,241
Federal Affairs Administation 6,044 6,037 3520
General Services Administralion 371 348 521
Municipal Complaints Hearing Commission 4,935 4,892 4,882
Civil Rights Commission 1,221 1,221 1,237
Office of the Citizens Ombudsman 5.481 5481 5.499
Apellative Board of the Personnel System Administration 1,993 1.868 1.734
Rutes and Permits Administration 5918 3,895 5,322
Commeonwealth’s Coinmission o Seitle Municipal Complaims 253 205 193
Legislative Affairs Office 700 289 289
Commissions for the Public Work Relalions 2,500 2,479 2,344
Government Ethics Board 10,250 13,290 103,250
Legislaltive Affairs Office 1,810 14,810 1§.882
Office of the Superintendent of the Capitol 10,318 100,354 11,6536
Comptroter’s Special Reports Joint Commission 621 691 699
Legislative Donation Commission 20,765 {2.995) (3.013)
Coordination Office for Special Communinies of Paento Rico 9.494 9,242 8.940
Public Aflairs 4278 3,322 3,349
Govemnor's Secretary Office 10.535 13,496 13.574
Puento Rico Statistics Institute 977 - 977
Corporation “Enlace™ Cano Manidn Peda 1,500 1.5030 1.457

Total general govermment 543,254 4450317 886,368

Public Safety:

Pueno Rico General Court of Justice 357.810 356.810 381.605
Civil Defense 72 2 2
Commission of Tnvestigation, Processing and Appeals Bouard 685 682 659
Exepartment of Justice 144,779 131.975 154,308
Puerto Rico Police Depanmen 877.487 B74.006 882.794
Puerto Rico Firefighters Comps 74,640 F3.765 73,765
Puerio Rico Nationad Guard 8.250 8.250 8739
Public Service Commission 12,489 12,209 11.685
Consumer AlTairs Depaniment 15,453 15,224 15,153
Juvenile Instfutions Administraions TR, 706 86265 ELENS R
Corrections Administration 393,099 394,185 426,348
Matural Resources Administiration 49157 51,497 49 060
Departmem of Correction and Rehabilitation 4,704 4,830 4,530

- 197 -



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET BASIS — GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands)

Criginal Amended
Budget Budget Actual
Public Safety {continued).
Farcle Board 5 3,363 5 3,353 5 3.215
Forensic Sciences Instilgte 18,188 18,188 17,147
Special Prosecutor Panel 1.925 1,925 1,83
Pre-Trisl Services Office 7.515 7.849 7.621
Correciional Health 83.680 86,769 104,475
Medical Emergencies Service 28,344 30,790 37,458
Criminal justice College 7.217 8,717 8,116
Touad public safety 2167565 2,167,420 2,278,218
Health:
Environmenial Quality Board 12,027 11,998 14,0066
Diepartment of Health 311,493 343915 382,484
Pueno Rico Medical Services Administralion 16,700 16,704 16,700
bemal Health and Drug Addiction Services Administraiion 121,728 127,314 123,289
Pueno Rico Solid Waste Autherity 4,697 4,607 4,344
Puerie Rico Healib Insurance Administration 1,005,459 1,005,334 1,005,666
Total health 1,472,104 1,509,958 1,542,889
Public housmg and wellare
Office of Youih Affairs 6,278 7.388 7,896
New Busingss Training Administration 10,735 12,866 12,866
Departimient of Labor and Human Resources - 552 75,893
Labor Retations Board 1,083 1,067 951
Department of Housing 27.653 27,651 41,960
Depariment of Recreation and Spons 51,098 53,562 67,078
Administration for the Horse Racing Spon and Indusiry 4,513 4,140 4,250
Womenr's Affatrs Cominission 5,584 4,845 4,429
Olftee of the Veteran's Ombudsman 34727 3,401 3355
Department of Famiiy . .1 54,262 54,557
Fanmily and Children Adnunistration 164,854 179,655 193,816
Minors Support Administration 12,489 12,173 12,173
Yocational Rehabilitation Admimstranon 14015 14,015 14,361
Social Economic Developiment Administratioh 105,720 99.876 126,955
Office of the Disabled Persons Ombudsman 3,508 3,508 3616
Office for Elderly Affairs 3,535 3,408 3,567
Right 1o Employment Admintstration 14,895 14,595 14,295
Cantera™s Peninsula Imegral Development Company 411 411 411
ndusines lor the Biind, Mentatly Retarded, and Other
Disabled Persons of Pueno Rico 550 550 550
Patiern Cmbudsman 4,350 4,355 4,025
Administration for the Care and Development of the Childhood 16,866 15,491 15,594
Total public housing and welfare 501,760 518,251 662,904
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET BASIS — GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

(In thousands)

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual
Education:
Department of Bducation $2.460,054 $2,522,921 § 2761459
Instituie of Puerto Rican Culiure 28,258 30,289 29,296
Puerto Rico School of Plastics Arts 3.382 3.382 3.325
Swae Office for Historic Preservation 2157 2. 14% 2407
General Education Council 2,005 1,978 1,908
University of Puerte Rico 873,013 873.313 873,313
Puerto Rice Council on Higher Education 29 627 29,627 29,359
Musical Ans Cerporation 6,591 5.2, .291
Fine Arts Center Corporation 3,580 3,590 3,387
Puerto Rico Public Broadeasting Corporation 20,083 20,083 19,216
Athenaeum of Puerto Rico 500 500 500
Pucrio Rico Conservalory of Music Corporation 3,552 3,552 5,332
Tl education 3,434,816 3,501,675 3.738.043
Economic development
Department of Trarsportation and Public Works 15,587 B6,445 133,807
Depanment of Naloral and Environmental Resources 1,535 1,588 5,758
Depanment of Agriculture 21,5366 23,39] 471,188
Cooperative Enterprises Development Administration 3,667 3,667 3.579
Cooperative Enterprises Inspector’s Office 955 1,115 1.047
Rural Development Corporation 4,023 4,186 3,989
Depanment of Economic Development and Commerce 4,609 4,647 4,619
Energy AlTairs Administration 701 338 538
Puerte Rico Industrial Development Company 5,000 5,000 5,000
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico 1,060 1,000 1.000
Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority 5.000 6,900 6,900
Puerto Rico Maritime Transportation Authority 17.000 17,000 17,000
Agricultural Services and Development Administration 79152 32,737 92,737
Culebra Conservation and Development Authority 746 746 710
National Parks Company of Puerio Rico 21,859 21,959 21,206
Cerporation for the Development of the Filin Indusiry in Puerto Rico 683 650 606
Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company 4.016 5,517 5,516
Puerto Rico [nirasuuciure Financing Authonly Q0,000 90,000 90,000
Total zeonomic developmen 337,204 367 086 435,260
Intergovemmental - Municipal Service Administration 383,697 384,538 383,788
Total intergovernmeniat 383,697 384,538 383,788
Taotal expenditures $8,840,400 $8,8931.950 S 9.927.470
Operating transfer-out to other funds:
Office of Management and Budget 518,904 S 18904 b 18.9G5
Port of the Americas - 300 306
Employees™ Retirement System of the Government of Pueno Rico
and 1ts Instrumentalinies 238,093 236,593 234,492
Puernio Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers 75,548 75,548 75548
Contributions 1o Political Parties 27,055 26,176 235,876
Transler of Treasury-Transfer o Debi Service 288.000 230338 607,306

5 647.600 5 5387.850 S 962,427

See notes to independent auditors” report.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenve funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

Public Buildings Authority Special Revenue Fund: The operating fund of a blended component unit used
to account for the operation, maintenance, equipment replacement, and cther extraordinary operation and
maintenance costs of the buildings and facilities that, when consiructed, are leased to the Commonwealth’s
primary governmeni agencies.

The Children’s Trust Special Revenue Fund: The Children’s Trust special revenue fund is used to account
for the money received by the Commonwealth from a global settlement agreement dated November 23, 1998
between certain tobacco companies and certain states, territories, and other jurisdictions of the United State of
America, including the Commonwealth. The financial resources received by this fund are used to casry out
projects aimed at promoting the well-being of children and youth of Puerto Rico.

Debt Service Funds

The debi service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources predominantly for, and the
payment of, general long term bonds principal, interest, and related costs other than bonds payable from
operations of proprietary fund types, pension trust funds, and discretely presented compenent units. Long
term debt and interest due on July 1 of the following year are accounted for as a fund liability if resources are
available as of June 30 for its payment.

The Children’s Trust Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund of The Children’s Trust (a blended
component unit) accounts for the accumuiation of resources for payment of interest and principal on long
term obligations financed with moneys o be received by the Commonwealth from the global settiement
agreement signed by certain tobacco companies.

Public Buildings Authority Debt Service Fund: A blended component unit engaged in the construction
and/or acquisition of building facilities for lease mainly to the Commonwealth’s primary government
agencies. Its debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of revenue
bonds and other habilities incurred to finance the constroction of the buildings and facilities.

Puerto Rico Maritime Shipping Authority Debt Service Fund: This is the remainder of a former shipping
company owned by the Commonwezlth. Its debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for the payment of the long term liability that resulted from the sale of its marine operations. This
fund is mainly subsidized from appropriations and operating transfers from the general fund.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for the financial resources used by the primary government for the
acquisition or construction of mayor capital facilities not being financed by the Public Building Authority’s
Capital Projects Fund, proprietary fund types, pension trust funds, and discretely presented component units.
Public Building Authority’s Capital Projects Fund: The Public Building Authority’s capital projects fund

is used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
not financed by proprietary fund types, pension trust funds, and discretely presenied component units.
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Commonwealth Public Improvements Funds and Other Funds: These funds present the activities of the
capital improvements program of the Commonwealth, financed with the proceeds of the general obligation
bonds.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN COMMERCIAL BANKS
CASH AND CASH EQUEVALENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL BANKS
NVESTMENTS
RECENVARLES — Net of allowance for vacollectibles:

Acrounts

listergovernmental

Loans

Acerued inlerest

Oler
TILIE FROM:

Other Tunds

Companent units

Other governmemal entities
RESTRICTED ASSIETS:
Cash amd cash equivalents in commercial banks

Cash and cash equivakents in governmental banks
REAL ESTATE HELD FOR SALE OR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIARILITIES:
Accounis payable and secrued Habilivies
Due tn component units
Boads payable
Interast pavable

Tival Tinbitivies

FUND BALANCIES:
Reserved Tor encumbrances
Unreserved:

13k service

Specinl revenue funds

Capital projects funds
Toal fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AN FUND BALANCES

Sec accompanying independent auditors™ repor.

Dabt Service

Special Revanya Puarto Rice Tatal

Fublic The The Public Maritime Capital Projecls Manmajor
Buildings Children's Children's Buildings Shipping Commonweaith Governmental

Authority Trust Trust Authority Authority af Puerlo Rico FBA Funds
& 13.556 5 - % . § . 5. LLFAKE] 5 - & 121088
20023 26,051 - 1900 LE L] 164,384
- 36220 R - - 144,311
657 - - - 67i 1,324
3420 - - . . - 3420
- - - - - 39 - 9
- 2 448 - - . . 450
5763 - - - - - - 5.763
RUVRE - - 7735 - 3256 - 202,959
47,225 - . - . - . 47,225
T2 . . . . . 7.992
. . | 2,497 . - 45145 200,642
. - 46,432 37 - - Aty A%
(4,740 - - . . 1.853 16,593
5 A3 562,273 113,539 § | 66664 51037 5430.761 588145 S1.167,663
& 33700 S 1.9 5 - 5 - § 762 5 ARIRY 549642 ¥ o143ae2
61.934 - - - - - - 61,934
- - - 79.525% - - - 79,535
- - - 7430 48 - 74,349
1E5.634 1.099 - 53836 810 34,189 40642 359,210
6595 6,595
- - 113539 12.828 1.127 - - 127,494
188,710 61174 - - - - 245884
- - - - - MB5.477 38,503 424,480
188.710 61174 113,530 12,828 1,127 302572 38,503 BUR.A5Y
§ 304344 S 62373 113,539 § s 66 §1.937 $430.761 S8R 145 F1.167.663
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FU!

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

REVENUES:
Interest and investment carnings
Intergovernmental

Total revenges

EXPENDITURES:
Currept:
Cieneral government
Health
Education
Economic development
Intergovernmentad
Cupital outhay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Other — debt issuance costs

Toal expenditures
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transiers in
Transfers oul
Sale of caphial assels
Long term debd tssued
Bonl proceeds — premium

Total ather linancing sources

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUNID BALANCES - Beginning ol year

FUND BALANCES — End of year

See accompanying independent auditors” report.

Special Revenue

Debt Service

Puertc Rico

Public The The FPublic Maritime
Buildings Children’s Children's Buildings Shipping
Authority Trust Trust Authority Authority

& 7 S 749 5 3690 b - S 18

11,509 - . . 5,850

15.646 749 1.690 - 5877

148,898 184 7

- 608 -
4843 - -
934 - - 323
4.040 -
- 36,155 79,535 -

- - 58370 145,265 5,859
148.898 13,779 94,532 224,800 6,182
{130.252) {10.030) 190.842) {224,800} {30}5)

48 9% 90,073 228,368

20,600 R

110.54)

189,236 90,073 228,368

58.984 (10,030 1769} 3508 (305)

129,726 71.204 114.308 9,260 1,432

% 188,710 561,174 $113.539 $ 12,828 $1.127
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Total
Capitaf Projects Nonmajor
Commonwealth Governmanta!
of Puerto Rico FBA Funds

k3 18 S % 11,522
54.951 72.409

54,969 83,931

- 149,189

- - 608

- - 4,893

- 1,277
I83.575 - 187,615
158.697 103.201 201,898

- - 115.690

- - 202,494

1.973 1,973
374,245 103,201 962.637
(3119.276) (103,20 {B78.706)

- 53,060 420,497
(5.500) - (5.500)

- - 29.699
297116 - 407,657
2.549 - 2,549
294,165 53,060 £54.902
{(Z5011) (50,141) {23.804)
417.683 88,644 832,257

$ 392,572 % 3K.503 $ B3 453




NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent of the government is that the costs of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Disability Insurance: It was created by Act 139 on June 26, 1968, It is used to account for disability benefits
to remedy temporarily the loss of income as a result of disability caused by sickness or accident unrelated to
the employment.

Drivers’ Insurance: It was created by Act 428 on May 15, 1950. It is used to account for contributions made
by the drivers and their employers to provide a social security plan for the benefit of the drivers in Puerto
Rico. The plan alse includes payment of benefits for health and life insurance.

Puerto Rico Water Pollution Control Revelving Fund: It was created by Act No. 44 on June 21, 1988, as
amended. 1t is administered, pursuant to Act No. 9 of June 18, 1970, as amended, by the Puerto Rico
Environmental Quality Board (EQB). Pursuant to such Act, EQB is authorized to enter intc operating
agreements -and capitalization grant agreements with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for
lending activities.

Puerto Rico Safe Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund: [t was created by Act No. 32 on
July 7, 1997, It is admunistered, pursuant 10 Act No. 9 of June 18, 1970, as amended, by the Puerto Rico
Department of Health {DOH). Pursuant to such act, DOH, on behalf of the Commonwealth, is asthorized to
enter into operating and capitalization grant agreements with the EPA for fending activities.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS — NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalenis in commercial banks
Cash and cash equivalenis in governmental banks
Insurance premiums receivables, net
Due from component units
Accrued interest receivable
Other receivables

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Loans receivable from companent units
Due from other funds

Restricted invesimenls
Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences
Insurance benefits payable

Total current habtlities

NONCURRENT LIARILITIES —
Compensated absences

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS:
Restricted for payment of insurance benetits

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying independent auditors’ repon.

Business-Type Activities — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Puerto Rico
Puerto Rico  Safe Drinking
Water Water
Pollution Treatment
Disability Drivers’ Control Revolving

Insurance {nsurance Revolving Fund Loan Fund Total
$ 127 5 - 5 - P - 5 127
33.408 7,923 78,633 11,193 151.158
3.365 914 - - 4.279
- - 16.7110 4,103 14,813
191 - 2.014 1017 3,222
7 35 114 - 156
57,099 8.872 91.47] 16,313 173,755
- - 196,305 110,097 306,402
- 26,006 - - 26,006
29.830 - - - 29,830
- - 1 486 - 1,486
$86,92% $34.878 5289.2062 $126410 $537.479
5 107 $ 300 3 993 5 04 £ 2433
- 28 - - 28
348 - - - 348

621 320 - - 941
2,045 648 593 o4 3,750
460 402 - - 862
2,505 1.030 993 64 4.612
29,209 . - - 29,209
55.215 33,828 288.269 126,346 503,658
$84.424 $33,828 $288.269 5126346 $532,8067




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS —
NONMAJOR PRCPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Insurance premivms
Interest

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Insurance benefils
General, administrative, and other
operating expenses
Total operating ¢xpenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Contributions from ULS. government
Inlerest and invesiment eamings {losses)
Total nonoperating revenucs
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS
NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS — Beginning ol year

NET ASSETS — End of year

See accompanying independent auditors” repon.

Business-Type Activities — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Disability Drivers’
insurance  Insurance
5 13,957 $ 4813
13,757 4,813
2,871 1,218
20,166 6.081
23,037 7.899
{9,280 (3,086)
{4,317 92
(4,317} G2
(13,597 (2,994)
(13,5397 {2.994)
98.021 36,822
$ 84,424 $33.828

Puerto Rico
Puerto Rico Safe Prinking
Water Water
Pollution Treatment
Contyrol Revalving
Revolving Fund Loan Fund Total
3 - $ - $ 1857
4,659 2,104 6.763
4,659 2,104 23,333
- - 4,089
440 571 27.858
440 571 31,947
4,219 1.533 {0.614)
12,756 16,767 29,523
- - (4,225)
12,756 16,767 25,298
16,975 18,300 18,684
2,351 3,327 5,878
19,526 21.627 24,562
268,743 104,719 508,305
$288,269 $126.346 §$532,867




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

Busiress-type activities — Nonmajor enterprise funds

Puerto Rico
Puertc Rico Safe Drinking
Water Water
Pollution Treatment
Disahility Drivers' Contro} Revolving
Insurance Insurance Revolving Fuad Loan Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users 5 14414 5 5079 3 - 5 - $ 19,493
Payments to supplicrs 111,594) {2,173 - - (14,173
Payments to employees {B,874) 4,773 - - 113,647
Payments of insurance benefits {3,084) {1,248) - - 4,332y
Other payments - - - (B53) {683)
MNet cash used in operating activities (9,538) {3,120 - (653 113,342)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovermmental grants and contributions - - 12,756 16,767 29,523
Transfers from other funds - - 2,551 3,327 5,875
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - - 15,307 20,094 35,401
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on deposits and investments 1,177 G2 4,622 1,963 7854
Eoans originated - {26,006) (18,284) (21.474) 165,764}
Principal collected on loans - - 9,619 2323 11,942
Proceeds from sales and maturidies of invesiments 24,7195 - - - 24,795
Purchases of investments (25,482) - - - {25,442)
Nel cash provided by {used in) investing aclivilies 49(} {25.914) {4,043 {17,188) {46,6535)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (90,0487 (29,035) 1,264 2223 (24,596)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of yzar 62,584 36,958 07,369 §.970 175,881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year § 53,536 3 74923 3 78,633 £ 11,193 %151 285
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH USED [N OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Incomce (loss) $ (9.280) % (3,086) by 4,219 b 1.533 $ (6.614)
Adjustments to reconeile operaling income (foss)
o net cash used in operating activities:
nterests eamed on deposits 1oans and investments - - 14,659 {2,104} {6,763}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts and loans receivable 637 266 - - 923
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (245) iyt 440 {112y 292
Increase in deferred revenues - 9 - 9
Decrease in compensated abscnces {457) (4585 - - (948
Decrease in Kability for insurance benefits payable (213) (30 - - {243y
Total adjustments (258) 135 {12149 (22165 (6.728)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 (9538 3 (3121) i - % {683} ${13.342y

See accompanying independent audiloss” report.



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are nsed to account for held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity, or as an agent for
mdividuals, organizations, and other governmental units. Following are the Commonwealth’s fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds

The pension trust funds are used to account for the assets, liabilities, and net assets available for pension
benefits held in trust for the public employees of the Commonwealth.

Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS): ERS
1s the administrator of a defined benefit pension plan, which covers all regular employees of the
Commonwealth and its instrumentalities and of certain municipalities and component units not covered by
their retirement systems. On September 24, 1999, an amendment to the law that created ERS was enacted
with the purpose of establishing a new defined contribution penston plan {System 2000) for persons joining
the government on or after January 1, 2000.

Puerto Rico System of Annuities and Pensions for Teachers {TRS): TRS provides retirement benefits to
all teachers of the Department of Education of the Commonwealth, all pensioned teachers who work in the
Teachers” Association of Puerto Rico, and those who practice in private institutions accredited by the
Department of Education of Commonwealth. TRS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits,

Puerto Rico Judiciary Retirement System (JRS): JRS is administered by the ERS and covers all
individuals holding a position as Justice of the Supreme Court, Judge of the former Superior Court, Judge of
District Court, or the Municipal Judges of the Commonwealth. The system provides retirement as well as
death and disability benefits.

Agency Fund

Agency fund is used to account for assets held by the Commonwealth as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governments. This fund is custodial in nature (assets equal lizbilities) and does not
involve measurement of the results of operations.

Special Deposits: This fund acts in a fiduciary capacity in order to account for moneys received with

specified purposes for which the faw does not specify its recording in any other fund. It mainly includes
deposits under the custody of the courts of justice for aimony payments.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — PENSION TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
(In thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents in commercial banks:
Unrestricted

Cash and cash equivalents in governmental banks:
Unrestricted
Restricted

Investmenits:
Debt and eguity securities, at fair value
Cther

Receivables — net:
Accounts
Loans and advances
Accrued interest and dividends
Other

Capital assets — nel

Other assets

Total assets
ETABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Sccurities lending transactions

Other habitities
Bonds payable
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION
AND OTHER BENEFITS

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Pension Trust Funds

Employees’ Teachers’ Judiciary
Retirement Retirement  Retirement
Systemn System System
(ERS) {TRS) {JRS) Total
$ 318,856 3 65,883 $ 5467 $ 390,208
79,500 3,726 2,353 85579
1,028,878 - - 1,028,878
2,043,311 1,685,080 67,439 3,795,830
34,922 26,139 - 61,061
289,427 23,231 - 312,658
1,097,444 399,380 330 1,497,354
6,939 5,445 215 12,599
35,365 2,930 145 58,440
9,171 26,167 - 35338
43,254 876 - 44,130
5,007,007 2,238,85¢ 76,149 7,322,075
52,189 26,094 23,381 104,664
103,327 46,751 1,482 151,760
47,849 5421 720 53,500
2,961,350 - - 2.961,359
3,164,924 §1.206 25,583 3,271,773
$ 1,842,143 52,157,593 $ 50,566 54,050,302




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS — PENSION TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

Pension Trust Funds

Employees’ Teachers' Judictary
Retirement Retirement Retirement
System System System
(ERS) (TRS) (JRS) Total
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Sponsor $ 400,405 5 125,165 $ 9970 $ 535540
Participants 362,040 136,305 3,138 301,483
Special 239,400 47,693 651 287,784
Total contribulions 1,001,845 309,163 13,799 1,324,807
interest income and investment loss:
Interest 198,734 66,927 1,313 266,974
Dividends 15,774 13,194 218 29,186
Net change in fair value of investmenis (558,552) {518,862) (16,740) (1,094,154}
Investment expenses {7,589 (4,660) {170 (12,419
Net inlerest income and investment loss (351.633) {443,401) {153,379) (810,413
Other income 15,878 2,444 50 38,372
Total additions 656,090 {131,794} (1,530) 552,766
DEDUCTIONS:
Pension and other benefils 1,174,629 465,161 16,229 1,656,019
Refunds of contributions 34,530 5,313 - 30843
General and administrative 241,874 25,485 986 268,345
Total deductions 1,451,033 485859 17,215 1,964,207
NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION AND OTHER BENEFITS (764.943) (627.753) (18,745} (1,411,441
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION
AND OTHER BENEFITS:
Beginning of year 2,607,086 2,785,346 69,311 5,461,743
End of year $ 1,842,143 $2,157.593 $ 50366 $ 4,050,302

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES — AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JINE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

Balance at Balance at
June 30,2008 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2009

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN COMMERCIAL

BANKS AND U1.5. TREASURY $ 632476 $ 30238 £ - $ 662,714
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN

GOVERNMENTAL BANKS 677,515 457,886 - 1,135,401
OTHER INVESTMENTS 41,402 - 35 A66 5,936
TOTAL ASSETS $1,351,393 $488,124 % 35,466 31,804,051
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES $1,351,303 $452,658 $ - 31,804,051
TOTAL LIABILITIES $1,351,393 $452,658 $ - $ 1,804,051

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.



NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

These entities are presented because the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that their exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be musleading. These
are discretely presented in a separate column in the basic financial statements due to nature of the services
they provide. The accounting principles foliowed by each of the component units included herein may vary
depending on the type of industries they are involved in (that is, banking, construction, public utilities, and so
forth}. The detailed information for each of these entities may be obtained directly from the administrative
offices of the corresponding entities, as described in note 1 to the basic financial statements included in the
financial section of this report.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
JUNE 30, 2008

{In thousands)

s gricultural Aulomobite Cardiovascular Canler Gompany for Lha Corparstion Corporation for the Culebra
Services and Accidents Corporation of Integreal Developmanl forthe “Cafo Davelopmsnt of the Arts, Consarvation and
Devalopment Compensation Puerto Rico and the of the de Martin Fafa” Science and Film Cevelopment
Administration  Administration Caribbesn Peninsula Cantara ENLACE Project Industry of Puerto Rico Authorily
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivadents in commereial banks § 15808 S 5948 S R.ABD § 2.563 2,108 3 - 5 38
Cash and cash equvalents i governmental banks P88 - - - - 12,598 -
Tirvesimem s - bR 429 - - -
Reoeivalles — nep:
[rsenanee preniun - - - - - -
Tntergovernmental EE] -

Account s 10033 FL2H3 20,348 . - -

Loans and advances - - - N1 -
Acerved inlerest - 782 - - -
Other govermment al entities 2,162 - - 1.420 -
Other 3151 £#.560 1,290 . .
Pue from:
Primary government FE.BGG - - - - .
Component units - - - - . .
Inven ories 5,138 - 2,325 - - - -
Prepaid expenses [I%ET] - 295 37 el - .
Tenal cwrrent assets 68.460 142,941 32636 5.941 3539 12,759 38
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted assers:
Cash and cash equivalenis in commercial bonks - 462 - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalems in governmental banks - - - - - - -
Investment s - - - - . M -
Other restricted assets - - f . . . .
Trvestments - - - - - - -
Receivalles:
Latns, interest. and other - - - 6,432 - . M
Other government al agencies - - - - . . .
Other - - - - . . .
Due fram:
Primary government - - - - R . -
Component uniis - - - - . - -
Property beld for sale or Dure developmen - - - 497 - - -
Capial asseis. not being depreciated 3.n56 a0 424 B0 - - G0
Capital assels, depreciable — net 6017 8318 15,768 149 190 - 371
Deferred expenses and other assels - 26 - - - -
Total noncurrent assels 30773 0,707 i6.192 7158 1 - 1,011
TOTAL ASSETS $108,233 152,648 548,828 313,099 33,729 $13,759 $1.329
————— —————J ————— TR —_—— ] =y—

{Camtinued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NON MAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSLTS:
Cash and vash equividents in corpmercial banks
Caeshonmdd cash egoivalents i zovernmental banks
Investments
Receivatdes -—— net:
bnsurance premiut
Enterpoverimental
Acconis
Loans and advances
Acerued inteeest
Diher governmentd entities
Oiher
e fronm:
Trimary governnent
Component unils
[ventorias

Prepiid caponses
Tl enrrent assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restrictied assets:
Cashoand cash equivalents in commercial banks
Cash and cash eguivalents in govemmienial banks
Investments
Onher vestricted assels
Investments
Receivahles:
Loans, interest, me other
Cher governmental apencies
Crher
Thie from
Primaey grreerninent
Campinent units
Property held for sale or future developmem
Capital nsseis, not being depreciaed
Capital assets. depreciable — pet
Dreferred expenses and alher assens

Tewod noncuerent assets

TOTAL ASSLETS

Economic
Dovelopment
Bank for
Puerto Rico

Empleymant
and Training
Enterprisns
Corporation

% 1192 3 R
71 -
ERLO7A -
GENEN] -
2,758 -
- 1344
- a
AL |, 353
L1344 829
- a0
G482 -
6,854 -
1400844 -
R 1134
4077
ERNET 14132
& 960557 5 23RS

Pyarte Rico industrial,
Tourist, Educational, Medical,
and Environmanial, Contral
Facilities Financing Authority

3 -
LR
2059

5 9059

Farm
Insuranca
Corporalion
of Fuerto Rico

Fine Arts
Center
Corporation

Govarning
Basard
of the

5-1-1- Service

& IDaR2 7.383 5 -

. - 15,099
2563 |33 1448

- &

i : B

191 8 138
12,776 KR 29621

- S .

- - 22316
5.808 - -
27401 - -

- 3108 -

18 | 2,352 ey
415 | 7006 24390

& 21.491 24.620 Loa404t
(Continued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NON MAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSE
Cash el cash equivalents i commerial banks
Cashosand cash equivalemts in geverunental banks
Invesiments
Reeein nbles — et

Insurange premigm
imergovernmental
Accounts
1ozns andd acdvances
Acerined inigres
(nher governmemal cigities
nirer
Due fromn
P'rimary govermnent
CompHnen units
TovenLaries

Prepand expenses
Tl currem assers

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Resrteted asseis:
Cash and cash eguivalents in commrercal banks
Cashoand cash equivalents in governmental banks
Ivestimersts
N her resinened ssens
Investments
Receivahios:
Tnans. imterest, anil other
Oiher gorveramentl agencivs
Other
g Teoim:
Primary government
Cmmponent anils
Property held For sale or futare devebopinent
Cupital assels, nod being depreciated
Capital assels, depreciable — net
Diederred expenses and other assets

Total noncunen assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Institule of
Puerto Rican
Culture

B 19943
+ad

403

26,561

B239R

b 105,959

Public
Corporation for

Institutionsl Nalipnal the Buparvisicn
Trust of the Land Musizal Parks and Deposil Port of the
Natianal Guard Autherily of Arts Company of Insurance of PR Americas
of Puarto Rico Puerto Rico Corporalion Puarto Rico Cooperalives Authority
S . &M 3 2381 % 112 - 5 -
| L&19 RIE RN - 3.3 454 1.5367
50,000 - - LAY .
634 - - 531 - -
a7 6713 124 - - 3
126 58 - 1.223 -
12 Jbt2 |63 - - -
- 2414 f "i2 140 -
- 370 - - -
- 6454 - - - -
- 1.166 - 132 - -
61978 69,634 2669 4,007 T2HG AT
3,000 451 - 26,465 - -
377 - - 110645 -
- 9.6 - -
- 5931 - - -
18.258 JIBIS 153 17.053 224036
4.300 249710 i 187416 225 f
2059 - - - .
27.617 117.796 462 230034 FHOLRTO 224.0a2
5 40595 $ 187430 $ A13E § 235,841 153316 331612
(Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NON MAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (BEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{in thousands}

ASSETS

CLIRRENT ASSETS
sl sl vl egoinalents in commencial banks
Corsh ard e vopuivalents in govermmentad barks
Invesiments
Buevivithles — nei:
lissmrane prgmnm
Intergnveramensal
LATRNTTE [N
Tanares aned alvanges
Avcrisl miemest
UHber govermencnlal citivs
{Hbes
e (e
Primury gevernmyen
Comupnen anas
bvvenlaries

IMopitith eprenses
Tl conree assets

RONCTREENT ASSETS:

Rusdrivied assels:
Cushand eisd caprinalents o comesencaal banke
Cush aed viesh cguivaleris in genormmnental vk s
Invasimenis
her restracied sseis

[IRAYSN{TNTEY

Raoveivahles
L, bl

sl armd asther

Ot savcenmenial agencies

Cicher
Lo from:

Primary goserninent

Lmpuanent units
Propegey beld Tar sale or futune developrigm
Capital L, being deprecianed
LCapital ussers, depreetabhy - net
Delered capenses and other asseis

Tulal nencurnent axsels

TOF AL ARSKTS

Pusrle Rico
Puerte Rico Convenlion Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Puerio Rico Puerto Rico Puerte Rico
Conservatory Centar Council on Induslrial inlrastruclure Puerto Rice Maritime Medical Malt opolitan
of Music Digtrict Higher Davelopment Financing Land Transporiation Services Bus
Caorporation Aulhoriby Education Company Autharity administration Authority Adminigtration Authority
& 252 I s h) - b lasEy k3 - & w17 i3 133 £ - % 1081
1123 T - Ay 63 . - 12
- - . 15581 -
. - - . - 1.36) - .
1205 $5 35877 | &3 Kl 2 PRI 1.443
. - 1,689 . . R .
. - . pAL &30 . .
20 63 - - 43443 |.573
il 43 fal - (R -
1,448 N FARNT) . MRA3
’ 1LAnts . .
- - - - M A KLY
™ LI . LASS 1X10 N 10 LA TR 2454
5047 -H1L AR > 247 10,270 AU UEINT 3250 11H1,724 111615
1 - ALARA - | ¥R -
- GHRIR - Ay . 24
49,7016 - EER RN :
. - . 65,154
14,4986 -
b by .
. . | Hxd
- REX -
- - J-.614 . 6] 5435 - . -
[ER ] AR . JIRAA2 1,266,586 .03 12114 28261 1A%
47000 425 kRt 4732 il L.3T7 256538 KRS8 48,950
- 15375 Th 1378 - T
B TRT N 1131 LR 3adAseT 203,738 AT GRAH6 5160
$ 75 L4 & U A b3 0425 % PR s 34080 b 30524 L4t 5 164397 5 h24UR

(Continued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NON MAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

ASSETS

CHRRENT ASSETS:
Cagh and cash equivalents in conumercial hanks
Cash and cash equivalems in governmentid banks
Investmens
Feeevables — oot
Insurance premiun
Imergavernmental
ACCouns
Faoans and pdvamees
Aceracd interest
Other governmental enlitics
Other
e from:
Primary govermment
Cennpranen uaits
Inventories
Irepaid expenses

Total current assers
MONCURRENT AS

Ruestrivied assers
Caxhamd eash equivalems in commerciat banks

- TS

Cash and cash equivalents in aovermmental Panks

Tnyvestbems
Lrher resineled assers
Investiments
Ruceivahles:
Lavans, intergst, gand oiher
{Hher governmental ngencics
Mher
T frome
Primry goveraent
Component umiks
Propenty held Tor side or Tutore developaeni
Capital assels, non heing deprecinied
Capital nssers, deprecinbic —- net
Dreferred expenses and other assels

Towatl nemenTTem assers

TOTAL ASSETS

Fuerto Rice Puerts Rico
Municipal Pueric Rico Fublic Pueria Rico
Finance Poris Broagcasting School
Agency Authaority Carporation of Plastic Arts
B - 2019 5 2362 § 35
8,678 1,579 - 426
130,435 - - -
B 13,272 400 335
- 19,824 810 650
. . 22 R
B A.500 - -
. SLI90 - -
A3 3703 b1 -
120,150 Qo 187 4035 1446
4,235 33,245 1,104 -
- 12,723 . -
1,272,847 - 340
32,887 - - -
- 524,231 83 -
- H55.008 20.307 3,430
|7.613 1059 . .
F.327,582 1.229,256 21.494 2276
5 E456.738 5 1,325,443 b 25520 3 10,725

=217 -

Puerts Rico
Sulid Wasta
Authority

4000
£7.601

43,342
127,738
8

175.192

5 202.254

Puerto Rico

Puerto Rico

Telephone Tourism
Authority Company
& - 5 560,612
626 19,741
- 1. 160
- 5,335
- 54912
- 7
626 B8.787
12164 .
5 .
- 47,021
- 14,152
- 23,561
- A5.420
12,165 121,054
5 12,791 $ 209,841

(Continued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NON MAJOR DISCETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 20, 2009
{In thousands}

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash couivalents in commmmercial banks
Coslyand cash equivalents in governmental banks
Ivesime s
Regeivablos v nel;
fosurinee premium
Intergavernmental
Accounts
Eoans and advances
Acarucd fneresl
nher povermmental entitics
Cnher
Due from:
Pritary government
Component unils
Inveniories

Propaid expenses
Towal current assets

MNOMNCTITRRENT ASSETS:
[Testricied agrets:
Cosh s cash eaquivalents in commmaorcinl hanks
Cash and cash coumivalents in sovernmental bonks
investmaenis
(nlher restriced asseis
Investmoents
Receivables:
Loans, interest. and ather
Oiher governmental entitios
Cnher
I2oe from:
Primary govemnment
Componrent units
Real estate held for sade or funare develapiment
Capituf assets, not baeing deprecimed
Capital assets, depreciable — net
Dieferred expenses and othet assels

Taal nencirrent asscts

TOMTAL ASSIETS

Puerto Rico
Trade and

Export

Company

-l
O
o

15,489
1.3:441

L B7.000

547
76.206
47 330

226

A28, P42

Hight 1o

Employment
Administration

%]

Speacial
Communities
Perpetual

Frust

641

State MNonmajor

nsurance Componaint
Funct Uit
Corporation Totals

b 160,422 A51.652
282420 524,904
334,104 HET7.044
84,631 84,631
- 6,269
150.603
- 74,787
9.614 16,945
- 51,302
19,915 41,342
- 1031 . 496
- 67420
7.9601 24274
574 22,068
89041 21371 A0
- FOR32R0
- AUT7.0A7
- 1.ABR.026
- 72230
LOARGE 1.839.911
- 183155
- T80
- Q782
- 8,632
- 197,593
13010 2.891.0946
83.317 2.401.626
- P39 01}
a0 725 11,469 800
F PBUO3G6 130906936
(Continued



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF HET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands)

Agricultural Ay il Cardi ukar Conter Compaony for the Corporation Corparation for the
Servicas and Accidents Corporation of Integral Devalagprmant far the “Cnfic Dovelopmont of tho Arts,
Erovelopmont Compensation Puoria Hice of the Penineulo Liartin Pens” Scienca and Film Industry
Acmintateaticn Admitiettation and 1the Caribbean de Cantara ENLACE Project of Puerto Rico
LIABILITIES ARD NET ASSETS {DEFICIT)
AL
Lrurreny hab
Ace s riyaldle serued halnles L3 G hd S 5 15,124 E3 26,784 % (14} b a0 % [ty
ITepaasits dnd osereaw vibEEies - - - - - -
[RIEILETEH
Prinnary povermren - - 47,226 - - -
Lloanponent unts 1135 - 1 BN7 3234 . B
ol englies AT - 1.547 - {10 30E
et A0 - - -
curicel porison 11.354 - - -
i appropeiation beds corein portion - - . M
Townaks pulyihle, Corvcan proairon - - - - -
Awcrued o SR SRR {HWT N 22.680 - 2l 153 - 122
Faabviliny fon W ANSERG
werkamen cuo 1 - 166352 ATS - - -
rern bialvlities - - - - - -
Tonal cuvvent liabilinies L, THG Rl T i) B TSRO 4773 14012 A
Momcurreny Hubidmes:
ERIUITE IAH
Prisoary poverinwat - . . - - -
1275748 - - - - -
Llomrnueeaa il e ap eyl Basnds - - . . . .
Thords pasyuhls: . - . . . .
Aceried corppensated aiveenoes - - . -
Laher Torea- et fialalnaes - - [ I -
Tistal poncurreid hadwlnics . 127,574 - 1.854 - -
Tl bl 234804 pepal ) Nl A AN +4.773 14432 AU
MIECT ARSI CPAETOLN
Tovesied iy Caprital assees, el of cobidod deln - - 15734 2o 1
1esiricted fone:
Hrusg [IRTTFLEN LPRTIY ST A T - - - - _
il projecis - - - - -
Trehy srvice . - - . -
Adfndable boasing wod rebated Boso ssaance progeamis - - - - - -
Nioglen oo ad obher el ool pusmaese - - - - - -
W) P s - . . A7 - 12517
Llnresrrivhe (EI6, 131 {7 038 (SR, 5100 7,600 2.ERY iy
Tl e axscrs e ligie CEIn, 1310 17438 (32 THLY B, 220 2727 13,163
TOYrAL L TALRDTY AR MITE ASKTIUS (I b B3R, 233 b | 82648 i3 SR RIR i 13 (hakd 5 3724 hid 13,759

(LT B

-219 -



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUME 30, 2009

{In thousands)

Culoabrs E | Empl t Puaric Rieo Indusirial, Farm Governing
Coneervation Davalopmeant and Training Tourigt, Educational, Madieal, ineuranca Fine Arig Boeard
ond Develapmentd Bank far Entorprises and Environmanlal, Conlrol Corporailon Cenler af the
Autharlly Fuerle Rico Carparatian Facilites Financing Aulhorlly of Pusrtia Alce Corporation B-1-1- Sarvica
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
LIABILITI
kS - & - & 1315 & vl % 337 % 136 * 1033
- KES Bk - - - 297 -
- . . - - - 6,254
- Ius - - - - .
i blies - - - - 416 331
[ATL TR TR e
- TUARS - . - - -
- 1.280 - - - . -
- - THE - KRR 546 -
T WY - - - - - A -
pprapriaiioan Biseds current proartion - - - R . . -
Frotids paryahie, current per - - - - - - -
Avrued coinpen i - IR - 5680 J17
Linhility [or g e iehenE b
sk et cormporesdig clidnme - - - - - - -
Cluerenl portion of oither loag-torm liahihinies - 732 - - . 1 -
Tl corrent labilicics GiE 4351515 3302 H 5,256 106K LRI K]
- - FRTES - - . -
HEISG B 501 - -
FRLS RN - . - - -
uUorevenu - - - - - - .
Matees pacyahle - I ANHE - . . R -
Cernaerecalth appope ity bl . - - - .
Reunbs payable - - - - R . R
Averued conpemnxansd ahsenoes e 24760 B . - a2 i
e o -iern Habilklies - Ll - - -
Tomal moncurrene Taabilnes am 41682 F . KRN 42 it}
Tenal Tiakvilinbes KX w4747 [4hS1HE TE 1L I87 1714 A d
NP ASSITES (NI
T L L2410 - - 1TH 15,045 2074
ener
Ireist . . - - . - -
Lraprinidl praje - - - . - St LR
The zrvive - . . - .
A owdudle v bk Boany Wmuriunes prog s - - - . - - .
Sovndeng Joms i selwer gslgyanionnl e - . . - - - -
b spoeci e parpsecs - 9337 - - - - 1), sk
Llnresiractedd 215 BOS.074 Lh A Y] AR 10, 86 G d 15 2360060
Bt pen s ddelivin 1236 ) 1E.060 5y 68 100,305 22510 44,307
TOUAL LTATHLTITER ANEY M ARS i 1,324 & UGL55T % 23RS 5 .05 5 21 .40 2463t b sann
(Continued)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS {DEFICIT)

LIATILTE
Clurrent Hubilinies:
Avcounts payable st ace
Preparsits atrek escrerwe Frabv
e 1o
Primaty goaveriyncin
CloHmpone i s
(nher povermmenial e

<l liabilinies
Y

lys

Securities lendin i tions arul reverse
(L L R PRI T T T EY

Interest payable

Iele 28

MNaotes payable. current puo

Commpomsaeealih gppropeiation honds, Currene poron

Lirands payable, currem portion

Aconwd compensaned alene

Lindvikiey Fow awcomahile
workimoen compueasation clims

Lourren portion of aher g -renn Hahilities

Tt current imhititics

Muomcurrens liakeil

e o
Pritninry genvernisend
Uoaponent unit:

Hecurities lemding rrwnsactions and feverse
repurehase aprecienis

Titerest payable
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTC RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICITY
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009

{In thousands}
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2009
{In thousands}
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{ln thousands)
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED})

This part of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the Commonwealth’s overall financial health.

Contents . Pages
Financial Trends 228-232

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Commonwealth’s financial
performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 233-234

This schedule contains information to help the reader assess the Commonwealth’s most significant local
revenue sources.

Debt Capacity 235-236

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Commonwealih’s
current levels of cutstanding debt and the Commonwealth’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 237-239

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the Commonwealth’s financtal activities take place,

Operating Information 240

This schedule contains service data to help the reader understand how the information in the
Commonwealth’s financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules are derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reporis for the relevant year.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
{In thousands)

2009 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
Expenses:
Governmerstal activities:
General government 5 246030 $ 2392834 $ 28475096 3 2,844,494 $ 1.827.816 $ 1963879 3 2324715 $ £.420.205
Pubilic salety 2,247,480 2,161,265 1.583.782 2,217,294 2,580,951 1,950,633 1.606,272 LE83.061
Health 2,858,730 2.471,960 1.943.582 1.422.813 2.364,110 2,386,735 1,503,811 L990.852
Publie howsing and wekfare 3560871 3,194,945 3.157.877 3.287.559 1443886 2919313 3,239,366 2,803,742
Education 5,280,249 4.571.722 4.748.008 4,114,669 5.000.680 30684331 3375815 3,477.373
Feonomic developmient 719,448 471.640 554271 564,447 1,006,945 896.925 451,945 632,083
Payment of obligations of component unils 136,415 - - - . - - -
Intergovernmental 613,033 474023 593,264 440,390 - 591.237 466,762 467957
Interest and other 1128918 1.086,906 863,723 882,163 845,556 778,700 671228 646,120
Total governmental activities 19,065,556 17.025,295 16,692,103 15,769,829 | 7.069.950 15171757 14,039.914 13,330,453
Business-type activities:
Lotterics 467,788 699,005 679,274 670,425 099,407 T31.344 695,888 B3 768
Unemployment 723,287 269,924 192,484 207,483 107 907 142,652 343.243 331.754
Other 31.947 28,738 26,860 25,043 32,437 26,763 22,385 16.902
Tolal business-1ype activities 1,223,022 997,667 898.618 002,951 929 811 900,759 LOGLSI6 952,434
Total primary governiment expenses 20,288,578 18022962 17,390,721 16,672,780 17,999,761 16072516 15,101,430 14,282 877
Program revenue:
Govermnental activilies
Charges for services 758,427 664,505 TR1.724 823.993 T02.691 769.207 757416 535423
Operating grans and contributions 5541715 4311,592 4772174 4.365.7H 4,006,204 1.038.77¢ 3.830.639 3400729
Capital grants and conifibutions 110,847 137,916 257,514 100,990 [21,083 2.592.0585 173,644 1R7.512
Towal governmental activitics 6,410,989 5014013 5788412 5,295,694 4,919,978 4,400,038 4,761,399 4,123,664
Business activities:
Charges for services 1,206,080 1161084 1,140,539 1.149,426 [, E87,009 11306705 1,132,285 1.021.070
Operating grams and contnbudions 245,770 17.803 43,480 59.6103 22,315 59.728 97.033 26,509
Tolal business-Lype aclivities 1,451,850 1.238.887 1,184,019 1.209.039 1,209,324 1156433 1,229.318 |.047.57%
Nel (expense) revenue;

Governmental activities (12,654,567} (11,211.282) (10,903.691) (10,474,135) (12,149,972 (10.771,719) (9.278.515) (9,206,789
Business-type aclivities 228 828 241,220 285,401 306,088 279,313 205,674 167.802 95.155
Total primary govermment net expense § (12,425,739} ${11,670,062) ${10.618,290) S0, 168,047 S(11L,B70,459) $(101,476.043) SRTI0TIS $09,111.634)

{Continued)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) {UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

{In thousands)

Cieneral revenue:
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Income
Exgise
Sales and wse 1ax
Other

Revenue from global settllement agiecment

Unresiricted investment carnings
Revenue from component unils

Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs

Payment [ront agency fund

Speciai tlems

Gain on sale of assets

Transfers

Olher

Tulal governmental achivitics

Business-lype activities:
Unrestricted investiments earnings
Revenue from componcnt units

Ciranis and contributions not restricted 1o specifi

Transfers
Total business-type activitics
Tonal primary govemment
Chiange in net assels;
Governmentad activities
Business-lype aciivitios

Towsd primary government

Informtion for these sehedules was non available for fiscal periods prior to 2002 because was nol required prior 10 adoption of GASB Siatement No. 34

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
3 5424476 §  5.493.88] $  6488.211 5  625539] 5 5520000 % 5091080 % 4641728 S 4446570
1.118.283 1,318,866 1.475.311 2.013.008 2101206 1.924.610 1.894.729 1.713.098

1.089.073 S10.609 583.639 - - - - -
103348 11.356 4.663 13145 T.128 19.211 1055 104,517
90,073 82,608 69.604 06706 106,52 T0.420 101,849 37053
114,669 160,926 16674 117.080 116686 O60.585 £5.365 90.440
386,182 74,389 373z 6B.745 474.069 175,724 111.752 228118
15176 120,606 135916 196.721 102,691 5.706 103,423 46,117
- - - - - - . 129.600
175,102 3.749.348 {2.485} (35.640) (203514 123,785

- - - 19.588 - - - -
251170 309,815 32343 242.642 492,796 203.258 279.060 187.183
96.606 209,631 TI187 203,525 22,185 384,719 214 38t 472,642
5.964,278 12.531.435 9.639.680 9.197.146 9.249.208 7.4999.672 7.531.428 7579123
20,036 35,423 an 33065 32284 23.811 Ti.362 36,455
- - - - - - 1.038 3370
- - - - - - - 44,320
(351,170} (309.815) {342.743) 1242.6421 (492.796) (203.258) {279.060) (187.183%)
(231,134} (274,362) (305.566) 1200477} (460.512) (179.427%) {200.660) (103.038)
8.733.144 12.257 043 9.354.114 £.987.669 8.788.786 7.820.245 T.A30.768 7.476.085
(3.690.289} 620,153 (1.244.011} {1.276.989} [2.900,674) {2.772.047) (1.747.087) (1.627.600)
(2.306) (33033 120.165) 96.011 (180.99% 116,247 (32.858) {7.883)
$ (692395 S SB6.98) 5 1264176y 5 (LIBD3TRY 5 (RDB16TI) F (26558000 (L779.043) 85 (1.635.549)

{Coneluded)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) BY COMPONENT (UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
{In thousands)

2009

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets — et of relued debt § 3888495

2008

S 3979308

2067

5 3635271

2008

§ 3485882

2005

5 3774098

2004

$ 3033230

2003

3 1,909,804

2002

$ 1,909,137

Restricted 979.094 713,814 331,051 280,078 296,692 19,749 4,616

Unrestricted deficit {312.053.838) (22,385,747} (22.405,216) (20,975.523) (19,987,579 {16,789.576) (13,942,397} (12,085,385}
Ten] govermmental activities net assets (deficity § (27,186.249) 5{17.602.625) S{1E.4318.894) 5{17.209.563) S{15.916,785 S{13.656,346) §(11,952,784) 5010,171,632)
Business-type activities:

Invested in capital assets — net of refatecd debe & 682 5 674 5 674 5 1,008 % Ra7 5 1,672 % 1,805 % Itn

Restricied 29.209 33,803 910,479 947,507 R72.215 833,194 730947 769.804

Unrestricted nen assels (delict) F003E 639,680 {1533.31%) {171,015 {202.212) {3.037N {3.260) {1.675)
Tatal business-type activitics net assels 5 §39.929 5 724,163 5 757,335 $ 777.500 $ 670,850 b 851.82¢ $ 735,582 % 768,439
Primary government:

Invested in capital assets — net of refated debn & 3B80.177 5 3979982 5 3635943 $ 3486800 5 3,774.945 5 3034902 5 1,971,759 % 009447

Restricied 1,008,303 T47.617 [.241.530 1,227,585 1,168,907 853,194 756,696 774,420

Unrestricted deficit {31.243.800% (21.696.061) (22.550.034) (21, 146.538) (20,189,791 (16.793.613) {13.945.657} {12.087.000)
Total primary government nel assets tdeliciy 5 (263463207 516968462 S017.681.559)  5(16.432.063)  S(15245939)  S(12804.517)  S(11.217.202y  § (9,403,193




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (UNAUDITED)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{In thousands}

REVENULES:
Tages:
Incowne
Exgise
Sales and use 1ax
Other
Charges for services
Tnteraovernmental
Interest
Oiher

Temal revenues all sovernmental fuod 1ypes

EXPENDITURES:
Cienerit govermment
Pubiic safety
Health
Public housing and wellare
Fdugation
Eeonomic development
Intergovernmernal
Capital vuthays
Pavments of abligations of camponen wits
el service:
Prancipal
Intercst and olher

Total expenditures il governmental
fund ypes

OTHER FINANCING SCRTRCES (USESY:
Transfers in
Transfers oul
Lang-term debt issued
1¥scount on bonds isseed
Capinl Teases
Refunding Bonds issued
Sabe of capilal asses
Lipirant fee on swap agrocments
Termination foe pn swan agrecents
Myment for refinding of bongs
Bond pracecds-— preminem
Spoecial eny; payriem of debt by COFINA
Special llemy: eserow restruciuaring
Pavment 1o refonded bond cserow agent
ther

Total other finanging sourees
all povermmensl fund types

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITY

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$5191,042 §F 5493581 5 63073 5 6181995 b 5564073 5 5,061,761 34874795 5 4843852 & 4,536,840 & 4,047,138
1118283 FA0a A6 1. 475,311 2.013.998 2101216 1.924,610 1.844,720 1.703,008 1758902 1,736,539
1081918 [ LX e 383,630 - . - - - - -
103.348 11,356 4,663 15,145 7028 19211 3035 1,963 92,024 87.523
758,427 664 505 752,724 823002 702.691 750,978 THO,905 535,423 645,806 617,020
5767738 4,569,457 5. 166,604 4,663,422 4319977 3,654,766 4,107,706 3,624,358 3.807 049 2,071,528
114,699 FO0L826 F76.674 117,080 10086 38,014 B5.505 90,940 67,020 91,525
340,854 435,430 434,024 334,591 J60.338 29,426 436668 439,240 27,71t 383,548
14,676,300 13.572.589 14888612 14,155,224 13.681.709 12,099,666 P2 IE3. 423 11.658.874 11,208,442 10,854,821
1,512,900 709,408 2537 090 TARO 103 1675428 1. 797,365 1,774,156 1,299,750 730.000 B3040
2071001 234919 1,864,256 1,108,152 2409.668 1,765,199 1,424,846 1.359,250 1623362 1.310.322
1762470 2,345,650 |.548.201 1429888 2,344,522 2176741 1.908,717 1,983,727 054,563 DI2I8T
FAIR54G 3.008.684 048,583 EEAATE 3320849 2738016 2.953.189 2,720,129 235899 2102410
5053508 4,432,880 4,400,321 4 HILGBO 4.177.664 3474013 3207248 3.343.002 23084719 2.436.267
GRE.460 415976 533.253 51644 T06.066 BOR.D206 428,621 637,704 170,937 337258
613,033 R ORT 593247 409,727 - 52B.829 405,009 406, 169 222721 REREIIES
A32AR2 429 238 512524 Mirag 665630 SRETAN 1154 976 307.604 1,020,344 B33.507
F36. 45 - . . . . . - - -
482,742 263,704 D604 46,280 394,554 526,572 330,344 2062059 406,467 415,309
£004.142 L037.136 814,721 822,234 F33931 TRV [ARLREY] 614,347 845001 444,505
18, 19581 18.208.080 17.158.013 15,056,520 16435312 15,174,951 14,026,547 15,279,891t 10,306,782 10,079,628
99743068 1,305 [0 1. 165,075 EA23240 17145902 1.034.000 §.O664, 278 966,935 756,229 1L 026.581
{0,723.198) (995,215 (822330 (F ERIL59R) (1,253,216} (R30.837) (1AR5.218) {779.752) {2.864.056) (2,646.750)
5,065,925 821,363 1. 140,356 L.S18.353 1,619,562 IO F16 2,241,190 A 0782t RA4.306 474471
163715 4.060) - {323%) 16,078} (23061 (36,204) 16075y - -
292 43850 2975 4,580 347 2,300 55897 - - .
JATETS 2086.240 379,498 - - 2372689 1.754.086 1,636,835 329,370 35
ERR.040 - . - - - - - - -
35,980 - - . - - - - - -
{74670 - - - - - - - -
(ERA.O00Y - - - - - - - - -
34,842 - - - - - - . - -
. 3749348 . . . - - - -
VTA 2 - - - - - - - - -
- (4,507.828) - - - (23169104 (1.754,086) 11.60581 1) (227.369) (54,645}
FOA. 107 54,135 - - - AT TIRS - -
6838740 304,838 1.865.572 1.519.5389 2107107 3,239,392 2,542,043 LAT1T4) 11.171.430) (11456800
5 309238 020656, {303 B2 18 093 [636.496) |6 107 (200,181 5 WA (328770 § {37048

The annual speciaf iax of 1LO3%: of the assessed value of abl reat and personal property not exoneraed from taxation, cellected by the Muanicipal Revenue Callection Cemter on (he Commonswealth’s behalf, is presented as
wlergovernmental revenue from 2002 henceforth but as property Lax in prior years,

In 2002, the Commonweaith adepted GASE No. 34, This statement requires that component units be included as expenditare by function. |n prior vears, such payments were repaned as aperating wansfers-om e component wits.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
MODIFIED-ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

{In thousands)

2008 2008 2007 2006 20086 2004 2003 2002
General fund:
Reserved $ 1247214 5 723,634 3 993,320 3 770,028 $ 810344 $ 1,102,232 ¥ 262,758 % 366,588
Unreserved deficit {2,682,838) (2,494,519 (1.504,478) 1,154,383} (1,321,585} (1, 468,182y (342.941) (193,133
Total generat fund $01.435.827) S(1L770LERSY % (ALEARY § {383,733} $ (511,270 % (365950 F (R0 183) % 173,457
All other govermuental lunds:
Reserved $ 2,033,409 311667 $ 125,756 3 73,346 3 45546 S 72455 § 33047 3 72435
Unreserved reporied in:
Pebt service fumls 668132 127.577 131,782 143,732 156.564 119,830 168,928 120,216
Special revenue funds 249,891 200,929 137,286 358,452 256,949 449,455 506,252 I78.852
Capita! progect funds 434,480 520,570 233,443 219,163 437,923 744,577 228215 336,201
Total alf other governmental Tunds $ 3305912 3 B6(L749 $ 618267 3 794,693 3 896981 3 1.386.317 § 936,442 $ 027724




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

GENERAL FUND NET REVENUES FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS {UNAUDITED)

{In thousands)

Administrative measures

[ixcises on otf-shore shipments
Fim

Custom duties

From norinemal revenues

Miscellaneous

Transier from nonbudgeted funds
Electronic lotery

Trachitional loltery

Nontax revenues

Alcoholic beverages and others
Entertainment machines
Muotor vehicles

Licenscs

(hhers

Hotel rooms

5% general excisc lax
Crude oil and derived products
Stot machines
Cement

Insurance premivms
Horse races

Motor vehicle
Perroleum products
Cigarelles

General taxes - total

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

- - S 244,007 - i3 - i 5 - - 5 by -
245,750 286,890 314,253 309,958 328921 341,166 346,272 377.872 356.827 404,265
50.231 43,154 30,595 25918 34,266 26,731 9,553 14,504 4,846 3,269
205,981 330,044 588,945 335,870 363,187 367,897 355,825 92.376 361.673 407,534
169,246 210,665 238,116 314857 379,501 430,534 330,803 330,064 466,742 284,430

- 80,093 80,000 123,600 “ . - - - -
0,209 020 57,897 89,443 86,115 68,011 55,212 71,815 105,298 73,213
63.770 37,482 61,358 67,621 65.387 64.638 62,729 73.014 46.636 51,480
103,234 427,451 437.371 595.521 531,003 563,183 449,744 474,893 GL8.6T0 411,129
14123 15,182 14,805 13.518 14,200 14,528 14,804 15,179 16014 14,307
10545 11,322 12,874 13,932 14,393 15019 16,981 16,930 19,682 19,263
49,133 49,834 54,496 58.426 55638 55.06% 59,525 63,501 51,964 62,853
73.801 76.338 82,573 £5.876 84,231 B3.210 91,310 97,610 £7.600 96,423
15,194 16.686 6H4.626 20,539 24,334 20,027 25.681 20,235 1224 5,159

17.275 . - ; G056 ; ; . ) } .

525501 508972 486302 505.709 535,381 557,323 551723 193,949 - -

24,786 1,501 i8.6l9 12,925 - - - - - -
3L.R69 - 36,953 20018 76,966 85,513 23167 23,128 23,492 23,764
3531 2,707 3420 3279 3432 3,228 24919 2627 2.054 1.555
21.5364 32,845 24,290 26,771 27,317 8,324 43,055 39,052 42,060 24,516
26.351 18,893 22,033 28,872 28,865 31,463 30,786 29,321 26,783 25,245
389,995 406,252 418,024 499,252 551,181 606,662 533.957 396,667 366,341 310,920
4.659 7.046 5,005 5860 4,934 5,143 5,146 ,028 8,401 4.335
113,157 119,135 116,055 14%,487 144.733 146.527 135.267 132,399 115,124 129429
1,173,972 1,104,437 1,215,423 1,351,768 1,297,043 1,494,110 1,.351.701 B43.406 595479 527.223

{Continued)
-233 -



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

GENERAL FUND NET REVENUES FOR THE LLAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

{in thousands}

Other beverages
Beer
Distilled spirits

Alcaholic beverages —
1otal

Excise taxes — wal

Sakes and use tax
inheritance and gifl 1axes
Taxes on dividends 1o 1%
Interest subject to 17%
Tollgate tax

Withhalding to nenresidents
Partnerships

Carporations

Individuals

Incorme taxes — total
Property 1axes

Tax revenucs

From internal revenues

Total

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 16584 $ 1310 518,234 $  17.884 $ 17,428 19692 % IR745 $ 18932 519026 $ 1v248°
170065 177.448 179,737 223,309 217,508 121,902 219379 207.813 198,879 203,386
49,425 46,963 51,734 58.389 61,306 56,641 54,056 52,283 50,189 54,767
236.374 237,512 249,705 269,582 296,302 208,235 292,180 279028 268.094 277,401
L4 HL346 1,341,949 1465128 1.651.350 1.693,345 1,792,345 1.643.851 1,122,434 BG3.573 804,624
582,560 211,000 797,104
3109 1475 1,962 2825 15,691 7.129 0.466 4,663 6.600 5064
39.604 58.580 62.548 49,790 0,192 50,398 66721 138,859 59,770 48.663
674 14,782 14310 P1.278 10,108 10489 11.536 12,1712 13,657 11,738
111,130 49,511 53515 45321 31.579 22,973 27,396 25083 21,610 19.372
357.276 96,835 583,256 KRN 631,100 612,005 921.260 933.728 1.087.782 10817349
2339 3.020 2,670 2,10 3.005 3.245 2,787 2.960 1,942 1,830
L781.862 1.696.766 1.706,137 1,776,985 1.831.027 1870937 1.872.458 2002718 1,565.534 1,375,506
23520606 3,259,090 2,449,982 2.761.678 2,720,920 2,885,903 3.087.748 3071655 2,759,305 2,648,261
4.8549.120 4. 786065 4.880.380 5.173.119 5313622 5.493.079 5.899.372 6.774.338 6,427,200 5.080.460
[NAL 287 - - 1,949 1. {6 200 219 .01
6.344.398 6,204,639 6,428,083 6.910,345 7.091.198 7,374,589 7.735,669 1.995.182 7.378.682 6,891,524
6.647.632 6.632.090 6,805,454 7.505,860 7.622.201 7.937.772 8.185.413 8470575 7.997 358 1.302,653
$6.943.613 $6.962,134 $7.454,399 $7.841.742 $7.985,388 $8,305.669 $8.541,238 S8.862.451 $8,359.031 $7.710,187

Note: The net revenve presented above inelude the aciual revenue and 1he operating transfers-in from other funds presented in the statement of revenues and

expendilures — budget and actual — budget basis.

Source: Puerto Rico Treasury Depariment.

(Concluded)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(In thousands)

2009 2008 2007

Internal revenue average for two years S7.650,006 EEITIT 5 83371744
Lagal debt Tiait - 15% of internal

revenue average for 1w years 1,147,501 1,235,058 1,249,162
Maximum debt service requirement 785,298 785208 16,927
Additional legal delw service reguirement

margin 362,203 449,760 529,235
Total maximum debt service requirement

a5 @ percentage of internal revenue

average for lwo years 14.27 % 9.60 % 8.64 %

Legai debt margin ealculation for fiseal
year 2004
intarnal revenue for the year ended
June 30, 2008 3 7997,358
Interna) sevenue for the vear ended

June 30, 2009 7,302,653

Total internal revenue for the years

ended June 20, 2008 and 2009 15,300,011
Internal revenue average for the wo yenrs 7,650,006
Lezal debt limit — 15%: of inlernad

revenue average (or the (wo years 1,147,501
Maxinuem debt service requiremem 785,208

Adlditional legal debt service requirement
as a percentage of inlernal revenue

average for Lw years § 362,203

2006
8061593

1,209,239
680,142

528,497

844 %

2005
STTI9.987

1.166,998
630,685

536.313

811 %

2004
37,564,034

1,134,605
598,547

536,058

791 %

2003
$7.185,660

1.077.549
599,611

478,238

8.34 %

2002
$6,748,772

1,012,316
521,035

491,281

132 %

Sources: Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico, General obligation debt service may not exceed 5% of the average of the intemat revenues for the tast iwo fiscal years.

-235-

2001
$6,630.861

995,979
588,359

407,620

B.86 %

2000
$6,450.512

968,927
561918

407,009

B0 %



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL

BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{In thousands)

Total
Total Governmental
Debt Service Expenditures  Ratio
Fiscal year:
2009 $413,567 $19,195,811 2.2 %
2008 671,817 18,298,080 3.7
2007 606,800 17,158,013 35
2000 565,137 15,849,707 3.6
2005 491,394 16,425,312 3.0
2004 459,336 15,174,951 3.0
2003 362,136 14,926,547 2.4
2002 008,674 15,279,861 4.0
2001 538,436 10,366,782 5.2
2000 507,336 10,079,628 5.0



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Gross

Life Product

Per Capita Expectancy School Lahor Force Unemployment  (Current

Population * Income Median Age (Years)(1) Enrollment(r}) (in thousands) Rate (%) Prices 5 )**
Fiscal year:

2000 3,067 14905 (m 4.4 71.2 644.692 1,349 13.4 62.739
2008 3054 14,080 {(r} 344 77.2 685.348 1,368 1.0 60787
2007 3941 13,244 {r) 34 71.2 710.861 1.409 10.4 38,563
2006 3928 12,970 44 712 731,644 1,422 11.7 56,732
2005 3912 12.507 344 77.2 714306 1,385 10.6 53.752
2004 3895 11.724 338 772 764,801 1.360 1.4 30,709
2003 3.879 11.429 333 715 746,500 1,352 12,1 47,479
2002 3.859 10,921 329 771 808,408 1,309 123 45,071
2001 31840 10.732 32.6 769 740,124 1,278 10.5 44.047
2000 1816 10.204 22 761 745,513 1.292 11.0 41419

Source: Pueno Rico Planning Board. Department of Education, Depariment of Labor and Human Resources, and General Couneil
of Education of the Commaoenwcealth of Puerto Rico. The enrollment in private schools is an estimate.
* Population as of July 1 (in thousands}.
% Amounts expressed in millions.
(1) Based on most recent study of 2004.
(p) Preliminary figures.
{r) Revised Nigures,

- 237 -

(p)
(n
("

Real Gross
Product
{2000
Prices $)**

41,640
43222
44,475
45,009
44,785
43,950
42,795
41915
42,040
41419

(p}
(n
(r



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AVERAGE EMPLOYMENT BY SECTOR (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(In thousands}

Sector 2009 {p) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Agriculture S 19 $ 15 $ 16 £ 22 § 2% $ 25
Manufacturing 112 129 133 136 138 136
Mining | 1 I at i af
Construction 68 82 94 38 87 38
Trade 244 257 260 27 261 253
Finanece, insurance, and real estate 43 43 45 46 43 4]
Transportation, communications,
and public utilities 57 34 53 58 59 S5
Services 353 358 364 353 344 340
Governmeit (1) 271 279 2896 280 274 208
Total (2) 31,168 $1.218 $1.263 $1.256 $1.238 $1.206

(p} Preliminary figures,
af Less than 1,000,
{ry Figures revised in accardance with the Census of Population and Housing ol 2000,
{13 Includes the Cormmonwealth, its municipatities, and lederal government. and excludes public corporations.
Sources: Puerto Rico Department of Labor and Human Resowces, Household Survey, and Puerto Rico Planning Board.
{2y Totals may noi add due 1o rounding.

-238 -

(1}

2003 2002 2001 2000
% 24 5 23 $ 21 s 24
134 137 157 158

W af P af

82 84 84 B4

252 236 239 237

42 42 39 42

57 62 36 35

328 a1 208 304
269 257 248 247
$1. 188 $1.152 $1.144 $1,150




COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

TOURISM INDICATORS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2008 {p) 2008 {r) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
All otels and hosielry
FisEaton 1835733 1,196,890 2.044.087 2160455 G 2097.600 2.008.730 1,964,063 1.821.274 1836377 1.674.092
Qccupancy ates 634 % 07.6 68.7 % 679 G 677 % 68.9 % 649 % 67.8 66.7 % 0.7 %
Number of rooms 13,630 | 3,437 13,583 13607 (0 L33 (n 12766 (0 12850 (0 11739 11438 () 1462 (0

Visilors” expendituies™ R A T R T K - B 52w PR R {02 5 20M 3 2486 5021 b 2388

= Aamaunts expressed i miions of dollars,
{p} Prelinimacy fipures,
{r} Revised figures.

Sourges: Pucrte Rico Tounsm Company and Puento Rico Planning Board.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FiISCAL YEARS

Furnction

Fire protection:
Number of stations
Fire personne! and offlicers
Calls answered
Building imspections conducied
Police protectivn:
Number of stations
Police personned and offieers
Calls answered
Water system:
Cuslomers
Personnel
Waler consunption
{nmibions of cubie meters}
Electric disteihution systems:
Customers
Personngl
Electricity consamplion
{milbons of kilowait)
Electricity production
{millicns of kilowi)
Education;

Enrallment in public =chools (1)

Kindergarten 1o sixih grade
Seventh to ninth grade
Tenth o trwellth wrade

Teachers actively teaching
{in public schowl}

Enrollment in private schools:
Kindergarien (o sixth grade
Seventh w ninib grade
Tenth 1o twelith gragle

Enroliment in universities

angd colleges:

Puldlic

Private

Source: Various agencies and component units of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The etrollment in private schools is an estimaie.

2008

a5
9698
830626

193
15.834
FA5

1.265.798
5611

33

1LE58.636
9332

18,516

22651

262,23
122,506
103,258

15268

47004
33510
RIWE-R

69,4735
Foia, 143

2008

95
1,232
1L 146
71006

233
19,422
7258

1.257.336
5.E39

3

1,448,231
9.42%

19.602

23935

276,291
128.641
108,028

450164

108,724}
IRART
REMREIIY

68132
1537.306

2007

10,441
73,478

238
19,069
7.0

1,290,497
5,830

350

293, 7RE)
133,171
117.205(r)
45,124

103,441
332941
22968r)

66,990
138,412

2006

94
2233

10,435
F3.360

238
20,552
1140

1.285.732
5.544

365

1,450,227
9.541

20620

24.870

6073
135166

46,064

)7 3380
32RHMM)
37.9460r)

GREL3
140.734

{13 The enrollment in public schools for 2007-2008 don't incluede the special education by grade.

(1) Revised figures
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2005

94
2,233
11,514
T1.610

334
20,806
7078

1,251,699
5.454

3536

1.438.699
2,712

20,507

24.500

333.270
137,717
FIR. 461
46,858

S3.548(n)
27.612(r)
23.068(T)

71.044
136,650

2004

98
1.851
10,716
36,093

23
21,185
6,907

1,256,981
5442

354

1,419,602
Q635

20,260

24,100

321653
142305
[ 16,529
47286

1H7.622(r)
37.226(r)
29,2260

74,156
132,735

2003

93
1,594
12,340
S1.750

228
209
5538

1.238.461
5,580

350

1.401.301
9,646

19,887

23717

326,600
146,890
1E8.5149

46,772

987191
I8}
24,5151

4,801
125,041

2002

93
1867
13,256
4E415

235
20,468
4.673

1,209,834
5633

349

1.383.888
9.652

16,130

22514

334929
146,837
117,072

46,591

L5655
41,273
264201

TRO74
117,578

2001

92
1832
14.271
31,693

239
20,500
4,957

F9R 038

5525

348

365,068

9,582
18.723

22,132

341A67
145,858
115,162

45968

90,577
27360603
21.694(r)

73846
160,704

20090

96
1,518
.68
44,306

238
20,822
50059

L7909
5,606

350

1,344,907
0,442

18,144

21,461

347470
145908
118,498

44011

MLATNH
27,3660
216941

T3.846
100,704



